
 

 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
21 October 2013 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712589 

 e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on 
TUESDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2013 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, COUNTY HALL, 
RUTHIN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 

 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 

THE MEETING 

 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 

 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 3 - 22) 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 24 September, 2013 
(copy enclosed). 

 

5 FAITH BASED PROVISION  (Pages 23 - 360) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Eryl Williams (copy enclosed) which 
provides the findings of the formal consultation on the faith review and to 
consider whether to proceed to the publication of the proposal by way of a 
statutory notice. 

 

6 FORMAL CONSULTATION - YSGOL LLANBEDR  (Pages 361 - 388) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Eryl Williams (copy enclosed) to update 
Cabinet Members of the discussions with the Church in Wales Diocesan 
Authority regarding the Ruthin Primary review and the proposal to close Ysgol 
Llanbedr. 

 

7 FINANCE REPORT UPDATE  (Pages 389 - 402) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill (copy enclosed) 
which provides the latest financial position and progress against the agreed 
budget strategy. 

 

8 GIFT TENDER EXEMPTION  (Pages 403 - 410) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Bobby Feeley to approve the GIFT  Tender 
Exemption and to award the contract. 

 

9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 411 - 416) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the 
contents. 

 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 

Councillors 

 
Hugh Evans 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Eryl Williams 
Bobby Feeley 
 

Hugh Irving 
Huw Jones 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
 

 
COPIES TO: 

 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in Conference Room 1a, County Hall, Ruthin on 
Tuesday, 24 September 2013 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Hugh Evans (Chair), Julian Thompson-Hill, Eryl Williams, Bobby Feeley, 
Hugh Irving, Huw Jones, Barbara Smith and David Smith. 
Councillor David Simmons, Joan Butterfield, Meirick Lloyd Davies, Jason McLellan, 
Richard Davies and Raymond Bartley attended as observers. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (MM), Corporate Directors: Economic and Community Ambition (RM), 
Modernisation and Wellbeing (SE), Head of Legal and Democratic Services (GW), Head 
of Finance and Assets (PM), Head of Education (KE), Head of Business Planning and 
Performance (AS), Head of Housing and Community Development (PM), Head of 
Planning and Public Protection (GB), Democratic Services Manager (SP) and 
Administrative Officer (CIW).     
 

 
The Leader extended a welcome to the four graduates and law student who were 
attending the meeting of Cabinet as observers. 
 
Councillor D.I. Smith provided a progress update on the Investigators Report on the floods 
at Glasdir, Ruthin which had been presented to County Council on the 10th September, 
2013.  He explained that the agreed recommendations were being progressed and that 
Assembly Member, Alun Davies, Minister for Natural Resources and Food had visited the 
site on the September, 2013 to meet the residents.  Funding issues had been discussed 
and Taylor Wimpey had agreed to provide a third of the required funding, Finance Officers 
had confirmed a further third would be made available from Denbighshire and discussions 
regarding the remaining third were continuing with Welsh Government.  Members were 
informed that sand bags had been placed in situ prior to construction of a bund which was 
currently at the design stage. 
 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
No apologies received. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No Members declared any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at the meeting. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS  
 
No items were raised which in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act, 1972. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



 
4 MINUTES  

 
The Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on Tuesday, 30th July, 2013 were 
submitted.    
 
Matters arising:- 
 
5.  Food Review Task and Finish Group – Councillor D.I. Smith confirmed that 
recommendations of the Group had now been implemented. 
 
9.  North Denbighshire Office Accommodation Review – Councillor B.A. Smith 
explained that it had been agreed that in the event of the Ty Nant Officers not being 
rented out a further report would be presented to Cabinet.  Councillor H.C. Irving 
confirmed that the Ty Nant building would not be vacated until confirmation of 
further usage was received.  
  
14. Corwen Flood Risk Management Scheme – Award of Contract – Councillor 
H.Ll. Jones confirmed that the Scheme would commence on the 7th October, 2013. 
 
RESOLVED: - that the Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 30th July, 2013 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Leader. 
 

5 FINANCE REPORT UPDATE  
 
Councillor J. Thompson Hill presented the report, circulated previously, which 
provided an update on the Council’s current financial position. 
 
The report summarised the Council’s revenue budget and savings for 2013/14, 
Appendix 1, the net budget being £192m.  There had been a forecast under spend 
on service and corporate budgets of £501k at the end of August which represented 
a variance of 0.55%.  School budgets forecast a positive movement on balances of 
£190k, £352k last month.  
 
Appendix 2 detailed the progress to date against the savings highlighted in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan for 2013/13.  A savings target of £3.061m had been 
agreed for the year and currently 54%, £1.666m, had been achieved.  
 
It was explained that narrative supporting service forecasts would be necessary as 
summarised in the report:- 
 
Communications, Marketing & Leisure - the current forecast had been to break-
even but there were several volatile budgets dependent on meeting large income 
targets. Based on present figures all budgets were on target. 
 
Customer & Education Support – There had been a projected under spend of 
£110k, £58k related to delays in the full implementation of the Customer Services 
restructure. 
 

Page 4



Business Transformation/ICT - the forecast had been the budget would be 
slightly under target by £1k.  Any year end under spend from the service could be 
utilised to fund gaps in the next phase of the Council’s ICT strategy, particular 
reference being made to the Microsoft Enterprise Agreement. 
 
Highways & Environment Services – a forecast over spend of £194k with the 
majority relating to School Transport Service.  This had been influenced by the 
number of school days in the 2013/14 financial year partly due to the timing of the 
Easter break.  Pressure had been lessened following a review of reserves resulting 
in the release of £106k.  This pressure had been reduced following a review of 
reserves resulting in the release of £106k, mainly the Yellow Bus Reserve of £101k 
which was now no longer required. 
 
Adult & Business Services – the 2013/14 outturn was currently forecast to be a 
£45k under spent.  The national requirement to protect social care budgets had 
resulted in additional funding within the year of £905k.  
 
Children & Family Services – an under spend of £539k had been reported with 
£285k relating to staffing budgets, a £94k under spend on specialist placements, 
£61k identified for a fostering placement which was no longer required and £99k of 
the under spend rolled forward from 12/13 which had not yet been committed.  
Savings had been proposed for 2014/15 around some of these budgets and 
discussions were taking place with Leisure Services to consider future service 
delivery models to provide active programmes for Children with Disabilities (CWD).  
The service proposal had been that £250k of any under spend be set aside in a 
CWD Reserve for future use. 
 
Schools - the projection for school balances had been £3.060m at the end of 
August, a positive movement of £190k on balances brought forward from 2012/13 
of £2.870m. The outturn included protection of £775k provided as transitional 
financial assistance for schools affected by funding formula changes. 
 
With regard to Corporate budgets there had been a forecast to generate an under 
spend of £350k.  There were uncertainties around centrally held allocations for 
energy, pensions and other costs but the availability of £350k had been assumed, 
however, if financial contingencies were required the assumption would be 
reviewed. 
 
Corporate Plan reserves of £10.3m had been carried forward into 2013/14, leaving 
a cash requirement of approximately £11.7m required to deliver the Plan.  The 
2013/14 budget specifically earmarked new budget resources of £600k to be 
allocated to the Corporate Plan Reserve and made assumptions that at least £1.3m 
of previously identified resources would be transferred to fund the Corporate Plan if 
circumstances allowed. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget had been included within Appendix 1, 
but these were separate funds only to be utilised in the provision of council housing 
services.  The latest revenue position assumed a £5k increase in balances at year 
end, an improvement of £107k on the budgeted assumption.  The Housing Capital 
Plan remained on target to spend £8.1m with the Welsh Housing Quality Standard 

Page 5



being achieved by the end of 2013/14.  In response to a question from the Leader, 
Councillor Thompson-Hill detailed the changes to the Housing Revenue Account                                      
and explained that it had been assumed that the Housing Subsidy System in Wales 
would be abolished from April, 2014, and negotiations around a possible buy-out 
were currently on-going. 
 
Details of the Capital Plan had been enclosed as Appendix 3.  The approved 
general Capital Plan was £45.8m and expenditure to the end of August was £7.6m.  
The Plan had increase by £5m from last month as additional grants had been 
confirmed.  Appendix 3 detailed the proposed expenditure of £6.8m on the 
Corporate Plan, and Appendix 4 provided an update of the major capital projects 
within the Capital Plan. 
 
A synopsis of the Equality Impact Assessment had been submitted to Council in 
February, 2013 and details of the consultation process, potential risks and 
measures implemented to address them and the Chief Finance Officer Statement 
had been included in the report. 
 
In reply to a request from the Leader, the HFA agreed that an update could be 
provided at the forthcoming Work Shop in respect of the funding requirement and 
commitment to meet the objectives and aims of the Corporate Plan.   
 
Councillor D.I. Smith responded to questions from Members and explained that 
TAITH would, as part of a review of its structure, be jointly examining the provision 
of travel to schools and colleges across North Wales.  Members agreed with the 
suggestion by the Chief Executive that further information be sought from TAITH, 
and an update report in respect of Post 16 transport provision be presented to the 
next Cabinet meeting. 
 
RESOLVED - that:-  
 
(a) Cabinet receives the report and notes the progress against the agreed budget 

strategy, and 
(b) an update report in respect of Post 16 transport provision be presented to the 

next Cabinet meeting. 
 

6 ANNUAL: PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2012/13  
 
Councillor Barbara Smith presented the report, circulated previously, which 
provided Cabinet with the opportunity to scrutinise the Council’s draft Annual 
Performance Review for 2012/13, Appendix I, prior to a final draft being presented 
to Council in October, 2013. 
 
The Corporate Plan 2012-17 outlined the Council’s strategic direction and priorities 
for the five-year period.  The Authority’s intentions to assist in the delivery of the 
priorities had been set out in Annual Service Plans and the Corporate Plan Annual 
Deliver Document.   The Council also had a number of equality objectives within its 
Strategic Equality Plan, and a set of Outcome Agreements with the Welsh 
Government.   

Page 6



The Annual Performance Review provided a retrospective evaluation of the 
Authority’s success in delivering against its commitments during 2012-13, and of 
whether it had successfully fulfilled its obligation to make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement.  Problems had been encountered in obtaining information 
due to the more sophisticated performance management system based on 
excellence thresholds rather than locally-set targets.   
 
In reply to questions from Members the HBPP explained that information which had 
been unavailable, related mainly to the Residents Survey and had been noted as 
“tbc”, would be incorporated in the report prior to its presentation to Full Council.  
He confirmed that the Council were obliged to publish the Annual Performance 
Review for their Regulators who would expect the Authority to provide a 
comprehensive and substantial amount of information in relation to its performance.  
Members were reminded that this was the first year of the Plan and next year’s 
figures could be utilised for comparison purposes.  It was explained that the colours 
provided in the report could be used for analysis purposes while the figures 
produced depicted trends.  The HBPP highlighted the need to recognise the 
Council’s position in terms of ambitions, targets and to reflect the absolute quality in 
relation to other Authorities and organisations.  Councillor H.Ll. Jones emphasised 
the importance of the inclusion of the development of rural areas and made 
reference to the indicators relating to Rural Denbighshire.   
 
An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA), Appendix 2, had been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan and had been presented to Council when approved in October, 
2012. 
 
The performance information in the document had been provided by services and 
drawn from the Ffynnon performance management system.  Consultation had taken 
place with the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and the Performance Scrutiny 
Committee.  The risk of any significantly negative reports from external regulators 
had been identified in the Corporate Risk Register.  Failure to publish the Annual 
Review by the 31st October deadline would be likely to result in statutory 
recommendations from the Wales Audit Office, with significant implications for the 
reputation of the Council. 
 
The Chief Executive explained that the Authority had raised its expectations and 
moved away from traditional targets and therefore an increase in red indicators 
could be expected.  He confirmed that red indicators were not necessarily an 
indication that the Authority were under achieving but that the Council had set more 
challenging targets than previously and had become more aspirational.  The 
importance of measuring excellence in comparison with the wider private sector 
public standard was emphasised if higher standards were to be achieved by the 
Authority.  The Chief Executive acknowledge there were areas which required 
addressing, particular reference was made to the undertaking of Equality 
Assessments and provision of raised kerbs, and failure to address such issues was 
unacceptable. 
 
The HLDS responded to concerns raised by a number of Members and explained 
that timescales did not permit for the inclusion of an update from Scrutiny in the 
report being presented to Cabinet.  The Chief Executive suggested that the 

Page 7



concerns raised be reviewed and that the possibility of inviting the Chair, or a 
representative, of Scrutiny to provide an update at Cabinet be examined. 
 
RESOLVED - that Cabinet agrees that the draft 2012/13 Annual Performance 
Review be submitted to County Council for approval. 
 

7 SUPPORTED HOUSING PROTOCOL  
 
Councillor Bobby Feeley presented the report, circulated previously, which set out a 
process to enable the Council to take fair and balanced decisions about the location 
of “supported housing”. 
 
Councillors R.L. Feeley and H.C. Irving respectively introduced and provided a 
detailed summary of the report.  It was explained that a decision had been required 
on the adoption of the protocol, Appendix 1.  Members were informed that SH could 
provide schemes for a wide range of groups which included:- 
 

• Frail older people 

• People with medical conditions 

• Young people not yet ready for independent living 

• People fleeing domestic violence 

• Those leaving institutions, including ex-offenders, and 

• Those with alcohol and drug related issues 

Details of bodies entitled to submit proposals for SH had been outlined in the report 
and included external bodies such as the Bail Accommodation and Support 
Service, Probation or BCUHB.  Confirmation was provided that in all cases 
supported housing would be for local people.  Members concurred with the views 
expressed by Councillor Feeley that the operation of the protocol and Panel be 
monitored and reviewed after a period of twelve months with the outcome of the 
review reported to Cabinet. 
 
Finding suitable locations for SH could be highly contentious in local communities 
for a range of reasons.  It could cause conflict, lead to distrust of the Council and to 
behaviours which were discriminatory, including against groups protected by the 
Equalities Act 2010.  The need for suitable accommodation for local vulnerable 
individuals was emphasised together with the consequences of not meeting the 
needs. 
 
The CDMW confirmed that there was currently no formal system for the Council to 
consider all perspectives and take a reasoned decision about a proposed location.  
The protocol, Appendix 1 had been developed by officers in conjunction with the 
two relevant Lead Members, representatives of the political groups and the 
Homelessness Champion.  A similar protocol developed in Wigan had been utilised 
but had been based on the experience of Denbighshire officers and Members over 
a number of years and through both straightforward and highly contentious 
proposals. 
 
The protocol set out a carefully considered approach to making decisions about the 
proposed location of supported housing.  Key features included:- 

Page 8



 

• defining what information would be shared with whom and at what stage. 

• a structured approach to collating information about a particular site 
proposed and its strengths and weaknesses. 

• a structured approach identifying any planning issues at an early stage. 

• clear approach identifying the potential “sensitivity” of a potential scheme in 
the interests of ensuring fair and considered treatment for all involved. 

• recommended approaches for sharing information about schemes with those 
most affected. 

• the establishment of a “Supported Housing Panel”, reporting to Cabinet, 
which would make recommendations on a proposed location having considered all 
information and perspectives. 
 
Details of costs, the consultation process undertaken and the risks and measures 
implemented to address them had been included in the report.  A copy of the 
Equality Impact Assessment had been included as an Appendix to the report. 
 
Members concurred with the views expressed by Councillor Feeley that the 
operation of the protocol and Panel be monitored and reviewed after a period of 
twelve months with the outcome of the review reported to Cabinet. 
 
Councillor J. Butterfield explained that the Rhyl Member Area Group (RMAG) had        
considered and opposed the scheme, expressing the view that the Rhyl residents 
and Elected Members had limited involvement in the formation of the scheme and 
its eventual implementation.  She explained that the West End of Rhyl already had 
an excessive number of housing schemes which included a large number of houses 
of multiple occupancy.  Councillor Butterfield acknowledged the requirement for the 
provision of housing for people with special needs.  However, emphasised the need 
for an audit be conducted to establish the number and location of supported 
housing schemes which currently exist in Denbighshire, prior to any decision being 
taken regarding the adoption of the protocol. 
 
Councillor D. Simmons endorsed the views expressed by Councillor Butterfield and 
highlighted the importance of the inclusion of Social Registered Landlords on the 
Register. The Chief Executive agreed that the issue of placements within the 
private sector was a matter which could be examined. 
 
The CDMW provided confirmation that issues raised by the RMAG had been 
reflected in the consultation section of the report.  She explained that Elected 
Members on the Working Group had expressed the view that adopting a protocol 
which clarified the process of looking at locating schemes would be a significant 
improvement on the current situation where there were no guidelines.  Following 
discussion with the RMAG a two stage early consultation process with Local Ward 
Members had now been implemented, together with, a cross County Panel of 
Elected Members who would examine proposals objectively, consistently and 
endeavour to locate sensitive developments equitably across the County. 
 
In response to questions from Members, the HLDS provided a summary of the 
Terms of Reference of the Panel, included as Appendix 4 to the Protocol.  The 
Leader expressed concern regarding the present position and explained that the 

Page 9



adoption of the Protocol would provide clarity, guidance and parity with regard to 
the consideration of future schemes within the County.  Cabinet Members 
supported the views expressed by the Leader regarding the need for the 
implementation of a Protocol, and that an audit of the number and location of 
supported housing schemes which currently exist in Denbighshire be conducted. 
 
The Chief Executive explained that the issue of the provision of supported housing 
was likely to become more prevalent, and Members were informed of instances 
which had occurred which were unacceptable and had resulted in local and 
inappropriate campaigning.  He explained that a lack of Protocol had created 
problems and emphasised the importance of the introducing a Protocol to ensure a 
more transparent approach and provide the opportunity for scrutinisation and 
challenge.  The Chief Executive fully supported the introduction of a Protocol and 
Panel which could be monitored and reviewed after a period of twelve months with 
the outcome of the review reported to Cabinet. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Butterfield, the CDMW explained that the 
establishment of a protocol to monitor Social Landlords would be need to be 
undertaken within a separate initiative. 
 
During the ensuing discussion the HLDS summarised the views expressed by 
Members during the discussion and it was:- 
 
RESOLVED - that Cabinet agrees:- 
 

(a) the adoption of the protocol attached as Appendix 1. 
(b) the operation of the protocol and Panel be monitored and reviewed after a 

period of twelve months with the outcome of the review reported to Cabinet, 
and 

(c) an audit of the number and location of supported housing schemes which 
currently exist in Denbighshire be conducted. 

 
8 PROPOSED CORPORATE SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PANEL  

 
Councillor Bobby Feeley presented the report, circulated previously, on the 
proposal for the adoption of a Corporate Safeguarding Policy and the establishment 
of a joint member/officer Corporate Safeguarding Panel (CSP). 
 
Councillor Feeley explained that Denbighshire’s proactive approach to ensuring 
compliance with its safeguarding responsibilities had been outlined in the report.  
Despite a range of approaches Denbighshire could not be confident that robust 
safeguarding practice had been embedded across all the Council’s functions.  
Details of the development of approaches adopted to maintain a corporate profile 
and overview for safeguarding issues had been provided in detail. 
 
It was explained by the CDMW that the key responsibility to be discharged across a 
complex multi-functional organisation had never been clarified or separately 
resourced.  Successive authoritative reports, which included the Waterhouse, 
Laming, Pembrokeshire, had made it abundantly clear that challenges to the 

Page 10



resilience of safeguarding arrangements evolved in many different places, and 
safeguarding had to be “Everybody’s Business”.  
 
Over the last ten years Denbighshire had developed several approaches to 
maintaining a corporate profile and an overview for safeguarding issues and these 
had been detailed in the report.   
 
A draft Corporate Safeguarding Policy and Guidelines, based heavily on that 
recently adopted in Gwynedd following an Estyn Inspection and as the result of 
requirements set out by the Inspectorate, had been circulated with the report.  The 
proposal submitted would provide a logical development to the work previously 
undertaken with the Corporate Accountabilities Framework and on the Corporate 
Safeguarding Action Plan.  The aim of the policy and guidelines would be to 
establish a structured means for ensuring that safeguarding was an issue taken on 
by every service in the Council as well as all elected Members.  
 
Key aspects of the policy and guidelines had been summarised in the report and 
the Appendices provided further detail relating to:- 
 
-  basic information about signs of abuse and referral pathways, which would link to 
child and adult protection procedures. 
-  a useful section on Code of Conduct and Safe Working practices. 
-  a section setting out the training support to be provided initially, which would need 
to be developed over a period of time. 
-  cross referencing with our Safe Recruitment (Human Resources) Policies. 
-  guidelines for Councillors on safe contact. 
-  dealing with allegations of professional abuse, including links with child and adult 
protection procedures. 
 
The CDMW explained that the package would provide a credible approach to 
making a reality of safeguarding as a corporate concern, and would foster 
consistency of approach and accountability and be tailored to the issues facing 
particular services.  The main cost implications would be threefold had been 
outlined in the report.  It was confirmed that the adoption of the Policy and Panel 
arrangements could have positive implications, especially for older people and 
disabled people, and no negative implications had been identified. 
 
Although guidelines were currently sparse, HR were undertaking work to produce a 
policy on social media use.  The CDMW confirmed that the remit of the further work 
in this area would be incorporated in the remit of the CSP.  Cabinet were informed 
that the WLGA had produced a guidance document on Elected Members use of 
social media which could be of assistance. 
 
The Corporate Governance Committee had considered and expressed their support 
of the adoption of the Policy, guidance and Panel.  However, they had raised some 
issues about the document’s internal consistency, which had subsequently been 
addressed.  Members had made some specific suggestions about additions to the 
policy/items for the work programme, particularly relating to advice and good 
practice guidance on the use of technology/social media. These had been accepted 
and it was proposed that work on a single policy covering legal, HR and 

Page 11



safeguarding implications be taken forward.  The suggestion that the Safeguarding 
Policy/guidance/Panel should be reviewed after 3 years had been accepted, and a 
formal review date had been added to the front of the Policy. 
 
Members considered recommendation 3.3 of the report and agreed that 
safeguarding training be mandatory for all Elected Members within the first twelve 
months of appointment to office. 
 
RESOLVED:- that Cabinet agrees:-  
 
(a) the adoption of the Corporate Safeguarding Policy. 
(b) the establishment of a Corporate Safeguarding Panel with terms of reference 
as described in Appendix 8 to the report, and 
(c) that safeguarding training be mandatory for all Elected Members within the 
first twelve months of appointment to office. 
 

9 NORTH EAST WALES SENSORY SUPPORT SERVICES  
 
Councillor Eryl Williams presented the report, circulated previously, which detailed 
the formation of a North East Wales Sensory Support Service in partnership with 
Wrexham County Borough Council and Flintshire County Council. 
 
The report outlined the progress made to bring into being the sub-regional sensory 
service and sought approval for the decision to move to a partnership delivery 
model.  In response to a WG directive to increase collaboration and consortium 
working, the formation of a regional Sensory Service had identified as a priority by 
Inclusion Officers across North Wales.  Sensory impairment services were small 
and highly specialised in many Authorities.  Partnership working would enable 
greater resilience and efficiency through enhanced scale and enable service users 
to benefit through a greater range of specialist staff being available to support 
children and young people and their families and carers.  Following exploratory 
meetings with the six North Wales Local Authorities (LA’s), officers from Wrexham, 
Denbighshire and Flintshire had proceeded to scope a service to cover North East 
Wales.  
 
A full business case, Appendix 1, had been developed by the three LA’s and a 
Partnership Agreement, Appendix 2, had been created along with other associated 
documentation.  A full service model for delivery had been developed to fit within 
the combined current budget allocated for sensory provision by the three LAs.   
 
The Partnership Agreement outlined the financial arrangements between Flintshire, 
the host Authority, Wrexham and Denbighshire which identified the detail around 
provision and process.  The Agreement indicated the shared financial 
responsibilities of all partners in relation to staff and assets should the Partnership 
be dissolved. 
 
Consultation would take place with all service staff and their union representatives.  
Officers had liaised with Betsi Cadwallader University Heath Board professionals 
and the voluntary sector regarding the proposed changes in service delivery.  An 
Equalities Impact Assessment had been completed, Appendix 3.  It had been 

Page 12



considered that the sub-regional development would provide positive benefits for 
children and young people with a sensory loss.  The service model would result in a 
more efficient and effective service which could be delivered within the existing 
budget.  The overarching risk had been identified as the inability to deliver the 
range of service required by children and young people, and future sustainability of 
service within the current model. 

 
RESOLVED:- that Cabinet:- 
 
(a) recognises the positive actions taken to enhance the service available to 
children and young people with a sensory loss across the Counties of Flintshire, 
Wrexham and Denbighshire, and 
(b) approves the decision to move to a sub-regional service. 
 

10 PROCUREMENT TRANSFORMATION UPDATE  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report, circulated previously, which 
provided an update on various procurement initiatives that were being undertaken 
as part of a wider Procurement Transformation Programme, and sought Cabinet 
approval to proceed with three Procurement projects outlined in the report. 
 
Councillor Thompson-Hill explained that Procurement had been perceived as the 
solution to a number of issues which had been identified in the report.  Competing 
demands had been set against pressures such as a focus on reducing the ‘back 
office’ functions of organisations and a relatively small group of staff nationally.  The 
proposals contained in the report were complementary and Appendix 6 identified 
how they would fit together.  The report would provide guidance through the 
upcoming changes, and as to how the Council should react to them.  Current key 
initiatives included:- 
 

• The creation of a new National Procurement Service, to be implemented by 
November, 2013, would address the 20% of the common and repetitive spend 
across the Welsh public sector. 

• The ending of the North Wales Procurement Partnership in June, 2013 and 
potential replacement by joining the Welsh Purchasing Consortium. 

• Ensuring the Welsh Procurement Policy Statement launched by the Assembly 
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House be incorporated, in order to promote 
SME friendly Procurement as well as realising Community Benefits. 

• Implementation and greater use of e-procurement solutions. 

• Incorporating the procurement actions arising from Denbighshire’s Economic 
and Community Ambition Strategy. 
 
It had been anticipated that the Council’s new Procurement Strategy would be 
finalised in October, 2013.  In order to incorporate and reflect the new procurement 
initiatives the current Contract Procedure Rules had been reviewed and a draft set 
of CPR’s would be distributed for consultation within Service Area and presented to 
Council for approval.   
 
An Internal Audit Report on Procurement of Construction Services had highlighted 
that a number of improvements were required regarding the way construction 

Page 13



procurement was undertaken.  The progression of the projects within the report 
would address many of the issues highlighted within the Internal Audit report. 
 
Following the closure of the North Wales Procurement Partnership (NWPP) a letter 
of invitation had been received from the WPC Management Board, Appendix 1, in 
conjunction with the WLGA, inviting North Wales Councils to consider joining the 
WPC to create a Welsh Local Government Procurement Consortium involving all 22 
Welsh Councils.  The NWPP had over 5 years realised cashable efficiencies of 
£2.4m across the 6 North Wales Councils, highlighting the benefits of collaborative 
procurement.  By joining the WPC Denbighshire would utilise a similar procurement 
solution on a national rather, however, the cost implications of joining as an 
individual Council would involve an annual membership subscription of £13,500 in 
comparison to £44,000 with the NWPP.  Denbighshire would also undertake to lead 
on an agreed number of contracts.  Cashable and non-cashable benefits arising 
from the WPC membership had been highlighted in Appendix 2.  The option of 
joining the WPC was currently being considered across North Wales Councils.  The 
WLGA were also considering bringing the WPC within its governance framework to 
enable it to become an all Wales Local Government Procurement Service.  
 
The NWPP Management Board had commissioned CAPITA to produce a Business 
Case on North Wales Regional Procurement.  Following consideration of the 
Business Case it had been decided not to progress any further on the basis of six 
Local Authorities.  In order to progress Procurement Transformation on a sub-
regional basis two new individual projects emerged out of the original Capita report.  
The two projects, as detailed in the report, were both subject to a joint application 
for funding from Welsh Government Regional Collaboration Fund, Appendix 5.  
Early indications had been encouraging that the bid would be successful on a 
reduced basis. 
 
The Denbighshire Strategic Procurement Manager had been undertaking a part-
time management role in overseeing and developing the Corporate Procurement 
Unit in Flintshire.  This highlighted the benefits that could be derived from the 
creation of a merged joint Strategic procurement Unit.  The benefits had been 
outlined in Appendix 4, and a detailed final Business Case would be presented to 
Cabinet in October, 2013. 
 
Denbighshire, Flintshire and Gwynedd had established a new project to develop 
both outline and detailed Business Cases on the basis of a ‘Three County 
Procurement Service, based around joint Category Management which had been 
defined in Appendix 3.  The initial output from the project would include developing 
outline and final Business Cases by December 2013 and April 2014 respectively.  
 
The possible implications on officers of the implementation of the project had been 
outlined.  Data gathering had identified the procurement roles, responsibilities of 
staff and to what extent this would transpose to a Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
Assessment.  Details pertaining to the Corporate Priorities, cost and effect on other 
services, Consultations undertaken, Chief Finance Officer Statement and the risks 
and measures implemented to reduce them had been included in the report. 
 

Page 14



In response to concerns raised by Members it was explained that the procurement 
framework would not preclude from purchasing internally, provided this could be 
justified, and that successful contracts such as the lighting contract would not be 
adversely affected. 
 
The HFA responded to issues raised by the Leader and explained that regional 
working would ensure dedicated specialists working on specific areas of work, and 
the development of a Business Case for the Three County Procurement Service, 
based upon a Category Management Structure Assist services within the Authority 
to collaborate with regard to procurement, would assist and address the objectives 
of local businesses.    
 
RESOLVED:- that Cabinet approves:-  

 
(a) that Denbighshire becomes an official member of the Welsh Purchasing 

Consortium for the next 3 years up to 31st March, 2016, with an annual 
contribution fee of £13,500. 

(b) the development of a Business Case for the creation of a joint service by 
merging the Strategic Procurement Units of Denbighshire and Flintshire 
County Councils, and 

(c) the development of a Business Case for the Three County Procurement 
Service involving initially Denbighshire, Flintshire and Gwynedd County 
Councils based upon a Category Management Structure. 

 
11 VOLUNTEERING, APPRENTICESHIPS, WORK EXPERIENCE, GRADUATES 

AND INTERNSHIPS  
 
Councillor Hugh Evans presented the report, circulated previously, which provided 
a summary of the work undertaken in Denbighshire in coordinating a number of 
work streams including volunteering, graduates, apprenticeships, work experience 
and internships (VGAWEI).  It focused on a potential future programme of work to 
develop volunteering which would bring significant benefits to the organisation, and 
further advance its “bringing the Council closer to the community” priority and its 
regeneration priority. 
 
Funding to support the development of VGAWEI had originally been allocated as 
part of the People and Places Board programme and details of resources and 
funding had been summarised.  Investment had exceeded targets in most cases 
but funding had ended in September, 2013.  The report proposed a continuation of 
the programme with a stronger emphasis on the development of volunteering.  
Significant outputs had been achieved as a result of investment in graduate 
trainees and details had been incorporated in the report, with a fuller account 
included in Appendix 2. 
 
The cost of developing the opportunities had been relatively modest, £40k for 12 
months’ staff costs and a £40k match fund.  Most opportunities created had been 
supported via external funding with a high proportion of young people taking up the 
opportunities having been retained by the organisation, with others successfully 
gaining work elsewhere.  Information available indicated that a high value had been 

Page 15



place on the opportunities by young people and managers and that the work had 
enhanced the Council’s reputation in the community. 
 
The development of volunteering had not advanced as quickly as that for 
employment opportunities.  It had been considered that the development of 
volunteering would bring significant benefits to the organisation and these had been 
outlined in the report.  From research carried out regarding volunteering within 
Denbighshire, Appendix 2, it had been apparent the organisation would benefit from 
a more strategic focus and sustainable coordination of volunteering opportunities.  
A Corporate Volunteer Strategy had been developed, Appendix 1, which outlined a 
consistent approach to the attraction, management and retention of volunteers.  In 
addition services had agreed to fund an interactive Volunteer Management 
Information System (MIS) which provided a clear portal for all volunteer 
opportunities within the organisation.  This system would allow for an effective 
approach to the management of volunteers and provide new opportunities.  

 

CET had agreed to fund a post for 12 months from allocations for corporate 
priorities and the Spend to Save fund because of its potential to add value to all 
priorities.  The purpose of the post had been outlined in Appendix 3 and 
summarised in the report.  The sector leading approach to the management of 
volunteers would ensure a flow of talent to other traineeship opportunities.  It was 
anticipated that as part of adopting the strategy and the implementation of the post 
the following outcomes would be achieved:- 

 

-  Increase of 200 volunteers in the first year with the total number of people 
volunteering reaching 2000 by 2016. 

-  60 work experience placements. 

-  5 traineeships and 5 graduate internships. 

-  35-40 apprentices. 

 

Denbighshire had a clear vision on how the investment and creation of 
opportunities such as volunteering and traineeships would contribute to the 
Corporate Priorities.  A substantial amount of work had been achieved but could not 
be absorbed by other officers.  Continued investment would be required to ensure 
work on the volunteering strategy and traineeships was further developed to 
achieve its full potential benefit. 

 

An outline of how the programme would contribute to developing the local economy 
and provide benefits to the community in terms of had been summarised in the 
report, together with, its effect on other services which included costs relating to the 
Management Information System.  Details pertaining to the Equality Impact 
Assessment, consultations carried out, Chief Finance Officer Statement and the 
risks and actions implemented to reduce them had been included in the report. 
 
In response to a question from the Leader, who expressed his support for the 
strategy, the CDMW provided details of the consultation process and confirmed that 
discussions which had taken place with the DVSC regarding the strategy.  She 

Page 16



explained that it had been considered that an internal system for the coordination 
and development of volunteers would be more beneficial across all services. 
 
RESOLVED:- that Cabinet agrees the adoption of:- 
 
(a) the Corporate Volunteer Strategy, Appendix 1 to the report, and 
(b) the targets for the volunteering work programme and for the continued work 
to develop work experience placements, internships, graduate traineeships and 
apprentices as set out in paragraph 4.8 of the report. 
 

12 TREASURY MANAGEMENT  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report, circulated previously, on the 
Council’s Treasury Management (TM) activities, investment and borrowing activity 
during 2012/13 and it provided an overview of the economic background for the 
year.   
 
Councillor Thompson-Hill explained that it was a requirement of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management for the Council to prepare an annual report on 
treasury activity for the previous financial year.  Cabinet had been required to note 
the performance of the LA’s TM function, and its compliance with treasury limits and 
Prudential Indicators during 2012/13 as reported in the Annual TM Report 2012/13. 
 
The TM included the management of the Council’s borrowing, investments and 
cash flow with approximately £0.5bn passing through the Council’s bank accounts 
annually.  The Council’s outstanding borrowing was £133.26m, with an average 
annual interest rate charge of 5.77%.  At any point during the year the Council 
would have between £20-£35m to invest which on average currently earned 0.80%. 
 
It was confirmed that the Council had consulted with its treasury advisers 
Arlingclose Ltd.  The governance of TM was scrutinised by the Corporate 
Governance Committee throughout the year and they had reviewed the Annual TM 
Report for 2012/13 prior to its submission to Cabinet.  Councillor J.M. McLellan, 
Chair of the Corporate Governance Committee, confirmed that the Committee had 
endorsed the performance of the Council’s Treasury Management function during 
2012/13, and its compliance with the required Prudential Indicators as reported in 
the Annual TM Report 2012/13. 
 
The HFA responded to a question from Councillor H.Ll. Jones and provided an 
explanation as to why the Council were not permitted to undertake debt re-
financing. 
 
It was emphasised that TM was a vital part of the Council’s work.  It required a 
sound strategy and appropriate controls to safeguard the Council’s money to 
ensure reasonable returns on investments and the effective and prudent 
management of debts.  The HFA referred to the four main drivers of growth and 
explained that consumer confidence had initiated some of the growth in recent 
times.  Good investment and borrowing decisions would allow for additional 
resources to be directed to other services.  The impact of the HRA on the Council’s 

Page 17



Revenue Budget was highlighted for Members and particular reference was made 
to Appendix B, compliance with prudential Indicators 2012/13:- 
 

• Estimated and Actual Capital Expenditure. 

• Estimated and Actual Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream. 

• Capital Financing Requirement. 

• Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt. 

• Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate 
Exposure. 

• Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing. 

• Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days. 

• Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 
  

The report summarised the purpose of the Annual TM Report which had been to:- 
 

• present details of capital financing, borrowing, debt rescheduling and 
investment transactions in 2012/13.  

• report on the risk implications of treasury decisions and transactions. 

• confirm compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators. 
 
TM was inherently risky and the Council monitored and controlled potential risks as 
outlined in the report, however it was confirmed that it would be impossible to 
eliminate these risks completely.  The TM strategy and procedures were audited 
annually and the latest internal audit review had been positive with no significant 
issues raised. 
 
Reference was made to the discontinuation of the Housing Subsidy System in 
Wales.  A buyout of the Subsidy System had been negotiated with the Treasury by 
Welsh Government, and the impact for Denbighshire would be a capital sum of 
£40m which would be borrowed on as specific date.  The Chief Account explained 
that the buyout figure would represent a better deal than the Subsidy System. 
  
Cabinet endorsed the views expressed by Councillor E.W. Williams that 
Denbighshire would be penalised for embarking on good working practice and 
agreed that the concerns raised regarding Prudential Borrowing in respect of the 
HRA be conveyed to Welsh Government. 
 
RESOLVED - that Cabinet:- 
 

(a) notes the Annual Treasury Management Report for 2012/13, and 
(b) requests that the concerns raised regarding Prudential Borrowing in respect 

of the HRA be conveyed to Welsh Government. 
 

13 SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013  
 
Councillor David Smith presented the report, circulated previously, which detailed 
the provisions of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 and requested the approval of 
suggested delegated powers and fee setting for the Authority. 
 

Page 18



The HPPP explained that the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 repealed the Scrap 
Metal Dealers Act 1964 and Part 1 of Vehicles (Crime) Act 2001 and brought 
forward a revised regulatory regime for the scrap metal dealing and vehicle 
dismantling industries, providing the Council with a strong legislative framework to 
empower the Council and Police in the fight against offenders who wilfully plunder 
the Country of metal, whilst also strengthening and supporting legitimate scrap 
metal dealers.  The regulation of scrap metal dealers had been revised to address 
the major impact of metal theft on the economy, with the introduction of the Scrap 
Metal Dealers Act 2013. 
 
The Act provided Local Authorities with the power to better regulate these industries 
by providing a power to refuse to grant a licence and revoke licences if a dealer 
was considered unsuitable.  Unsuitability would be defined by a number of factors 
including any relevant criminal convictions.  The Act would provide Local Authorities 
(LA’s) and Police Officers with suitable powers of entry, inspection and to close 
down unauthorised sites.  
 
The Act would create two different types of Scrap Metal Licence, either a “Site 
Licence” or a “Mobile Collectors Licence”.  Mobile Collectors would be required to 
have a licence in every LA area in which they operated.  The Natural Resources 
Body for Wales would maintain a public register.  Dealers currently registered under 
the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964, or a motor salvage operator already registered 
under the Vehicles (Crime) Act 2001, would be permitted to continue to operate 
legally, providing that they applied for a licence under the new Act by the 15th 
October, 2013.  Existing Licences would be valid until a new licence was issued, 
and transitional arrangements had been implemented via a Commencement Order. 
 
The HPPP explained that after the 1st October, 2013 applicants not registered 
under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 or the Vehicles (Crime) Act 2001would be 
unable to trade legally until a licence had been issued.  Full enforcement of the 
provisions in the 2013 Act would commence from the 1st December, 2013.  Under 
the 1964 Act LA’s had to register anyone notifying them that they were operating as 
a scrap metal dealer.  Under the 2013 Act LA’s would be able to refuse to grant a 
licence where the applicant was judged not to be unsuitable to operate as a scrap 
metal dealer.  Guidance had been made available on assessing the suitability of 
applicants.  
 
Where the Council considered it necessary to refuse to issue, vary or revoke a 
licence, the applicant or licensee would be afforded the opportunity to make oral 
representations.  The Local Government Association (LGA) Guidance regarding the 
Act recommended that the LA Licensing Committee, as the appropriate body, 
should hear representations.  Persons aggrieved by a decision can appeal to the 
Magistrate’s Court. 
 
The granting of uncontested applications, or in cases where there were no 
questions about the suitability of an applicant, could be delegated to Licensing 
Officers.  
 
Other powers contained in the Act provide for:- 
 

Page 19



• Licences to be displayed 

• Dealers to carry out identity checks on scrap metal providers 

• Dealers to keep records of any scrap received or disposed of 

• Prohibition of cash payments. Payment can only be made by non-transferable 
cheque or transfer of funds 

• Local Authorities and Police to enter and inspect licensed premises 

• Variation of or refusal to vary a licence 

• Revocation of a licence 

• Closure of sites through Closure Orders from a Magistrates Court 

• Establishment of a Public Register, hosted by the Environment Agency and   
Natural Resources Wales, of all individual and businesses licensed as scrap 
metal dealers   

 
To provide time for LA’s to process applications the Home Office had implemented 
a transition process.  The transitional arrangements would be implemented by a 
commencement order allowing Councils to set a licence fee for applications from 
the 1st September.  It would also specify that the remaining sections in the Act 
commence on the 1st October, apart from the majority of criminal offences and 
enforcement-related provisions, which would commence on the 1st December.  The 
exception would be the ban on cash payments for scrap metal which would come 
into force on the 1st October.  
 
The 2013 Act created a fee raising power to allow LA’s to recover costs incurred 
and Home Office Guidance had been provided.  There would be a requirement for 
LA’s to comply with the EU Services Directorate and the Provision of Services 
Regulations 2009.  Fee charges could only reflect the actual cost of processing the 
licence application and checking compliance with the licence conditions and 
provisions of the Act.  The LGA and Home Office guidance relating to the 
implementation of the Act and fee setting had been published in August following a 
significant delayed.   
 
The HLDS explained the legislative procedure with regard to the authorisation 
process and confirmed that the matter would be presented to County Council for 
approval.  In reply to a question from the Leader, the HPPP outlined the 
consultation process undertaken and confirmed that local Scrap Metal Dealers 
would be consulted regarding the fee setting process. 
 
The Head of Planning and Public Protection agreed to a request from Councillor D. 
Simmons to examine the legislation pertaining to the displaying of identity and 
authorisation badges by Scrap Metal Dealers. 
 
RESOLVED:- that Cabinet approves:-  
 
(a) the delegation of the powers under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act to the Head 
of Planning and Public Protection. 
(b) the delegation of the decision of the adoption of the fee level for Scrap Metal 
licences to the Head of Planning and Public Protection, with approval from the Lead 
Member, and 
(c) the Head of Planning and Public Protection examine the legislation 
pertaining to the displaying of identity badges by Scrap Metal Dealers. 

Page 20



 
14 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Councillor H.H. Evans presented the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, circulated 
with the papers for the meeting.     
 
Cabinet agreed with a suggestion by Councillor D.I. Smith that, in view of Lead 
Member involvement in Scrutiny, the Forward Work Programmes for each of the 
Scrutiny Committees be included as an agenda item for future Cabinet meetings. 
 
The Corporate Director: Economic and Community Ambition  explained that Vibrant 
and Viable Places – Funding bid for Rhyl Town Centre Projects agenda item, 
scheduled for the 29th October, 2013, would now be deferred to a future meeting. 
 
Members were informed that the Procurement item relating to the Business Case 
for the Combined Denbighshire and Flintshire Service would be submitted to the 
November, 2013 meeting, and the Outline Case for the Three County’s would be 
submitted to the December, 2013 or January, 2014 meeting. 
 
RESOLVED - that Cabinet receive the Forward Work Programme, subject to the 
agreed amendments. 
 
PART II 
 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

RESOLVED – that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 14 and 15 of Part 4 of  Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
15 CONTRACT AWARD FOR OUTSOURCING STORES (HOUSING)  

 
Councillor Hugh Irving presented the report, circulated previously, which provided 
an overview of the reason to outsource stores and material supply chain, and to 
recommend a preferred contractor to provide the service going forward.  
 
Councillor Irving provided a detailed summary of the report and explained that 
Housing Services had commissioned a review of the stores function which had 
been undertaken by Cirrus Purchasing, Appendix A, to assess the current position 
and make recommendations as to the preferred option which would offer best 
value for money for the service and its customers.  The key themes which 
characterised the current in house stores and direct material supply service had 
been summarised in the report. 
 
Based on the current and future operating environment and requirements there 
were 3 primary supply chain models, Options A, B & C, for the future supply chain 
solution. 
 

Page 21



• Option A – Modernise and Optimise the in house stores function. 

• Option B -  Contract with merchant to provide a main supplier model. 

• Option C – Develop a network model trading with multiple local suppliers 
directly 

 
As the costs and complexity of bringing the in house stores service up to top 
quartile performance would be disproportionate, it had been agreed to pursue 
option B as the preferred source for the provision of stores and materials.  A formal 
tendering process had been undertaken which had resulted in 2 supplier bids being 
appraised by officers, operatives and the Chair of the Tenants Federation.  
Following a financial and qualitative appraisal, Appendix B, a preferred bidder had 
been identified and details of the bids had been summarised in the report.  The 
tender had required suppliers to provide costs for a basket of materials and 
supplies, comprising 282 of the most purchased materials, which resulted in costs 
being less than existing stores provision. 
 
The outsourcing proposal provided for a significant net benefit to the Housing 
Service and to the private sector more broadly.  The loss of income to the Stores, 
Highways and Environmental Services had been estimated at £67k, equating to 
approximately 33% of income received by Stores.  Savings achieved by Housing of 
£15,232 from no longer using Denbigh depots would be apportioned to other depot 
users which would mean the HRA achieved savings with on costs being spread 
over existing services.  Highways and Environmental Services would also benefit 
from services using the Coms system with an overhead of 12.5% added when 
services procure sub-contractors and direct supplies via Coms.  In 2012/13 the 
charge had equated to £23,861 for Housing, representing 19% of the total Coms 
overheads charged. 
 
Details of the Equality Impact Assessment undertaken, the risks and steps 
implemented to reduce them, Chief Finance Officer Statement and consultation 
process had been included in the report.  Confirmation was provided that, as part of 
the consultation exercise, tenants had been involved in the selection of the 
preferred contractor.  
 
In response to questions from Members, the Head of Housing and Community 
Development explained that the competitive prices quoted had been agreed for a 
period of six months and would be reviewed annually.  He also provided details of 
staffing arrangements and the discussions undertaken with TUPE.   
 
RESOLVED - that Cabinet approves the selection of Jewson as the preferred 
contractor to supply stores and materials to the Housing Service for a period of 3 
years with an option to extend for a further year if required. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 13.15 p.m. 

Page 22



  

 
Report To:    Cabinet  
 
Date of Meeting:   29th October 2013 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
  
Report Author:  Head of Customers and Education Support 
 
Title:     Faith Based Provision 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report is to inform Cabinet Members of the findings of the formal 
consultation for the future of Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigid’s. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

A decision will be required by Cabinet to give approval to proceed to the next 
stage of consultation to create a new school to serve the existing schools of 
Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s.   

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

The recommendation is:- 
(i)  To note the findings of the formal consultation for the closure of Blessed 

Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School and the 
opening of a new school;  

 
(ii) To confirm the commitment towards working in partnership with the 

Catholic and Church in Wales Diocesan Authorities to deliver a new 
faith based school; 

 
(iii)  To agree to develop a proposal to enable formal consultation for the 

building of a new faith based school to replace the existing Blessed 
Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s provision. 

 
4. Report details – Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigid’s. 
 
4.1 The Roman Catholic and Church in Wales Diocesan bodies, in partnership 

with the Council has undertaken formal consultation on the proposal to close 
Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s as of 31st August 
2014 and to establish a new joint faith school to be based on the existing sites 
as of the 1st September 2014.  The formal consultation occurred between the 
3rd June and the 22nd July 2013.  The consultation included a range of 
meetings for stakeholders and a questionnaire to gain the views of both 
children and young people and of parents. We received 307 letters, 48 e-
mails, 389 general response forms and 489 children and young person’s 
response forms.   

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



  

 
 Formal Consultation Findings 
 
4.2 Of the 307 letters received, 269 were from parents and residents of the Rhyl 

area who have concerns over the location of the new school. In respect of e-
mails the majority received were from parents and residents more closely 
associated with St Brigid’s. From the 48 e-mails received 34 were entirely 
negative about the current proposal with 19 responses suggesting investment 
in the status quo.  In these responses the overwhelming majority raised 
concerns over the two phased approach of operating as a single school over 
two sites prior to any agreement to proceed to a new school.  In particular 
views were expressed that the main benefits of the overall proposal related to 
the second phase and that the proposals did not articulate clear benefits in 
respect of teaching and learning during the first phase. 

 
4.3 The Response forms generated the largest response overall.  From the 389 

general form responses received, 91% were opposed to the proposal.  Of 
those who answered the question as to whether they would send their child to 
the new dual site school: 

• 65.5% responded that they don’t know;  

• 13.8% responded that they would;  

• 20.7% stated that they wouldn’t.   
 
4.4 We had 489 responses from children and young people.  In response to the 

question “How do you feel about St Brigid's and Blessed Edward Jones 
becoming 1 school in 2 parts?” pupils were asked to summarise their views 
and feelings.  The analysis of these comments included the following points 
which were expressed within their overall response:  

• 331 were opposed to the proposal  

• 79 were in favour of the proposal 

• 48 Neither in favour nor against the proposal/unsure 

• 37 Having two sites will be difficult/impossible  
 
4.5 Following the conclusion of the consultation period the promoters have 

considered all of the comments received.  This process has included careful 
consideration of the merits of proceeding with the proposal against whether to 
consider an alternative proposal to meet the long term vision of a new shared 
faith school. 

 
4.6 The promoters are concerned as to: whether the proposed implementation is 

still achievable; the impact that any delays may have upon short and medium 
term sustainability for the two schools, particularly around leadership and 
management; and whether by proceeding to the second phase – building a 
new school, a shorter timescale can be achieved for implementing the overall 
vision for the project. 

 
4.7 At present neither schools have a permanent Headteacher. The Headteacher 

at Blessed Edward Jones left for another post in early 2013 whilst the 
Headteacher of St Brigid’s left in July 2013.  This leaves both schools with 
Acting Headteachers.  The anticipated timescales for implementing Phase 1 

Page 24



  

may result in both schools operating with Acting Headteachers until 
September 2014 or more realistically until September 2015 before a 
permanent Headteacher would be appointed upon the creation of a new 
school.   

 
4.8 Whilst the provisional performance results in 2013 for Level 2 (GCSE) from 

Blessed Edward Jones have shown improvements, there are concerns that 
declining results at St Brigid’s over the last three years has begun to emerge 
as a trend rather than a blip.  Performance at Level 2 (GCSE) whilst still being 
the highest in the County has declined for the second year running.  For A 
Level performance St Brigid’s has dropped from being the highest performer at 
A* to C grade in 2010 to the position of third out of six within the County.  
Whilst it is still the highest performer for pupils achieving A* to A grades, for 
those pupils achieving A* grade its performance is the lowest of the 6 schools 
and is below the Denbighshire and Wales average.  Clearly there is a need for 
Education Services to work very closely with both schools to implement the 
required support in advance of any structural changes to the school. 

 
4.9  On balance the promoters have considered whether the achievement of the 

first phase (operating as a single school on two sites), was essential to 
achieve the wider vision of the project, (operating as a single school on a 
single site). Predominantly the potential risks could be seen to outweigh the 
benefits which were essentially around organisation and management within 
the schools. The emerging view is that the main aim of the project, a single 
school on a single site would not be significantly compromised by a revised 
approach. It is possible that benefits could actually occur from acceleration to 
Phase 2 and with the necessary support there will be fewer changes in the 
interim, offering more stability and only one big change rather than two 
changes, one after the other.  

 
 The Way Forward 
 
4.10 To move forward the Diocesan authorities, in partnership with the Council, 

would seek to develop a proposal for a single site school.  The initial view, that 
both schools by themselves remaining in isolation are not sustainable long 
term, still holds strong. Also all promoters strongly hold the view that simply 
investing in the status quo would not represent value for money. Therefore it is 
important at this stage for all promoters to reaffirm this position.  From a 
Denbighshire perspective the need to maintain a faith secondary school 
presence is still considered as a priority. 

 
4.11 In discussions with the Diocesan authorities it is clear that clarity is required 

regarding what is faith education within Denbighshire.  At present Blessed 
Edward Jones comes under the jurisdiction of the Wrexham Catholic Diocese 
and delivers a Catholic Education including receiving Section 50 Inspections 
which report on religious education, collective worship, the spiritual, moral, 
social and cultural education of the children and the school’s ethos.  St Brigid’s 
is currently a school which is designated as a school whose religious character 
is Roman Catholic.  However the school is under the control of the St Brigid’s 
Trust and is not formally recognised by the Catholic Diocesan Authority nor is 

Page 25



  

it subject to a Section 50 Inspection.  The designation of a religious character 
does not determine whether or not the school is a Roman Catholic Church 
school according to canon law.  

 
4.12 In addition, expanding the size of existing schools would have implications for 

the overall strategic direction of the delivery of secondary education in 
Denbighshire. Welsh Government guidance states “it should not normally be 
necessary to provide additional places at schools when there are others of the 
same type with surplus places within reasonable distance”. In such a scenario 
it is difficult to develop a strategic argument for retaining both schools and 
expanding St Brigid’s without considering the potential negative impact on 
Blessed Edward Jones and Denbigh High School which could occur.  

 
4.13 It is also important to consider the potential wider implications which may arise 

from any revised approach to the overall aims of the project (i.e. delivering a 
new school on one site to replace two existing schools in a poor condition) 
upon other projects within the overall Modernising Education Programme.  Any 
increase in costs for this project could lead to the need to identify an 
associated reduction in scale to the other projects to be supported by the 21st 
Century Schools Programme and any potential projects which have been 
identified to be funded locally by Denbighshire as part of the Corporate Plan.  
This could also have implications for future reviews of primary provision to 
meet growing demand particularly in the North of the County. 

 
4.14 The initial focus on discussions would be to confirm the proposed age range, 

size and location of the new school.  These discussions will also include full 
consideration of the options for how the demand for primary age faith 
education would fit with the Secondary provision.  

 
4.15 There would also be a need to submit to the Welsh Government the Strategic 

Outline Case (SOC) for the new school to enable the Council to secure an 
approval “in principle” for the funding for the new school. The purpose of the 
SOC will be to demonstrate, to the Welsh Government as the funding partner 
for 21st Century Schools, that the proposal has a clear strategic fit in that 
investment will further the aims and objectives of the organisation and a clear 
rationale for making the investment in respect of the case for change.  The 
SOC will need to consider all options, ranging from the “do minimum” i.e. 
maintain status quo and leave to deteriorate; “preferred way forward” i.e. 
perceived best available option and “real alternative(s)” i.e. more and / or less 
ambitious and different approach.  The SOC will therefore be required to 
demonstrate why the preferred way forward will deliver the required changes 
to ensure a sustainable provision for faith secondary provision by condensing 
investment into one site and would be likely to cost less than the level of 
investment to upgrade both sites both from a capital perspective in the short 
term and from a revenue perspective long term.  

 
4.16  Following the agreement of the discussions outlined in paragraph 4.14 the 

SOC will be prepared and submitted to the Welsh Government for their 
consideration.  It is anticipated that this will occur during the Spring of 2014.  
An approval of the SOC by the Welsh Government would allow a grant letter 

Page 26



  

to be issued for the estimated “Funding envelope” for the project.  Any such 
award would be subject to the further development of the outline and full 
business case.  It is anticipated that this would be progressed prior to the 
publication of any further consultation proposals. 

 
4.17 Upon the completion of this work the Council in partnership with the Diocesan 

Authorities would be able to consider whether to commence formal 
consultation on a preferred proposal for the new school.  It is anticipated that 
this consultation would occur during the Summer of 2014.  This revised 
approach would allow this consultation to take place 12 months sooner than 
initially anticipated.  Therefore, subject to confirmation of funding streams, the 
revised approach could lead to the new school building being delivered within 
a shorter time period, possibly by September 2018. 

 
4.18 This approach has been supported by both Diocesan Authorities.   
 
4.19 During this interim period, and prior to the opening of a new school there will 

be a need to ensure that full support can be provided to Blessed Edward 
Jones and St Brigid’s to ensure stability.  This will include providing 
appropriate support and guidance in partnership with the Wrexham Diocese 
and St Brigid’s Trust.  It is important to note that during this period although 
the St Asaph Church in Wales Diocese would not have direct involvement in 
the management of both schools, they would be expected to play a significant 
role in the planning for the new school. 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

The proposal supports the priority of “Improving performance in education and 
the quality of our school buildings” and has been highlighted as a workstream 
as follows: 

 
“We will continue to review school provision across the County to ensure that 
we provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in the right 
location.” 

 
6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 

Should the recommendation be approved there will be a need to undertake 
feasibility work on the potential sites and then the preferred site. This work will 
be undertaken by staff from Finance and Assets.  The costs for this work will 
be met from the existing allocations for 21st Century Schools and Modernising 
Education within the Council’s Capital Programme. 

 
7.  What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
7.1 The EqIA undertaken on the proposal suggested that there would be minimal 

impact in respect of the first phase of the proposal.  The development of a joint 
faith provision could be seen to promote greater inclusion and provide an 

Page 27



  

improved educational offer (Anglican Secondary education) which has not 
previously been available within Denbighshire. A revised EqIA will be required 
and developed as part of the revised proposal. 

 

8.  What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

Full consultation has been undertaken with all stakeholders and the findings 
from the Formal Consultation period are summarised in the main body of the 
report.  
 
The proposals within the report are supported by both Dioceses. The Diocese 
of Wrexham deeply regrets that St Brigid’s will not travel with us in respect of 
the proposals for a joint shared faith school in Denbighshire.  With that 
significant regret noted, the Diocese of Wrexham supports a move directly to 
Phase 2, but only with a full commitment to: 

� Maximise the NOR of the proposed shared school 
� Achieving consensus on the preferred location 
� A full consideration of both Primary and Post 16 options; and 
� A clear understanding of the LA’s strategy for St Brigid’s, which 

explicitly cannot be one that undermines the development and eventual 
establishment of a new shared faith school 

 
9.  Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

The cost of the formal consultation is not thought to be significant and should 
be contained within existing resources. The outcome may ultimately lead to 
significant capital investment by the council as part of the 21st Century 
Schools Programme which is included in the Corporate Plan. The consultation 
will inform the detailed business case which will be subject to the council's 
approval process for all capital expenditure.   
 

10.  What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

There is a strong possibility that the proposal could result in adverse publicity 
for the Council and in adverse public comments.   

 
To minimise this risk the Council will seek to ensure clear communication with 
all stakeholders. 

 
11  Power to make the Decision 
 

School Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 
Modernising Education Policy Framework (approved by Cabinet January 
2009) 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposal for a New Joint Faith  

School for North Denbighshire 

 

Formal Consultation Report 
  

Page 29



 
 

1 
 

Contents  

Number Section Page 

1.  Introduction 2 

2.  Documents 2 

3.  Meetings 3 

4.  Response forms and correspondence 6 

5.  Response from Estyn 6 

APPENDIX A Consultation Document Recipient List 8 

APPENDIX B Standard Response Form 11 

APPENDIX C Children’s Response Form 14 

APPENDIX D Young Person’s Response Form 15 

APPENDIX E Presentation used for Governors meetings 

and the Teachers & support staff meetings 

16 

APPENDIX F Parents evening document 23 

APPENDIX G School Council Findings 25 

APPENDIX H Summary of issues raised in meetings 39 

APPENDIX I Summary and analysis of responses to 

Standard Response Forms 

49 

APPENDIX J Summary and analysis of responses to 

Children & Young Persons Response Forms 

56 

APPENDIX K Issues raised by letter and email during the 

informal consultation process 

60 

APPENDIX L Redacted Correspondence 64 

APPENDIX M Summary of Issues and Responses 65 

APPENDIX N Estyn’s response to the Formal 

Consultation Document 

90 

  

Page 30



 
 

2 
 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. Denbighshire County Council, in partnership with the Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph, the 

Catholic Diocese of Wrexham and St Brigid’s Trust (we/us) carried out an informal 

consultation between 6 December 2012 and 29 January 2013 into joint faith based secondary 

provision in North Denbighshire.  The findings of the Informal Consultation are contained in a 

report which was submitted to Denbighshire’s Cabinet of elected members in May 2013. 

 

1.2. On 14 May 2013 we presented to a meeting of the Cabinet a draft consultation document 

entitled, “Formal Consultation Document – Proposal for a new joint faith based school for 

North Denbighshire”.  At that meeting, and on the basis of the draft document, the Cabinet 

approved a formal consultation into a proposal for us to close Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High School and St Brigid’s School on 31 August 2014; and for the Catholic Diocese and the 

Church in Wales Diocese to establish a new Anglican & Catholic Faith Voluntary Aided School 

serving the communities of Denbigh, Rhyl and surrounding areas on the existing sites from 1 

September 2014 (the Current Proposal).    

 

1.3. The Formal Consultation ran from 3 June to 22 July 2013. 

 

1.4. This document sets out the steps taken during, and the findings obtained from, the Formal 

Consultation.  It has been produced after taking into consideration the requirements set out in 

the new School Organisation Code; a document produced by virtue of the School Standards 

and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 (the 2013 Act).  At the time of the Formal Consultation, the 

provisions of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (the 1998 Act) which relate to 

school reorganisation were still in force and the new Code was in draft form.  The 2013 Act 

restates, codifies and updates the provisions of the 1998 Act.  The new Code sets out matters 

to which local authorities and other promoters of school organisation changes must and 

should have regard.  The relevant provisions of the 2013 Act (including the finalisation of the 

new Code) came into force on 1 October 2013.  We have followed the requirements of the 

new Code throughout the Formal Consultation in order to anticipate its coming into force and 

to promote best practice. 

 

2. Documents 

 

2.1. Paper and electronic versions of the Formal Consultation Document were sent to over 1,660 

stakeholders.  The complete list of recipients is set out in Appendix A.   

 

2.2. The Formal Consultation Document was published on our website on 3 June 2013.  A 

children’s version (aimed at primary school ages) and young persons’ version (aimed at 

secondary school ages) were also produced and published on our website.  You can view 

the Formal Consultation Document in the Closed Consultation section of the DCC website; 

just click on the Faith School Proposal area. 

 

2.3. A response document (Standard Response Form) was also published on our website.  The 

children’s and young person’s versions of the Consultation Document contained a slightly 

simplified response form.  The Standard Response Form and the simplified versions were 

converted into an online survey; links to those surveys were also published on our website.  

Copies of the Standard Response Form, together with the Children’s version and the Young 

Person’s version of the Formal Consultation Document are set out in Appendices B, C and D 

respectively.   

Page 31



 
 

3 
 

 

2.4. Each of the above documents was published in Welsh and English. 

 

3. Meetings 

 

3.1. We arranged and held consultation meetings with the following stakeholders at Blessed 

Edward Jones and St Brigid’s: 

 

3.1.1. Governors; 

3.1.2. Teachers & support staff; 

3.1.3. Parents; and 

3.1.4. School Council. 

 

Governors and teachers & support staff 

 

3.2. The meetings with the Governors and teachers took place in June 2013.  Members of our 

Modernising Education, School Improvement and Human Resources Teams were 

accompanied by representatives from the Wrexham and St Asaph Dioceses.  Our team 

delivered a presentation updating the stakeholders on the process to date and what would 

happen if the Current Proposal was approved.  The stakeholders had the opportunity to ask 

questions and express their views and opinions.  A copy of the presentation used at this 

meeting is set out in Appendix E. 

 

Parents 

 

3.3. The parents’ meetings took place in June 2013; following publication of the dates, times 

locations and format of the meetings in local newspapers.   

 

3.4. It was decided to adopt a ‘parents’ evening’ format in favour of the open, question and 

answer format used during the informal consultation.  The reason for this was that although 

the open meeting format suited some people who felt able to express their opinions in front 

of others, it did not suit everyone.  Members of our Modernising Education team were 

approached immediately after the informal consultation meetings by people who did not feel 

confident enough to speak out in front of others.  These people requested one-to-one 

meetings at which they were able to let their feelings be known. 

 

3.5. The parents’ evening format created a more intimate environment in which people could say 

what they thought without having to be heard by a room filled with people. 

 

3.6. The meeting at Blessed Edward Jones followed the parents’ evening format.  Three tables 

were set out at which were sat members of our Modernising Education team, our School 

Improvement team and representatives from the two Dioceses respectively.  The register of 

attendees showed that 10 people attended; comprising parents, grandparents and other local 

residents.  Each attendee had the opportunity to discuss the Current Proposal with and from 

the perspective of the relevant team members.  For example, some attendees were keen to 

ask questions relating to how faith education and practices would be delivered, and so spoke 

only with the representatives from the Dioceses.  Others wanted to ask questions relating to 

educational standards, faith and the re-organisation process, and so spoke with all three 

teams. 

 

Page 32



 
 

4 
 

3.7. It had been intended to use the parents’ evening format for the St Brigid’s parents meeting.   

This, however, proved impossible as immediately before the meeting, a delegation of parents 

and other interested parties made strong representations to our teams; stating that they 

expected an open discussion and not a parents’ evening format.  They pointed out that, in any 

event, because of the large turn-out (the register showed that 90 people attended, but the 

actual figure was closer to 130) it would not be practicable to use the face-to-face format; as 

proportionately, so few people would have the chance to speak with the teams.  Accordingly, 

it was decided to use an open format for the meeting.   

 

3.8. Pupils and members of the school council opened with a speech relating to their view on the 

Current Proposal.  This was followed by questions and statements made by some of the 

attendees.  The minutes of the meeting show that a total of 69 questions were asked covering 

a range of issues relating to the Current Proposal.  Some people asked only one question and 

others asked up to five.  It is estimated that 25 to 30 attendees raised points; conversely, over 

half of the attendees did not make any points.  

 

3.9. We prepared a short document to explain the purpose of the parents’ meeting, the rationale 

for the parents’ evening format and to provide short answers to a selection of points received 

at that stage of the consultation.  This was handed out at the start of the two meetings.  A 

copy of this document is set out in Appendix F. 

 

School Council 

 

3.10. We have a team dedicated to meeting the Welsh Government’s vision to transform 14 -19 

provision in Wales; the team is called the 14 – 19 Network.  A key member of that team, the 

Learner Voice Champion who works closely with pupils in schools across the county, 

conducted the meetings with the School Councils during the informal consultation.  It had 

been intended to use identical formats for St Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones’ School 

Councils during the Formal Consultation; tailoring the tone and content specifically to ensure 

the pupils were able to understand and engage as fully as possible.  For example, ‘ice-

breaking’ exercises and interactive activities would be used to make the pupils feel able to 

participate: as opposed simply to delivering a lecture and asking for any questions.   

 

3.11. However, the members of the St Brigid’s School Council who attended the parents’ meeting 

spoke with the Head of our Customers and Education Support team.  It was suggested that she 

and, if available, the Chief Executive and Lead Member for Education would meet with the 

School Council to hear their views.  This meeting, therefore, took the place of the planned 

specifically tailored meeting.   

 

3.12. The meeting with Blessed Edward Jones’ School Council followed the planned, specifically 

tailored format.  This is because no representations were made by the School Council at the 

Blessed Edward Jones parent’s meeting; also, given the tight timescale of the consultation 

period it was considered prudent to proceed as planned. 

 

3.13. The findings of the School Council meetings are set out in Appendix G. 

 

  

Page 33



 
 

5 
 

Other meetings 

 

3.14. Consultation meetings were also held for parents of pupils at the following primary schools: 

3.14.1. Ysgol Mair; 

3.14.2. Ysgol Trefnant; 

3.14.3. St Asaph VP; and 

3.14.4. Ysgol Esgob Morgan, St Asaph. 

 

3.15. These schools were chosen because they each offer faith based primary provision.  Once 

again, a parents’ evening format was used.  One meeting took place at Ysgol Mair in Rhyl 

which is ‘next-door’ to Blessed Edward Jones.  A separate meeting was held in St Asaph for the 

remaining three schools which are located in St Asaph and Trefnant. 

 

3.16. A summary of the issues raised at all of the meetings held during the Formal Consultation 

period is set out in Appendix H. 

 

3.17. Approximately 320 people were spoken to as part of the meetings above and a written record 

was made of each meeting.  However, the total number of responses we received over and 

above the views put forward during the consultation meetings was as follows: 

 

Method of contact Number of contacts received 

Standard Response Forms 389 

Children & Young Person’s Response Forms 489 

Letters 307 

Emails 48 

Total number of contacts 
1,233 

 

3.18. Those stakeholders who were most closely associated with St Brigid’s engaged in the process, 

largely through an organised campaign, and to a much greater extent than those associated 

with Blessed Edward Jones or any other school.  Anecdotal feedback obtained by the 

Governing Body of Blessed Edward Jones suggested a reason for this lesser degree of 

engagement.  Parents and other interested parties associated with that school indicated to 

the Governors that were in favour of the Current Proposal; although it is impossible to 

quantify this. 

 

 

No Response Type SB 

(actual  /     %) 

BEJ 

(actual   /     %) 

Other 

(actual   /      %) 

Total 

1.  
Letters 38 12.4 269 85.02 8 2.58 307 

2.  
Emails 41 85.4 1 2.1 6 12.5 48 

3.  
Response Form 324 83.29 44 11.31 21 5.4 389 

Page 34



 
 

6 
 

4.  
CYP Response 

Form 

325 66.46 150 30.67 14 2.86 489 

Totals 728 59 464 37 49 4 1233 

 

4. Response forms and correspondence 
 

4.1. The Standard Response Form was designed to elicit the following information: 

4.1.1. Whether people were in favour of the Current Proposal; 

4.1.2. Did they have any other suggestions as to what could be done instead of the Current 

Proposal; 

4.1.3. If they would send their child(ren) to the new joint faith school (if it were to be 

created) on the existing sites and later on a single site; and 

4.1.4. If they would not send their child(ren) to the new school, which school would they 

choose? 

 

4.2. A summary and analysis of the responses to the Standard Response Form and the Children 

and Young Persons’ Response Forms are set out in Appendices I & J respectively.   

 

4.3. We also received letters and emails from interested parties relating to the Formal 

Consultation.  The findings have been analysed and are set out in Appendix K.  Copies of 

redacted letters and emails from stakeholders who gave consent to their comments being 

used are set out in Appendix L.  

 

4.4. There was also significant use of social media by interested parties during the Formal 

Consultation period; in the main as part of St Brigid’s stakeholders’ campaign against the 

Current Proposal.  Facebook Groups in favour of the retention of St Brigid’s were used as a 

means of drawing attention to the proposal by parents groups and an on-line petition which 

drew 1,071 signatories by the end of the closing date for the consultation period was also 

submitted.  Two Youtube videos were also produced to draw attention to the proposal.  A 

video including pupils was uploaded to Youtube based on the Abba song “SOS” and drew 

approximately 9,000 hits during the Formal Consultation period.  However, due to copyright 

reasons the video had to be amended at the close of the Formal Consultation period.  In 

addition, a second video based on the “SOS” song was uploaded which was filmed outside 

County Hall in Ruthin showing St Brigid’s superheroes visiting the offices of, and assaulting, 

the ‘Joker’.   From a different perspective, a Facebook Group was also established “Have Faith 

in Rhyl” which supported the new school being located within the town of Rhyl. 

 

4.5 Examples of the types of points raised by respondents to the Formal Consultation, together 

with the Promoters’ response are set out in Appendix M. 

 

5. Response from Estyn 

 
 In accordance with the requirements from the draft School Organisation Code, a copy of the 

Consultation Document was sent to Estyn for its observations.  In its response, Estyn considers 

a range of key questions with regard to the Current Proposal.  In response to the question, 

“Are the proposals likely to maintain or improve the standard of education provision in the 

area?”, its response was, “..it is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain 

the present standards of education provision in the area.  Overall, pupil outcomes in both 

Page 35



 
 

7 
 

schools appear to be good, with both schools improving in the last three years. It is likely that 

pupils would still be taught on the same site by the same teachers if this proposal goes ahead, 

the impact on outcomes is likely to be very limited.  However this cannot be guaranteed as the 

new dual site school’s governing body will ultimately decide who is appointed.” The full 

response is set out in Appendix N. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 36



 
 

8 
 

APPENDIX A 

 
Consultation Document Recipient List 

 

No Stakeholder Number of recipients  

1.  
Conwy County Borough Council 1 

2.  
Flintshire County Council 1 

3.  
Catholic Diocese of Wrexham 3 

4.  
Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph 3 

5.  
The Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust 6 

6.  
Chair of Governors and School Council of the following 

schools: 

 

 
a. Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School 

2 

 b. St Brigid’s School 
2 

 c. Rhyl High School 
2 

 d. Prestatyn High School 
2 

 e. Denbigh High School 
2 

 f. St Richard Gwyn Catholic High School 
2 

7.  
Blessed Edward Jones  

 a. Parents 
419 

 b. Teachers and support staff 
46 

8.  
St Brigid’s  

 a. Parents 
391 

 
b. Teachers and support staff 

68 

9.  
All other Denbighshire Schools  

 a. Headteachers 
55 

 b. Chairs of Governors 
55 

10.  
Coleg Llandrillo 1 

Page 37



 
 

9 
 

11.  
Rhyl and Prestatyn VI 1 

12.  
Dyffryn Clwyd Learning Partnership 1 

13.  
Independent nursery providers in the Denbigh area 5 

14.  
Parents of pupils attending the following Primary Schools 

in Denbighshire: 

 

 a. Ysgol Mair RC Primary School, Rhyl 
221 

 
b. St Asaph VP, St Asaph 

96 

 
c. Ysgol Esgob Morgan, St Asaph 

94 

 
d. Ysgol Trefnant VA, Trefnant 

52 

15.  
Chair of Governors and School Council in the following 

primary schools in Conwy: 

 

 
a. Ysgol St Joseph’s RC,  Colwyn Bay   

2 

 
b. Ysgol y Plas, Llanelian 

2 

 c. Ysgol Betws yn Rhos 
2 

 
d. Ysgol Llanddulas 

2 

 
e. Ysgol St George 

2 

16.  
Chair of Governors and School Council of the following 

Primary Schools in Flintshire: 

 

 
a. St Winefrede’s in Holywell 

2 

 
b. Ysgol yr Esgob, Caerwys 

2 

 
c. Nannerch VC School 

2 

 
d. Ysgol y Llan, Whitford 

2 

 
e. Ysgol Trelawnyd 

2 

 f. St Mary’s, Nercwys. 
2 

17.  
Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership 1 

18.  
Early Years Development and Childcare Partnerships 1 

19.  
All Denbighshire County Councillors 47 

20.  
Assembly Members and Members of Parliament 10 

Page 38



 
 

10 
 

representing areas affected by the Current Proposal 

21.  
Rhyl Town Council 15 

22.  
Denbigh Town Council 10 

23.  
St Asaph Town Council 5 

24.  
Bodelwyddan Town Council 5 

25.  
Rhuddlan Town Council 5 

26.  
The Welsh Government 1 

27.  
Estyn 1 

28.  
The local Communities First Partnership (in relevant 

areas) 

2 

29.  
Relevant teaching and staff trades unions 8 

30.  
North Wales Consortium 1 

31.  
Taith 1 

32.  
North Wales Police Commissioner 1 

  1,667 

Page 39



 
 

11 
 

APPENDIX B 

Standard Response Form 
 

Response Form 

 

The Council’s current preferred option is to establish a new joint faith school to serve the 

communities of Denbigh, Rhyl and the surrounding areas on the current sites of Blessed Edward 

Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School (the Current Proposal). However, no decision will 

be made until the Council has carried out the consultation referred to in the main Consultation 

Document.  

We would like to hear your views on the Current Proposal. You can let us have your views in the 

following ways:  

 If you are accessing this form online, simply click here to complete the form;  

 If you have received a hard copy of this document, simply complete the form and send it to 

Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council, County Hall, 

Wynnstay Road, Ruthin LL15 1YN or visit our website 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation and follow the survey link;  

 Alternatively, you can complete the form as above, scan it and email it to us at 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk;  

 If you don’t have access to a scanner, simply send an email to the above address with your 

responses, using the same numbering as that set out below.  

 

Please let us have your response no later than Monday 22 July 2013. If you would like us to 

acknowledge receipt of your response please provide your name and address.  

 

1.  Are you in favour of the Current Proposal?  
(Please tick one box)  

Yes  

No  

 
 

2. Please let us have any comments, positive or negative, you would like to make in respect of the 

Current Proposal.  

(Please use additional sheets if necessary) ………………………………………………………………………………………...  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Page 40



 
 

12 
 

3. Please tell us about any alternative suggestions you have to the Current Proposal.  

(Please use additional sheets if necessary)  

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  
 

 

 

4. If the Current Proposal is implemented, would you allow your child(ren) to attend the new 

school (on the existing sites) or would you choose another school? If you would choose another 

school, which one and why?  

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

 

 

5. If the Current Proposal is implemented, the Council would then consider making a further 

proposal in the future to construct a new school building on a site in the 

Rhuddlan/Boddelwyddan area and move the school there.  

If that happened, would you send your child(ren) to school on the new site or would you 

choose another school? If you would choose another school, which one and why?  

(Please use additional sheets if necessary)  

 

 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

Page 41



 
 

13 
 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  
 

 

 

5. With which school are you most closely linked?  

 

Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School  

St Brigid’s Catholic School  

Neither  
(Please tick only one box)  

 

7. Please tick the box which best describes you.  
(You may tick more than one box)  

 

Parent/Guardian 

Pupil 

Teacher/staff 

Governor 

Former Pupil 

Former teacher/staff 

Other (please state) 

Prefer not to say 

 

 

8. Under the terms of the Data Protection Act 1998 we must inform you of the following:  

 

Denbighshire County Council is seeking your views to help inform the decision on the Current 

Proposal. The information you have provided will be used only for this purpose, and may be 

shared with other agencies who are involved in the Formal Consultation, however only to address 

any issues you raise. If you do not wish to provide personal details your views will still be 

considered, but we will not be able to acknowledge your response personally.  

 

With your permission, responses will be reproduced – containing no personal data such as names 

and addresses – in reports within the Council and on the Council’s website.  

 

Do you consent to your response being used in the manner set out above?  

 

No  

Yes  

 

Thank you for taking the time to respond. 

 

  

Page 42



 
 

14 
 

APPENDIX C 

Children’s Response Form 

 
You can view the Children’s Response Form in the Closed Consultation section of the DCC 

website; just click on the Faith School Proposal area 

 

  

Page 43



 
 

15 
 

APPENDIX D 

Young Person’s Response Form 

 
You can view the Young Person’s Response Form in the Closed Consultation section of the 

DCC website; just click on the Faith School Proposal area 

  

Page 44



 
 

16 
 

APPENDIX E 

Presentation used for Governors meetings and the Teachers & support staff meetings 

Slide 1 

Consultation Meeting for [Governors/Teachers and staff/ Parents/  

[Name of school]] 

Slide 2 

Welcome and Introductions 

• Format of Meeting 

• Hear views of why the Case for Review has been put forward 

• Question and Answer Session 

Slide 3 

Purpose of Consultation 

What is the long term solution for faith based secondary provision in 

Denbighshire? 

Do we want it? 

If so what does it look like? 

How is it sustainable? 

Need views to shape this 

Slide 4 

Background Case for Review 

Why Review? 

•Moving to schools fit for the 21st Century 

•Learning environments to inspire pupils 

•Moving from what we have to what we aspire to 

Page 45



 
 

17 
 

Slide 5 

So why do we need to review? 

Main Drivers for Review 

•Modernising Education Policy Framework –Council believes Secondary 

Schools need to have minimum of 600 pupils (years 7 to 11) to be successful 

and sustainable 

•21st Century Schools Programme - focus resources on the right schools in 

the right places 

Slide 6 

Current Position 

•Blessed Edward Jones – Voluntary Aided - Catholic Diocese school 

•St Brigid’s – Voluntary Aided Trust - Curriculum delivered through Roman 

Catholic religious character 

•Church in Wales – No secondary provision in region 

How can working together strengthen provision? 

Slide 7 

What would a joint faith school look like? 

•Truly Catholic, Truly Anglican, Truly Christian 

•A Catholic and Anglican school is one in which children enjoy an education 

in a Christian faith context. 

•Religious traditions maintained and enhanced 

•A distinctive school permeated by Christian Values in which prayer, worship 

and liturgy are every day features 

•Welcoming school that aspires to the highest standards 

Slide 8 

Page 46



 
 

18 
 

Educational Argument for Review 

Acknowledge strengths of both schools:- 

However does current learning environment impact on maintaining and 

improving existing standards? 

Benefits of Joint Working 

•Development of common leadership and senior and middle management 

structure 

•Enhanced staff expertise 

•Development of broader curriculum 

Could be achieved on single or joint sites 

Slide 9  

Buildings and Sites 

2010 – Condition Survey – Both St Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones 

classified as “Poor” 

St Brigid’s – Maintenance and Improvement works responsibility of Trust, 

Welsh Government and Denbighshire CC 

Site Issues – 

Detached Playing fields 

High Number of Mobile Classrooms 

  

Page 47



 
 

19 
 

Slide 10 

 

Slide 11 

 

Slide 12 

 

  

Page 48



 
 

20 
 

Slide 13 

Pupil Place Planning 

Projections 

Blessed Edward Jones 11-16 

•2012/13 - 490 pupils 

•2017/18 – 394 pupils 

St Brigid’s 11 - 18 

•2012/13 - 371 pupils 

•2017/18 – 350 pupils 

Current demographics secondary numbers reducing 

Slide 14 

What may happen to Primary and Post 16 Provision 

•Current provision 

•Blessed Edward Jones 11-16 

•St Brigid’s 3-19 

•Initial focus secondary provision 

•Should discussions be widened to 3-19 provision? 

Slide 15 

Future Questions to be considered: 

When will any potential changes take effect? 

•Difficult to put dates forward at this stage, depending on outcome of 

consultation 

Will this result in a new school being built? 

Page 49



 
 

21 
 

•No decisions have been made regarding location- gaining information 

around future demand and what would influence parents’ choice 

Will there be money available to build a new school? 

•Outline approval- 21st Century Schools Programme- Welsh Government 

•All above issues would be subject to further consultation if proposals 

emerge 

All above issues would be subject to further consultation if proposals emerge 

Slide 16 

Next Steps 

•Initial consultation until 29th January 2013 

•All views will be collated and recorded 

•Should proposals emerge a decision needed by partners to proceed 

•Diocesan Authority approvals – Role of Bishops 

•St Brigid’s Trust 

•DCC – Cabinet 

•Any proposals will be subject to further consultation 

•Further decision needed to publish proposals 

•Period for formal objections to be submitted 

•If objections received – to be considered by Minister 

Slide 17 

What would a joint faith school look like? 

•Truly Catholic, Truly Anglican, Truly Christian 

•A Catholic and Anglican school is one in which children enjoy an education 

in a Christian faith context. 

Page 50



 
 

22 
 

•Religious traditions maintained and enhanced 

•A distinctive school permeated by Christian Values in which prayer, worship 

and liturgy are every day features 

•Welcoming school that aspires to the highest standards 

Slide 18 

•Any questions 

  

Page 51



 
 

23 
 

APPENDIX F 

Parents evening document 

Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based School for North Denbighshire 
[NAME OF SCHOOL] School Parents’ Evening 

Welcome 

Welcome and thanks for taking the time to join us.   We hope you find this evening helpful and informative, 

and that you feel able to tell us what you think of the Proposal: good or bad.  Your views are important and we 

are here to listen. 

Format 

As with the informal consultation meeting held in January this year, representatives from the Council and the 

Diocese are here to answer your questions and listen to your comments.  However, this time we are using a 

parents’ evening format and hope to allow many more people the opportunity to have their say. 

As you will see, there are three tables at the front of the room, at which you can ask questions relating to the 

following: 

Table Subject Area Topics 

One School Standards School performance, education standards etc. 

(Karen Evans & Julian Molloy - DCC) 

Two School Organisation The reasons for change, pupil numbers, funding etc. 

(Jackie Walley & James Curran - DCC) 

Three Faith Provision  Joint faith provision, ethos, pastoral support etc. 

([Carole Burgess/Michael Carding] and [Carole Burgess/John Kenworthy] 

- Diocese of St Asaph/Wrexham)  

The Basics 

· Form/join a queue in front of the table you would like to visit. 

· Each visit will be limited to a maximum of 10 minutes. 

· Try to keep your questions relevant to the expertise of the table you are visiting.  Our 

representatives will try to answer all questions; if they are unable to, you will be directed to the 

relevant table.  This will mean joining the queue for that table. 

· This evening is for parents and guardians of current [NAME OF SCHOOL] pupils.  There will be 

similar evenings for Ysgol Mair, St Asaph VP, Ysgol Esgob Mair and Ysgol Trefnant; [NAME OF 

OTHER MAIN SCHOOL]  [took/will take] place  [          ].  Anyone who is not a parent or guardian of 

a current [NAME OF SCHOOL] pupil will be allowed to attend and/participate at our discretion. 

· You’ve been asked to sign a register to allow us to know who has attended. 

· We understand that this is an important issue but please be mindful of our staff and treat them 

respectfully.  

Page 52



 
 

24 
 

Core Themes 

The Formal Consultation began on 3 June and since then certain themes have emerged in the points that have 

been made.  Here are some of the key themes, together with our response. 

 

Questions Response 

Can’t the money be spent on improving 

the schools separately? 

Welsh Government funding is available to improve educational outcomes & 

provides an opportunity to re-think how teaching and learning are 

conducted. It is not available simply to improve buildings in isolation. 

If Phase 1 goes ahead do you have the 

money to carry out Phase 2? 

 

We have agreement in principle to fund construction of the new school.  

DCC has a 5 year Corporate Plan and a new faith school is part of that plan; 

this is supported by a financial commitment. 

DCC’s Cabinet have backed the Proposal and is committed to Phase 2.  It 

has stressed that if Phase 1 goes ahead, the Phase 2 Proposal must come 

before it no later than 2015 (whilst the members who comprise Cabinet are 

still in post).   

If the new school is built, where will it be? 

 

We will soon be carrying out feasibility studies on the sites of the two 

existing schools and other sites in Rhuddlan, Bodelwyddan, Rhyl and St 

Asaph.  This will allow us to assess the financial viability of each of the sites.   

We will also consider the location of the homes of current pupils of the two 

schools and of feeder primaries.  This information will be provided to 

Cabinet in September this year. 

 

Why such a long gap between phase 1 and 

phase 2? 

We would like to build a new joint faith school but want to make sure we 

get it right.  The informal consultation showed us that people were worried 

about whether the 2 schools could work together.  We believe that they 

can and that the ethos of the two schools can be taken on by the new 

school.  However, by bringing the schools together on two sites, there is an 

opportunity for joint-working and for the two communities to get to know 

one another at a reasonable pace.  

 

If Phase 1 is approved, the dual site school will have at least a full school 

year before the proposal for Phase 2 will be put to Cabinet; this will take us 

into 2015.  Phase 2 will require further consultation.  There is a statutory 

timetable for carry out consultation; which again takes time.  If the Phase 2 

Proposal is approved, we will then have to produce designs, obtain 

planning in order prepare for construction.    

Has the council already made up its mind? No.  The council can’t make a decision until the formal consultation has 

taken place.  Any decision will also be in partnership with the Catholic and 

Church in Wales Diocese.  At present the Proposal is our preferred option.  

However, this is subject to the consultation process.  However, no decision 

has been made and nothing can happen unless and until Cabinet is satisfied 

that this is the right way to proceed. 

 

 

 

  

Page 53



 
 

25 
 

APPENDIX G 

 

School Council Findings  

Blessed Edward Jones School Council meeting 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The meeting took place on 9 July at Blessed Edward Jones School in Rhyl and was conducted by our 

Learner Voice Champion (LVC).  One of our Modernising Education team was also present to facilitate 

and take notes.  Approximately 15 pupils (from years 8 and 9) attended and they were accompanied 

by a Teaching Assistant from the school.   

1.2 The LVC took the School Council members through the following ‘PowerPoint’ presentation: 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

Page 54



 
 

26 
 

  
 

 
 

1.3 As she went through the slides, the LVC checked that the School Council members understood what 

she had said; they indicated that they did.  

 

2. Hot Air Balloon Exercise 

 

2.1 The LVC then handed out an A3 sheet of paper upon which was printed a picture of a hot air balloon.  

She invited the 3 groups of approximately 5 pupils to write on the back of the paper: 

a. Who would need to be on board with the idea for the new school to make it work? The 

basket; 

b. What things could hold back the new school and stop it from working?  The ropes; 

 c. What would be needed to keep it flying/successful?  The air; 

d. What could blow the new school off course?  The wind; 

 

2.2 As the groups were given thinking and discussion time, the LVC reinforced the four main ideas.  She 

explained that the basket represented who was essential for the new school; the ropes represented 

what things could make the school bad; the air stood for the things that would make it good and the 

wind stood for the things that could happen to make the school bad.  She invited the groups to think 

about this in the context of the two schools becoming one school on two sites (the First Phase). 

 

2.3 The groups responded with the following: 

 

Balloon element Comment 

Basket Head, teachers, staff, pupils, parents and community. 

 

Ropes Timetabling changes (start, finish, lunch etc.), Size: this school is a good 

size (someone mentioned meeting a pupil from another school which 

had 1,200 pupils which was too big).  If it’s too big, teachers will forget 

your name. 

 

Air Quality of equipment and facilities, better education, better uniform, 

Page 55



 
 

27 
 

the school will be better. 

 

Wind Size, having to travel too far (especially for those who live near school 

now), where to build it, its name, people don’t want it to happen.  

Uniform: we’d like a simple uniform and perhaps a relaxed approach; 

so if it’s a hot day, you don’t have to wear a blazer. 

 

 

3. S.W.O.T. Exercise 

 

3.1 The LVC handed out a blank piece of A4 paper and asked the groups to discuss and write down the 

Strengths, Weakness, Opportunities and Threats of a new school on a single new site (the Second 

Phase).   

 

3.2 As the groups discussed the points, the LVC said to them that they should be really honest; for 

example if they thought there were more weaknesses than strengths, they should say so and that was 

ok. 

 

3.3 The groups responded with the following: 

 

Element Comment 

Strengths Better educational facilities, better quality education and school, more 

jobs and more opportunities for the school, new and better uniform, 

longer lunch breaks. 

 

Weaknesses Violence, smoking, drugs, Location: we are used to this one and people 

might not like a move, uniform, behaviour: fighting between the two 

schools, it may take a long time to get to school, size – a bigger school 

might mean less focus and not knowing people. 

 

Opportunities More school trips, more people, more staff, more money, more jobs, 

different approach to learning, more subjects and more equipment. 

 

Threats Bullying, problems between the two schools; pupils arguing, protests 

and riots because people don’t want to move, people not wanting it to 

happen could be a problem itself. 

 

 

4. Dot Voting 

 

4.1 The final exercise saw ED asking the groups to come up with any other ideas as to what could happen 

instead of the Current Proposal.   

 

4.2 The groups were giving thinking and discussion time during which ED explained that when they had 

come up with ideas they were to write them on a piece of A3 paper.  ED had written the Current 

Proposal on the paper and they were to write down their ideas underneath it.  When they had done 

that, they were to place a dot next to the idea they would most like to see happen.   

 

4.3 The groups responded with the following: 

 

Suggestion Number of votes 

Merge 2 schools, new building and new 

site  

2 

Page 56



 
 

28 
 

Maybe put vending machines 1 

Upgrading this school and making this 

school better quality 

9 

Having two separate schools next to each 

other but share facilities and economy 

1 

Having a stage to perform 0 

Use the money to upgrade both schools 1 

Don’t know  1 

 

5. Questions 

 

5.1 The LVC invited the School Council to ask any questions. 

 

5.2 The questions and answers (both of which were provided by the Modernising Education team were as 

follows: 

 

Question Answer 

How did the idea come 

about? 

The council and the bishops of Wrexham and St Asaph have been 

discussing the idea for a joint faith secondary school for the north of 

Denbighshire for around 4 or 5 years now.  They saw that there was an 

absence of Anglican secondary schools for the pupils from Anglican 

primary schools to go to.   

 

What is your view? It wouldn’t be right for me to give my view of the proposal as we are 

here to take your view and I don’t want to influence that.  What I will 

say though is that the council and the bishops have been working on 

this for a long time and have tried to come up with the best way to 

provide joint faith secondary education in the north of the county.  It’s 

impossible to please everyone: if you are faced with a difficult choice 

you could do one thing but it might upset your friend, or do another 

and it might make you feel bad.  What we have tried to do is to come 

up with the option which benefits most people and upsets as few 

people as possible. 

The decision hasn’t been made yet; the Proposal is what we think is 

best.  However, the reason we have come to see you, have met with 

parents and teachers and Governors is to take their views on what we 

have proposed.  The elected county councillors and the Bishops will 

have to make the ultimate decision as to whether to proceed with this.  

 

 

Comment:  The comments made by the school council members illustrate that they had a 

good understanding of the reasons for the Formal Consultation being carried out.  They saw 

the need for change, appreciated the risks of doing nothing and the advantages of what the 

Current Proposal could offer.  However, when it came to their preferred option, the majority 

wanted to preserve and improve their own school.  This is echoed in the responses to the 

Children and Young Person’s Response Form set out in Appendix F below. 

 

Page 57



 
 

29 
 

St Brigid’s School Council Meeting 

1. A representative of the St Brigid’s School Council contacted the LVC to request that instead of the 

planned meeting, the School Council wanted to invite her, the Head of Customers and Education 

Support, the Leader of the Council and the Lead Member for Education to a meeting.  The agenda for 

that meeting was set by the School Council and was as follows: 

 

A School Council Forum meeting  
will be held on 

Wednesday 3rd July 2013 
At St. Brigid’s School 

In the library 

At 1:30pm 
AGENDA 

 
1. Opening prayer 
 
2. General introduction and welcome 
 
3. Concerns regarding the consultation document  
 
4. Concerns regarding the proposal outlined in the consultation document 
 
5. Outlining of the learner voice’s vision  

 
 

Chairperson of St. Brigid’s School Council 

 

2. The Leader and Lead Member for Education were unable to attend the meeting and so the LVC was 

joined by the Head of Customer Services and a member of our Modernising Education team.   The 

meeting was held on 3 July at St Brigid’s School, Denbigh.  

3. The chair of the meeting welcomed everyone and invited each person present to introduce 

themselves; which they did.  

 

6. Members of the School Council led the opening prayer. 

 

7. The Chair then led the meeting through each agenda item 

 

Concerns regarding the consultation document and the proposal outlined in the consultation 

document (Items 3&4 on the Agenda) 

 

SC The children’s version of the document talks of there being a 5 year gap [between the 

two phases], whereas the young persons’ version says it will be a few years.  Can you 

clarify the timescales?  As a second point, I am also worried about Primary Provision 

 

Head of 

CES 

· This is a programme which covers all of the county; we are not just doing this 

school. 

· In carrying out this programme we have to look at trends, faith, Welsh language 

provision: not just now but for 20, 30 and even 40 years’ time.   

· A key issue is surplus places.  We know this is not an issue for SB but we have to 

look at all of the schools.  We have to look at SB and BEJ together; we can’t 

view one in isolation. 

Page 58



 
 

30 
 

· We have to look at the budget we have and the number of pupils (as its pupils 

numbers that drive the budget) 

· It’s SB’s size and facilities that mean it cannot bring in more pupils.  With BEJ we 

know it has fewer pupils. 

 

SC Why not just improve both schools? 

 

Head of 

CES 

We could do that, but the Welsh Government would ask us, ‘are they both sustainable?’ 

SC You spoke about trends; demand for Welsh language provision, faith provision.  We 

have a waiting list; isn’t that showing a trend showing a demand and need for our 

school? 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes; but we still have an issue with BEJ. 

 

SC You’ve said that SB’s problem is its size; we have a waiting list.  BEJ’s problem is surplus 

places (not infrastructure).  So, how does this consultation, which is about 

infrastructure, resolve this problem? 

 

Head of 

CES 

It’s complex.  Surplus places and size are not the only issues.  There are issues with 

leadership and management, difficulties with recruiting and keeping headteachers.  

Now, phase one answers only part of the concerns.  Phase two will resolve all of them.  

We want elected members of the council to commit to phase two once phase one is 

done.  We’ve had feedback already during the consultation process that people are 

concerned about the risk that money will not be available to carry out phase two once 

phase one has been carried out. 

 

SC So you’ve said that the problem with BEJ is surplus places and with SB its size. 

 

Head of 

CES 

One of the problems. 

 

SC We’ve prepared an evidence booklet; the penultimate page of which contains an 

examination of the feasibility of the proposal regarding present and future pupil 

numbers. 

 

Head of 

CES 

We are only part way through the whole process.  Stage one was obtaining permission 

to consult.  We’ve got that and we are now at stage two, which is the consultation itself.  

Stage three will be implementation. 

One risk we face is parental choice and pupils going elsewhere.  We don’t want that, we 

want to keep you in Denbighshire’s education system.   

With the size issue, it’s not so easy to predict whether parents will choose not to send 

their children to the new school; we have to look at the faith communities and the faith 

primary schools and factor in those potential pupils.  

 

SC We’d say that there is the opportunity for them to come here because we have a mix of 

faiths here and non-faith pupils.   

 

Head of 

CES 

There would still be infrastructure issues to resolve. 

 

SC Could we not merge with another school? 

 

Head of 

CES 

I’d be interested to hear your thoughts on which one. 

 

SC We don’t know BEJ; I’ve never been there.  Why not invest here and resolve surpluses at 

BEJ separately? 

 

Page 59



 
 

31 
 

Head of 

CES 

We’d like to know why you feel SB is so special. 

 

SC We’ve put together a document on this.  The setting is beautiful.  I visit other schools as 

part of a consortium and don’t see this elsewhere.  The history of the buildings, the 

tradition and ethos; there is a sense of pride here. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Do you think you don’t have that in other schools? 

 

SC I visit Brynhyfryd which although a good school, feels clinical and modern.  At SB the 

building is special.  If we improved things here we’d have to build new buildings but 

we’d still have this building as a central point.  The ethos here, although not tangible, 

has a definite psychological benefit.  Also, we have Sister Liz here and the 3 -19 provision 

is really important.  

 

We know that you’ve said it will definitely be in the Rhyl area. 

 

Head of 

CES 

No, we are doing feasibility studies on 6 sites.  Where we will look at things like flooding 

potential and other environmental factors, planning and ownership issues, how big it is 

and so on.  There are the two existing school sites, another site in Rhyl near Rhyl college, 

1 in Bodelwyddan and 1 in Rhuddlan.  

 

SC So you’ve not said it will definitely be in the Rhyl area? 

 

Head of 

CES 

No we’ve not said that.  We do have to think about the fact that so many pupils come 

from the Rhyl area. 

 

SC But are you thinking of the other people; the 37% who don’t come from Rhyl? 

 

Head of 

CES 

We look at where pupils live in relation to each site and the distance they travel. 

 

SC 14 people in our class live in Flintshire and only 1 or 2 are from Rhyl. 

 

Head of 

CES 

This is sad but we have to look at all pupils.  We look at all sites: one site being 

considered in Rhyl is in an area of known flood risk; the other Rhyl site (BEJ) has an issue 

with its size – it may be too small depending on the number of pupils. 

 

We have to consider transport issues and things like flooding. 

 

Head of 

CES 

All of the sites you are thinking about are between Denbigh and Ruthin.  I’m from Ruthin 

and it would be further to travel. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes we are looking at faith education in the north of the county because there is a strong 

demand for secondary faith provision there due to the faith primaries. 

 

SC This is an important issue for us and our work tells us that Denbigh is in the centre of 

where most people are coming from.   

 

Head of 

CES 

Is that SB pupils only?  We have to do this for all pupils. 

 

SC It seems that because most BEJ pupils are from Rhyl not a lot of consideration has been 

given to SB.   

 

Head of 

CES 

We have to look at it across the board. 

 

SC If the new school was based in Rhyl some pupils would have a journey of 45 mins and 

perhaps an hour.  We also considered St Josephs and that is still around an hour.  What 

Page 60



 
 

32 
 

would you do for these pupils? 

 

Head of 

CES 

We’d say, honestly, that some children will have this long journey and put that to the 

elected members; and they have to look at the balance.  They will weigh up the 

disadvantages against the advantages. 

 

Q [Unheard comment] 

 

Head of 

CES 

Could we merge BEJ and Rhyl High School?  We looked at that 3 years ago but people 

from each side said they didn’t want this. 

 

SC Is Rhyl High School being renovated? 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes we are doing this at the moment.  And we also realise that improving RHS will link 

into the faith review. 

 

SC If you rejuvenate RHS could not we say that those parents from BEJ who don’t want a 

faith education can go to RHS? 

 

Head of 

CES 

It might be that some parents from BEJ actively want their children to go to the new RHS 

because of what it has to offer.  If BEJ wasn’t a faith school then we could look at RHS as 

a solution; but BEJ is a faith school and this won’t work.   

We’ve also looked at building on the SB site; the Rhyl people have said that it’s too far to 

travel. 

 

SC So both sets of parents are saying leave us alone? 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes, but to do nothing leaves both schools at risk.  I know you love this school but if 

there was a pot of money available to improve it you’d take it; the school needs 

improving.  I have a £70,000 budget to spend on maintaining all schools each year.   

Anything we do here we have to ask, what’s the impact on BEJ and others? 

The building is not the only thing we look at; there’s infrastructure, management, ability 

to deliver the curriculum.   

 

We can’t just improve SB because that wouldn’t deal with the surplus places at BEJ. 

 

I’ve spoken to individuals who said that the culture here is special, there is no bullying.  

That may be due to the size: it’s a small school.  We can replicate that feel even in a 

larger school by having home bases; pupils feel like they are part of a smaller family 

because of the way the school is designed.   

 

We’d like to take you to other environments to show you what they are like.    

 

SC You mentioned the curriculum delivery.  We perform well.  Also, if the people in Rhyl 

and SB don’t want to go will you still go ahead and build a school with no-one there? 

 

Head of 

CES 

If no-one wants it members may decide not to go ahead.  But we are not hearing this; 

some will want to come.  

 

SC On the point about home bases; knowing a group of pupils is not the same as knowing 

the entire school.  The 3-19 system we have here is not the same as a home base. 

 

At Brynhyfryd, some of the teachers I’ve met have been at the school for years but don’t 

know the name of some of the pupils they teach. 

 

Head of So it seems to me that what you are saying is that size is important. 

Page 61



 
 

33 
 

CES  

SC Yes, also if you have a larger school you would have to allocate teachers to more than 

just one group. 

 

Head of 

CES 

So tell us the ideal size you feel would work.  Also don’t just talk about the ethos, explain 

what you mean because that will really help elected members to understand why the 

school is so special. 

 

SC We’ve prepared a document* setting all this out.  We haven’t just said it’s the ethos: 

we’ve explained it.  It’s not just the history and tradition and the building, the 3-19 

provision is really important.   

 

Would you read it and respond with your comments? 

 

We talk about letting other people come here too; we want to clarify that. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes; ok.  We do though have to look beyond this and consider all pupils. 

 

SC RHS is being changed; is there an opportunity to make this have some faith provision? 

 

Head of 

CES 

We looked at this 3 years ago.  We put it out to consultation and the parents at RHS 

didn’t want it to be a faith school.   

 

SC Can you assure us that we will be listened to?   

 

Head of 

CES 

You will be listened to – we don’t make the decision; members do. 

 

There will have to be some compromise.  It might be that size is the part where 

compromise has to happen.  If we are going to have a brand new school there will have 

to be some compromise.   

Members may well say ok we can approve, or you should do something different or go 

back and look at a specific thing again. 

 

SC You talked about brand new technology but technology is changing all the time.  You are 

never going to have state of the art technology because it becomes outmoded so 

quickly.  We’ve never had this and I’ve never felt deprived.   

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes you are right but it’s not just about technology.  It’s about the building, disability 

rights, access. The fabric of the building; if the roof leaks.  We have to look at everything 

and strike the balance.  But, yes I agree with what you say, but technology can help.   

 

SC How will the faith school work?  Won’t the joint faith take away something of what we 

have? 

 

Head of 

CES 

It’s the Diocese and the Bishops who make that call.  It would be handy if those reps 

came to talk to you about that.  It’s a valid question but it’s a long process and there will 

be time for this to happen, so let’s have it. 

  

SC From our point of view, we have little to gain from this.   

If you the process sticks at phase one, what happens then? 

 

Head of 

CES 

We don’t want phase one without phase two.  If we’d not mentioned phase two in the 

consultation document and just consulted on phase one, that wouldn’t be right and we 

couldn’t expect parents to come along with us.   

 

SC Is phase two definite?  If phase one happens, will phase two definitely happen? 

Page 62



 
 

34 
 

 

Head of 

CES 

We want a commitment that is phase one happens, phase two will too. 

 

SC Bishop Peter was asked recently by some SB parents whether he would prefer a joint 

faith school or a catholic school and he said he’d prefer a catholic school.   

 

Head of 

CES 

I can’t really comment on that, I’ve never heard him say that.  It is, though, confusing. 

Why don’t you write to him? 

 

SC Oh we’ve written many letters to him. 

 

As politicians, if the overwhelming objections persist, would you ignore them? 

 

Head of 

CES 

No, we’ll analyse all of them.  Not all responses are the same. 

 

SC It’s funny how we are getting good grades [comparison made with a school in Chester] 

with the facilities we have. 

  

Head of 

CES 

There is no debate about how you are performing – but you are partially selective. 

 

SC Only very partially.  Not enough to affect the statistics. 

Also, our performance shows that buildings don’t make you perform better.   

 

Head of 

CES 

But what could we achieve if we had better facilities?  Although I agree that buildings 

aren’t everything, there is a proven correlation between the environment and 

performance.  Some schools with perform well despite their environment, but there is a 

weight of evidence to show the link. 

 

SC If you had new facilities and a new school, this would be at the expense of the culture.   

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes.  

 

SC You could use us as a model for other schools and not close us. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes, but it’s not the only model.  Karen, the head of education at the council, has been 

to visit schools all over the country and in England.  She has seen other models: we want 

to use the best from what’s out there. 

 

SC A school organisation proposal to close a school must be able to demonstrate that the 

new provision is as good as or better than what is there already.   

 

Head of 

CES 

This is the work we are doing and all of that will be in the public domain.  

 

SC Merging is one solution to the issue of surplus places but are there other solutions?  You 

could attract more pupils to BEJ (including those SB girls who live closer to BEJ) if you 

made it better. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes, we look at this and will put all this in the paper. 

 

SC What are the plans you’ll achieve by merging? 

  

Head of 

CES 

We want a school with outcomes better than we have at present.  We want a school 

that will be able to achieve the curriculum, with facilities that allow it to do so.  If you 

look at BEJ; the pupils have a 10 minute walk to the sports field, their science facilities 

aren’t good enough.  We want a sustainable school with the right pupil numbers.   

 

Page 63



 
 

35 
 

SC So you are mixing together to create one school. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes.  We want to take the best from both. 

 

SC If we had the space, we could have the right number of people here.  We could have the 

Rhyl children here. 

 

Head of 

CES 

We have to take into account the transport options. 

 

SC There is land next door to us.  I’m sure the farmer would sell. 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes, that’s a possibility; but would it be the right thing for it to happen?  There is the 

transport issue: the positives would be that you would retain the building and the ethos. 

 

SC If there is a merge, would there be no catholic only education available to parents: there 

would be a lack of choice. 

 

Head of 

CES 

We have tried to test this in the consultation; whether people want Anglican only, 

Catholic only or joint faith. 

 

SC You mentioned carrying out feasibility studies on 6 sites; why are these not in the 

consultation document? 

 

Head of 

CES 

There is nothing in the consultation document because we will be doing the work on it.  

It was important to say that it would be in the north (in the consultation document). 

 

SC But the consultation document says it will probably be in the Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan 

area.   

 

Head of 

CES 

We know there is an issue with that. 

 

SC A phrase that is often used is sustainability; I know it’s in the context of pupil numbers 

etc., but in terms of environmental sustainability, why would you build on greenfield 

sites when you have two existing brownfield sites available? 

  

Head of 

CES 

We will look at that in the feasibility studies. 

 

SC Could we have the information about the sites? 

 

Head of 

CES 

Yes, it will be in the public domain. 

 

SC We’d need access to this before the consultation ends. 

 

Head of 

CES 

No.  The consultation is not over; if approved there is another procedure – where a 

statutory notice is served and there is a further period for people to object.  Members 

have to see all of the information first and that’s right because they may decide not to 

proceed.  If the decide to proceed then you get to see all of the details as it will be public 

information.     

 

SC Statutory Notice implies that it’s just telling you. 

 

Head of 

CES 

No, you still get the chance to object. 

 

SC We are not used to the council’s processes.  Can we have a response to our document? 

 

Head of No, we won’t respond to it.  We’ll include it in the papers we present to Cabinet, you 

Page 64



 
 

36 
 

CES could come to that meeting (some of your parents came to the last one).  I will highlight 

your report to cabinet to make sure you feel like you are being listened to.    

 

SC It seems that you understand that increased journey times of BEJ of 35 minutes is an 

issue but journeys of 45 minutes to an hour are less of an issue. 

 

Head of 

CES 

It is an issue; like the other transport issues.  We will put them all to cabinet together 

with the other issues.  Cabinet will look at it on balance. 

 

* St Brigid’s School Council Learner Voice Vision for Catholic 

based Education in Denbighshire 

We believe that the Plas-yn-Green site should be central to any 

developments in Catholic based education in Denbighshire 
 
The Plas-yn-Green site is, first and foremost, a beautiful setting in which pupils can learn, work and 

develop (and play!), and we feel that this truly inspiring setting for the school community should 

remain central to any developments in Denbighshire’s Catholic based education provision.  

 

The site also carries much significance in terms of ethos, identity and tradition; indeed, we believe it 

to be integral to the ethos which makes the school so successful. Moving to a new site would 

obliterate something which has been carefully built and developed for over seventy years in favour of 

a more clinical atmosphere where it would take years to establish an ethos to a comparable level. 
 

 
 
In practical terms, the current St. Brigid’s School site would have many advantages as a centre for 

Catholic based education: due to its central location within the county, it would be an inclusive site, 

allowing children from across the county to attend and ensuring that their journey to school would last 

no longer than 45 minutes. The majority of pupils would travel from Ruthin, Rhyl, Prestatyn or 

Page 65



 
 

37 
 

Denbigh itself, and their maximum journey time would be 25 minutes. It should be noted that a school 

based on the North Wales coast would, on the other hand, require pupils from Ruthin seeking a 

Catholic based education in Denbighshire to travel over 18 miles.  

 

As regarding sustainable practice, it is evidently desirable to develop and invest in an existing 

Brownfield site (i.e. Plas-yn-Green) rather than building a new school on a Greenfield site.  

 
We believe that 3-19 education is truly visionary, and that it should remain 

a key priority in developing Denbighshire Catholic based education. 

 
The benefits of a 3-19 school are significant and we believe that widening access to this mode of 

education in Denbighshire would be both transformational and visionary. 

 

The 3-19 structure of St Brigid’s promotes a family atmosphere and ethos among the school 

community and there is much interaction between pupils of all ages, from those in the sixth form to 

the primary school children. This can be seen in the shared primary/secondary mass held regularly 

throughout the year, the annual Christmas show or the highly successful Reading Buddies scheme, in 

which Sixth Form students help younger children to develop their reading skills in a friendly, informal 

setting.  This structure clearly provides younger students with positive role models, while developing 

a sense of responsibility in older pupils. 

 

The 3-19 structure also allows for siblings to interact during the school day, thus promoting family 

values in a way that is simply not possible through other structures. It is also worth noting that this 

structure has logistical advantages: all children from the same family would be making the same 

journey to school each day, thus streamlining modes of transport, resulting in a natural cutting down 

on the carbon footprint. 

 

We believe that the transition from Year 6 to Year 7, which can often be awkward and difficult for 

pupils, is greatly aided by the 3-19 school structure as seen in St Brigid’s school. Indeed, we would 

argue that relative ease of transition is ensured in both a pastoral and academic sense: pastorally, the 

majority of pupils will be moving from the same primary school and so will have the support of their 

classmates, while the close proximity and links between the primary and secondary staff allows for 

continuity and coherence in terms of academic provision and support. 

 

We would also stress the necessity of the continuing of a Catholic based educational provision for 

Sixth Form students in Denbighshire. As a bridge between school and the adult world, we believe that 

this phase of education is crucial to a young person’s spiritual life and that it is important that this 

stage is supported in school. Catholic based education is certainly very popular among St. Brigid’s 

School sixth formers and integral to the school routine of many: over twenty per cent of Year 12 and 

Year 13 participated in residential retreats during the academic year 2012/2013 alone and a large 

proportion of sixth formers play principal roles in the masses held regularly throughout the school 

year.  

 

Summary of points: 

· The Plas-yn-Green site should be central to any new developments in Catholic based 

education provision in the county due to its central location, the significance of its history and 

tradition and the beautiful school environment it provides 

· Developments in Catholic based education should aim to be inclusive – to be accessible to all 

children across the county (i.e. in  a central location) and not further depriving the Denbigh 

community of future school generated investment. 

Page 66



 
 

38 
 

· A 3-19 school on the Plas-yn-Green site would be an environmentally-sustainable option as it 

would be the development of a Brownfield site rather than a Greenfield site and it would 

allow children from the same families to share transport to school 

· Developments in Denbighshire’s provision of Catholic based education should be based 

around a 3-19 structure as this has both pastoral and academic benefits for school pupils, 

ultimately promoting good citizenship among students 

· We believe strongly in the value and necessity of a Catholic based sixth form provision 

 

We would welcome comments and feedback on our vision for Catholic based education in 

Denbighshire – please feel free to contact us at the following address: 

stbrigidschoolcouncil@gmail.com 

 

St Brigid’s school council Evidence Booklet 

Press here to see the document 

Comment:  The points raised during the meeting with St Brigid’s School Council were geared 

predominantly towards questioning the Current Proposal and portraying the positive 

aspects of the school.  The consensus of opinion seemed to rest with improving the school 

and keeping the special ethos in place rather than carrying out the Current Proposal.  These 

themes are continued in the Vision document and the accompanying Evidence booklet. 

  

Page 67



 
 

39 
 

APPENDIX H 
 

Summary of issues raised in meetings 
 
 

Blessed Edward Jones – Governors’ Meeting 
 

Issue Raised Response 

The Rhyl Education Group want the 
school in Rhyl. 

The site is a key issue and we have identified 6 potential 
sites.  The size of the school is a key factor and until we 
are more certain about that then it’s tricky to name a site.  
Also, the cost of transportation is important. 

When will Temporary Governing 
Body be in place and who will be on 
it? 

By December 13/January 14 we’ll be in a position to 
consider the appointment.   

It will be a mixture of the existing GB’s together with new 
appointees from the Anglican side.  Also, the Dioceses will 
be able to appoint members. 

Concern about which school people 
will apply to for admission in 
September 2014. 

They will have to apply for BEJ.  We know that the period 
from September 2013 to June 2014 will be a period of 
uncertainty but there is an opportunity here.   

Is funding in place and can it be 
guaranteed? 

We can’t guarantee that:  we have agreement in principle.  
That’s the same position as with Rhyl High School and 
Glan Clwyd; the Council has committed its money to 
develop the project, at risk, based on the comfort that we 
have agreement in principle.  

Concern that we could go to P1 but 
not get the funding for P2. 

Accepted that this is a possibility.  Confirmed that DCC’s 
Cabinet has given commitment to P2.  Also, WG has said 
that the two schools are untenable. 

With Rhyl High School, DCC has committed to £1.5m, 
with the same level of comfort. 

The Proposal is progressive in nature 
and so WG should want to fund it. 

Agreed; also, there are doubts about the two schools 
staying viable as they are. 

Concern over the number of SB 
pupils who live closer to BEJ.  Also, 
the uncertainty as to how many will 
come from the Anglican community. 

The northern part of the St Asaph Diocese has no 
Anglican secondary offering.  Similarities with St Joseph’s 
in Wrexham, to which Anglican parents now send their 
children. 

If St Brigid’s don’t come on board 
what will happen? 

If they don’t and they can’t offer an alternative, then we’ll 
still go ahead and put it to Cabinet; it is they who will 
decide – although it may be a decision for the Welsh 
Ministers. 

 
  

Page 68



 
 

40 
 

St Brigid’s – Governors’ Meeting 
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1. Concern about consultation with 
the Primary School at SB. 

We have consulted with SB Primary already during the 
informal consultation but we’ll consult with them again in 
the formal consultation – as well as the schools listed on 
the PowerPoint presentation. 

2. Concern that the Dual Site 
School could bring about 
different scale/sizing and how 
that will be dealt with?   

In previous similar consultations, parents have said they 
won’t use the new school but then change their mind as 
the process develops.  

It is a risk that we might lose some.  After we have one 
school on two sites, there will be a further consultation 
regarding the site etc.  We’ll know by then whether 
parents will come.  P1 will give us an idea.  P2 – we’ll 
have a much clearer idea. 

3. The LDP will bring more housing 
to Bodelwyddan but the current 
economic climate will mean that 
it won’t all be built at once. 

We will look at how many houses will be built and when.  
We will not build a new school and create surplus 
places.  We will put in place the infrastructure to allow us 
to build in a phased approach: smaller at first with the 
ability to increase capacity as and when needed.  

4. Will detailed costings to upgrade 
the SB site be produced to 
Cabinet and will they be made 
public? 

Broad level feasibility and costings will be produced.  We 
won’t get the money for upgrading; but we’ll do the 
feasibility to make the case – it will be along the lines of 
a condition survey.  All documents presented to cabinet 
are made public.   

5. If SB is not sustainable as it is 
why not increase its size, buy 
land to allow this and allow 
others to come here?  Why 
won’t you look at that closely? 

We will look at that.  We know there is a lot to be gained 
by retaining SB but we have to balance against that the 
cost of transporting pupils to Denbigh – that would be a 
huge cost. 

 

6. The Anglican and Catholic 
Dioceses have different views 
and will contribute to the pot 
differently.  How does DCC see 
this? 

The funding will come from WG and DCC.  Any sale 
proceeds from the sale of BEJ will come to us.  
However, the money to fund the project will be needed 
before then and we’ll have to fund that. 

7. The 2 Dioceses have very 
different views on primary 
provision. 

We’ll work on projected pupil numbers up to 2019 and 
what, if any, extra provision will be needed.  We may 
apply to WG for additional money for increased primary 
provision or we may need to fund it ourselves.  

The Anglican community has primary feeders with 
nowhere for their pupils to go.  There could be a Catholic 
only primary school on site.   

8. Concern that Cabinet were 
given educational performance 
figures for last year but no 
others. 

We are required to produce the most recent figures.  
We’ll commit to presenting 3 years’ figures. 

9. Concern over uncertainty of who DCC has a 5 year ‘funded’ Corporate Plan and this 

Page 69



 
 

41 
 

will be in post in DCC or WG in 
3 years’ time and what their 
priorities will be. 

proposal is part of it.  The money is committed to it and 
DCC has the means to do it.  Elected members have 
committed to the Corporate Plan and will be in post for 
the next 4 years (past when we will have to commit to 
P2).  WG has a 4 year cycle and we can’t guarantee 
who will be in and what they will support.  However, the 
current WG have a commitment to deliver going forward. 

10. Concerns over previous 
promises of public money being 
spent which did not materialise.  
What happens if the money is 
not forthcoming? 

 

DCC will not go ahead with P1 unless we have the 
means to deliver.  We are working closely with WG (both 
with P1 and during the plan for P2).  Before we get to 
the end of P1 we’ll know whether we have corporate 
commitment for P2. 

11. Children’s education will be 
endangered and good staff will 
go. 

 

The Promoters are committed to creating a new joint 
faith school; not running down existing schools. We 
need to accentuate the opportunity here for the SLT with 
a bigger school.   

12. Concern that the new school will 
simply attract pupils from other 
schools and therefore not 
resolve the surplus places issue. 

It’s about choice but we want children to go to the 
nearest suitable school over time.  Children in 
Denbighshire want faith education: we have to look at 
where they are going now and then look to re-jig. 

13. The Consultation Document 
Para 6.16 it states that SB’s 
budget share was £3,064 per 
pupil and that this compared 
favourably to the average of 
£3,892.  Concern that this is not 
the case. 

With the cost per pupil – the lower the figure is, the more 
favourable it is. 

 
 
Blessed Edward Jones – Teachers’ and support staff meeting  
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1. With a Dual Site school how will 
the management structure 
work? 

 

P1 aims and the importance of new SLT were explained. 

As the two sites will have different age ranges in P1, an 
exchange of staffing might not be practicable, but staff 
will have a chance to work together on their working 
practises.  We can’t say what the structure will look like 
at present. 

2. Will BEJ have to adopt the 
working practices of SB? 

That might happen.  If P2 happens, we will be looking for 
best practices from both.   

3. Who will be our employer and 
will we work on the same site? 

Your contract will be with the new school.  For example, 
a maths teacher on one site may be required to cover for 
a deficit on the other. 

4. Will there be job losses, If we are oversubscribed, we will look for voluntary 

Page 70



 
 

42 
 

redundancies etc. in P2? redundancies and then if necessary mandatory ones.  
The process will be a robust, properly managed one. 

This won’t happen until at least 2019.  We’ll talk to you 
between now and then to see what individuals want; it 
might be that it suits some staff by then. 

We will be opening up to the Anglican community – the 
same thing happened in St Josephs, Wrexham.  As the 
demand for places grows, so will the number of places 
and with it the need for more staff.  We could be looking 
at expansion not reduction in the long run. 

5. When is the earliest we can 
have the new Governing Body 
on board? 

Somewhere between December 2013 and April 2014 

6. How do we get people to come 
here with this uncertainty 
hanging over us?  

The Consultation Document has gone to parents who 
will know this is happening.  We have to encourage 
parents to share our vision; this is a real opportunity for 
parents in Rhyl. 

7. Will the new school have a 
selection policy? 

No.  We need to keep in focus that this is a faith review.  
Inclusion is at the heart of that.  We all feel strongly 
about that.  We’re committed to the best education, and 
part of that includes the learning environment, the 
facilities etc., but also the core principles: which include 
the equality of provision.   

8. Would the new school share our 
ethos? 

Both schools pride themselves on their ethos and we will 
try to keep the best parts from each.  We will have to 
share values and education.  

9. Transport is an issue – there’s 
been a lot of press about faith 
pupils having to prove their faith 
before having their transport 
paid. 

We’ll pay for transport in accordance with our policies.   

10. What about post-16 provision? The new single site school will be 11-16.  It will offer 
post-16 provision in partnership with local colleges.  We 
won’t get funding to build a new school with stand-alone 
post-16 provision. 

11. How will post-16 provision in 
partnership actually work? 

We’ve not looked into this point in detail but everything 
you’ve said will be taken into account to make sure it will 
work. 

All money relating to post-16 provision will be paid to the 
external provider, for example Coleg Llandrillo. The 
provision will be on site at the college, but certain 
aspects of it may be franchised out to the new school i.e. 
some courses will be taught by you but on the external 
provider’s site. 

 
 
  

Page 71



 
 

43 
 

St Brigid’s – Teachers and support staff meeting 
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  How long before the primary 
school provision changes? 

The timing was as set out in Phase 1 and Phase 2 on the 
slides.  Effectively little will change until 2019. 

2.  How will you decide on how 
much funding you’ll need?   

We make the case for new provision.  It may be that we 
need a primary and a smaller secondary; we could bid for 
both.  It’s down to the elected members what we do and 
so how much we will need to draw down.   

3.  What examples of short term 
success can you give to 
support the two phase idea?  
Isn’t the 2 stage approach 
really pointless? 

· The review from which the Cynwyd Area School 
came; and 

· Sandford School - which was cited by Estyn as an 
example of good practice. 

The two phase approach allows us time for some of those 
issues to be addressed and for the best practice of the 2 
schools to be shared before moving to phase 2. 

4.  How will the new Governing 
Body be decided upon?  Will 
there be an election? 

Explanation of how the Temporary Governing Body would 
be appointed. 

It will consist of some existing Governors together will 
appointees from DCC and the two Dioceses.  All carried 
out in accordance with WG regulations. 

5.  Assurances sought as to 
security of jobs 

During P1 little will change, other than the head and SLT, 
but the school will carry out the usual staffing review 
depending on pupil numbers; so no guarantees can be 
given. 

6.  Concerns that 5 years is too 
long for a dual site school over 
12 miles apart to carry on.  P1 
is not needed we can do all the 
things you want to do in P1 
without the merger. 

This is precisely what the consultation is for; so we can 
hear comments like that. 

 

7.  Can’t we improve SB and grow 
pupil numbers 

WG won’t invest in this site as it is.  We have to look at 
two areas:  i) investment and ii) surplus places.  SB does 
not have surplus places but we can’t look at the 2 schools 
in isolation.  This is a great opportunity to work together 
over 2 sites.  If we do not do this we won’t get the funding 
and the 2 schools won’t work together. 

8.  What happens if you go to 
Phase 1 but then don’t get the 
money? 

Reference made to Rhyl High School and the various 
stages we have to go through with WG; the close working 
with WG; Cabinet commitment to P2.  There is no greater 
commitment we could get than that which we have now. 

9.  Where will the new school be?  There are 6 sites (including this one) we are considering 
and will do feasibility studies on.  This is a costly process 

Page 72



 
 

44 
 

What about pupil numbers? and one we couldn’t do until we had approval from 
Cabinet to go ahead with the consultation.  When we 
know the size – that will determine the site.  There is also 
the faith element – pupils in BEJ and SB, the primary 
provision; we have to look at who will go to the new faith 
school - also others outside the county will want to go – as 
they do now.   

If we determine there are not enough pupils to go to the 
new school we wouldn’t invest the money into it.  We need 
to sell this to people (it’s about faith education) we have 
the chance to sustain for the future and next generation. 

10.  What if the current proposal 
does not go ahead/is not 
approved? 

The two schools would carry on as they are at present 
and we’d start the consultation afresh.  Our concern is that 
both schools need the capital and have issues with size 
and sustainability.  SB’s site limits the numbers you can 
bring in.  

 
 
St Brigid’s – Parents’ Consultation Meeting  
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  Concern that the Children & 
Young Person’s version of the 
Consultation Document is 
misleading and uses 
manipulative language. 

Concerns over the meeting 
with school council during the 
informal consultation: notes of 
the meeting misrepresent the 
views of those consulted. 

Lack of clarity over what is 
proposed. 

Consultation Document sets out the possible things we 
could do; it is for the consultation process to discuss them.  

Two phase approach explained. 

The Children Friendly document was drafted with the help 
of DCC’s Learner Voice Champion; the focus was making 
sure that the document was understandable by school 
children. 

 

2.  How would things like mass 
work with two faiths? 

The identity of the school would be truly Catholic and truly 
Anglican; both communities would be represented.  At St 
Joseph’s (Wrexham), where there is shared provision, 
Catholics receive Eucharist mass. 

The new school would also be open to other faiths, but 
would be identified by its religious character.  

3.  Why did you want to use the 
10 minute drop-in sessions; 
how would this be fed back to 
Cabinet? 

Cabinet is provided with a detailed analysis of all 
consultation responses. 

4.  What if the funding does not 
materialise after phase 1? 

There is a small chance that we won’t get funding.  DCC 
has a funded Corporate Plan which includes this project.  
Current members have committed to this project. 

Page 73



 
 

45 
 

5.  The Consultation Document 
mentions investment on the 
sites as they are. 

Can’t we invest on the two 
sites to improve both schools? 

We have to resolve the issue of surplus places before we 
can be assured of receiving the investment from WG.  The 
document refers to investment during the interim period 
for infrastructure such as ICT. 

DCC Cabinet would not invest on the two sites when 
weighed up against other priorities. 

6.  How are you dealing with 
surplus places when you are 
building a new Rhyl High 
School when numbers are 
falling? 

Yes, numbers have dropped and so the capacity of the 
new school will reflect this.  The LDP will see 2,000 new 
homes built in the northern coastal and A55 areas; we 
can’t look at schools in isolation. 

7.  Concern about parish priests 
not being aware of the 
consultation 

The Bishop of the Catholic Diocese of Wrexham has kept 
parishes informed. 

8.  Concern about the 
Consultation Document 
misrepresenting SB’s PE 
offering and the lack of 
communication between the 
Promoters and school staff. 

Acknowledged that the school provides lots of activities 
but lacks quality facilities like full-sized pitches and 
changing areas.  Although the school has made the best 
of what it has, this can be bettered with capital investment. 

9.  Concern that although capital 
investment could improve 
things; the current plan will 
change nothing for 5 years.  
There will be less staff during 
the first phase. 

The two sites would remain very much the same for the 
next few years; it is not about reducing the number of 
staff.  The proposal creates a more efficient SLT and 
opportunities for staff and pupils. 

10.  How is the current staffing 
structure inadequate? 

We are looking for a larger SLT which is more sustainable 
and will offer more opportunity for staff. 

The scope and remit of roles, curriculum development, 
classroom delivery and current responsibilities are all 
issues to be considered. 

11.  A new school will be built, but 
why merge the two now? Can’t 
you just leave them as they 
are until the new school is 
built? 

In order to get funding, we have to demonstrate that we 
can reduce surplus places and be transformational. 

12.  Concerns about what will 
happen to SB primary 
provision and the lack of 
debate surrounding this. 

There will be a review of primary provision if we move to 
the next stage. 

We consulted with SB primary and relevant feeder 
primaries; although the focus of this consultation is on 
secondary provision. 

13.  The ‘3-18’ model that we have 
here is transformational; why 
not use it for the new school? 

There is a national agenda for post-16 provision which will 
probably mean we wouldn’t get funding for a post-16 
offering.  We could look to have it on-site but not part of 
the school.  We will look at primary provision if we move to 

Page 74



 
 

46 
 

the next stage. 

14.  If pupils here live in Rhyl would 
they be allowed free transport 
to this site if the proposal 
happens? 

We would not disadvantage anyone; things would stay as 
they are during the interim period. 

15.  Would teachers be required to 
travel to the other site to 
deliver lessons?  If so this 
would create issues for staff 
and eat into teaching times. 

Some inter-site movement may be needed. 

 
 
Blessed Edward Jones – Parents’ Consultation Meeting 
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  How will the two site system 
work? 

The 14-19 learning measure ensures the curriculum 
delivered on each site will be retained. For pupils, physical 
environment will not change.  For staff there will be 
opportunities to develop expertise and how the curriculum 
is managed will change with the creation of a middle 
management head of department structure. 

Standards are good but this there is always room for 
improvement. Currently the lack of suitable middle 
management hierarchy in either school means that this is 
a long term issue.   

We would support the Governing Body to appoint, 
including use of consultants.  We always recommend 
advertising externally to ensure the market is tested. 

Head Teacher appoints the Senior Leadership Team and 
Middle Managers according to their vision. 

Teachers Terms and Conditions dictate what can and 
cannot be done: 

• Pre 2005/06 – Allowance was given for any 
additional responsibility 

• Now Additional responsibility TLR’s have to 
include a line management role. 

2.  What plans are there for the 
curriculum? 

Delivery of lessons is statutory. The 14 – 16 learning 
measure is being reviewed and schools will need to be 
able to respond to the change.  

Once a new school is established the extent of any 
sharing of expertise and curriculum delivery will be the 
responsibility of the Governing Body, headteacher and 
SLT. 

Page 75



 
 

47 
 

3.  The new school is a big risk. 
You are asking us to take a 
leap of faith. The track record 
is good whilst the new school 
would be unproven 

We see two good schools coming together are building 
blocks for an excellent school. 

4.  Concern that the best teachers 
are leaving. We are having a 
lot more supply teachers. The 
new headteacher is changing 
things and reducing choices 
for pupils.  Welsh isn’t been 
taught by a proper welsh 
teacher as the teacher is on 
maternity leave 

We will speak to the headteacher to be able to respond 
fully to your concern. Appointing a teacher on a short term 
basis can be problematic in certain situations but without 
all of the facts it would be wrong for us to comment. 

 
 
Feeder Primary School – Parents’ Consultation Meetings 
 

No Issue Raised Response 

1.  
BEJ is a much needed 
sanctuary for its pupils.   
 
It’s good that P2 will call for a 
further consultation; it’s good 
to know that.  We should get 
this out there.  If people were 
more aware of this it will stop 
the negative responses to this 
consultation.  We also need to 
remind people that these are 
not community schools; they 
are faith schools.   
 
I feel a responsibility that we 
should get some positive 
responses to this process.   

 

Acknowledged. 

2.  
Concern about the community 
impact of moving the school 
from Rhyl. 
 

Even if the new school is outside of Rhyl, the pupils will be 
getting a better education so it will still help Rhyl’s 
regeneration. 

 

3.  
How will faith education be 
delivered in the new school? 

It will be a shared school; taking the best from both 
educational ethos.  The 2 traditions will come together to 
form an enhanced Christian ethos for the school.  There 
will be a shared Governing Body (both Catholic and 
Anglican) working together for the school.  There will be a 
shared chaplaincy with chaplains from each tradition.  It 
will share commonalities and respect differences.   
 
We won’t pretend everyone is the same.  We know there 
are differences.  We won’t try to change anyone’s view.  
St Joseph’s in Wrexham has been a shared faith school 
now for 7 years.  We really have good discussions; the 

Page 76



 
 

48 
 

Governing Body is on hand to talk things through; such as 
aspects of doctrine.  Our experience is that joint faith 
makes for a very vibrant school environment. 
 
The education is on our faith background but each pupil 
will be on a journey to understand other faiths.  The 2 
traditions (Catholic and Anglican) will be a centrepiece.  
There will be modules on development, skills re faith 
discussions, philosophy.  The two traditions have a 
common shared route in Christianity.  The sacraments 
have different emphasis for the two traditions, learners 
can understand this and develop their understanding.  We 
look at moral education and stories from the 2 traditions.  
This is all carefully safeguarded.  The Bishops meet to 
discuss programmes and ensure education is the best it 
can be.  We feel confident it is the best it can be. 
 
It is a single community in which there is a difference.  
The school puts together themes of worship for the year.  
As we come from 2 traditions, the range is richer. 
 
The Mass and Eucharist are whole school events which 
children from each faith are invited to attend.  This means 
there is greater understanding of the other. 
 

4.  
People have said the new 
school will NOT be in Rhyl 

The location has not been decided yet.  We’ll do feasibility 
on the 6 sites we have earmarked.  The results of this will 
determine the site we propose for P2.   

5.  
Will the Catholic ethos be 
diluted? 

On the contrary; it will be strengthened because people 
will focus on what they want for their religion in terms of 
the school. 
 

 

Page 77



 
 

49 
 

APPENDIX I 

Summary and analysis of responses to Standard Response Forms 

Question 1 Are you in favour of the Current Proposal? 

 BEJ SB Neither Both Non 

identified 

Total %age 

Yes 22 15 6 1 0 44 11.31 

No 22 308 10 2 2 344 88.43 

No 

answer 

0 1 0 0 0 1 0.26 

      389  

Comment:  A significant majority of respondents were against the Current Proposal. 

 

Question 2 Please let us have any comments, positive or negative, you would like to 

make in respect of the Current Proposal 

 

No Issue raised Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by 

this point from the 

total number of 

responses 

1. 
Response is entirely / predominantly 

negative towards / against the 

Current Proposal. 

318 81.75 19.51 

2. 
Unfair / flawed process: parents 

unable to speak at council meeting; 

mixed messages; DCC not listening 

to parents / pupils; consultation 

document flawed / unclear / 

misleading / provides insufficient 

information / evidence; too long / 

confusing; more information needed 

on the project, including costings; 

informal consultation ignored; 

creating instability; why two phased 

approach? Not all relevant schools 

consulted; states facilities aren't 

good enough but proposes to do 

nothing for 5 years; misleading / 

150 38.56 9.20 

Page 78



 
 

50 
 

biased information given to pupils 

3. 
SB is a wonderful school: good 

values; not too big; no bullying; 

friendly; intimate; approachable; has 

a +9.17 value added score; good 

qualities instilled in pupils; parents 

are willing incur extra time, travel & 

money to go there; all schools 

should follow its template ; teachers 

put in so much time & effort; 

tradition; buildings; grounds; 

scenery; good behaviour; great 

support for SEN and ALN 

101 25.96 6.20 

4. 
The school has a special ethos: it is 

like a family, the children care about 

each other, believe in values and 

morals. (SB: 30 / BEJ: 1) 

89 22.88 5.46 

5. 
 SB has high academic standards; 

highest in Denbighshire; better than 

some private schools 

81 20.82 4.97 

6. 
The ethos of SB (27) BEJ (1) both (6) 

is not transferrable /will be lost 

69 17.74 4.23 

7. 
Concern that there is no guarantee 

of funding for the Second Phase and 

no plan B 

68 17.48 4.17 

8. 
Concern about Nursery/Primary / 

Sixth Form provision.   

66 16.97 4.05 

9. 
Standards will / may drop / won't be 

as good at the new school / teachers 

may / will leave / children will suffer 

55 14.14 3.37 

10. 
Concerns regarding staff losing their 

jobs; staffing issues/disruption to 

children's education with a split site 

school. 

54 13.88 3.31 

Comment: Each response was assessed to see whether it was positive towards/in favour of 

the Current Proposal or negative/against the Current Proposal.  The percentage of 

respondents whose responses to this question showed that they were negative 

towards/against the Current Proposal was consistent with the responses to question 1.   

  

Page 79



 
 

51 
 

Question 3 Please tell us about any alternative suggestions you have to the Current 

Proposal 

No Issue raised Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by 

this point from the 

total number of 

responses 

1. Response is entirely / predominantly 

negative towards / against the 

Current Proposal. 

282 72.49 37.35 

2. Spend the money on improving / 

developing SB (sports facilities, I.T 

Dept, more classrooms etc.) 

120 30.85 15.89 

3. Both / either schools should be 

improved; DCC should invest/extend 

in SB and or BEJ. 

119 30.59 15.76 

4. Build / Expand on the SB site / More 

land is available / increase capacity 

111 28.53 14.70 

5. SB is a wonderful school: good 

values; not too big; no bullying; 

friendly; intimate; approachable; has 

a +9.17 value added score; good 

qualities instilled in pupils; parents 

are willing incur extra time, travel & 

money to go there; all schools 

should follow its template ; teachers 

put in so much time & effort; 

tradition; buildings; grounds; 

scenery; good behaviour; great 

support for SEN and ALN 

48 12.34 6.36 

6. Merge BEJ and Ysgol y Mair into a 3-

16/19 school. 

45 11.57 5.96 

7. Keep the two schools as they are 42 10.80 5.56 

8. Building a new school will cost too 

much. It will more cost effective / 

cheaper / better to improve the 

schools we already have. 

42 10.80 5.56 

9. Unfair / flawed process: parents 

unable to speak at council meeting; 

mixed messages; DCC not listening 

to parents / pupils; consultation 

document flawed / unclear / 

misleading / provides insufficient 

information / evidence; too long / 

confusing; more information needed 

28 7.20 3.71 

Page 80



 
 

52 
 

on the project, including costings; 

informal consultation ignored; 

creating instability; why two phased 

approach? Not all relevant schools 

consulted; states facilities aren't 

good enough but proposes to do 

nothing for 5 years; misleading / 

biased information given to pupils 

10. Maintain / Leave St Brigid's as it is / 

Do not merge / Do not close 

28 7.20 3.71 

Comment: As with question 2, the responses to this question were mostly negative 

towards/ against the Current Proposal.  Around 30% of responses favoured retaining the 

existing schools and improving what was there as opposed to the Current Proposal. 

 

Question 4 If Phase 1 happens, would you choose the new faith school or another 

school?  If you would choose another school, which one and why? 

No Issue raised Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by 

this point from the 

total number of 

responses 

1.  No I would not let my children go to the 

New Faith School 

117 30.08 30.23 

2.  No Response / N/A 70 17.99 18.09 

3.  Choose another school. [High standard 

school, suitable, same ethos 

48 12.34 12.40 

4.  Yes I would allow children to go to New 

Faith School  

34 8.74 8.79 

5.  Not decided / hopefully the plan won’t go 

ahead / Unclear, not enough information. 

25 6.43 6.46 

6.  Yes I would allow children to go to New 

Faith School provided that: ethos remains 

; standard of education remains,  two 

schools remain where they are, teachers 

remain the same  

23 5.91 5.94 

7.  Not prepared to answer /Unable to 

answer 

22 5.66 5.68 

8.  St Brigid’s only 10 2.57 2.58 

9.  Rather home school. 8 2.06 2.07 

Page 81



 
 

53 
 

10.  SB has a good ethos 6 1.54 1.55 

Comment: The most common response was that parents would not send their children to 

the Dual Site School; this is a significant number of parents.  Less than 9% of respondents 

said they would use the new Dual Site School. 

 

Question 5: If Phase 2 happens, would you choose the new faith school or another 

school?  If you would choose another school, which one and why? 

No Issue raised Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by 

this point from the 

total number of 

responses 

1.  No I would not let my children go to the 

New Faith School 

202 51.93 37.83 

2. No Response / N/A 68 17.48 12.73 

3. Irrelevant question at this time. 

Question not valid and cannot be 

answered. This is Phase 1, asking the 

wrong questions. Make this decision if 

and when it arrives. 

31 7.97 5.81 

4. Not decided / hopefully the plan won’t 

go ahead / Unclear, not enough 

information, need more information. 

What are the long term plans? Clarity of 

proposal needed and the possible 

outcomes. Fully prepared scheme is 

needed as to siting, design and costing. 

30 7.71 5.62 

5. Choose another school/High standard 

school, suitable, same ethos 

25 6.43 4.68 

6. Transport issues: not want child to 

travel, unhappy the 'free' bus would not 

include him, new site in 

Rhuddlan/Bodelwyddan would exclude 

children from South Denbighshire. If 

rebuilding in Rhyl too far for my 

children to travel and it will not be a 

Catholic school. As long as transport is 

24 6.17 4.49 

Page 82



 
 

54 
 

provided. Would not want my children 

commuting to the North of the County. 

Rhyl far too inconvenient for me to 

travel that distance. Serious health 

issues means travelling many miles is a 

problem. If Rhuddlan bad public 

transport links and inaccessible. 

7. SB is a wonderful school: good 

reputation [good values; not too big; no 

bullying; friendly; intimate; 

approachable; has a +9.17 value added 

score; good qualities instilled in pupils; 

parents are willing incur extra time, 

travel & money to go there; all schools 

should follow its template ; teachers put 

in so much time & effort; tradition; 

buildings; grounds; scenery; good 

behaviour; great support for SEN and 

ALN] 

19 4.88 3.56 

8. Yes I would allow children to go to New 

Faith School  

17 4.37 3.18 

9. Consider home school. 12 3.08 2.25 

10. Bodelwyddan and Rhuddlan too far. 10 2.57 1.87 

Comment:  Almost 52% of the respondents said that they would not use the Single Site 

School should it be built.  Less than 5% said they would use the new Single Site School.  

Although this is not directly relevant to the Current Proposal, it does give a clear indication 

of the current attitudes towards the building of a new school, should the Current Proposal 

be approved and implemented. 

 

Question 6 With which school are you most closely linked? 

BEJ SB Neither Both None 

Identified 

Total  

44 324 16 3 2 389 

(11.31%) (83.29%) (4.11%) (0.77%) (0.51%)  

 

Page 83



 
 

55 
 

Comment: The majority of respondents to the Standard Response Form were St Brigid’s 

stakeholders. 

Question 7 Which best describes you? 

 BEJ SB Neither Both None 

identifie

d 

Total %age* 

Parent/Guardian 
39 238 6 2 0 285 49.48 

Teacher/Staff 
14 32 0 1 0 47 8.16 

Former Pupil 
10 62 2 2 0 76 13.19 

Pupil 
0 30 0 0 0 30 5.21 

Governor 
8 8 0 0 0 16 2.78 

Former 

Teacher/staff 0 14 0 0 0 14 2.43 

Prefer not to say 
0 12 6 0 0 18 3.13 

Other: community 

member 1 18 0 1 0 20 1.22 

Other: parish vicar 
0 0 1 0 0 1 0.17 

Other: concerned 

citizen 0 2 2 0 0 4 0.69 

Other: 

grandparent/aunt 

other relative of 

pupil 

1 50 0 0 1 52 9.03 

Other: local 

business owner 0 1 0 0 0 1 0.17 

Other: parent of 

former pupils 0 4 0 0 0 4 0.69 

Other: councillor 
1 0 0 0 0 1 0.17 

Other 
1 18 0 1 0 20 3.47 

* percentage of the total responses given. 

Comment: Almost 50% of the respondents to the Standard Response Form were 

parents/guardians.  The second largest group of respondents was former pupils (13.19%).   

Page 84



 
 

56 
 

APPENDIX J 

Summary and analysis of responses to Children & Young Persons Response 

Forms 

Question:  Which school do you go to now? 

BEJ SB Other Total 

150 325 14 489 

30.67% 66.46% 14%  

 

Comment:  The majority of respondents to the Children and Young Person’s Response 

Forms were from St Brigid’s. 

Question: How do you feel about St Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones becoming 1 

school in 2 parts? 

No Issue raised 
Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by this 

point from the total 

number of responses 

1. Against the Current Proposal  It 

would be awful, it's ridiculous, it's a 

terrible idea, it's preposterous, it 

won't be successful, don't want it 

to happen, not suitable, don't do it; 

useless; pointless; pathetic; bad 

idea; stupid idea; absolutely 

chaotic; idiotic; hate it 

331 68.11 27.56 

2. I want my school to stay open as it 

is/ leave it alone 
89 18.31 7.41 

3. In favour of the Current Proposal: 

it's a brilliant idea; good idea 
79 16.26 6.58 

4. Negative: unhappy/ not 

good/confused/shocked/worried/v

ery 

sad/uncomfortable/annoyed/upset

/angry/scared/distraught/distresse

d/disgraced 

61 12.55 5.08 

5. What is wrong with the schools as 

they are?/The schools are 

fine/better/the best the way they 

are 

58 11.93 4.83 

Page 85



 
 

57 
 

6. SB has a family feel to it and many 

good qualities/great ethos 
57 11.73 4.75 

7. Neither in favour nor against the 

Current Proposal/unsure 
48 9.88 4.00 

8. Having two sites will be 

difficult/impossible : the head 

won't be able to commit enough 

time to either/won't be able to 

control the large number of pupils; 

10 miles apart is too far; hassle for 

parents and teachers 

37 7.61 3.08 

9. SB is good because we all know 

each other; there's no swearing or 

bad behaviour, discipline problems, 

bullying, the uniform is distinctive, 

great location, great teachers; good 

results  

35 7.20 2.91 

10. SB ethos would be lost 28 5.76 2.33 

 

Comment:  68.11% of respondents were against the Current Proposal and 12.55% made it 

clear that they had negative feelings relating to it.   The range of adjectives was telling: 

disgraced, worried, confused and scared made it clear that the possibility of the Current 

Proposal being implemented was unsettling for at least 12.55% of the respondents.  Those 

who confirmed that they were against the Current Proposal, but did not mention any 

negative feelings, were equally descriptive.  The Current Proposal was described as 

ridiculous, a terrible idea, preposterous, useless, pointless, pathetic, idiotic and more 

besides.  

Question: How would you feel if they became 1 new school on a new site with a new 

building? 

No Issue raised Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by this 

point from the total 

number of responses 

1. Against the idea of the two schools 

coming together on a single site: 

awful idea; idiotic; pointless; hate 

it; uneconomical; jobs will be lost; 

been here since the aged of 3  

349 71.52 27.01 

2. Negative: sad / freaked out / 

miserable / disgusted / annoyed / 

insecure / uncomfortable / hate 

the idea / annoyed / 

(extremely)angry / weird / 

depressed / tired / scared / stuck / 

confused / unsettled unsafe / hard 

118 24.18 9.13 

Page 86



 
 

58 
 

to concentrate / unconfident / 

unfair / unhappy / stressed / upset 

/ intimidated / inhibited / lonely  

3. I want my school to stay open as / 

where it is/ leave it alone  

81 16.60 6.27 

4. SB is good because there is a good 

anti-bullying policy, lovely building 

/ location / environment, good 

teachers and standard of education 

/ 3-16 transition is good / small / 

teachers know you  

78 15.98 6.04 

5. The new school will / might be too 

large / overcrowded / confusing / 

too many per class / won't be able 

to control the large number of 

pupils  

50 10.25 3.87 

6. Positive: excited 48 9.84 3.72 

7. SB has a family feel to it and many 

good qualities/great ethos  

47 9.63 3.64 

8. SB ethos would be lost 45 9.22 3.48 

9. The new school will be too far for 

me / others to travel  

39 7.99 3.02 

10. I'd go to another school: Not 

named (SB: 30) Rhyl High (BEJ:5)  

35 7.17 2.71 

 

Comment:  As with the Standard Response Form, the response to this question (relating to the 

Second Phase) has generated a slightly higher percentage of responses against than those relating to 

the Current Proposal and the First Phase.  The amount of respondents communicating negative 

feelings has almost doubled. 

 

Question: Is there anything else you would like to see happen instead of what we are 

planning? 

No Issue raised Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented by this 

point from the total 

number of responses 

1. Against the idea of the two schools 

coming together on a single site: 

awful idea; idiotic; pointless; hate 

it; uneconomical ; jobs will be lost; 

been here since the aged of 3  318 65.43 35.22 

2. I want my school to stay open as / 

where it is/ leave it alone  158 32.51 17.50 

3. New facilities at current sites: New 

buildings, bigger classrooms, 

development of departments, 

better sports facilities, better ICT 

facilities, music & Art, bigger 

canteen etc.  125 25.72 13.84 

Page 87



 
 

59 
 

4. You should spend the money 

improving the two sites  82 16.87 9.08 

5. The two schools should remain 

separate and should not mix/we 

don't want to mix with the other 

school/it would still feel like two 

separate schools / we do not want 

to merge  60 12.35 6.64 

6. SB is good because there is a good 

anti-bullying policy, lovely building 

/ location / environment, good 

teachers and standard of education 

/ 3-16 transition is good / small / 

teachers know you.  24 4.94 2.66 

7. What is wrong with the schools as 

they are?/The schools are 

fine/better/the best the way they 

are  21 4.32 2.33 

8. Would like a new school uniform  18 3.70 1.99 

9. Increase the size of SB  12 2.47 1.33 

10. Miscellaneous: Class pet, give the 

money to charity, more to toys, 

more practical lessons, swimming 

pool, recording studio, Everyone to 

be treated the same, better 

education etc. 12 2.47 1.33 

 

Comment:  Once more, it must be noted that the majority of respondents were against the 

Current Proposal.  The next highest placed responses wanted the school (mostly St Brigid’s) 

to remain open/left as it is, or for both schools to be improved. 

  

Page 88



 
 

60 
 

APPENDIX K 

 

Issues raised by letter and email during the informal consultation process 

 

Letters 
 

Respondent Types 

 

BEJ SB Other Total  

261 38 8 307 

(85.02%) (12.4%) (2.58%)  

 
Comment:  We received five types of generic letter from respondents from the Rhyl area.  

This explains why the vast majority of the letters are from Blessed Edward Jones 

stakeholders. These were produced in conjunction with the action group Have Faith in Rhyl, 

but signed by individuals.   

 
Responses 

 

No Issue raised 
Number 

raising 

% of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented 

by this point 

from the total 

number of 

responses 

1. 
We should build the new school 

in Rhyl  244 79.5 15.8 

2. 
Response is positive  towards the 

Current Proposal but for the 

second phase location  

237 77.2 15.3 

3. 
Unhappy with the suggested sites 

in Bodelwyddan and Rhudllan  

202 65.8 13.1 

4. 
Local parishioners funded 

building of BEJ  

140 45.6 9.1 

5. 
Transport will be a problem: 

parents won't be able to afford it. 

116 37.79 8.83 

6. Transport will be a problem: 

many children live under 3 miles 

away but too far to walk  

67 21.8 4.3 

Page 89



 
 

61 
 

7. 
Both Catholic schools in Rhyl are 

voluntary aided by subscriptions 

from Rhyl Parishioners - which 

will stop if the school moves  

55 17.9 3.6 

8. 
Do not want an out of town 

school  

48 15.64 3.65 

9. 
The economy/ regeneration of 

Rhyl/ Denbigh will suffer/ 

improve  

37 12.1 2.4 

10. 
More beneficial for the Youth to 

be based in the Rhyl Community  

37 12.1 2.4 

 

 Response is entirely negative 

towards the Current Proposal 

34 11.1 2.2 

 Response is entirely positive 

towards the Current Proposal 

1 0.3 0.1 

 

 

Comment: We received a total of 224 generic letter letters (from a total of 307; or 72.96%). 

The majority of the points raised in these letters relates to the location of the Single Site 

School.  However, as can be seen from the above table, a variety of other points were made, 

the majority of which related to Rhyl and Blessed Edward Jones. 

 

 

Emails 
 

Respondent Types 

 

BEJ SB Other Total  

1 41 6 48 

(2.1%) (85.4%) (12.5%)  

 

Comment: An overwhelming majority of the emails we received were from St Brigid’s 

stakeholders.   

 

  

Page 90



 
 

62 
 

Responses 

 

No Issue raised Number raising % of 

Respondents 

raising 

% represented 

by this point 

from the total 

number of 

responses 

1.  Unfair process: parents 

unable to speak at council 

meeting; mixed messages; 

DCC not listening to parents; 

consultation 

document/proposal is 

bias/flawed/unclear/mislead

ing/provides insufficient 

information. Minutes of 

meetings have not been 

made available.  No 

documents provided in 

Welsh. More 

information/clarification/det

ailed analysis needed on the 

project/consultation 

document including 

costings/details of new 

governing body/how 

standards will 

improve/admission 

arrangements/travel/how 

ethos will be maintained. 

35 72.92 14.23 

2.  Response is entirely negative 

towards the Current 

Proposal 

34 70.83 13.82 

3.  DCC should invest/extend in 

SB and or BEJ. 

19 39.58 7.72 

4.  Concern about 

Nursery/Primary/Sixth Form 

provision.  SB's successful 

Primary and Sixth form are 

being ignored. 

15 31.25 6.10 

5.  3-18/19 model is a winning 

formula 

14 29.17 5.69 

6.  High academic standards at 

SB; highest in Denbighshire; 

better than some private 

schools 

11 22.92 4.47 

7.  Concerns regarding staff 

losing their jobs; staffing 

issues/disruption to 

11 22.92 4.47 

Page 91



 
 

63 
 

Children’s 

education/travelling 

between schools with a split 

site school. 

8.  SB has a special ethos: it is 

like a family, the children 

care about each other, 

believe in values and morals. 

10 20.83 4.07 

9.  The ethos of SB/BEJ is not 

transferrable 

7 14.58 2.85 

10.  The economy/regeneration 

of Rhyl/Denbigh will 

suffer/improve 

7 14.58 2.85 

 

 Response is positive  

towards the Current 

Proposal but for the second 

phase location 

1 2.08 0.41 

 

Comment:  The most common responses were negative towards the Current Proposal.  The 

majority questioned the validity of the Formal Consultation process and made it clear that 

they were against the Current Proposal.  As with the responses to the Standard Response 

Form and the Children and Young Person’s Response Form, a significant number of the 

responses made positive comments about St Brigid’s.

Page 92



 

64 
 
 

 

APPENDIX L 

 

REDACTED CORRESPONDENCE 

 
You can view the Redacted Correspondence in the Closed Consultation section of the DCC 

website; just click on the Faith School Proposal area 

 
  

Page 93



 

65 
 
 

 

APPENDIX M 

Summary of Issues and Responses 

Section references are to those in the Consultation Document: Proposal for a New Joint Faith Based School 

for North Denbighshire 

 

Section 7 Educational attainment 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

7.6 The summary on pg 18 of the Document, 

whilst technically correct, is highly misleading 

and gives a poor impression of St Brigid’s 

when compared to the reality. 

The truth is that each family group consists of 

12 schools, St Brigid’s is in the top family in 

Wales, is 5th in the group with 5 A*- C 

(including maths, English and science, and 

joint 1st with any 5 A*-C Grades. 

The introductory paragraph (7.6) contains a fair summary 

of the data.  It correctly points out that both schools have 

performed well at times, St Brigid’s pupils performed 

better than those at Blessed Edward Jones more often 

and that both schools could improve their performance in 

their respective families.   The Promoters included the 

data and the summary to show precisely this position.   

 

7 

Generally 

An attempt has been made to compare 

educational attainment between BEJ and St 

Brigid’s, however, it is not possible to compare 

‘apples with pears’.  There is no explanation of 

the family group in which each school sits, nor 

what is meant by average capped points score.  

From the figures provided, St Brigid’s appears 

to consistently outperform Wales Girls, 

although it is accepted that there is always 

room for improvement in any school. 

The document fails to compare the 

performance of both schools and by making 

comparisons against the respective family 

groups distorts the positions of the schools. 

The data used in the Consultation Document is from Estyn 

and Welsh Government. Some is technical but all of it is 

designed to help parents and other interested parties 

assess the performance of different schools. It can be 

taken at face value or after understanding the statistical 

methodology. Anyone who wishes to do the latter needs 

to read and understand the guidance provided by the 

authors of the data. This is complex and quite difficult in 

some cases. 

However, one would expect some analysis of 

performance at the two schools as part of this 

consultation process and this is the data which is in the 

public domain and used across the Welsh Education 

system for a variety of purposes. 

The most obvious comparison to make is between the 

two schools most affected by the Current Proposal.  

Accordingly, the Consultation Document contains the 

most recent verified data for attainment of boys and girls 

at Key Stage 3.  However, as the Consultation Document 

states, St Brigid’s has only recently begun to admit boys.  

This means it has a much higher proportion of girls than 

boys.  As girls tend to perform better than boys the 

remainder of the data compares the performance of girls 

alone.   

Families of schools are groups of schools which face 

similar challenges; it is one of the best ways to compare 

like for like.   Each school is placed in a family of schools 

which each have a similar: proportion of pupils eligible for 

free school meals, levels of deprivation, pupils with 

Special Education Needs and pupils acquiring English as 

an Additional Language. 

The average capped points score is a further attempt to 

compare GCSE grades more closely between schools 

where pupils take a varying number of subjects.  This 

method limits the number of subjects which are taken 

into account to 8; as the majority of pupils take at least 8 

Page 94



 

66 
 
 

 

subjects.  Each grade achieved carries certain score which 

is multiplied by the number of subjects taken (the 

multiplier is always 8 when the average capped points 

score is used). 

7 

Generally 

Although this is visionary the Council has 

failed to invest on an ongoing basis and school 

buildings across the County and teaching in 

mobile classrooms is not unusual.  

There has been a distinct lack of investment in 

St Brigid’s from the Local Education 

Department and yet still the results are in the 

top 10 schools in Wales. 

The Council’s Modernising Education Programme seeks to 

improve the facilities for teaching and learning across 

Denbighshire.  Both St Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones 

are Voluntary Aided schools and this the overall 

responsibility for investment rests with the Trustees and 

the Diocesan Authorities respectively in partnership with 

the local authority rather than solely with the local 

authority. 

Responsibility for the provision, repair and maintenance 

of a VA School is shared between the school governors 

and the local authority. Governors are responsible for the 

fabric of the school. The local authority is responsible for 

repair and maintenance and for the initial provision of the 

kitchen, dining hall, medical inspection room, caretaker's 

house and playing fields. 

 

7 

Generally 

DCC’s own policy document (“Policies for 

Modernising Education in Denbighshire” Jan 

2009) states in numerous places that any 

closure, amalgamation or change to school 

provision must be able to deliver equal or 

improved educational provision, and yet not a 

shred of evidence has been put forward in the 

Consultation Document to support the dual 

site School being able to fulfil DCC’s own 

Policy. Here are some quotes from DCC’s 

“Policies for Modernising Education in 

Denbighshire” document that its current 

Consultation Document singularly fails to 

support; 

• Page 43 “Any alteration to school 

provision must be able to deliver equal or 

improved educational standards within the 

area.”  

• Page 53 “However, changes to 

school provision will only be carried out if the 

review process identifies that the outcome of 

the change would result in equal or improved 

educational experience for pupils within the 

schools affected.” 

• Page 62 “Any amalgamated school 

must be able to deliver equal or improved 

Educational standards” 

• Appdx C page 92  

“Successful Schools 

Issues Raised by Head teachers: 

Will the success of a school be taken into 

consideration before any decision about its 

future is taken? 

Response 

Yes. It is for this reason that the Successful 

Schools section has been included in the 

There are several ways in which the New Dual-Site Faith 

School could impact positively on educational provision 

and standards. The standard of learning and outcomes 

will improve for both schools since both can learn from 

each other. 

The dual-site arrangement will give stability in 

governance, leadership and with it a clear focus and 

common direction.  The two schools have both had more 

than 4 headteachers in the last 5 years.  This rapid 

turnover has broken continuity, restricted development 

and held up progress.  The Current Proposal would 

provide clear direction with a newly appointed 

headteacher and a clear indication of what the future 

holds for the new school.   

There will be opportunities for staff development, for 

professional learning initiatives and mutual collaboration 

across the two sites to benefit all of the children. 

Strengths and weaknesses which exist in both current 

schools can be addressed and shared respectively.    

Whilst educational standards in both schools are currently 

good, it is right to say that both schools can improve.  The 

Promoters have heard it said during the course of the 

formal consultation that St Brigid’s is the best performing 

school in the area and in Wales but this is not the case as 

can be seen from examination of the data. 

The Rhyl and Denbigh sites of the New Dual-Site Faith 

School would be able to work in harmony.  For example, 

all our secondary teachers in the Roman Catholic Diocese 

of Wrexham have recently spent a day together looking at 

the ‘the distinctive curriculum of the church school’.  This 

was a powerful reflection on ‘What do you mean by 

success for these pupils?’ ‘What do you most hope for 

every child leaving as they leave this school?’ and ‘How 

will you make your special contribution possible through 

our curriculum?’  Staff on both sites will be able to 

influence the new school through their individual 

commitment, their own vocation, and their willingness to 

serve the developing school for the sake of the young. 

Page 95



 

67 
 
 

 

document. The success of a school will be 

considered in the review. Any options which 

are put forward must demonstrate that they 

would deliver equal or improved educational 

standards.” 

 

7 

Generally 

The provision of information within the 

Consultation Document gives alternative 

schools which parents could choose if they did 

not want to send their children to any new 

joint school, however they are all of a lower 

standard of educational achievement 

therefore reducing opportunity for learners.  

This in itself cannot be agreed to and would 

question the legalities of the Current Proposal. 

DCC’s policy is to provide and equal or 

improved school and patently they cannot 

evidence that the Dual site School can be that. 

The Local Authority has a statutory duty to 

have regard for the general principle that 

pupils are to be educated in accordance with 

the wishes of their parents so far as that 

would be compatible with the provision of 

efficient education and the avoidance of 

unreasonable public expenditure (s86 of the 

School Standards and Framework Act 1998).  It 

seems to me that DCC’s actions are in 

violation of this policy. 

The Promoters believe the New Dual-Site Faith School will 

provide equal or improved educational standards and 

experience to that provided by the two existing schools.  

As this cannot be proved to be the case in advance and 

given the indication made by some parents during the 

formal consultation period, it is accepted that some 

parents may express a preference for their children to 

attend other schools.  Any such preference will, of course, 

be respected by DCC, and a preferred place will be 

offered where possible.  Accordingly, the Current 

Proposal will not prevent DCC from acting in accordance 

with Section 86 of the School Standards and Framework 

Act 1998 

 

Section 8 Alternative Provision 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

8.1 It is absolutely impossible for DCC to ensure that 

the standard of education provided by the 

Current Proposal will be to a consistently high 

standard, and particularly to the standard 

provided by St Brigid’s. 

100% assurances are impossible in education.  However, 

what we are confidently proposing is a fundamental 

restructuring of faith-based education in north 

Denbighshire which will remove anomalies, inequalities 

and instability; replacing them with a new sustainable 

school supported by rationale and good faith. 

8.1 The survey suggested that most STB pupils 

would not go to the new school.  Is it not more 

viable to remodel both schools, especially since 

Michael Gove’s speech last month in which he 

identified specific issues in coastal towns? The 

schools could be looked at individually but good 

practice still shared. Also why were RHS and 

YGC given the option to remodel and STB and 

BEJ not?    

The consultation will tell us, to some extent, how many 

families are likely to support the new school. 

Denbighshire believes that neither St Brigid’s nor Blessed 

Edward Jones are viable schools in isolation.  The 

Council’s Modernising Education Policy Framework 

states that it is not feasible for a secondary school with 

fewer than 600 pupils to provide the facilities described 

in its vision for 21
st

 Century Schools. There are also 

concerns over the viability of Blessed Edward Jones 

based on pupil numbers.  The informal consultation 

considered the case for change and the Council 

concluded that the status quo was not a realistic option.  

Hence the option of remodelling not being proposed as a 

preferred option.  Both Rhyl High School and Ysgol Glan 

Clwyd are considered as viable schools in accordance 

with Denbighshire’s agreed policies. 

8.1 From the survey that was taken the majority of 

St Brigid’s pupils would not go to the new school 

so is it not more viable to enhance the 2 schools 

The current demographics of both schools illustrate that 

the majority of their pupils reside in the north of the 

Page 96



 

68 
 
 

 

and give the opportunity for all of the 

Denbighshire pupils to have a faith education 

not just pupils predominantly from the north of 

Denbighshire. 

County. 

8.2 The alternatives for secondary provision do not 

include Ysgol Brynhyfryd, even though many St 

Brigid’s pupils are within its catchment area.  

Why have these not been included? 

The alternatives listed are based on the main population 

areas for the current schools. Due to the wide dispersal 

of St Brigid’s pupils it would not be meaningful to list all 

potential alternative schools 

8.3 The Consultation Document fails to evidence 

that St Brigid’s is a performing school with 

excellent results and a waiting list. 

How can an oversubscribed provision be 

targeted in this way? 

The report acknowledges this.  ‘Targeted’ is an emotive 

word. Sustainability, inclusivity, acceptance by the 

Catholic diocese and inability to address weaknesses are 

the issues for St Brigid’s. This proposal addresses them 

and offers hope of a successful, Christian school for 

future cohorts of young people. 

8.3 Displays another attempt to fill empty school 

places at Rhyl and Denbigh High Schools…. This 

should be tackled at the root of the problem not 

by dissolving a successful school.  

The purpose of the consultation is to strengthen faith 

provision and to ensure equality of opportunities for 

pupils. 

8.6 STB came 5th in what is a top family of schools- 

presumably the council/government identified it 

as a top performer and linked it to the others in 

its family?  Why is it no longer recognised for its 

achievements in the Current Proposal? 

The current performance of St Brigid’s is acknowledged 

fully within the Consultation Document. 

 

8.7 What is the purpose of including a comparison 

of Estyn Reports for possible alternative schools, 

which have been inspected under different 

inspection frameworks?   

The School Organisation Code requires Consultation 

Documents to include reference to the last inspection 

report.  As a consequence of the change to the 

inspection framework not all schools in Wales have been 

inspected under the current framework.  

8 Generally The [School Organisation Proposals Circular] 

Guidance states that one of the key factors to 

consider when deciding whether to close a 

school is: 

 

Whether the school provides education of a 

good standard compared with others that might 

be alternative schools, as evidenced by Estyn 

reports and other measures of performance. 

 

The informal consultation indicated that should 

the Current Proposal be adopted then parents 

would seek alternative schools to send their 

children to.  The Consultation document 

indicates various alternative schools that 

parents might be able to send their children to.  

The figures clearly show that if the Current 

Proposal is adopted then parents will be forced 

to send their children to lower performing 

schools in order to retain the ethos they value, 

and this will therefore not be in the best 

educational interests of the children. 

 

When performance is analysed in relation to any 

indicator the comparisons show that St Brigid’s 

is the preferable option.  To proceed with the 

The response from Estyn to the consultation states that 

“it is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least 

maintain the present standards of education provision in 

the area.  …. It is likely that pupils would still be taught on 

the same site by the same teachers if this proposal goes 

ahead, the impact on outcomes is likely to be very 

limited. However this cannot be guaranteed as the new 

dual site school’s governing body will ultimately decide 

who is appointed.” 

Page 97



 

69 
 
 

 

Current Proposal would serve only to impact the 

education of the pupils forced to find alternative 

provision in a negative way. 

 

Section 9  Primary Provision 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

9.1 The document provides little clarity on the 

future of the primary provision during the dual 

site period.  The initial discussions focussed on 

secondary provision and the future of the 

primary provision has been impacted upon 

this.  Should there be a separate consultation. 

There is no clarity on what is proposed for 

primary provision in phase 2. 

Primary provision for the New Dual-Site Faith 

School would remain on the Denbigh site – see 

comments on 2.2 above.  Insufficient 

information has been provided in relation to 

the impact of the Current Proposal on primary 

provision, particularly as there seems to be no 

agreement between the Dioceses. 

The Consultation document clearly made reference to the 

proposed delivery of primary provision should the 

proposal be implemented. The Current Proposal would 

enable the existing primary provision to remain on the 

Denbigh site during the First Phase.  This impact is 

referred to within the Consultation Document. 

The Consultation Document states that any decision 

beyond the First Phase would be subject to further 

consultation as part of any consultation for a new site. 

 

9.2 The merger of the schools ignores the principle 

of education that is parental choice – parents 

currently choose to travel to and support STB.  

Their voices should be listened to. 

The formal consultation has taken into full account the 

voices of parents; their concerns and suggestions.  These 

have been considered fully in relation to the Current 

Proposal, along with suggestions and concerns about its 

impact.  The Current Proposal aims to build on the good 

of both existing schools so the New Dual-Site Faith School 

can reach the families that seek a faith-based education in 

North Denbighshire.  The Bishops want this in order to 

give a clear sign of the Church’s mission to education. 

If the Current Proposal goes ahead, parents will have the 

same options as now.  There will be no impact on parental 

choice. 

9 Generally The implementation of the ‘Current’ proposal 

would see both schools closed and then re-

opened as a single school; however there is no 

agreement between the 2 Diocesan promoters 

on the provision of a Primary school and no 

indication of funding for this.  Therefore this 

proposal means the loss of St Brigid’s Primary 

school without full and proper consultation.   

DCC will be moving to close a primary school 

without due process. It is unclear within this 

document what the outcome of the Primary 

provision is, but what is clear is that there is no 

agreement between the promoters on this 

subject.   

The Consultation Document makes it clear that, “the 

primary provision for the New Dual-Site Faith School 

would remain on the Denbigh site.” (Paragraph 9.1, page 

26).  The Current Proposal means that the primary 

provision currently operated by St Brigid’s would remain 

where it is; at least until the Second Phase. 

Whether or not the New Dual-Site Faith School continues 

to offer primary provision if the Single-Site Faith School is 

built, will be discussed and agreement reached during the 

Second Phase.  Any decision will be put before DCC’s 

Cabinet following a further formal consultation.   

The Promoters can confirm that the parents of every pupil 

at St Brigid’s School (primary and secondary) were sent a 

copy of the Consultation Document.  Education Officers 

from DCC visited St. Brigid’s School Council to discuss its 

views on the formal consultation; the Council had 

members from primary and secondary year groups.  

Additionally, the Promoters have received completed 

Response Forms from many of the primary-aged pupils at 

St Brigid’s.  All parents of St. Brigid’s were invited to the 

parents’ consultation evening and several parents, whose 

Page 98



 

70 
 
 

 

children were of primary age, spoke during that meeting. 

The pupils, parents, teachers and staff of St Brigid’s 

primary provision were part of the formal consultation.  

DCC’s Cabinet resolved to approve the formal 

consultation on 14 May 2013.  It was also resolved that 

further consultation be undertaken to explore the 

possibility of providing primary provision on the same site 

as the joint faith secondary school (should the Single-Site 

Faith School be built).   This resolution was made because 

Cabinet was concerned to ensure that proper provision 

was made for pupils attending the primary provision on 

the Denbigh site when the decision as to the location of 

any new school was made. 

 

9 Generally The primary provision currently at the St 

Brigid’s site requires particular attention for 

various reasons.  Firstly, as the primary 

provision will continue at only the St Brigid’s 

site if the Current Proposal is adopted then 

none of the alleged benefits cited in support of 

the Current Proposal apply in respect of the 

primary provision.   

Secondly, whilst none of the factors which 

purport to be of benefit will apply, at the same 

time the ethos of the school will be impacted in 

relation to primary provision in the same way 

as described above.   

Thirdly, parents of pupils have indicated that 

they will move their children from St Brigid’s if 

the Current Proposal is adopted.  The 

comparison tables within the Consultation 

document show that this would have a 

negative impact on the education of those 

pupils as St Brigid’s is consistently performing 

higher than the alternatives.   

Finally, the Consultation document is silent on 

the question of how, if at all, primary provision 

will change following the proposed creation of 

a New Dual-Site Faith School.  It is apparent 

that the future of primary provision still hangs 

in the balance.  We have had sight of an email 

which was provided in response to a Freedom 

of Information Act request.  The email, dated 9 

May 2013 to Rita Price and Carole Burgess, 

stated that further consideration of the 

primary provision was required.  It is clear from 

this email that there was disagreement as to 

primary provision and the exact proposals for 

the New Dual-Site Faith School as late as the 

Friday before the Cabinet Meeting on 14 May 

2013. 

Notwithstanding the apparent lack of 

agreement on the part of the Promoters as to 

the future for primary provision, the current 

Consultation document suggests that the 

primary provision will not be treated any 

differently than the rest of St Brigid’s  

Accordingly, if the proposal is implemented it 

will become part of a 3 – 16 school operating 

from a Dual Site.  Any future proposals to 

The Current Proposal will result in a benefit to primary 

provision on the Denbigh site by the links with the 

secondary provision within the New Dual-Site Faith 

School.  Together with other Catholic primary schools in 

the diocesan area.  It will be part of a ‘cluster’ working 

together to keep standards high and raise ambition. The 

cluster of primary providers will share good practice with 

each other, their outlook of faith and the challenge to 

deepen their understanding of being called shared faith 

church schools.  

The Catholic primary providers will have the benefit of 

belonging to a family of diocesan Catholic schools, 

supported by the Bishop and his officers.  

They will be given advisory support for the curriculum, for 

their Catholic identity and for leadership.  The Bishop will 

appoint his foundation governors to the Temporary 

Governing Body to drive forward the vision for the school.  

The planning for the current primary provision at St 

Brigid’s has not been lost; neither was it an after-thought. 

The age model for the new school has been discussed 

many times between the Promoters.  Shortly before the 

Cabinet meeting in May 2013, the Catholic Diocese 

proposed that the new school should follow the 3-18 age 

model. The Promoters agreed, however, that this should 

not be the preferred option but that there would be a 

separate focus on the primary provision. That agreement 

was reached between the Promoters on 9 May 2013 and 

this position was echoed by DCC’s Cabinet on 14 May. 

The Promoters agree that what will happen to the 

primary provision going forward is not relevant directly to 

the decision as to whether the Current Proposal is 

accepted.  It is, however, important that the Promoters 

continue to discuss this issue and have welcomed 

comment upon it during the formal consultation.   

The Consultation Document makes it clear that, “The long 

term future of the Primary provision ..would be 

determined during the Second Phase.” (Paragraph 9.1, 

page 26).  At this point in time, no decision has been 

taken on the future of the primary provision, but the 

Promoters are aware that a further formal consultation of 

the publication of statutory proposals would be required, 

should discussions result in agreement to cease the 

primary provision.  As this would not happen until the 

Second Phase, such consultation could happen at the 

same time as formal consultation on whether to build a 

Page 99



 

71 
 
 

 

remove or alter the primary provision would 

then require statutory proposals.  We are not 

clear that the Promoters themselves 

understand this as there has been reference in 

consultation meetings to the primary provision 

being discontinued. 

Notwithstanding the above, we are particularly 

concerned as to what will happen to the 

primary provision going forward.  Whilst we do 

not consider it to be relevant to the decision as 

to whether the Current Proposal should be 

adopted, it is however an important issue that 

needs to be resolved and we take this 

opportunity to raise our concerns.   

new school (which itself will require statutory proposals).  

 

 

Section 10 Special Educational Needs Provision 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

10.2 Although the Current Proposal concerns only 

the Phase 1, insufficient information is 

provided regarding the impact of moving to a 

Single-Site school upon pupils with SEN, given 

that this is the ultimate aim of the Proposers, 

for parents of such pupils to make an 

informed response to the Document. 

The consultation document is predominately focussed on 

the first phase of the proposal.  It is anticipated that this 

phase would not significantly impact on existing provision. 

Any proposal to move to a single site would involve the 

Council issuing a further consultation document  and, so, 

the provision of all relevant information. 

10.2 My [child] has a life limiting .. condition … 

[and] .. a life expectancy of mid-late teens. 

[This] condition  … also has a dramatic effect 

on .. day to day [life].  [My child] has 

behavioural and learning issues as a result of 

[this] condition, [and] also has severe mobility 

issues and struggles to walk even fairly short 

distances… We live in Denbigh and [my child] 

really has to be at a school nearby.   

I chose St Brigid’s for [my child] for many 

reasons and I have to say that every single 

one of those reasons would be lost if the 

school is merged into a larger school on a 

different site. 

The circumstances of all pupils will be considered in 

consultation with DCC’s SEN Team should the proposal 

proceed. 

10 Generally I have particular concern about the total lack 

of consultation on Special Educational Needs. 

As has been pointed out to me, there are 3 

out of 166 paragraphs in the Consultation 

Document that deal with SEN (only ½ page 

out of 54 pages). There needs to be a 

complete assessment of SEN care in both 

current schools including the distribution of 

SEN pupils. 

This will be undertaken as part of the planning for any 

change within a proposal should it proceed. 

 

  

Page 100



 

72 
 
 

 

Section 11 What we are proposing 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

11.1 The Closure Guidance is clear that when 

considering whether or not to close a school 

there should be no presumption in favour of 

closure.  We do not consider that closure of St 

Brigid’s is in the best interests of educational 

provision in the area.  St Brigid’s is one of the 

highest performing schools within the area, 

out-performing BEJ and comparator schools, 

and also performing above the Welsh average.   

We do not consider the case for closure to be 

robust.  In any event the case made is based 

almost entirely on irrelevant considerations 

(see below). 

The Promoters are of the view that findings from the 

informal consultation phase clearly articulate the case for 

change. The consultation document acknowledges the 

current performance of St Brigid’s and also highlights 

many issues which will impact on its future viability.   

St Brigid’s will contribute to the success and high 

standards expected of the new school, as will Blessed 

Edward Jones. The New Dual-Site Faith School will set the 

highest standards across the school so that each child will 

flourish. It will be challenged by its call to a common 

sense of purpose, to mutual regard, to the building up of 

a faith learning community.  

The new start takes forward the best of both schools to 

give a bed-rock on which the very best will shape the 

future. 

11.1 Reference is made to the establishment of a 

new Anglican & Catholic Faith school, but no 

information is provided as to how the faith 

element is to be provided.  This is of particular 

concern to Catholic parents, who wish to 

provide their children with a Catholic 

education. 

The new school will strengthen and improve the faith 

provision experienced at both current schools. This will 

particularly be the case with the St Brigid’s pupils as the 

new school will have the full backing of both Bishops and 

the Diocesan officers and staff.   The gap will be closed 

between the current standard of faith provision at St 

Brigid’s and the standard required by the Bishops.  Having 

the backing of the two Dioceses works at St Joseph’s in 

Wrexham and has proved to be both enriching and 

rewarding. This work would be monitored via the Section 

50 Inspection Framework. The main purpose of inspection 

is to provide the school and the Diocese with a clear 

independent evaluation of its strengths and areas for 

improvement. 

11.1 The New Dual-Site School will have to run on 

less money per annum, but with probably 

greater costs.  This is not feasible, and will 

adversely impact upon the standard of 

education provided 

The anticipated reduction in the budget reflects areas 

where duplication would be removed as a consequence of 

not operating as 2 separate schools.  An element of 

financial support, based on the existing schools budget 

formula which equates to £68k, will be provided to the 

school during the interim period.  

 

11.2 Throughout the Consultation document there 

are references to considerations which are 

irrelevant to the Current Proposal, referred to 

in the document as ‘the First Phase’.  Laid out 

in support of the Promoter’s preferred option 

are a number of considerations that would only 

be relevant considerations if the Second Phase 

was being consulted upon.  However, the 

Consultation makes it clear that the Second 

Phase will be subject to a separate consultation 

at a later date.  

 

Why does this consultation even discuss a 

proposal and site (probably Bodelwyydan or 

Rhuddlan)? When the consideration is to carry 

on the same. 

The Promoters have a strategy for faith education in 

North Denbighshire; a new joint faith school.  The 

Promoters have been transparent in this vision and have, 

therefore, made reference to the full picture in the 

Consultation Document.  The Current Proposal is part of 

the overall vision for a new joint faith school.  

Accordingly, the Consultation Document sets out the 

whole vision to allow intelligent consideration and 

response from the consultees.   

There are advantages of the Current Proposal which will 

materialise during the First Phase.  There are also 

advantages that will follow as a direct result of the 

Current Proposal but will not arise until the Second Phase.  

It is only proper that those potential advantages are set 

out in the Consultation Document.  It is for each 

consultee to consider the extent to which such 

advantages influence their view on the Current Proposal.  

Page 101



 

73 
 
 

 

 The Promoters wish to set out why the Current Proposal 

is their preferred option; setting out what is possible 

during the Second Phase is a natural consequence of this. 

The possible site for the construction of the new school, 

should that take place, is being considered along with 

many other elements of the Promoters’ vision for a new 

joint faith school.  Again, it shows transparency for this to 

be set out in the Consultation Document.  A second 

consultation would be required before the Promoters 

could publish statutory proposals to build a new school; 

wherever it is to be built.  The reason for this is the 

statutory requirement to publish proposals if the location 

of a school changes by more than 1.6 Kilometres (1 mile).  

Given that the two existing schools are 10 miles apart, 

any new location would be over a mile away from at least 

one of the two current sites. 

11.4 Pupils would continue to be taught on their 

original school site – this is contrary to what 

was said by the Promoters at St Brigid’s on 25 

June 2013.  This is misleading, and contrary to 

statements later in the Document. 

It is not envisaged that pupils will ordinarily move 

between sites. Teaching will continue on both sites and 

this will be the norm.  This message has been consistently 

delivered both in the Consultation Document and during 

the public consultation meetings.   

11.4 This does not say what is to happen to St 

Brigid’s primary school and 6
th

 form.  To say 

you will think about those at phase 2 is not 

acceptable.  Phase 1 needs to address these 

issues before moving to phase 2. 

The document is clear about what will happen to primary 

and sixth form provision should the proposal proceed. 

11.5 This ignores the fact that STB is a successful 

through school.  Your table also suggests a 

falling roll for new school (-13%).  How can DCC 

explain a new school in light of this and the 

planned provision for extra places in YGC and 

RHS?  Even taking into consideration the new 

housing at Bodelwyddan, the projection of this 

many places sounds overstated. 

Provision at the Denbigh site during the First Phase would 

be akin to that of a through-school.  The primary children 

would be taught on the same site as the Secondary 

children and those sixth formers who study at the 

Denbigh site as part of the Rhyl VI/Dyffryn Clwyd 

partnerships would continue to do so, on the same site. 

The demand for places at the start of the new school is 

hard to predict with great certainty. However, we know 

the existing figures for the Catholic pupil in-take and the 

number of feeder schools for the Church in Wales.  We 

are confident there is a strong demand for faith-based 

education in North Denbighshire.   

11.5 Paragraph 11.5 illustrates that the anticipated 

pupil numbers in 2018 would be 744 against a 

capacity of 1,026.  This is a 28% figure of 

surplus places, no better than at present, and 

not justifying the Current Proposal. 

The figures are based on the current projections for both 

Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigid’s. The figures have not 

taken into account the demand for places at age 11 from 

the St Asaph feeder schools which could reduce the level 

of surplus places at the school. 

The main anticipated impact on surplus places will come 

during the Second Phase, with the construction of a new 

school.    It is this commitment to address surplus places 

that will help to secure the 21
st

 Century Schools funding 

for the new school. 

11.5 By doing this you are willing to risk a successful 

achieving Catholic character primary school to 

open an 11-16 Faith based school.  Are pupils 

between 11-16 years of age more important 

than those aged 3-10 and 16-18?? 

The First Phase proposal would not change the age range 

of the school based across the two sites. 

11.6 What are cost implications for closure of 2 

schools and reopening of new school?  Have 

the costings been considered in light of Estyn’s 

Until decisions are made by the Temporary Governing 

Body around staffing etc., a range of costs are difficult to 

Page 102



 

74 
 
 

 

recommendations and what are the actual 

costs? 

establish.   

11.6 How will the Governing Body be appointed, by 

whom, and how will it be constituted?  What 

experience would the members of the 

Governing body have in taking such key 

decisions?  Furthermore, it is essential that 

details of the composition of the leadership 

team and staffing structure be established in 

order that informed opinions may be expressed 

and decisions may be made.   

The new Governing Body will have a huge 

impact on the ethos of the New Dual-Site Faith 

School.  It will make a number of key decisions, 

and whilst it may not be possible at this stage 

to identify exactly who will form part of the 

Governing Body, it is important that sufficient 

information is provided as to the structure of 

the Governing Body.  This should include the 

number of representatives from the various 

different areas, exactly how they will be 

appointed etc.   

Without being properly appraised as to how 

the Governing Body will be structured, any 

consultee will not be able to consider properly 

the potential impact on the ethos of the 

schools, and how the leadership and 

management of the New Dual-Site Faith School 

will operate.   

There is a clear statutory framework regarding the 

appointment of a Temporary Governing Body in situations 

such as this.  It is DCC’s responsibility to make 

arrangements for setting up a Temporary Governing 

Body.  With the approval of the two Dioceses, DCC may 

do this before the Current Proposal has been approved.  

This allows the Temporary Governing Body to be 

constituted and members appointed in time to allow it to 

make decisions on matters prior to the opening of the 

new school.  It also allows leadership appointments to be 

made to enable the smooth transition to the opening of 

the new school.  The permanent Governing Body must be 

in place no later than the end of the first term of the new 

school. 

The Promoters may allow the Governing Bodies of the 

existing schools to appoint some or all of the Temporary 

Parent Governors.  The Promoters will appoint Staff and 

LEA Governors and the two Dioceses will appoint the 

Foundation Governors (from church ministers and 

officers).  It will then be a task for the Temporary 

Governing Body to appoint the Teacher and any 

Community Governors.  There must be the Headteacher, 

3 Parent Governors, 2 LEA Governors, 2 Teacher 

Governors and 1 Staff Governor.  The statutory 

framework provides that there must be enough 

Foundation Governors to outnumber the other Governors 

by a factor of three; there will, therefore be 27. 

When facilitating the appointment process DCC must 

ensure that it is satisfied that each person appointed is 

suitably experienced and has the requisite skills.  The 

Governors of the Governing Bodies of the two current 

schools have already satisfied that requirement and are 

the most likely to be appointed to the Temporary 

Governing Body.   The Promoters will attempt to make 

the appointments on a ‘50:50’ basis from the two current 

Governing Bodies. 

The composition of the leadership team and staffing 

structure are a matter for the Temporary Governing Body.  

The Promoters cannot comment on this. 

11.7 How can it be speculated that the sixth form 

provision will be provided by Rhyl and 

Prestatyn? What about Dyffyryn Clwyd 

arrangements that stand currently? 

This paragraph relates to the Second Phase when the new 

school has been built somewhere in the north of the 

county.  The Rhyl and Prestaytn VI partnership is the 

closest geographically and so the most obvious one for 

the Single-Site Faith School to link up with.  This would 

not preclude partnership working with the Dyffryn Clwyd 

partnership where that is appropriate.   

 

11.8 “Schools of more than at the most 600 pupils 

tend to achieve poorer public exam results in 

the long run and a higher proportion fail to gain 

qualifications.  School size affects attendance 

rates as well, and since attendance contributes 

to exam outcomes, there is an additional small 

indirect impact of size.  Larger classes are also 

associated with poorer results.”  (Should 

Schools be Smaller?  The size-performance 

Various research has been undertaken into the size of 

schools and performance across both Wales and the UK.  

Other studies refer to an optimal size between 600 and 

2000 with 1200 a suitable size for a school serving an 11-

16 age range. 

Page 103



 

75 
 
 

 

relationship for Welsh Schools - J&L Foreman-

Peck.  Economics of Education Review 25 

(2006)). [The data for this study was provided 

by WAG]. 

11.8 Why are you looking at a school for 600/750 

pupils when you know numbers are falling and 

smaller schools are more successful? It seems 

bizarre. 

The current capacity of both schools for secondary 

provision is 1026.  The reduced size of 600 / 750 reflects 

the need to address the declining numbers in secondary 

provision. 

11.11 How can the Promoters put forward the 

Current Proposal without the agreement of the 

St Brigid’s Trust for the use of the premises? 

This issue would need agreement with the Trustees to 

ensure that pupils can continue to access the Denbigh site 

during the First Phase period.  

11.12 St Brigid’s site is not owned by DCC it is owned 

by trustees. How can the claim be made they 

will be surplus to requirements? How can DCC 

make claims that any proceeds from the 

disposal of the sites will be used to contribute 

to the overall cost of the new school building? 

St Brigid’s is offering an option that there is 

land that can be purchased to extend their 

provision should these points are to be 

considered now in light of DCC document? 

This paragraph refers to sites from which the New Dual-

Site Faith School operates at the time of completion of 

the Single-Site Faith School.  This clearly includes the Rhyl 

site as that is owned by DCC.  The plural of sites is used in 

the paragraph to cover any other DCC property which 

may be utilised by the Single-Site Faith School at that 

time.  It is also possible that DCC may acquire the Denbigh 

site by that time. 

The Denbigh site is one of the sites which will need to be 

considered for the new Single-Site Faith School, should 

the Current Proposal be approved and the Second Phase 

take place. 

11 Generally Again meetings have been held and no minutes 

available on DCC website prior to the closure of 

this consultation. Should these not be available 

in the pupil arena? 

The Promoters are required to consult before any 

proposals are published.  The manner of that consultation 

is not set out by statute.  However, if consultation 

meetings are held, it is considered best practice to make a 

full written record of the issues and answers given.  There 

is no requirement or statement of best practice calling for 

the Promoters to publish those minutes before the end of 

the consultation period, or at all.  The purpose of the 

minutes is to ensure that all decision makers are afforded 

the opportunity to consider the points made before any 

decision is made. 

Generally 11 I attended the recent council meeting on May 

14
th

 “13” ..I was very frustrated to be informed 

St Brigid’s Parents and supporters … were not 

able to make comment or have any input. 

The meeting was held in accordance with DCC’s 

constitution. 

Generally 11 There seems to be a huge “Hurry” to merge the 

school on two sites.  Why is this?  If this was 

truly a good proposal with sound core values 

and principles then DCC would be happy to 

continue with the schools as they are until a full 

consultation process (including phase one and 

two) had been carried out... 

The discussions between the Trustees of St Brigid’s, the 

Council and the Diocesan Authorities were ongoing for 

approximately 3 years prior to the commencement of the 

informal consultation period. 

Generally 11 Educational case for change – the Consultation 

document refers to improvement of staff 

expertise that will lead to raising standards.  

This, it is suggested, will take place through 

peer observation and teachers working 

together.  How effective this is likely to be after 

only the First Phase is questionable and no 

evidence is provided.   

There is an expectation that staff work together within 

and across schools to share practice and to develop new 

learning arrangements. Both schools will benefit from 

these opportunities but it will be efficiently and 

sensitively managed by the leadership of the New Dual-

Site Faith School. 

 

Page 104



 

76 
 
 

 

Section 12 The Proposal in detail – description and rationale 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

12.2 There are a number of issues facing both 

schools that could impact on their ability to 

sustain educational standards and 

experiences into the future – the Document 

does not contain any evidence to support this 

statement. 

The promoters have been clear in the documentation and 

comments during the consultation process of the risks.   

12.3 Leadership and management. DCC state that 

financial constraints limit the capacity of 

small secondary schools to implement senior 

and middle school leadership structures that 

meet the requirements of teacher’s pay and 

conditions. 

DCC evidence/analysis to suggest this is 

insufficient. 

There is established evidence that executive governance 

and headship with combined leadership teams can make a 

sea-change in aspiration and performance. This is also 

financially more effective. 

12.3 This section is a criticism of the leadership 

and management of the two schools, a 

criticism levelled in the previous consultation, 

at the public meetings at St Brigids and in 2 

meetings I have had with council officers. No 

analysis has ever been provided for these 

assertions. As I requested at the St. Brigids 

meeting please provide a proper analysis of 

the faults of the schools in this area and an 

analysis of what will be changed in the dual 

site school to ameliorate these problems. 

Please do not rely on statements that the 

new school structure is yet to be decided by 

the new governors since that would not be 

evidence of the improvements you assert will 

arise. 

The Promoter states that ‘financial 

constraints limit the capacity of small 

secondary schools to implement senior and 

middle leadership structures that meet the 

requirements of teachers pay and 

conditions’.  This is a rather general 

statement and an implied criticism of St 

Brigid’s.  However, it is only a general 

statement with no specific evidence provided 

that establishing a new Dual-Site Faith School 

will address this issue.  Such statements do 

not assist consultees in giving an intelligent 

response or intelligent consideration to the 

proposals. 

The Promoter has previously been asked to 

provide a proper analysis of the faults of St 

Brigid’s in this area and what exactly they 

consider can be changed to ameliorate any 

such problem.  The lack of such further 

information makes it very difficult for 

consultees to understand exactly why the 

proposals are being made. 

In any event we consider that what the 

St Brigid’s Estyn inspection 2010 – “There are shortcomings, 

also, in teaching and assessment at KS3, KS4 and in the sixth 

form, and in leadership and management at all levels 

throughout the school” and “Consequently the acting 

headteacher and the governing body have adopted a 

structure that seeks to address the existing shortcomings 

and which they plan to implement from September 2010”. 

www.estyn.gov.uk. There has been limited progress against 

this judgement 

Blessed Edward Jones Estyn Inspection 2012 - “The senior 

management structure has not been fit for purpose, and is 

currently being re-structured so that it better meets the 

strategic needs of the school” and “Appropriate work is 

underway to further improve the middle management 

structure. Middle managers are clear about their roles and 

responsibilities”. www.estyn.gov.uk 

Both schools face a challenge implementing effective tiers 

of leadership and meeting the statutory requirements of 

the Teachers Pay and Conditions and workload agreements. 

This particularly affects the schools’ capacity to appoint 

middle leaders with teaching and learning responsibility 

payments (TLR). In most schools, middle leaders are TLR 

post holders, with responsibility for leading, planning and 

evaluating their departments. These appointments would 

be for heads of departments or faculties. The leadership 

team would be expected to monitor and challenge the 

performance of departments, most of the leadership lead 

subjects as well; this could lead to a conflict of interest.   

St Brigid’s has an acting Headteacher and five Assistant 

Headteachers; there are no other teachers with 

responsibility posts except for the Special Educational 

Needs Coordinator.  Blessed Edward Jones has an acting 

Headteacher, two acting Assistant Headteachers and some 

middle managers with TLR post, but this is not consistent 

across subjects or responsibilities. 

Both schools have single teacher departments who do not 

have TLR posts as they don’t have sufficient line 

management responsibility or sufficient funding. Teachers 

Page 105



 

77 
 
 

 

Promoter is aiming to achieve could be 

resolved without the need to establish a New 

Dual-Site Faith School.   

without a TLR have to plan and prepare their lessons, 

however the long term development and evaluation of a 

subject is the responsibility of a TLR post holder. Teachers 

without a TLR would not usually conduct performance 

management with other teachers or support staff. 

Self-evaluation and improvement planning processes are 

under developed at St Brigid’s (Estyn 2010) and there has 

been limited progress since the inspection This has been in 

the main caused by leadership changes and the lack of a 

middle leadership tier to undertake key aspects of this 

work. Although the self-evaluation and improvement 

planning was judged to be good at Blessed Edward Jones by 

Estyn in 2012, their staff structure could lead to 

inconsistencies in their processes. 

An effective headteacher and senior leadership team would 

ensure that middle leaders’ on both sites have the skills 

required to monitor common strategies to included: 

· the promotion of teamwork between 

departments, phases and faculties and the 

expectation that they would share good practice 

· senior leaders modelling for middle leaders 

through activities such as joint lesson 

observations and demonstrating how to conduct 

faculty reviews 

· developing middle leaders’ ability to review their 

own effectiveness and identify areas for 

development, and incorporating this as part of 

their performance management 

· offering accredited training, such as middle 

leadership training and higher degree level 

qualifications, on the condition that this had an 

impact on whole school improvement 

· mentoring middle leaders, with mentors in turn 

held to account for developing the leadership 

skills of those they were mentoring. 

A larger school would have financial capacity to have an 

effective senior and middle leadership structure with all 

staff having reasonable levels of responsibility and 

workload. 

12.3 The consultation report fails to make 

reference to the progress made by St Brigid’s 

since the 2010 inspection as evidenced by the 

Monitoring Visit by Estyn in 2011. 

This shows that not only has the Promoter 

failed to provide evidence as to why the 

issues in paragraphs 12.3 and 12.4 are 

relevant, and also why any necessary 

improvements could not be achieved without 

the New Dual-Site Faith School, but it has also 

failed to take account of important evidence 

confirming that St Brigid’s has taken action 

and made improvements in this regard such 

that this is not an issue even if it ever was. 

There is a requirement for the consultation document to 

make reference to the last inspection of the school.  It is 

acknowledged that the report from the Estyn monitoring 

visit, which occurs for schools causing concern, illustrated 

progress in meeting the previous recommendations.  It is 

also important to note that such visits concentrate solely on 

the areas of concern rather than the full area normally 

considered during an inspection. 

12.4 The document claims that the dual site 

school will offer the ability to improve staff 

expertise and raise standards, and you refer 

to two areas. Please provide evidence as to 

St Brigid’s Estyn inspection 2010 stated that – Teaching was 

judged to be Grade 3, good features outweigh shortcomings 

(This would be judged as adequate in the current inspection 

framework from Sept 10) “On the whole, these figures are 

Page 106



 

78 
 
 

 

why this is at fault in the current schools and 

what specifically change to derive the 

improvements you will assert will flow from a 

dual site school. How will teachers works 

together (12 miles apart) to plan and prepare 

high quality lessons and conduct peer 

observation, and given St Brigid’s 

performance why are their current lessons 

not high quality and why and how would 

teachers from Blessed Edwards improve peer 

observation that existing staff cannot? 

Section 12.4 is quite a professional insult to 

the current staff at the both schools.  

Teachers at both schools are fully engaged in 

school improvement activities as illustrated 

by the ESTYN Report for BEJ and the good 

standards of achievements demonstrated 

through results at SB.  

..the NASUWT….does object to the 

suggestion that there will be more 

opportunities to observe the ‘best teachers’.  

The statement does not reflect an 

understanding of the processes and is very 

judgmental without the evidence base in 

support of the comment. 

below the current averages for Wales as reported by Her 

Majesty’s Chief Inspector. In the primary department, 75% 

of lessons were graded 1 and 2 compared to 91% in all 

primary inspections in Wales 2008-2009. In the secondary 

department, 51% of lessons were graded 1 and 2 compared 

to 81% in all secondary inspections in Wales over the same 

period”.   

Blessed Edward Jones’ Estyn Inspection 2012 – Teaching 

was judged to be Good, many strengths and no important 

areas requiring significant improvement. “Teachers have 

secure subject knowledge and high expectations of pupils’ 

work and behaviour. They have very good working 

relationships with pupils and praise is used effectively to 

motivate, encourage and challenge all pupils. Well-focused 

adult support impacts positively on the quality of pupils’ 

learning. Teaching is good or better in many lessons. In 

these lessons teachers plan and prepare lessons 

thoughtfully with clearly communicated objectives and well-

designed learning activities. To ensure good pace and 

challenge, teachers use a wide range of stimulating tasks”. 

Peer observation of teachers within schools and with 

teachers in other schools is an excellent method of sharing 

and developing good practice. The teaching staff of both 

schools could improve their practice significantly by 

observing each other. Lesson observations by Estyn and 

School Improvement Officers in St Brigid’s secondary school 

indicate that some teachers would benefit from observing 

teachers in other schools including Blessed Edward Jones. 

At the last Estyn inspection at St Brigid’s in 2010, the 

inconsistency in sharing good teaching practices across the 

curriculum was an issue.  

Ofsted in their review of schools with shared leadership 

“Leadership of more than one school” stated that: “These 

difficulties (distance between schools) were not reported as 

being insurmountable. In all cases the solution was similar; 

each school had a recognised leader who maintained the 

day-to-day management of the school and communication 

with parents and a federation executive headteacher who 

took the strategic federation lead.” 

 

12.4 The Consultation document itself appears to 

place a particular focus on the potential for 

the New Dual-Site Faith School to assist in 

staff development and progression (see 

paragraphs 12.3 and 12.4 of the Consultation 

document).  In fact, as is evident from this 

response as a whole, this is the only potential 

factor that could actually be achieved by the 

adoption of the Current Proposal (and there 

is no evidence that it in fact will). 

The Promoters agree that this is a major aim of the 

proposal. 

12.4 The Consultation document at 12.4 refers to 

greater opportunities to improve staff 

expertise if the Current Proposal is adopted.  

St Brigid’s has previously proposed a 

federated approach which does not require 

the establishment of a New Dual-Site Faith 

School.  This does not appear to have been 

taken into account at all. 

It is accepted that the option of federating both schools 

would allow such opportunities. 

The option of federating the two existing schools would not, 

by itself, address all of the issues documented in the case 

for change.  The federation option in isolation would not 

allow the creation of a joint faith school by changing the 

religious designations of the schools or address concerns 

around viability. 

Page 107



 

79 
 
 

 

12.5 Difficult to see how this can be achieved 

through the Current Proposal.  More detail is 

required.  If it is envisaged that pupils move 

between schools, as suggested on 25 June 

2013, this is in total contradiction of the 

statement at 11.4 and elsewhere.  

Insufficient and misleading information has 

been provided, and no informed 

response/decision may be made in this 

respect. 

It is not envisaged that pupils will ordinarily move between 

sites. There may be the possibility of pupil transfer in 

isolated, specific instances where clear benefits would 

result and with parental support, but this is clearly not 

envisaged as a routine strategy. A larger school would have 

a greater number of teaching and support staff to meet the 

needs of not only pupils with special needs but also more 

able and talented pupils 

If the schools joined together, it could make more effective 

and efficient use of specialist support staff. The new head 

and governing body will deploy staff, they will decide if 

additional, for targeted support; the school will have 

additional capacity to do this. 

Any targeted support will be planned to take into account 

the distance between the schools. Many support 

mechanisms for pupils are already delivered sub-regionally. 

12.6 At 12.6 please provide a detailed analysis of 

why the current schools do not provide the 

required curriculum. Please identify what 

subjects are not being offered that a dual site 

school will enable. You claim a wide range of 

high quality courses will be available more 

effectively. This implies it is not currently 

effective or high quality. Tells specifically 

what is not high quality and being effectively 

offered today at each school. What high 

quality courses will be available; who will 

they be taught by and with what assets? 

In 2013-14 other similar but larger schools in Denbighshire 

are offering GCSE’s in: 

· The single sciences e.g. Physics, Biology, 

Chemistry 

· Electronics 

· Computer Science in addition to ICT 

· Italian 

· Astronomy 

· Design Technology – Resistant Materials and 

Graphic Products 

· They also offer the Welsh Bac at KS4 and Key Skills 

 

In addition, other schools offer an extensive range of 

vocational subjects on site and in partnership with local FE 

colleges. 

Except for Italian and electronics, there is expertise and 

capacity to deliver these courses. 

St Brigid’s offers 30 courses but does not have the capacity 

to run all the courses, other similar schools offer between 

36 and 48. Although the school has offered the statutory 30 

courses, it does not have the staffing and resources to run 

all the courses effectively. 

The Dyffryn Clwyd partnership, with other Vale of Clwyd 

secondary schools and colleges, has elevated this problem 

at Post-16. 

12.7 Where is the evidence to support the 

statement that the two schools find it 

difficult to offer pupils a broad range of 

experiences in physical education; neither 

school has adequate indoor or outdoor sports 

facilities for pupils and the Local community. 

The Consultation document at 12.7 states 

that neither school has adequate indoor or 

outdoor sports facilities for pupils and the 

local community.  Whilst we do not agree 

that this has the consequence that the 

Promoter suggests (see below), it is in any 

It is a factual statement that neither school currently has 

access to a purpose built sports hall or immediate access to 

outdoor sports pitches.  The proposals developed previously 

by the Trustees to develop the St Brigid’s site state:-  

“The key objectives of this strategy for the school are: 

1. Expand the school on a single site 

2. Avoid the need to cross the A543 to access the playing 

fields 

3. Improve the usability of the site area, which currently is 

very narrow 

Page 108



 

80 
 
 

 

event irrelevant to the consideration of the 

Current Proposal.  The Current Proposal will 

see the schools remain at their current sites 

with their current facilities.  Again this 

consideration would only be relevant to the 

Second Phase. 

4. To enhance the potential for school development and 

new facilities 

5. To provide suitable and sufficient external sports facilities 

“ 

These objectives appear to acknowledge the limitations of 

the existing facilities by the Trustees. 

In both schools, the variable quality of facilities for PE, in 

particular the limited size and quality of indoor teaching 

space, restricts the provision for gymnastics and some 

indoor games.  This limits the amount of time for pupils to 

study indoor activities in sufficient depth. 

Neither school has a sports hall, fitness suite or gymnasium; 

both use an assembly hall.  In addition, neither school has 

modern multi-purpose games areas.  During poor weather, 

examination periods and primary use, there is very limited 

access to indoor sporting facilities. 

Both schools have off-site playing fields and facilities that 

require pupils to cross busy roads which also reduce the 

lesson time.  Both schools have poor and temporary 

changing facilities that are not fit for purpose. 

In addition, neither school has modern floodlit multi-use 

games areas that are large enough to accommodate such 

sports as tennis, netball, football and hockey.  These areas 

have synthetic turf pitches that allow pupils’ access to 

sports in inclement weather and after school activities and 

inter school competitive sports.  These pitches will allow 

pupils access to more sports and time to improve their skills 

throughout the year.  All secondary schools, except St 

Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones, have these facilities. 

12.8  Irrelevant to the Current Proposal as this 

does not include plans to improve the 

facilities at either site, and facilities for 

Design and Technology will therefore remain 

unsatisfactory.  How do the Promoters intend 

to meet the needs of the national curriculum 

or examination requirements in this respect 

under the Current Proposal?  Remodelling of 

both schools would address this issue. 

In 12.8 you criticise the Design and 

technology facilities. Exactly what is 

unsatisfactory about the current situation, 

what equipment is missing and how will this 

be improved by the First Phase since you will 

build no more assets for the schools. 

Observations by the D&T Subject Adviser at St Brigid’s 

indicate that the accommodation is a limiting factor on 

standards, space is minimal and well below that required 

for classes of 20. The food room should only take a 

maximum of 10 pupils. Machinery and equipment is sparse 

with limited workbenches. 

St Brigid’s has some resources for computer-aided design 

(CAD) and computer aided manufacture (CAM). There are 

some computers available but the use of CAD has been 

limited and there are really no resources available for CAM, 

other than a rather dated TEP milling machine. 

St Brigid’s requires major investment to provide adequate 

or good resources to provide greater opportunities for 

engineering provision for not only girls but also the greater 

number of boys at KS4. It is recognised that the school did 

perform well in this year’s schools F1 competition. 

St Brigid’s is running GCSE Graphic Products in the current 

year 10 and for next year’s 11. However, only ‘Textile’s is 

offered at KS4. In 2013, this course is unlikely to run due to 

a lack of numbers; no other D&T course was offered. It is 

likely that the poor resources and opportunities in D&T is a 

major contributor to the lack of take up of these subjects. 

The St Brigid’s family schools in North Wales and similar 

schools in Denbighshire have flourishing and successful D&T 

departments. 

Blessed Edward Jones does have more equipment and more 

extensive resources for the preparation of materials. The 

workshops and resources in the school are far from being 

Page 109



 

81 
 
 

 

state of the art; however they are significantly better than 

St Brigid’s. It is unrealistic for pupils to move schools for 

lessons, however portable/small equipment can be shared 

between schools, giving pupils access to a greater range of 

processes. The sharing and joint purchasing of D&T 

equipment is not uncommon between schools; this has 

happened in other Denbighshire and Wrexham schools over 

the years. There are also realistic opportunities for sharing 

and training staff in the use of the technologies and their 

effective use in lessons. 

12.9 At 12.9 you claim that the quality of teaching 

is compromised by the infrastructure. Can 

you be specific about how that diminution of 

quality comes about? Since St Brigid’s 

provides very good results in comparison to 

many Denbighshire schools that have modern 

infrastructure it seems to me you need to be 

more specific about how teaching in a bright 

purpose built room does not get the same 

results as teaching in a mobile classroom? 

Since you will be building no more assets in 

the schools in phase 1 how will the dual site 

school proposal overcome these supposed 

problems? 

The School Effectiveness Performance Officer has 

commented that in excellent lessons, a wide range of 

activities allow all pupils to deepen their knowledge, skills 

and understanding. This might involve using a range of 

strategies including team work, the use of ICT and pupils 

giving presentations etc. A classroom should have sufficient 

space and resources to allow these activities to happen. 

Pupils will consistently perform better if there is lots of 

natural light, fresh air and a comfortable controlled working 

temperature. 

At the last inspection, and identified in some subject adviser 

observations, the quality of teaching at KS3 and KS4 for St 

Brigid’s was judged to be a decline in standards of teaching 

in the secondary department, particularly at KS3, is a cause 

for concern.   

It is correct that there are no plans to build new classrooms 

during the First Phase.  However we expect the new 

governing body and new headteacher to make the most 

effective use of the existing building resources available on 

both sites. 

12.12 The Current Proposal will not change the 

reliance on mobile classrooms at St Brigid’s, 

and there is clearly no intention to invest in 

the education of the children who will be 

educated at that site.  The money should be 

invested in remodelling the two schools now. 

The Council does not believe that the status quo is 

sustainable long term and would not consider making 

significant investment to address these issues during any 

interim period. 

12.14 This is irrelevant to the Current Proposal, 

other than to demonstrate that, by being 

willing to continue to use the premises for 

another five years, they cannot be as bad as 

implied!  The council is firmly of the view that 

investing significant sums in two small 

schools … would not represent an effective 

use of resources – evidence should be 

provided to support this statement, with 

relevant costings. 

The initial findings from feasibility works indicate that the 

costs of improving both schools to the required standards of 

21
st

 Century Schools learning would be in excess of the 

likely costs of a new school.  This case would be developed 

further in the progression of the Strategic Outline Case 

where the promoters would seek capital funding for 

investment in faith education.  In addition simply 

maintaining the existing schools would lead to greater long 

term revenue costs. 

12 

Generally 
Learning would not be enhanced by merging 

schools; this is solely a management decision. 

Learning will be enhanced through a wider perspective, 

better CPD, more confident and sustainable leadership and 

more favourable recruitment conditions. 

12 

Generally 
Section 12 has a number of areas which imply 

fault with the current schools and clearly 

state there will be improvements under the 

new dual site school. No evidence is provided 

for these statements 

The areas for improvement in both schools are identified in 

the ESTYN inspection reports for St Brigid’s 2010 and 

Blessed Edward Jones 2012. 

Ofsted, in their review of schools with shared leadership, 

stated that: 

“Effective leadership by headteachers and senior leadership 

teams was the single most critical feature that helped to 

Page 110



 

82 
 
 

 

generate improvements and build capacity for federations 

to be sustained.  These leaders were able to apply the 

characteristics of effective school leadership successfully 

across all schools in the federation.  The most effective 

leaders had a single vision and drive focused on raising 

expectations.  This was underpinned by rigorous procedures 

for holding staff accountable by checking the quality of 

provision and, in particular, assessing the quality of teaching 

and learning.  Federation leaders maximised the greater 

flexibility of increased resources and opportunities for 

professional development to achieve their priorities.”   

(Leadership of more than one school: 22 Sep 2011Ofsted 

Ref: 100234) 

 

 

Section 13  Creating and maintaining the right ethos 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

13.1  “The ownership of innovation, in contrast to 

the externally imposed solution, appears to 

tap directly into motivational aspects which 

are key factors in maximising the impact of 

change.”  The Impact of School Environments: 

A literature review.  Produced for the Design 

Council by the University of Newcastle. 

Any proposal for a new school would be developed in 

consultation with the new Governing Body to ensure 

ownership of any new building by the school. 

13.1 The Current Proposal pays insufficient regard 

to the outcome of the informal consultation 

undertaken earlier in the year and there is no 

evidence in the Document as to detailed 

consideration of the responses to the informal 

consultation.  This seriously undermines 

confidence in the decision making process. 

The Promoters gave detailed consideration to the 

responses received during the informal consultation 

period and elements of these responses were reflected 

in the preparation of the current Consultation 

Document.  As examples the Consultation Document 

reflects concerns that more information was required 

around what may happen in Phase 2 even though this 

was not the actual subject of the consultation and that 

the option of 3 to 18 provision should be explored 

further in developing proposals. 

13.2 Promoters told parents to support their 

arguments with evidence.  It is extremely 

difficult to evidence what is so special about St 

Brigid’s, but perhaps the fact that former St 

Brigid’s pupils send, or intend to send, their 

own children to the school, is testament to 

this, along with the passion shown in response 

to this consultation, including the SOS 

YouTube video , petitions and public 

responses.   

The Promoters understand that St Brigid’s parents value 

their school and, therefore, we want the good qualities 

to feature in the new school.  It is true that St Brigid’s 

and Blessed Edward Jones have great strengths and the 

Promoters hope is that Governors, staff, students and 

parents will bring these to the table should the new 

school be created. There are aspects of both school 

which can be improved and which will benefit from the 

creation of the New Dual-Site Faith School. 

13.3 Why would a dual site school be of any benefit 

to the pupils? There is no analysis provided as 

to how educational outcomes for pupils will 

improve as result of its creation.   

 

The Promoters will present to DCC’s Cabinet and the 

respective Boards of the two Dioceses sufficient 

information to allow them to decide whether or not to 

approve the Current Proposal.  The Consultation 

Document and the information provided during the 

course of the consultation meetings have provided 

sufficient information to enable intelligent consideration 

and response. 

Page 111



 

83 
 
 

 

13.3 The document claims that the under the dual 

site school it will be possible for the ethos of 

the two schools to be retained.  At section 

20.1 you claim that the “number and impact 

of any initial disadvantages will be 

minimised”.  Many elements of the school will 

change during Phase 1 and the respective 

diocesan authorities would become providers 

of education.  This is underplayed in the 

document. 

 

 

A school’s ethos comes from a common understanding of 

the purpose of the school and its values. These become 

known through the commitment of the governors and staff 

and the expectation of the parents. 

The new school would build and draw on the commitment 

and goodwill of the Governors and staff.   It is anticipated 

that the Temporary Governing Body will be comprised in 

part with some members of the existing Governing Bodies.  

It is also expected that many of the staff from the current 

schools will remain should the Current Proposal be 

approved.  Accordingly, much of the ethos would be 

capable of being transferred.  Furthermore, the look and 

feel of the two sites of the New Dual-Site Faith School 

would be very similar to the current schools; hence our 

assertion that initial disruption being minimised.  The new 

school would have good and confident leadership to 

support change and to inspire its pupils for the future. 

The Promoters believe that all of the changes would help 

to bring together the two current schools.  The ethos of 

the two current schools would be brought together so that 

the best qualities of both could form part of the ethos of 

the New Dual-Site Faith School.  The additional input from 

the two Dioceses would add to the quality of the religious 

education and, therefore, the religious aspect of the ethos.   

13 Generally ..will the new school be allowed to portray 

“gay marriage” in a positive manner?  The 

present Bishop of Wrexham has expressed his 

outright opposition.  Does DCC have an 

“equalities standard”, and will the LA be 

willing to have a school with such a ban? 

 

 

Section 14 Admission Arrangements for the New Dual–Site Faith School 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

14.1 Please can you give categorical assurance that 

no pupil currently in primary or secondary 

education at either school will be forced to 

change schools or to attend all or any classes 

at the other school?  

Whilst the admission arrangements will be an issue for the 

Temporary Governing Body the Promoters see no reason 

for pupils to be moved from sites. 

14.2 It is stated that there would be a new 

admissions policy.  Surely DCC has an idea of 

this policy in order to be able to project 

numbers of students?  I refer back to the 

original point about parishes and whether 

their input on numbers at parish level has 

been considered?  After all, the proposal is for 

a faith school.  Also have those children 

without a faith been considered?  Would they 

be allowed to attend the new school? 

The admissions policy as stated in the Consultation 

Document will be developed in partnership with all 

stakeholders.   This would build upon best practice and 

document opportunities for pupils of both Anglican and 

Catholic faiths to attend the school and how pupils of other 

beliefs could be accommodated. 

14 

 

DCC Officers have publicly stated at 

consultation meetings in Rhyl that St Brigid’s 

is a “non-Catholic school”.  DCC must answer 

on what basis its officers have become 

competent to judge the religious nature of 

schools and DCC should be required to 

In order to comply with its statutory duties, DCC is required 

to know under whose authority a voluntary aided school 

operates.  The council also works in close partnership with 

the Catholic and Anglican Dioceses, on behalf of the two 

church providers of education on matters to do with 

voluntary aided schools with a religious character, including 

Page 112



 

84 
 
 

 

withdraw this accusation.  

St Brigids is a catholic school; ministers of the 

Catholic Church have vouched for parents as 

being practicing Catholic as part of the 

admissions criteria.  

 

their development.   

The Promoters are aware that the Bishop of Wrexham has 

refused to give the title ‘Catholic’ to St. Brigid’s School. The 

reason for this relates to the time when the school moved 

from being a private school to become voluntary aided and 

from then received public funding and so public 

accountability.  The school continued to operate as it did 

before this change; using a partially-selective admissions 

policy which the Bishop considered to impact adversely on 

the community of schools within the Diocese. 

St.  Brigid’s School does not have the word ‘catholic’ in its 

name, on its uniform or promotional literature.  However, 

its motto, ‘Fortiter et Suaviter’ (Strength and Gentleness) is 

the Brigidine motto.  The school began life as a Brigidine 

Convent; the Brigidine Order is a global Roman Catholic 

organisation.  It is clear that the Catholic faith is part of the 

school’s ethos and it is understandable, therefore, that the 

staff, pupils and parents regard it as a catholic school.   

 

 

Section 15 How will the final site location be determined? 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

15.4 We have a moral obligation as elected members 

representing the people of Rhyl to ensure that 

the faith school is kept within walking distance of 

Rhyl Children. My primary concern is that Rhyl is 

not being seriously considered as a location for 

the potential new school.  I find this surprising as 

Rhyl has the largest population in North 

Denbighshire and 62% of the current pupil cohort 

from BEJ and SB collectively come from Rhyl. 

The document has included a preferred location but 

such a location would be subject to a full options 

appraisal before any firm decision is made.  The 

inclusion of a preferred location was based on feedback 

from the informal consultation and the need for a 

probable site to be included in the documentation. 

Any decision on location needs to be made in 

accordance with the overall needs of the Denbighshire 

area rather than any specific town or location. 

15 6.9 Refers to a similar proportion (approximately 

30%) of St Brigid’s pupils being based in the 

Prestatyn/Rhuddlan/Rhyl area.  6.2 states that 

pupils of Blessed Edward Jones School are 

predominantly children from Rhyl wishing to 

receive a Catholic and/or Christian Education.  

However, if as it states in 6.9 about a third of St 

Brigid’s pupils travel from Rhyl catchment, they 

are clearly being motivated by a factor other than 

religion. 

Most parents consider a range of factors when choosing 

a high school for their children. One may be dominant 

but rarely is it totally dominant. Faith-based education 

lies alongside educational standards, safety and 

wellbeing, pastoral care, ethos etc. 

 

 

Section 17 What are the staffing implications of this Proposal? 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

17.2 Details to reassure and clarify the position of 

staff should be included in the Document in 

order for informed responses/decisions to be 

made. 

Balance between DCC policies affecting staffing in these 

difficult time and promise that staff at the two schools 

will not be disadvantaged because of the proposed 

changes. 

Page 113



 

85 
 
 

 

17.2 I am concerned that the teaching quality will 

disappear as teachers either move on to other 

jobs or get transferred to Rhyl they will not have 

the personal touch of knowing the children on a 

familiar basis as their time will be divided 

between the two sites with an extremely larger 

number of pupils to keep watch over. 

 

Any decision to seek alternative employment would be a 

matter for individual members of staff employed by 

other school.  During the first phase it is envisaged that 

staff movement would be kept to a minimum. 

17.3 I am astounded that all of the points referred to 

in this paragraph have not already been 

addressed and included in the Document.  It is 

wholly inappropriate to expect consultees to 

respond when it is clear that no consideration 

has been given to these issues by the Promoters 

in order to support their proposals.  They are 

expecting all concerned to take a huge ‘leap of 

faith’ and do not appear to be acting in the best 

interests of the children.  These details should 

be included in the Document. 

The requirements of any revised staffing structure have 

been considered by the Promoters.  However the 

development of the staffing structure would be the 

responsibility of the Temporary Governing Body in 

partnership with the new Headteacher. 

17.4 Section 17.3 and 17.4  suggests little change is 

anticipated to staffing structures at both schools 

other than the headteacher and leadership 

positions.  However, this would mean operating 

two very different staffing structures with 

subject leaders operating in one school and a 

faculty system and no subject leaders operating 

in another school.    This does not provide a 

coherent approach to school improvement and, 

thus, the NASUWT anticipates that there will be 

more staffing change than is implied in Sections 

17.3 and 17.4.  Whilst the NASUWT appreciates 

that these potential changes cannot be 

proposed at this stage, the Union is concerned 

that the promoters have not been sufficiently 

transparent about the implications for staff at 

the both schools. 

The Promoters acknowledge that the extent of changes 

to staffing structures may give rise to concerns from 

staff.  It will be important that any changes are carefully 

planned in full consultation with all Trade Unions. 

17.5 Although, the NASUWT is pleased to note in 

Section 17.5 that all teaching and associate 

posts for the New Dual-Site Faith School should 

be ‘ring-fenced’ for the staff within  the two 

existing schools, there could be a number of 

management and, indeed, operational 

implications such as travel that would result 

from the new staffing structure being 

implemented.   

These issues would need to be considered carefully by 

the Temporary Governing Body. 

17.5 Although Section 17.5 commits to a ‘ring fenced 

approach for staff appointments within the two 

existing schools, Section 20.4 does not offer the 

same security for the Headteacher and Senior 

Leadership posts. There is no deputy 

headteacher post in either of the current 

staffing structures. Clearly, this would be a 

necessity for a new leadership team as the 

deputy headteacher post is the only role which 

affords a contractual obligation to deputise for a 

headteacher. The NASUWT argues that this 

would be a pre-requisite in the staffing structure 

for the New Dual-Site School. 

The issue of appointments to Headteacher and Deputy 

Headteacher posts will be an issue for the Temporary 

Governing Body.  The current regulations allow 

Temporary Governing Bodies to proceed to either an 

internal or external appointment and therefore the 

Promoters are unable to give any guarantees regarding 

these positions. 

Page 114



 

86 
 
 

 

17 Generally What will the anticipated costs be? Tupe? 

Redundancies? Legal costs? taxpayers money! 

It is difficult to quantify any potential costs at this early 

stage.  Many of the potential costs will depend upon 

decisions to be made and the choice of staff and thus a 

clear cost cannot be provided at this stage. 

17 Generally A Workload Impact Assessment and an 

Equalities Impact Assessment would need to be 

conducted for staff if the proposals move to the 

first stage and the staffing review leads to staff 

working across the both sites. The NASUWT 

asserts that there could be some serious 

challenges for the leadership team and the 

teaching staff if a split site school is the outcome 

of these proposals. These challenges would 

require earnest consideration and cannot be 

overlooked especially in the context of 

delivering high standards of education. 

Moreover, there is a statutory requirement for a 

headteacher and teachers to have a work/life 

balance. 

 

These issues would need to be considered carefully by 

the Temporary Governing Body. 

 

Section 20 What are the disadvantages of the proposal? 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

20.3 This goes against your policy “School organisation 

proposals”  Point 12.1 which states:  “Proposals 

should not have the effect of unreasonably 

extending pupils journey times and should be set 

against Welsh Assembly Government objectives 

to reduce traffic congestion, carbon emissions and 

promote alternatives to the car”. 

Should the proposal proceed to the Second Phase a full 

assessment of travelling times will be undertaken to 

support the decision-making process; ensuring that 

relevant policies are observed. 

20.4 This is particularly unsettling for the staff 

involved, and such uncertainty may lead to staff 

applying for posts elsewhere.  It would be difficult 

to recruit quality replacement staff given the on-

going uncertainty.  This will adversely impact 

upon the education of the children. 

The statement simply confirms that a Temporary 

Governing Body would want to recruit the best staff 

available.  This is absolutely in the interests of the 

pupils. Instability of staffing has become a major issue 

at both schools and is part of DCC’s assessment of 

sustainability. This may have worsened because of 

current discussions and uncertainty, but it has been 

evident for several years. 

20.5 The NASUWT raises concerns over the statement 

in Section 20.5 regarding potential re-deployment 

situations. Although the Union does not oppose in 

principle the amalgamation/federation of schools, 

the NASUWT is clear that it will not accept 

compulsory redundancies. In recent years, the 

Denbighshire Authority has managed the 

potential redundancy situation most effectively 

but there is recognition that there are fewer 

redeployment opportunities available as school 

budgets are challenged with falling rolls and suffer 

the consequences of 14-19 change.  

The Promoters will endeavour where appropriate to 

minimise compulsory redundancies. 

20 Generally There are concerns that removing Catholic 

provision from the town of Rhyl will have a 

significant implication for the wider regeneration 

The potential impact upon the communities of Rhyl 

and Denbigh should the Second Phase proceed and the 

new school is located outside of the existing towns will 

Page 115



 

87 
 
 

 

for the town of Rhyl both from an economic and a 

social perspective.  Such a move could re-inforce a 

view that faith provision was solely for “middle 

class” parents who could afford transportation. 

need to be carefully considered.  A full community 

impact assessment will be undertaken as part of the 

proposals. 

20 Generally In does not appear that the Current Proposal will 

improve educational standards, and the opposite 

is more likely.  It would appear more appropriate 

to implement Phase 1 after proper consultation 

has been concluded and a decision made to build 

a new Single-Site Faith School.   

The Promoters believe that the Current Proposal could 

equal or improve existing educational standards. 

The First Phase may only be implemented after proper 

consultation; hence the formal consultation being 

carried out.  It would not be lawful for the Promoters 

to consult after a decision has been made on the 

building of a new Single-Site Faith School (or any other 

decision for that matter).  The law requires that the 

Promoters consult whilst the proposal is at a formative 

stage and certainly before any decision has been made.  

20 Generally In 2011-2012, Estyn gave average costs for surplus 

places and the average saving for closing a school 

– secondary and primary figures differ slightly.  

They also advised that ‘ where schools close, 

additional transport costs, severance packages for 

staff no longer required, need to be considered 

before local authorities can determine and specify 

school cost efficiencies, and must be evaluated on 

a case-by-case basis. Furthermore ‘the removal of 

surplus places in some schools may cost more 

than the revenue savings achieved by their 

removal.’  Their report to ADEW re: POSP also 

advised that LA needed to ‘identify the 

contribution that new and refurbished buildings 

make to the standard of education.’  Has this 

report been adhered to, and if so, are the savings 

made by the proposal available and broken 

down? 

On your own website you give the following 

reasons that necessitate a review of a school: 

The Council reserves the right to review schools 

where: 

a) Schools have had more than 25% surplus places 

for three years in succession. 

b) Schools have had more than 10% deficit places 

for three years in succession. 

c) An immediate health and safety issue has 

arisen. 

STB does not fall into these categories. 

The Current Proposal has not come about because St 

Brigid’s has surplus places; the Promoters are aware 

that St Brigid’s has an overall deficit of places and have 

published this in the Consultation Report.  However, 

DCC is under a duty to maintain the provision of 

education across the Denbighshire.  The opportunity to 

bring together the two schools in the First Phase and 

then the possibility of building a new Single-Site Faith 

School in the Second Phase can only come about if DCC 

addresses surplus places across the county.  The 

potential funding for the Second Phase would not be 

made available if the Promoters failed to address the 

surplus places at Blessed Edward Jones.     

 

The Council’s Modernising Education Policy Framework 

has a range of triggers for a review rather than solely 

surplus or deficit places.  One such trigger is where a 

secondary school has a capacity below 600 places. 

20 Generally Many parents have expressed their opposition to 

the involvement of the Church in Wales as a 

Promoter of the new Dual-Site School and have 

expressed a preference for Catholic only 

provision. 

The Promoters are of the view that the involvement of 

the Church in Wales will strengthen the overall 

provision from the school.  Both existing schools 

currently admit non-Catholic pupils. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 116



 

88 
 
 

 

Section 21 Alternative Options 

 

Section Consultee Comment Promoters’ Response 

21.2 There has been insufficient consideration of 

alternatives to the Current Proposal to address 

surplus places and improve facilities for 

learners and staff.   

Many of these alternatives could be taken 

forward on their own, or in combination, to 

achieve the Welsh Government’s 21
st

 Century 

School Programme aspirations.  The nature of 

faith education provision in any of the 

alternatives could be either Catholic, Anglican, 

or joint Catholic/Anglican as required to meet 

demand. 

It is likely that some solutions will be much less 

expensive to implement than the ultimate goal 

of the providers, which is to develop a new 

Single-Site Faith School.   

 

The Promoters welcome the range of options put 

forward.  

In developing the proposals a number of alternative 

options were considered including federation and 

retaining one or both of the current schools.  Overall the 

Promoters were of the view that such options did not 

meet the main objectives of the review; namely to deliver 

a sustainable provision within 21
st

 Century facilities. Many 

of the options would not address the condition of the 

sites or address the concerns regarding the size of both 

schools to deliver sustainable provision. 

During the consultation period again alternative options 

were put forward.  Predominately they included investing 

in either or both existing sites or the option of federating 

both schools either as a short term or long term solution. 

 

21.2 Under option [1.2] disadvantages – “the poor 

condition of the buildings and learning 

environment would not be improved” – 

Condition would be improved because this 

option outlined is to refurbish.  

The proposal highlighted in option 1.2 whilst addressing 

the condition of the building via improvements in areas 

such as windows, heating and general facilities would not 

necessarily provide significant improvements to the 

learning environment and layout of both buildings.  This 

would not address other areas of deficiencies within the 

school previously identified in site master plans. 

21.4 Concerns raised as to the extent of 

consideration for the options appraisal and 

whether the information provided is sufficient 

to enable an informed decision to be made.  

 

The options appraisal referred to will be produced as part 

of the decision making around any proposals to develop a 

new school on a single site.  The Current Proposal 

provides a summary of the issues which will be expanded 

upon as the proposal develops.   

21.5 What evidence is there to support the 

statement that maintaining the status quo, 

albeit in an improved provision will not improve 

the overall sustainability of faith provision?   

The Promoters are of the view that a single school would 

assist in providing a stable education base to assist 

effective high quality leadership at both schools.  

 

21.6 

 

 

Concerns over the wording of the paragraph as 

effectively promoting the benefits of Phase 2 

could be seen to be predetermining the current 

decision making process. 

The wording of this paragraph is misleading, as 

the Current Proposal relates purely to Phase 1.  

To state that the phased approach will also 

provide an opportunity for the New Dual-Site 

Faith School to take full ownership of the 

project to build the new facility and to ensure a 

smooth transition between the status quo and 

the Single-Site Faith School indicates pre-

determination.  To create a Dual-Site Faith 

School will be a disaster in terms of Faith 

educational provision and potentially the 

standards of education, as highlighted above. 

The document seeks to be clear regarding the current 

consultation and what may be achieved in the future 

should the Second Phase occur.  The document is clear 

that all elements which may arise in the Second Phase 

would be subject to further extensive consultation.  

 

 

Page 117



 

89 
 
 

 

21.7 

 

 

Concerns over the viability of the existing 

Dyffryn Clwyd should St Brigid’s close together 

with the loss of sixth form faith provision. 

 

 

DCC is of the view that the Dyffryn Clwyd provision would 

remain viable should the proposal proceed.  Sixth form 

faith provision would be retained during First Phase. 

 

  

Page 118



 

90 
 
 

 

APPENDIX N 

 

Estyn’s response to the Formal  

Consultation Document 
 

You can view Estyn’s Response in the Closed Consultation section of the DCC website; just 

click on the Faith School Proposal area 

 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



For

Pr

mal C

roposal

Schoo

Consu

l for a n

ol for N

ultatio

new Jo

North D

on Do

int Fait

enbigh

ocume

th Base

hshire

ent

ed

Page 121



1

Contents

No Description Page No

Introduction 2

1. Context 2

2. Summary of proposal 2

3. Consultation Process 4

4. Power to make a decision 6

Background Information 7

5. Background to the proposal 7

6. Current Provision 7

7. Educational attainment 14

8. Alternative provision 19

9. Primary provision 26

10. Special educational needs provision 29

The Proposal 31

11. What we are proposing 31

12. The proposal in detail 33

13. Creating and maintaining the right ethos 35

14. Admission arrangements 36

15. How will the final site location be determined? 36

16. What are the transport implications of this proposal? 37

17. What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 38

18. What are the financial implications of this proposal? 38

19. How would any new school buildings be financed? 39

20. What are the disadvantages of this proposal? 41

21. Alternative options 42

22. Explanation of the statutory process 47

23. Community and equality assessment 48

24. Response form 49

Page 122



2

Introduction

1. Context

1.1 Denbighshire County Council, the Catholic Diocese of Wrexham and the Church in

Wales Diocese of St Asaph (together the Promoters) have undertaken and

completed an informal consultation with regard to how future provision for

secondary faith education in north Denbighshire could be provided.

1.2 As a consequence of the informal consultation exercise the Promoters wish

formally to consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they consider

would strengthen future provision.

1.3 The proposal that:

a. Denbighshire County Council would close Blessed Edward Jones Catholic

High School and St Brigid’s School on 31
st

August 2014; and

b. The Catholic Diocese of Wrexham and the Church in Wales Diocese of St

Asaph, in partnership with Denbighshire County Council, would establish a

new Anglican & Catholic Faith Voluntary Aided School serving the

communities of Denbigh, Rhyl and surrounding areas on the existing sites

from 1
st

September 2014.

1.4 Throughout this document the new Anglican & Catholic Faith School referred to in

paragraph 1.3 b above is called the New Dual Site Faith School.

1.5 The Promoters will, at a later date, make a separate proposal to construct a new

building for the New Dual Site Faith School on a new site in the

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area. The location of the new site will be determined at a

future date and will be the subject of a separate formal consultation with all

stakeholders.

1.6 No decision will be made on location at this stage.

1.7 This proposal should be considered separately to the consultation undertaken by

the Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust to consider the closure of the boarding element

of St Brigid’s School as of 1
st

September 2013.

2. Summary of proposal

First Phase

2.1 This formal consultation relates to a proposal to create the New Dual Site Faith

School to serve both the North Denbighshire area and to accommodate pupils from

Page 123



3

neighbouring authorities who wish to be educated at a faith school. Throughout

this document, this proposal is called the Current Proposal.

2.2 If the Current Proposal is agreed and implemented the First Phase would see the

existing Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School close on

31
st

August 2014. The Dual Site Faith School would open on 1
st

September and

would initially use the existing buildings in Denbigh and Rhyl. The Rhyl site (the

former Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School) would offer 11 16 provision

whilst the Denbigh site (the former St Brigid’s School) would offer 3 18 provision.

Throughout this document the creation of the New Dual Site Faith School is called

the First Phase.

Second Phase

2.3 The next phase would see the New Dual Site Faith School consolidated on a new

site in the Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area. Throughout this document the movement

of the New Dual Site Faith School onto a new site is called the Second Phase and

the school operating from the new site is called the Single Site Faith School.

2.4 As the change envisaged by the Second Phase would involve the location of the

New Dual Site Faith School moving by over a mile, a similar consultation process

would be required. The timescale for the publication of any such process is

dependent on the progression of the Current Proposal but the required formal

consultation is expected to commence by no later than the summer of 2015. It is

anticipated that the project to commence building a Single Site Faith School would

begin during the 2016/17 financial year. These two dates are dependent upon the

implementation date for the First Phase of the Current Proposal (as set out in

paragraph 2.2 above).

2.5 The age range of the Single Site Faith School would be confirmed during the Second

Phase consultation. Within this the main options would be whether the school

should serve a 3 – 16 age range or an 11 16 age range. The size would also be

determined during this Second Phase consultation and it is envisaged that this

would be in the region of 600 – 750 pupils on the new site.

2.6 The post 16 provision will be provided predominantly by the existing Rhyl and

Prestatyn VI partnership. A further consultation would confirm how such provision

would be delivered. It is envisaged that the majority of courses would be provided

via the existing Rhyl and Prestatyn Sixth Partnership which delivers provision at

Coleg Llandrillo in Rhyl and Prestatyn High School. The Single Site Faith School

would host a small range of courses as part of the partnership to ensure that

elements of post 16 can be delivered by the faith providers.

Page 124



4

3. Consultation Process

3.1 This formal consultation process relates to the Current Proposal and the First Phase

(the Second Phase will be the subject of a separate consultation process). This

formal consultation is being carried out to ensure that all relevant parties have an

opportunity to contribute to this important subject.

3.2 This formal consultation document has been sent to a wide range of potential

consultees including:

a. Conwy County Borough Council;

b. Flintshire County Council;

c. Catholic Diocese of Wrexham;

d. Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph;

e. Chair of The Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust;

f. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following schools:

i) Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School;

ii) St Brigid’s School;

iii) Rhyl High School;

iv) Prestatyn High School;

v) Denbigh High School; and

vi) St Richard Gwyn Catholic High School,

g. Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High

School and St Brigid’s School;

h. Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of all Denbighshire Schools;

i. Coleg Llandrillo;

j. Rhyl and Prestatyn VI and Dyffryn Clwyd Learning Partnership;

k. Independent nursery providers in the Denbigh area;

l. Parents of pupils attending the following Primary Schools in Denbighshire:

i) Ysgol Mair RC Primary School, Rhyl

ii) St Asaph VP and Ysgol Esgob Morgan, St Asaph

iii) Ysgol Trefnant VA, Trefnant

m. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following Primary Schools in

Conwy:

i) Ysgol St Joseph’s RC, Colwyn Bay

ii) Ysgol y Plas, Llanelian

iii) Ysgol Betws yn Rhos

iv) Ysgol Llanddulas

v) Ysgol St George

n. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following Primary Schools in

Flintshire:

i) St Winefrede’s in Holywell

ii) Ysgol yr Esgob, Caerwys

iii) Nannerch VC School

iv) Ysgol y Llan, Whitford

v) Ysgol Trelawnyd

vi) St Mary’s, Nercwys.

Page 125



5

o. Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years

Development and Childcare Partnerships;

p. All Denbighshire County Councillors;

q. Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing areas affected

by the proposal;

r. Rhyl Town Council;

s. Denbigh Town Council;

t. The Welsh Government;

v. Estyn;

w. The local Communities First Partnership (in relevant areas);

x. Relevant teaching and staff trades unions;

y. North Wales Consortium

z. Taith

aa. North Wales Police Commissioner

3.3 This formal consultation document has also been published on the Denbighshire

County Council website www.denbighshire.gov.uk
i

3.4 The formal consultation period in respect of the Current Proposal will take place

between 3
rd

June and 22
nd

July 2013.

3.5 A series of formal consultation events will take place during this period. These

include open workshops for parents to be informed further of the Current Proposal

which will provide the opportunity for an open question and answer session around

the various elements of the Current Proposal. The dates, times and venues of these

events will be publicised closer to the time.

3.6 Events will also be held with children and young people at Blessed Edward Jones

Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School. Open evenings will also be arranged to

gather the views of parents from primary schools which are expected to be

impacted by the Current Proposal.

3.7 Supplementary versions
ii

of this formal consultation document have been produced

for and made available to children and young people who are likely to be affected

by the Current Proposal. The supplementary versions have been written

specifically to help children and young people to understand and engage with the

formal consultation.

3.8 You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current

Proposal at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing. Responses

should be sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County

Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e mail to

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than 22
nd

July 2013.

Page 126



6

3.9 At the end of the formal consultation period all views received will be collated and

considered before any recommendation is made to proceed to the next stage and

publish formal proposals.

3.10 It is anticipated that Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet will consider a report

on the outcome of this formal consultation (including a recommendation from

Council officers) on 24
th

September 2013.

3.11 Approval of any recommendation may allow the proposal to be published by way of

a statutory notice in October 2013.

4. Power to make a decision

4.1 It is important to note that any decision to proceed with the Current Proposal will

be a joint decision between the Proposers.

4.2 Denbighshire County Council is permitted
iii

to publish proposals to discontinue a

voluntary aided or foundation school; as are the Governors
iv
. Accordingly, the

formal publication of the closure of the two existing schools may be carried out by

the council following the correct statutory procedure.

4.3 The proposal to establish a new voluntary aided school will be published by the

Catholic Diocese of Wrexham and the Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph in

partnership with Denbighshire County Council
v
. Under existing legislation whilst

Denbighshire County Council could seek to establish a new voluntary aided school

(and it is expected that this will continue to be the case when new legislation comes

in later this year) it is considered appropriate that such provision is planned in

partnership with the Diocesan authorities who will be responsible for the operation

of the school. The Council’s role in the establishment of a new voluntary aided

school would be advisory/supportive. This means that the proposal relating to the

formation of the New Dual Site Faith School will be published by the Diocesan

authorities in partnership with Denbighshire.

Page 127



7

Background Information

5. Background to the proposal

5.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy

Framework
vi

in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which to review existing

school provision.

5.2 The council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and

young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed

that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the

importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that

meet the needs of 21st century Wales.

5.3 We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county,

as improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way

education is provided. Schools need to be able to provide the best possible

learning experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the

widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential.

5.4 In November 2012 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of faith based education

in north Denbighshire. The informal consultation document
vii

highlighted a number

of issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability. These

included:

a. the need to ensure that future provision could sustain and safeguard

standards of education;

b. improving the learning environment at both Blessed Edward Jones Catholic

High School and St Brigid’s School;

c. the removal of mobile accommodation at St Brigid’s School; and

d. strengthening the leadership and management capacity at both schools.

5.5 The informal consultation ended on 29
th

January 2013 and the Promoters have

carefully considered the issues raised during this period. In total over 115 letters

and emails
viii

were received from stakeholders together with 178 questionnaires

completed by parents. The findings of the informal consultation exercise have

been compiled by the council and have been published on its website as part of the

decision making process.

6. Current Provision

6.1 This section details the current provision at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High

School and St Brigid’s School. The section will also provide comparable information

on schools at both primary and secondary level which are likely to be affected by

the Current Proposal.

Page 128



8

Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School

6.2 The current Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School is situated on Cefndy Road,

Rhyl and serves an age range of 11 16. It is a Voluntary Aided School under the

authority of the Catholic Diocese of Wrexham; predominately serving children

wishing to receive a Catholic and/or Christian education in the town of Rhyl. The

school also serves the surrounding areas as illustrated in the diagram below which

shows the postcode location of the home address for each pupil.

6.3 As of January 2013 the Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School had 499 full time

pupils. The pupil numbers have fluctuated over recent years as illustrated below:

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

408 466 485 480 499

6.4 As of January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows:

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11

84 78 120 137 80

6.5 The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls, based on current pupil primary pupils in

schools who normally transfer, suggests that a drop in future pupil numbers will

occur at the school as illustrated below:

Page 129



9

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

486 433 395 410 394

6.6 The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 659 pupils. As of January

2013 the school had 160 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 24.3% of the total

capacity. The percentage of surplus places at the school has been impacted by the

decision to close post 16 provision at the school in 2010.

6.7 Educational Standards at the school have seen significant improvements in recent

years. The school’s last Estyn Inspection was in October 2012
ix

and the inspection

report in summary commented as follows:

“Current performance

Good features in the school’s current performance include:

a trend of improvement at both key stage 3 and key stage 4 that is being

well maintained;

key stage 4 qualifications that include English and mathematics, which are

significantly better than the average in similar schools, now places the school

in the top quartile and significantly above modelled expectations;

the development of pupils’ literacy skills across the curriculum;

a strong community ethos;

lessons that well planned and teacher marking that provides pupils with a

clear understanding of their progress; and

very good pupil behaviour in lessons and around the school.

Prospects for improvement

The school’s prospects for improvement are good because:

the headteacher has a clear vision, and high expectations for the school,

which are is well understood by all staff and pupils and are leading to higher

standards;

more challenging targets are now being set for raising standards;

the restructuring of the senior leadership team ensures that there is strategic

oversight of all key matters of the school’s work to improve standards;

governors support and challenge the school effectively;

the school works well with a wide range of partners and agencies to enhance

the curriculum; and

the budget deficit is being effectively tackled and the school is on track to

pay off the deficit.”

Key Question Blessed Edward Jones Inspection

Judgement

1. How good are the outcomes? Good

2. How good is provision? Good

3. How good are leadership and

management?

Good

Page 130



10

The school’s current performance Good

The school’s prospects for improvement Good

Key:

Excellent Many strengths, including significant examples of sector leading practice

Good Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths

6.8 For the 2012/13 academic year the budget share per pupil at Blessed Edward Jones

was £4,624. This compared to the average for secondary schools across

Denbighshire of £4,452 and was the 3
rd

highest.

St Brigid’s School

6.9 The current St Brigid’s School is situated just outside of the town of Denbigh on the

A543 road. The school is recognised as a middle school which serves an age range

of 3 18. The current sixth form provision is provided in conjunction with the

Dyffryn Clwyd partnership, which also includes Denbigh High School, Ysgol

Brynhyfryd, Ruthin, Ysgol Glan Clwyd, St Asaph, Deeside College and Coleg

Llandrillo. The school serves predominately children wishing to receive a Catholic

and/or Christian education and serves a wide catchment area. The main towns

from where pupils are drawn are Denbigh, Rhyl, Prestatyn, St Asaph, Holywell and

Rhuddlan as illustrated in the diagram below. It is worth noting that although the

school is located in Denbigh the immediate Denbigh area accounts for less than a

third of pupils with a similar proportion of pupils based in the

Prestatyn/Rhuddlan/Rhyl area.

Page 131



11

Location of Primary Pupils

Location of Secondary Pupils

Page 132



12

6.10 As of January 2013 the school had across all ranges 490 full time pupils with a

further 10 part time nursery pupils. The pupil numbers have remained consistent

over recent years as illustrated below:

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Primary

Reception

to Year 6

129 134 133 137 130

Year 7 to

Year 11

284 283 281 286 282

Years

12/13

70 58 72 88 78

TOTAL 483 475 486 511 490

TOTAL

Secondary

354 341 353 374 360

6.11 As of January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows:

Nursery Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6

10 12 14 12 21 19 27 25

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13

55 58 55 57 57 46 32

6.12 The Council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that pupil numbers will remain

consistent at the school as illustrated below:

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

366 362 357 353 350

6.13 The capacity of the school building, following representations from the Governing

Body, has now been calculated at 121 pupils for 4 11 provision and 367 pupils for

11 18 provision leading to an overall capacity of 488 pupils. At January 2013 the

school had a deficit (over capacity) of 9 places or 7.4% of the total capacity at

primary level and a surplus (empty) of 7 places or 1.9% of the total capacity at

secondary level.

6.14 The school’s last Estyn Inspection was undertaken in May 2010
x

and was based on

the previous inspection framework. At present inspections are undertaken on a 6

yearly basis and based on such arrangements the next inspection will take place no

later than May 2016. The inspection report in summary commented as follows:

“While St Brigid’s School has several good features, it also has a number of

important shortcomings which need attention.

Page 133



13

Among the school’s good features are the:

acting headteacher’s vision for school improvement;

progress made by learners in the primary department;

teaching and assessment in the primary department; and

support and guidance for learners in the primary department.

However, there are shortcomings in the progress made by a significant minority of

pupils in the secondary department. There are shortcomings, also, in teaching and

assessment at KS3, KS4 and in the sixth form, and in leadership and management at

all levels throughout the school.

While the school has made good progress in several areas since the time the school

was last inspected, there are important key issues which have not been addressed

since that time. Particular shortcomings that remain are:

the variation in the processes of self evaluation;

the inconsistency in sharing good teaching practices across the curriculum;

the constraints imposed by the school’s accommodation; and

standards of information and communication technology (ICT) across the

curriculum.

As a result of these important shortcomings, the school is not yet moving forward

sufficiently so as to fulfil its true potential.”

Key Question St Brigid’s Inspection grade

2010

1. How well do learners achieve? 3

2. How effective are teaching, training and

assessment?

3

3. How well do the learning experiences meet the

needs and interests of learners and the wider

community?

3

4. How well are learners cared for, guided and

supported?

3

5. How effective are leadership and strategic

management?

3

6. How well do leaders and managers evaluate

and improve quality and standards?

3

7. How efficient are leaders and managers in

using resources?

3

Key:

Grade 1 Good with outstanding features

Grade 2 Good features and no important shortcomings

Page 134



14

Grade 3 Good features outweigh shortcomings

Grade 4 Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas

Grade 5 Many important shortcomings

6.16 For the 2012/13 academic year the budget share per pupil at St Brigid’s Secondary

was £4,387. This compared to the average for secondary schools across

Denbighshire of £4,452 and was the 2
nd

lowest. For the primary sector the budget

share per pupil was £3,064. This compared favourably to the average of £3,892.

7. Educational attainment

7.1 In making comparisons between the educational attainment between Blessed

Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School, it is important to

acknowledge the differences in the demographic backgrounds to the pupils who

attend both schools.

7.2 Nationally, the educational achievement of girls is usually higher than boys. Until

recently St Brigid’s School did not admit boys into the school and at present there

are a higher proportion of girls attending the school than boys. This may impact on

comparisons in performance. Therefore for valid comparisons in the tables below

the performance for girls is used as the main indicator.

7.3 In addition, it is also acknowledged that there is a link between educational

performance and free school meals take up within schools. This link acknowledges

the range of social backgrounds within schools and the impact that this may have

on overall academic achievement.

7.4 To assist local authorities in understanding academic performance schools are

categorised in families which are set by the Welsh Government and take into

account the percentage of pupils at each school:

a. eligible for Free School Meals;

b. living in areas classed in the most 20% deprived areas in Wales;

c. with special educational needs; and

d. whose first language is not English or Welsh.

7.5 The following tables seek to give an understanding of the relative performance of

the schools against their respective families, girls’ performance, local authority and

national performance.

Page 135



15

St. Brigid's School & Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High KS3 GIRLS'

attainment

Percentage of all (male and female) pupils who have reached the

expected level, 2012 The level on the National Curriculum scale that the majority

of pupils are expected to achieve by the end of the Key Stage. At the end of Key Stage 3

this is level 5

Core Subject Indicator English Maths Science

SB 91.20% 91.20% 96.50% 96.50%

SB Family 86.80% 91.40% 91.90% 94.80%

BEJ 59.10% 65.20% 75.80% 83.30%

BEJ Family 61.80% 69.10% 73.70% 79.70%

Denbighshire 71.90% 77.60% 82.00% 85.30%

Wales 72.50% 79.30% 81.10% 83.60%

Percentage of female pupils who have reached the expected level Core subject

indicator achieving at least level 5 in English or Welsh (first language), mathematics and science in

combination.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls * * * * 97.70%

SB Family (Girls) 81.90% 85.80% 85.30% 87.70% 90.40%

BEJ Girls 53.80% 43.50% 59.10% 58.70% 62.70%

BEJ Family (Girls) 52.10% 56.00% 58.70% 67.10% 70.60%

Denbighshire Girls 65.30% 62.40% 67.90% 70.10% 77.80%

Wales Girls 64.50% 66.20% 69.00% 73.30% 78.20%

* No data relating to this information was available on My Local School

website

Percentage of female pupils who have reached the expected level

(5) in English

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 93.10% 98.20% 89.50% 87.90% 91.20%

SB Family (Girls) 91.90% 94.70% 92.70% 94.90% 95.50%

BEJ Girls 66.70% 52.20% 70.50% 73.90% 71.20%

BEJ Family (Girls) 67.20% 67.80% 70.10% 78.60% 78.70%

Denbighshire Girls 76.60% 74.80% 80.70% 81.20% 84.70%

Wales Girls 77.30% 78.30% 80.10% 82.90% 86.40%

Page 136



16

Percentage of female pupils who have reached the expected level

(5) in Maths

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 87.90% 94.70% 98.20% 89.70% 96.50%

SB Family (Girls) 87.60% 89.80% 90.60% 90.80% 93.20%

BEJ Girls 71.80% 56.50% 63.60% 71.70% 74.60%

BEJ Family (Girls) 63.60% 64.30% 70.60% 76.30% 78.00%

Denbighshire Girls 76.60% 70.80% 76.90% 78.60% 83.90%

Wales Girls 74.10% 74.90% 77.40% 80.10% 83.80%

Female pupils who have reached the expected level (5) in Science

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 91.40% 94.70% 93.00% 87.90% 96.50%

SB Family (Girls) 89.90% 92.70% 92.50% 93.90% 95.90%

BEJ Girls 66.70% 54.30% 63.60% 65.20% 83.10%

BEJ Family (Girls) 65.40% 70.50% 72.60% 79.20% 84.80%

Denbighshire Girls 77.50% 74.20% 77.80% 80.90% 87.80%

Wales Girls 75.90% 77.50% 80.10% 83.40% 87.20%

St Brigid's School & Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School KS4

GIRLS' attainment

Percentage of female pupils achieving the level 2 threshold including

English/Welsh and Maths

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 67.30% 77.60% 75.00% 75.40% 71.90%

SB Family (Girls) 70.00% 78.20% 76.80% 78.10% 76.70%

BEJ Girls 48.50% 32.60% 23.10% 31.60% 35.00%

BEJ Family (Girls) 30.70% 28.90% 37.80% 37.00% 36.10%

Denbighshire Girls 45.70% 52.20% 49.40% 55.40% 59.70%

Wales Girls 49.60% 51.30% 53.10% 54.00% 55.50%

Average capped points score

Approved for pre 16 use in Wales for each female

pupil.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls * * 366 369 390

SB Family (Girls) * * 369 373 382

BEJ Girls * * 275 266 318

BEJ Family (Girls) * * 286 291 311

Page 137



17

Denbighshire Girls * * 316 334 356

Wales Girls * * 319 325 338

*measure introduced 2010

Percentage of pupils achieving the level 2

threshold equivalent to the volume of 5 GCSEs at

Grade A* C.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 83.60% 81.60% 92.90% 94.70% 96.50%

SB Family (Girls) 81.80% 85.50% 86.70% 88.50% 91.50%

BEJ Girls 57.60% 37.00% 48.70% 47.40% 77.50%

BEJ Family (Girls) 46.00% 47.90% 60.40% 62.60% 72.80%

Denbighshire Girls 57.70% 63.90% 68.60% 77.20% 88.70%

Wales Girls 63.50% 66.20% 68.90% 72.10% 77.60%

Percentage of pupils achieving the Core Subject

Indicator Percentage of pupils achieving at least a GCSE at

grade A* C (or equivalent qualification) in each of English or

Welsh first language, Mathematics and Science.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 69.10% 77.60% 75.00% 75.40% 71.90%

SB Family (Girls) 68.60% 76.90% 75.40% 75.00% 73.50%

BEJ Girls 51.50% 34.80% 23.10% 31.60% 35.00%

BEJ Family (Girls) 27.50% 27.00% 35.10% 34.50% 34.30%

Denbighshire Girls 45.40% 50.20% 48.70% 53.40% 58.00%

Wales Girls 47.90% 49.50% 51.10% 52.00% 52.80%

Percentage of pupils achieving the level 1

threshold equivalent to the volume of 5 GCSEs at

Grade A* G.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Girls 94.50% 93.90% 100.00% 96.50% 98.20%

SB Family (Girls) 97.00% 98.30% 98.70% 97.80% 98.70%

BEJ Girls 84.80% 91.30% 92.30% 84.20% 90.00%

BEJ Family (Girls) 80.40% 84.50% 86.80% 87.70% 91.20%

Denbighshire Girls 86.90% 92.20% 91.30% 93.20% 94.80%

Wales Girls 89.80% 91.00% 92.00% 92.20% 93.80%

7.6 The following table summarises the above results. This shows that both schools

have performed well at certain times and that St Brigid’s School has performed

better more of the time than Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School. However,

Page 138



18

both schools could improve their performances in respect of their respective family

average performances.

Attainment Level Blessed Edward St Brigid’s

2012 CSI, Eng,

Maths & Science

(KS3 L5)

ALL PUPILS (BOYS

AND GIRLS)

Below the Family attainment in

CSI and Eng but above the Family

attainment in Maths and Science

Above the Family attainment in

CSI, Maths and Science and

almost level in English

Girls reaching

level 5 in English

KS3 from 2008

2012

Below the family average in all

but 2010

Below the family average in the

last 3 years (but above in 2008

and 2009)

Girls reaching

level 5 in Maths

KS3 from 2008

2012

Below the family average in all

but 2008

Above the family average in all

but 2011

Girls reaching

level 5 in Science

KS3 from 2008

2012

Below the family average in all

but 2008

Above the family average in all

but 2011

Girls reaching

level 2 KS4

(including Eng

and Maths) from

2008 2012

Below the family average in the

last 3 years

Below the Family attainment in

all 5 years

Average capped

points score for

girls from 2010

2012

Below the family average in all

but 2012

Below the family average in all

but 2012

Girls reaching

level 2 threshold

(equivalent to 5

A* C at GCSE)

from 2008 2012

Below the family average for 3

out of the 5 years

Above the family average for 4

out of the 5 years

Girls reaching the

CSI (at least grade

A* C at GCSE in

Eng, Maths &

Science) from

2008 2012

Above the family average in 3 out

of the 5 years

Above the family average in 3 out

of the 5 years

Page 139



19

Girls achieving

level 1 (5 GCSE’s

at A* G) from

2008 2012

Below the family average in the

last 2 years but above average in

the previous 3

Below the family average in 4 of

the 5 years; and below in the last

2 years

7.7 Further data analysis on the respective performance of both schools can also be

found on the Welsh Government website as follows:

http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

8. Alternative provision

8.1 Should the Current Proposal proceed, the Promoters would wish to see all pupils

transfer to the New Dual Site Faith School to ensure that they continue to receive

their education at a faith school and to a consistently high standard.

8.2 However, during the informal consultation a number of parents/guardians,

particularly from the St Brigid’s School community, stated that they would not send

their children to any successor school and would wish to choose alternative

provision. Accordingly, this section provides details of potential alternative, local

authority maintained, provision in the catchment areas of the existing schools. The

nearest alternative Catholic school would be St. Richard Gwyn Catholic High School

located in Flint. At present there is no Anglican Secondary School serving the

current catchment area of the existing schools. Denbighshire County Council

considers that alternatives for non faith secondary provision would be as follows:

Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School Pupils:

o Rhyl High School, Rhyl; and

o Prestatyn High School, Prestatyn,

St Brigid’s School:

o Denbigh High School;

o Rhyl High School, Rhyl; and

o Prestatyn High School, Prestatyn.

Options for Secondary Alternative provision:

8.3 The pupil numbers for Rhyl High School and Denbigh High School have decreased

over the past 5 years. The pupil numbers for Prestatyn High School and St Richard

Gwyn High School have been consistent over the same period.

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Rhyl High School 1017* 916* 809 781 766
Prestatyn High

School
1788 1813 1775 1748 1731

Page 140



20

Denbigh High

School
855 822 774 727 694

St Richard Gwyn

Catholic High

School

938 939 939 950 946

* Figures include 11 18 provision. Rhyl High School VI form closed in September 2010

8.4 At January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows:

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13
Rhyl High

School

159 153 155 166 133 n/a n/a

Prestatyn High

School

261 275 293 282 275 208 137

Denbigh High

School

107 93 110 124 138 59 63

St Richard

Gwyn Catholic

High School

163 174 174 165 168 54 48

8.5 The forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that pupil numbers will reduce over the

next five years in line with demographic trends as the overall numbers reduce in

secondary education. It is anticipated that this trend will change by 2019 with a

gradual increase in secondary pupils to reflect the current increases in the lower

end of primary schools in Denbighshire.

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Rhyl High

School
754 727 723 735 731

Prestatyn

High School
1721 1668 1622 1576 1547

Denbigh High

School
648 623 584 610 610

St Richard

Gwyn Catholic

High School

tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc

Surplus Places

Current Pupil

Numbers

Current

Capacity
Surplus Places % of surplus places

Rhyl High

School
766 1315 549 41.7

Prestatyn

High School
1731 1774 43 2.4

Denbigh High

School
694 1002 308 30.7

St Richard

Gwyn Catholic

High School

946 1000 54 5.4

Page 141



21

Comparisons of Educational Performance between alternative schools

8.6 The following tables provide analysis of performance of the percentage of pupils

achieving Grade A* C by subject in 2012. In the below tables the following

reference is used for the 6 schools:

Key:
BEJ Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School

SB St Brigid’s School

RH Rhyl High School

DH Denbigh High School

PH Prestatyn High School

SRG St Richard Gwyn

KS4 GCSE: A C

Percentage of pupils achieving Grade A* C by subject, 2012

Core Subject

Indicator English Maths Science

BEJ 39.50% 60.50% 40.80% 78.90%

BEJ Family 31.30% 48.80% 38.70% 71.80%

SB 71.90% 93.00% 73.70% 94.70%

SB Family 70.50% 82.40% 80.10% 81.60%

RH 44.10% 47.80% 62.10% 90.70%

RH Family 36.30% 51.50% 46.60% 66.30%

DH 43.10% 65.00% 61.80% 58.50%

DH Family 53.60% 67.80% 61.90% 73.70%

PH 50.00% 62.60% 61.90% 75.90%

PH Family 53.60% 67.80% 61.90% 73.70%

SRG 59.20% 68.40% 71.70% 84.90%

SRG Family 57.80% 70.80% 66.80% 76.10%

Local Authority 53.10% 64.20% 63.70% 79.70%

Wales 48.90% 62.20% 58.40% 70.60%

Percentage of pupils who have reached the expected

level in English The percentage of pupils achieving at least a

GCSE at Grade A* C in English (including boys only and girls

only)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

BEJ Total 64.60% 58.30% 42.30% 51.80% 60.50%

BEJ Family Total 43.90% 44.30% 46.80% 45.40% 48.80%

SB Total 89.10% 87.80% 96.40% 94.70% 93.00%

SB Family Total 83.10% 83.20% 84.00% 83.00% 82.40%

RH Total 32.80% 39.90% 42.20% 42.20% 47.80%

RH Family Total 53.70% 51.90% 52.20% 51.00% 51.50%

DH Total 48.50% 46.50% 33.80% 45.40% 65.00%

DH Family Total 63.90% 62.10% 63.60% 64.60% 67.80%

Page 142



22

PH Total 51.10% 51.00% 60.40% 61.40% 62.60%

PH Family Total 63.90% 62.10% 63.60% 64.60% 67.80%

SRG Total 65.70% 67.70% 71.30% 67.80% 68.40%

SRG Family Total 67.80% 70.10% 72.20% 72.10% 70.80%

DCC Total 57.00% 56.30% 56.00% 61.20% 64.20%

Wales Total 61.00% 61.00% 62.70% 62.80% 62.20%

BEJ Boys 58.70% 52.60% 28.20% 51.10% 50.00%

BEJ Family Boys 36.30% 36.70% 37.20% 35.80% 41.30%

SB Boys * * * * *

SB Family Boys 76.90% 75.00% 76.40% 76.70% 76.10%

RH Boys 23.80% 35.00% 33.00% 36.00% 37.40%

RH Family Boys 44.40% 44.60% 44.60% 39.70% 41.20%

DH Boys 41.30% 43.00% 26.70% 48.10% 63.20%

DH Family Boys 56.10% 54.30% 55.50% 57.80% 60.60%

PH Boys 47.60% 42.20% 50.00% 52.60% 60.20%

PH Family Boys 56.10% 54.30% 55.50% 57.80% 60.60%

SRG Boys 57.80% 64.60% 66.30% 61.70% 61.00%

SRG Family Boys 61.30% 61.60% 65.20% 63.80% 63.60%

DCC Boys 48.00% 47.30% 45.10% 53.90% 54.80%

Wales Boys 52.80% 52.40% 54.00% 54.10% 53.90%

BEJ Girls 72.70% 63.00% 56.40% 52.60% 70.00%

BEJ Family Girls 51.90% 52.40% 57.00% 55.00% 56.90%

SB Girls * * * * *

SB Family Girls 89.20% 91.50% 91.10% 89.50% 88.80%

RH Girls 43.40% 44.30% 52.00% 47.90% 61.40%

RH Family Girls 63.70% 59.90% 60.30% 62.00% 62.10%

DH Girls 57.50% 52.40% 42.30% 41.20% 68.10%

DH Family Girls 72.00% 70.80% 71.60% 71.50% 75.00%

PH Girls 54.40% 60.10% 71.60% 71.60% 65.00%

PH Family Girls 72.00% 70.80% 71.60% 71.50% 75.00%

SRG Girls 74.10% 70.60% 77.50% 71.90% 77.10%

SRG Family Girls 74.00% 78.00% 79.20% 80.50% 78.50%

DCC Girls 65.80% 65.00% 66.70% 68.50% 74.00%

Wales Girls 69.60% 70.00% 71.60% 71.80% 71.00%

Percentage of pupils who have reached the expected

level in Maths The percentage of pupils achieving at least a

GCSE at Grade

A* C in Maths (including boys only and girls only)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

BEJ Total 43.00% 36.90% 20.50% 44.60% 40.80%

BEJ Family Total 34.30% 32.90% 38.40% 39.40% 38.70%

SB Total 69.10% 77.60% 75.00% 75.40% 73.70%

Page 143



23

SB Family Total 72.40% 79.70% 77.90% 80.20% 80.10%

RH Total 29.30% 44.00% 43.10% 46.70% 62.10%

RH Family Total 41.80% 44.70% 47.50% 46.30% 46.60%

DH Total 44.80% 48.20% 36.30% 53.80% 61.80%

DH Family Total 52.90% 55.20% 56.90% 57.50% 61.90%

PH Total 51.10% 51.00% 60.40% 61.40% 62.60%

PH Family Total 63.90% 62.10% 63.60% 64.60% 67.80%

SRG Total 57.70% 67.70% 71.30% 59.10% 71.70%

SRG Family Total 55.90% 59.90% 61.70% 65.00% 66.80%

DCC Total 45.50% 55.80% 51.60% 60.20% 63.70%

Wales Total 50.90% 53.30% 55.70% 56.50% 58.40%

BEJ Boys 37.00% 39.50% 15.40% 53.30% 47.20%

BEJ Family Boys 34.50% 34.20% 36.80% 37.70% 38.70%

SB Boys * * * * *

SB Family Boys 72.60% 78.30% 77.40% 79.80% 80.50%

RH Boys 28.60% 40.80% 37.60% 45.30% 60.40%

RH Family Boys 41.00% 43.80% 47.20% 47.20% 46.00%

DH Boys 43.50% 54.20% 37.20% 59.50% 65.80%

DH Family Boys 52.50% 56.00% 58.10% 58.90% 62.90%

PH Boys 47.60% 42.20% 50.00% 52.60% 60.20%

PH Family Boys 56.10% 54.30% 55.50% 57.80% 60.60%

SRG Boys 60.00% 72.20% 70.90% 60.00% 72.00%

SRG Family Boys 56.10% 58.10% 61.80% 65.20% 66.60%

DCC Boys 42.80% 54.90% 49.60% 61.00% 63.40%

Wales Boys 49.40% 52.60% 55.70% 56.30% 57.90%

BEJ Girls 51.50% 34.80% 25.60% 34.20% 35.00%

BEJ Family Girls 34.20% 31.50% 40.00% 41.00% 38.60%

SB Girls * * * * *

SB Family Girls 72.30% 81.10% 78.50% 80.60% 79.60%

RH Girls 30.20% 47.00% 49.00% 47.90% 64.30%

RH Family Girls 42.60% 45.80% 47.90% 45.40% 47.10%

DH Girls 46.60% 38.10% 35.20% 45.10% 55.30%

DH Family Girls 53.20% 54.20% 55.80% 56.20% 60.90%

PH Girls 54.40% 60.10% 71.60% 71.60% 65.00%

PH Family Girls 72.00% 70.80% 71.60% 71.50% 75.00%

SRG Girls 55.30% 63.50% 71.80% 58.40% 71.40%

SRG Family Girls 55.60% 61.60% 61.70% 64.70% 67.10%

DCC Girls 48.00% 56.80% 53.70% 59.40% 63.90%

Wales Girls 52.50% 54.10% 55.80% 56.70% 58.80%

Page 144



24

Percentage of pupils who have reached the expected

level in Science The percentage of pupils achieving at

least a GCSE at

Grade A* C in Science (including boys only and girls only)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

BEJ Total 50.60% 47.60% 48.70% 56.60% 78.90%

BEJ Family Total 35.90% 44.30% 53.90% 61.80% 71.80%

SB Total 90.90% 85.70% 92.90% 94.70% 94.70%

SB Family Total 78.00% 81.50% 81.00% 81.40% 81.60%

RH Total 29.30% 44.00% 43.10% 46.70% 62.10%

RH Family Total 41.80% 44.70% 47.50% 46.30% 46.60%

DH Total 53.30% 57.10% 55.40% 66.20% 58.50%

DH Family Total 66.30% 65.80% 66.30% 67.80% 73.70%

PH Total 55.10% 55.30% 65.50% 66.60% 75.90%

PH Family Total 66.30% 65.80% 66.30% 67.80% 73.70%

SRG Total 57.70% 67.70% 71.30% 59.10% 71.70%

SRG Family Total 55.90% 59.90% 61.70% 65.00% 66.80%

DCC Total 55.90% 61.60% 64.60% 70.20% 79.70%

Wales Total 59.50% 61.80% 63.60% 65.90% 70.60%

BEJ Boys 43.50% 52.60% 41.00% 60.00% 75.00%

BEJ Family Boys 36.30% 45.70% 49.00% 61.30% 67.40%

SB Boys * * * * *

SB Family Boys 77.50% 79.10% 78.50% 80.70% 81.20%

RH Boys 28.60% 40.80% 37.60% 45.30% 60.40%

RH Family Boys 41.00% 43.80% 47.20% 47.20% 46.00%

DH Boys 51.10% 57.00% 51.20% 67.10% 59.20%

DH Family Boys 66.30% 64.10% 65.00% 67.10% 74.00%

PH Boys 57.20% 55.20% 61.80% 64.10% 75.90%

PH Family Boys 66.30% 64.10% 65.00% 67.10% 74.00%

SRG Boys 60.00% 72.20% 70.90% 60.00% 72.00%

SRG Family Boys 56.10% 58.10% 61.80% 65.20% 66.60%

DCC Boys 52.60% 61.50% 61.00% 68.10% 75.70%

Wales Boys 58.50% 60.20% 62.10% 64.50% 68.40%

BEJ Girls 60.60% 43.50% 56.40% 52.60% 82.50%

BEJ Family Girls 35.40% 42.70% 59.20% 62.30% 76.70%

SB Girls * * * * *

SB Family Girls 78.60% 84.00% 83.30% 82.20% 82.10%

RH Girls 30.20% 47.00% 49.00% 47.90% 64.30%

RH Family Girls 42.60% 45.80% 47.90% 45.40% 47.10%

DH Girls 56.20% 57.10% 60.60% 64.70% 57.40%

DH Family Girls 66.20% 67.70% 67.50% 68.40% 73.50%

PH Girls 53.10% 55.40% 69.40% 69.40% 75.90%

PH Family Girls 66.20% 67.70% 67.50% 68.40% 73.50%

SRG Girls 55.30% 63.50% 71.80% 58.40% 71.40%

Page 145



25

SRG Family Girls 55.60% 61.60% 61.70% 64.70% 67.10%

DCC Girls 59.10% 61.70% 68.00% 72.30% 84.00%

Wales Girls 60.60% 63.60% 65.20% 67.40% 72.80%

Comparison of Estyn Reports

8.7 The four schools which may be used as alternative provision have been inspected

under the different inspection frameworks.

Previous Framework

Key Question Rhyl High School 2008 St Richard Gwyn High

Catholic School 2008

1. How well do learners

achieve?

4 2

2. How effective are

teaching, training and

assessment?

4 2

3. How well do the learning

experiences meet the needs

and interests of learners

and the wider community?

3 2

4. How well are learners

cared for, guided and

supported?

3 1

5. How effective are

leadership and strategic

management?

4 2

6. How well do leaders and

managers evaluate and

improve quality and

standards?

4 2

7. How efficient are leaders

and managers in using

resources?

4 2

Key (to Previous Framework):

Grade 1 Good with outstanding features

Grade 2 Good features and no important shortcomings

Grade 3 Good features outweigh shortcomings

Grade 4 Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas

Grade 5 Many important shortcomings

Page 146



26

Current Framework

Key Question Prestatyn High School

Inspection Judgement

Denbigh High School

Inspection Judgement

1. How good are the

outcomes?

Good Unsatisfactory

2. How good is provision? Good Adequate

3. How good are

leadership and

management?

Good Adequate

The school’s current

performance

Good Unsatisfactory

The school’s prospects for

improvement

Good Adequate

Key (to current Framework):

Excellent Many strengths, including significant examples of sector leading practice

Good Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths

9. Primary Provision

9.1 If the Current Proposal is accepted the primary provision for the New Dual Site

Faith School would remain on the Denbigh site. The long term future for the

Primary provision from the Denbigh site would be determined during the Second

Phase (the opening of a Single Site Faith School).

9.2 However parents may not wish to have their children attend the new Dual Site

Faith School. Accordingly the potential alternative provision is set out below. The

Catholic Diocese alternative provision within Denbighshire would be at Ysgol Mair

in Rhyl. The Church in Wales alternative provision within Denbighshire would be

around the St Asaph/Denbigh area at St Asaph Infants VP School, Ysgol Trefnant VA

and in the Ruthin area at Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin; Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Llanfair

DC. It would be expected that should pupils wish to remain within faith education

that alternative provision in Rhyl, St Asaph and Trefnant would be sought in the

first instance.

Page 147



27

Options for Primary Alternative provision:

9.3 The pupil numbers for the four schools listed below have fluctuated over the last 4

years.

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Ysgol Mair (VA) 285 277 252 257 249

Ysgol Trefnant (VC) 53 63 62 64 56

St Asaph Infants

(VC)
76 82 85 85 86

Ysgol Esgob

Morgan (Juniors

CP)

123 111 103 96 99

9.4 At January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows:

Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6
Ysgol Mair (VA) 49 42 29 37 28 33 31

Ysgol Trefnant

(VC)

6 10 13 8 3 7 9

St Asaph

Infants (VC)

29 28 29

Ysgol Esgob

Morgan

31 25 22 21

9.5 The forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that pupil numbers will increase over the

next five years in line with demographic trends as the overall numbers entering

education increase.

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Ysgol Mair

(VA)
256 266 281 285 298

Ysgol

Trefnant (VC)
59 61 67 69 65

St Asaph

Infants (VC)
87 88 88 87 87

Ysgol Esgob

Morgan
107 113 117 116 116

Surplus Places

Current Pupil

Numbers

Current

Capacity
Surplus Places % of surplus places

Ysgol Mair

(VA)
249 378 129 34.1%

Ysgol Trefnant

(VC)
56 59 3 5.1%

St Asaph

Infants (VC)
86 89 3 3.4%

Ysgol Esgob

Morgan
99 108 9 8.3%

Page 148



28

Comparisons of Educational Performance between alternative schools

KS2

% Pupils who have reached the expected level, 2012

Core Subject Indicator English Maths Science

SB 96.40% 96.40% 96.40% 100.00%

SB Family 89.90% 92.90% 92.90% 96.60%

YM 76.10% 82.60% 84.80% 91.30%

YM Family 81.30% 83.50% 86.80% 88.20%

YEM 88.90% 91.70% 91.70% 94.40%

YEM Family 91.10% 91.90% 93.20% 94.90%

YT 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

YT Family 86.80% 90.90% 90.10% 91.70%

Local Authority 83.50% 85.60% 87.70% 90.40%

Wales 82.60% 85.20% 86.80% 88.50%

% Pupils who have reached the expected level English

The percentage of pupils achieving at least level 4 in English

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Total 92.60% 96.40% 89.30% 89.70% 96.40%

SB Family Total 87.10% 87.60% 88.80% 89.90% 92.90%

YM Total 80.80% 81.70% 84.20% 84.10% 82.60%

YM Family Total 79.10% 79.50% 77.20% 80.70% 83.50%

YEM Total 90.90% 79.30% 96.30% 88.50% 91.70%

YEM Family Total 88.30% 88.10% 89.80% 88.90% 91.90%

YT Total 81.80% 100.00% 80.00% 77.80% 100.00%

YT Family Total 81.00% 88.10% 85.10% 82.60% 90.90%

DCC Total 81.80% 80.90% 82.00% 85.10% 85.60%

Wales Total 79.80% 81.00% 81.90% 83.40% 85.20%

% Pupils who have reached the expected level Maths

The percentage of pupils achieving at least level 4 in Maths

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Total 96.30% 100.00% 78.60% 93.10% 96.40%

SB Family Total 89.90% 89.10% 86.80% 93.00% 92.90%

YM Total 82.70% 83.30% 76.30% 95.50% 84.80%

YM Family Total 79.10% 80.60% 78.70% 84.40% 86.80%

YEM Total 81.80% 86.20% 92.60% 88.50% 91.70%

YEM Family Total 90.50% 92.50% 87.40% 89.80% 93.20%

YT Total 81.80% 88.90% 80.00% 88.90% 100.00%

YT Family Total 83.30% 88.90% 85.10% 89.00% 90.10%

Page 149



29

DCC Total 81.70% 82.30% 82.70% 86.90% 87.70%

Wales Total 81.30% 82.50% 83.30% 84.90% 86.80%

% Pupils who have reached the expected level Science

The percentage of pupils achieving at least level 4 in Science

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

SB Total 92.60% 100.00% 82.10% 93.10% 100.00%

SB Family Total 89.90% 92.00% 90.50% 93.40% 96.60%

YM Total 86.50% 88.30% 89.50% 93.20% 91.30%

YM Family Total 85.80% 85.20% 80.50% 83.20% 88.20%

YEM Total 90.90% 89.70% 88.90% 96.20% 94.40%

YEM Family Total 91.30% 91.70% 89.00% 93.80% 94.90%

YT Total 90.90% 100.00% 80.00% 88.90% 100.00%

YT Family Total 88.10% 94.10% 93.40% 89.90% 91.70%

DCC Total 85.60% 86.80% 86.10% 90.50% 90.40%

Wales Total 85.60% 86.40% 86.40% 87.10% 88.50%

Alternative Provision – Flintshire and Conwy

9.6 In the eastern area of Conwy, the Catholic Diocese provision would be via Ysgol St

Joseph’s in Colwyn Bay. Similarly, for the Church in Wales in eastern Conwy

alternative provision could be provided at Ysgol y Plas, Llanelian, Ysgol Betws yn

Rhos, Ysgol Llanddulas and Ysgol St George.

9.7 In the western area of Flintshire the Catholic Diocese provision would be via St

Winefrede’s in Holywell. For the Church in Wales in western Flintshire alternative

provision could be provided at Ysgol yr Esgob, Caerwys; Nannerch VC School; Ysgol

y Llan, Whitford; Ysgol Trelawnyd and St Mary’s, Nercwys.

9.8 Determining fully the alternative provision that parents may wish to choose is

difficult because the catchment area of primary age pupils attending St Brigid’s

School is spread over such a wide area. Approximately a quarter of St Brigid’s

School pupils live outside of Denbighshire in either Flintshire or Conwy. In the

region of a quarter of the pupils who come from Denbighshire live in either

Denbigh or Rhyl and their surrounding areas and around 15% are from the St Asaph

area.

10. Special educational needs provision

10.1 If the Current Proposal is approved and the work of the First Phase is carried out,

very little will change. The two existing schools will become one new school but

the pupils will continue to be taught by the same teachers, in the same buildings

and on the same site as they do now. Accordingly, any pupils with special

educational needs (SEN) who currently attend the schools will continue to receive

Page 150



30

the same education and support in precisely the same environment. The council

will help pupils with SEN who experience difficulties because of the change from

two schools to one.

10.2 The Council appreciates that the move to a Single Site Faith School will result in

greater change that operating one school on two sites. This will affect all pupils but

it is likely to prove even more challenging to pupils with SEN. The council will take

all practicable steps to minimise disruption and to assist such pupils with the

transition.

10.3 The facilities available at a Single Site Faith School will be designed in consultation

with Denbighshire County Council’s SEN Education Officers, and the staff and pupils

concerned. It is anticipated that this approach will produce improved conditions

and so learning experience for pupils with SEN.

Page 151



31

The Proposal

11. What we are proposing

11.1 This formal consultation relates to the Current Proposal, namely: to close Blessed

Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School and to establish a new

Anglican & Catholic Faith Voluntary Aided School serving the communities of

Denbigh, Rhyl and surrounding areas on the existing sites. In summary, the Current

Proposal relates to the First Phase which entails the creation of the New Dual Site

Faith School.

11.2 A second consultation would occur to consider moving to a new location to be

determined in the Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area to allow for the construction of a

new school building. This second consultation would be held to consider the

Second Phase which would result in a Single Site Faith School.

What would this mean?

11.3 If the Current Proposal was approved:

a. Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School would

both close on 31
st

August 2014; and

b. The New Dual Site Faith Voluntary Aided School would open on 1
st

September 2014 (initially on the existing sites in Rhyl and Denbigh and

utilising the existing buildings).

11.4 All children attending Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s

School would transfer to the New Dual Site Faith School; subject to parental

preference. Whilst the New Dual Site Faith School remains on two sites pupils

would continue to be taught on their original school site. The facilities provided at

the New Dual Site Faith School would be identical to the current facilities at both

Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigid’s; the medium of instruction would remain as

English.

11.5 The New Dual Site Faith School would have two distinct age ranges which would be

linked to the particular sites. Initially as part of the First Phase, the existing

buildings at the Rhyl site would provide 11 16 provision and the existing buildings

at the Denbigh site 3 18 provision. The table below shows the capacity across the

two sites:

Page 152



32

First Phase: New Dual Site Faith School

Nursery

(part time)

Primary

(full time)

Secondary

(full time)

Denbigh site
17 121 367

Rhyl site
0 0 659

Total
17 121 1026

This would provide an overall capacity across all the age ranges of 1147 full time

places and 17 part time places. As can be seen in the table below showing the

projected pupil numbers should the Current Proposal be implemented, the New

Dual Site Faith School would comfortably be able to accommodate the projected

number of pupils over the next five years.

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

852 795 752 763 744

11.6 In terms of the leadership and management of the New Dual Site Faith School, as of

1
st

September 2014 there would be one Governing Body, one Headteacher and one

group of staff. The Governing Body would include Parent, Denbighshire County

Council, Teacher and Staff representation together with a number of Foundation

Governors appointed by the Promoters. Prior to the opening of the New Dual Site

Faith School, on 1
st

September, a Temporary Governing Body would be established

and this would take key decisions regarding the appointment of the Headteacher

and the supportive leadership team, the staffing structure for and name of the New

Dual Site Faith School, uniform policies etc.

11.7 As stated above in paragraph 2.3 the intention of the Council and its partners

would be to consolidate provision on to a single site, probably in the

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area. Any proposed move would be subject to further

formal consultation. It is expected that the post 16 provision will be delivered

predominately by the existing Rhyl and Prestatyn VI provision. The anticipated size

of the Single Sited School would also be reviewed when a clearer understanding of

its demand emerges.

11.8 It is anticipated that the design ethos of the Single Site Faith School building would

seek to develop home bases for year groups as a potential model. This may

address some of the concerns regarding a transition for existing pupils to a larger

school model by the pupils remaining in their “home environment” for the majority

of their lessons. The figure of 600 / 750 has been chosen based on the initial

feedback received during the informal consultation that a number of parents may

choose to remove their children from any revised provision if it were too large. This

Page 153



33

position will be reviewed at the start of the Second Phase of consultation regarding

a new site.

11.9 The site at Rhyl for the new school the Blessed Edward Jones site is presently

under the control of the Wrexham Catholic Diocesan Authority who would retain

ownership of the site during the first phase of the proposals. The Denbigh site the

St Brigid's School site is presently under the ownership of St Brigid's Trust, a

registered company.

11.10 The principal activity of the School is set out in the Memorandum and Articles of

Association of the Trust Body, being the advancement of education of children

between the ages of 3 and 19 by making provision for a Voluntary aided Roman

Catholic School or School for the education of Roman Catholic Children, either with

or without other Christian or non Christian children.

11.11 Following confirmation that the St Brigid's Trust will not act as co promoters,

Denbighshire County Council, in partnership with the other promoters will seek

discussions with the Trust to confirm their future intention for the operation of the

Trust.

11.12 Following the completion of the new school building the existing sites would be

deemed as surplus to requirements. It is anticipated that any proceeds from the

disposal of surplus sites would be used to contribute to the overall costs of the new

school building.

12. The proposal in detail description and rationale

12.1 Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible

educational provision for children and young people. This proposal has been

developed in line with:

a. the Council’s commitment to ‘Modernising Education’;

b. the School Effectiveness Framework’s aim of enabling all children and young

people to develop their full potential; and

c. the Welsh Assembly’s 21
st

Century Schools Programme to improve school

buildings and facilities.

12.2 There are a number of issues facing both schools that could impact on their ability

to sustain educational standards and experiences into the future.

Educational case for change

12.3 Financial constraints limit the capacity of small secondary schools to implement

senior and middle leadership structures that meet the requirements of teachers

pay and conditions. The Current Proposal would see the development of

leadership and management structures, across both schools, to provide increased

opportunities for staff development and progression.

Page 154



34

12.4 The Current Proposal will offer greater opportunities for the two schools to work

together to improve staff expertise that will lead to raising standards. For example:

a. Teachers can work together to plan and prepare high quality lessons and

standardise assessment; and

b. Peer observation of the best teachers lessons to develop consistently high

teaching practice.

12.5 A larger school will provide the opportunity for targeted support and capacity for

smaller groups of pupils who are in need of extra support; including greater

capacity for more able and talented pupils.

12.6 The Current Proposal will offer pupils a wider range of high quality courses at key

stage 4 more effectively to address the statutory requirements of the 14 19

Learning and Skills Measure
xi
. It is extremely difficult for small secondary schools to

meet the statutory requirement of over 30 academic and vocational courses at

GCSE/Level 2.

12.7 The two schools find it difficult to offer pupils a broad range of experiences in

physical education; neither school has adequate indoor or outdoor sports facilities

for pupils and the local community.

12.8 Facilities for Design Technology are unsatisfactory; they are housed in either mobile

accommodation or old and ill equipped workshops that don’t meet the needs of

the national curriculum or examination requirements.

12.9 The quality of teaching and learning is compromised in both schools by classrooms

that are too small, have insufficient natural light and are poorly ventilated. There

are areas in both schools with corridors and stairs that are too narrow to allow

pupils to move around easily and there are too few spaces for breakout sessions,

mentoring, social spaces as well as ICT teaching and storage.

12.10 All of the matters referred to in paragraphs 12.3 – 12.9 above can be improved

upon significantly by a combination of the First and Second Phases.

Adequacy of existing school buildings and sites

12.11 The condition of both schools was considered poor when the all Wales survey was

undertaken in 2009 as part of the preparation for the 21
st

Century Schools

Programme. The Council has clear proposals to improve the other 2 schools in

Denbighshire classed as poor: Rhyl High School and Ysgol Glan Clwyd. The planned

investment for the faith sector would complete this initial stage of investment in

secondary provision.

12.12 The St Brigid’s School site relies very heavily on mobile accommodation to deliver

the curriculum. At present there are 2 mobile classrooms in use for the Primary age

Page 155



35

group and 9 units for the Secondary age group. In context these 11 units represent

almost a quarter of all mobiles in use across Denbighshire. A number of these

units, which should be considered as a temporary provision to overcome short term

difficulties whilst planned investment occurs, have been in use for over 10 years.

12.13 Access to Physical Education provision has significant barriers at both existing

schools. The playing fields for Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School are

located approximately a mile away on Ffordd Derwen; which has an impact on

delivering this element of the curriculum. The main playing fields area for St

Brigid’s School is across the A543 Mold to Denbigh road which poses issues for

accessibility and safety; particularly for younger pupils. There is also no dedicated

main sports hall facility at either school as in both cases the main hall is used for all

elements of school life.

12.14 Clearly both sites, and in particular the St Brigid’s School site, as a consequence of

the heavy reliance on mobile accommodation, are in need of significant investment

to enable both schools to provide a learning environment fit for purpose to meet

the requirements of the Welsh Government’s 21
st

Century Schools Programme.

Against the competing needs of all other 55 Denbighshire schools, the council is

firmly of the view that investing significant sums in two small schools (in the

context of secondary provision) would not represent an effective use of resources.

Without expansion in the size of either school such a proposal would not address

concerns over sustainability.

13. Creating and maintaining the right ethos

13.1 During the informal consultation, parents from both schools expressed reservations

over the potential increase in the size of any new school which may emerge from

this Current Proposal.

13.2 The main concerns expressed, particularly by the parents of pupils from St Brigid’s

School pupils, were the loss of the ethos of the school, the loss of an all through

school, the loss of a small school environment and the loss of a semi rural inspiring

teaching environment
xii

.

13.3 During the First Phase, as the provision will be on the two existing sites, it will be

possible for the ethos of both former schools to be retained. However, as the two

sites will be connected by being part of the same school, each will have the

opportunity to learn from the other; the best parts of the ethos of each former

school may be shared and benefited from.

Page 156



36

13.4 Denbighshire County Council is of the view that the Second Phase would, through

the design of the school, maintain the environment of a small school in a semi rural

setting whilst the ethos of the school is drawn from the Governors, Teaching Staff,

Pupils and the learning environment. The opportunity for both schools to

contribute and develop a similar caring environment, whilst ensuring that the

strengths of both schools can be developed within modern teaching facilities is an

opportunity to be explored with all parties during this formal consultation period.

14. Admission arrangements for the New Dual Site Faith School

14.1 At present there are differences in the admission arrangements for Blessed Edward

Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School; particularly around the use of

entry examinations at St Brigid’s School for an element of the intake to Year 7. The

New Dual Site Faith School would have a unified approach to admission

arrangements and intake arrangements. There would be no element of selection

via the use of examinations as part of these arrangements.

14.2 The suggested admission arrangements for the New Dual Site Faith School will be

based upon a new policy to be developed in a partnership between Denbighshire

County Council, the Church in Wales and Catholic Diocesan authorities and St

Brigid’s Trust. The entry of children and young people into the New Dual Site Faith

School and the application for places will be controlled and administered initially by

the Temporary Governing Body and subsequently by the Governing Body.

15. How will the final site location be determined?

15.1 The final site location for the Single Site Faith School, which will emerge from the

Second Phase, will be carefully considered by Promoters.

15.2 In the first instance, the difficulties in expanding both current school sites within

the existing boundaries to accommodate all pupils attending both schools have

been acknowledged; particularly during the informal consultation exercise
xiii

.

15.3 In view of the distance between both existing schools it is acknowledged that a

combined site would provide problematic and may cause difficulties for some

parents. On balance the Council is of the view that a faith secondary presence is an

important option for parents to maintain diversity of choice: however, as stated in

paragraph 12.14 above, retaining two sites is not an acceptable long term option.

15.4 The first priority, in considering a new single location, has been to ensure, where

appropriate, it can be accessible to a large percentage of current and future pupils.

The search area has initially focussed on the area to the north of the A55 as

approximately 65% of the current joint school population live in this area.

15.5 A number of potential locations have been identified on the outskirts of

Bodelwyddan, Rhuddlan, Rhyl, and St Asaph and initial desktop feasibility work has

Page 157



37

been undertaken to assess the viability of such sites. This initial work has

highlighted a preferred site in the Rhuddlan area.

15.6 More detailed feasibility work will be progressed at a later date to determine a

preferred location which will enable the Promoters to enter into any negotiations

which may be required with any third parties regarding land purchases etc.

15.7 As stated above in paragraph 1.3 above, there will be a separate formal

consultation on any proposal as the location of a Single Site Faith School will

require formal statutory proposals to be published.

16. What are the transport implications of this proposal?

Dual site

16.1 There will be no initial implications in terms of transport for pupils arising from the

Current Proposal. All pupils currently transported to Blessed Edward Jones Catholic

High School and St Brigid’s School who qualify for ‘Home to School Transport’

would continue to be transported free of charge to the Rhyl and Denbigh sites of

the New Dual Site Faith School; subject to parental preference.

16.2 At present the current costs for ‘Home to School Transport’ for the two schools are:

£49,400 per annum for Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and £79,657 per

annum for St Brigid’s School.

Following move to a single site

16.3 Denbighshire County Council anticipates that, following completion of the First

Phase, the majority of pupils attending the Denbigh and Rhyl sites of the New Dual

Site Faith School would transfer to the Single Site Faith School; possibly in the

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area.

16.4 Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for

pupils who live more than 3 miles from their nearest suitable school
xiv

.

16.5 The Council has recognised that the majority of pupils currently attending Blessed

Edward Jones Catholic High School would not be eligible for free transport should

the Single Site Faith School be located in the Rhuddlan area. If the Rhuddlan area is

chosen for Single Site Faith School, the council will examine the scope for

discretionary free transportation for pupils of the New Dual Site Faith School who

remain on the roll when the change of site takes place for a period of 5 years.

16.6 Should the new school be sited in the Bodelwyddan area it is anticipated that the

majority of current pupils for Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St

Page 158



38

Brigid’s School would be eligible for free ‘Home to School Transport’. Accordingly

there would be no consideration of discretionary free transport.

16.7 In view of what is likely to be a long timescale between the Current Proposal being

approved and a new site becoming operational, it is difficult to estimate likely costs

implications in respect of transport budgets. During the possible 6 years (for which

the New Dual Site Faith School may operate until the Second Phase is completed),

there will be a range of variables which will impact on any modelling, including

changes in pupil numbers, transport costs etc. This work will be progressed as part

of the process to determine a preferred site for the new Single Site Faith School.

17. What are the staffing implications of this proposal?

17.1 Should the Current Proposal be implemented, the New Dual Site Faith School

would have only one Headteacher. The Temporary Governing Body of the New

Dual Site Faith School would need to appoint the Headteacher and this could

involve national advertisements or an internal appointment.

17.2 The Promoters, with agreement from the Temporary Governing Body, would apply

appropriate HR policies to reassure and clarify the position of staff.

17.3 A staffing structure would need to be developed for the New Dual Site Faith School

taking into account a number of factors including operating initially on two sites,

delivering the curriculum, class sizes and budget implications.

17.4 While the New Dual Site Faith School operates on two sites the council does not

anticipate any major changes to the existing staffing structures other than the

Headteacher and other leadership positions. However, final decisions regarding the

new staffing structure would be taken by the Temporary Governing Body and the

new Headteacher.

17.5 The council will recommend to the Temporary Governing Body that all teaching and

associate staff posts for the New Dual Site Faith School should be “ring fenced” to

the staff within the existing two schools.

17.6 As part of this formal consultation process there will be full consultation with all

members of staff and the appropriate teaching unions.

18. What are the financial implications of this proposal?

18.1 The funding for individual schools within Denbighshire is apportioned by the School

Budget Formula which was revised and implemented for the 2013/14 financial year.

The formula provides funding based on seven strategic elements; namely

curriculum, social deprivation and inclusion, additional learning needs, welsh

language, premises, sustainability and business support. At present all schools

Page 159



39

budgets are derived from the formula which provides funding predominately

through lump sums or payments which are varied in relation to individual school

factors. These include number of pupils, floor sizes, free school meal entitlement,

number of ‘statemented’ or additional learning needs pupils etc. In a number of

instances these may vary on an annual basis so any predictions can only be

provided on known factors and within agreed formulas.

Dual Site

18.2 It is estimated that the initial annual revenue savings from the closure of the two

schools and opening of the New Dual Site Faith School may be approximately £379k

each year. These savings would occur primarily as the school would be funded as a

single school. The School Budget Formula provides a range of lump sums per school

and by the nature of amalgamation and the creation of a single school these

payments would no longer be applicable. This estimate is also based on the current

proposals for a further revision to the Schools Budget Formula to create a formula

for a Middle School which will reflect the official position of St Brigid’s as a single 3

18 school. It is important to note that historically St Brigid’s has been recognised as

a Primary and a Secondary School for the purposes of school funding. As the school

is now officially recognised by the Welsh Government as a middle school (3 18)

proposals are to be consulted on with the School’s Budget Forum which may

change how St Brigid’s is currently funded. This will take place outside of the review

of Faith Education. Therefore at this stage the figure of £379k is the maximum

saving that may occur.

18.3 Despite losing some lump sums there would be an entitlement to an additional

lump sum which is provided to all schools which are amalgamated and operating on

dual sites as per the current funding formula.

18.4 The savings would be retained within the education budget. The savings will be

recommended for use predominately to support the school as transitional funding

outside of the Funding Formula whilst the school is operating on 2 sites and also as

part of the investment in the Council’s 21
st

Schools Programme.

Following move to a single site

18.5 In view of the range of variables associated with the production of school budgets

and the move to a single site, at this stage it is very difficult to predict what the

overall impact would be for the finances of the Single Site Faith School. Therefore,

until a range of issues have been determined, including pupil numbers, likely floor

areas etc. it is difficult to predict accurately any cost implications.

19. How would any new school buildings work be financed?

19.1 The council, following discussions with representatives of the Diocesan Authorities

and the Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust, included proposals for a potential new

Page 160



40

school as part of its overall 21
st

Century Schools Programme to the Welsh

Government in December 2010.

19.2 All local authorities throughout Wales were invited to review their Band A
xv

submissions in November 2011 and the council provided the following text to

indicate its wish for the project to remain as a priority:

‘Faith Based Secondary Provision – Blessed Edward Jones RC and St Brigid’s

Estimated Cost £28.8m

The Council is committed to working with Diocesan authorities and local faith

schools to develop options for a new faith based secondary school to replace the

two existing schools. This project is seen as important to ensure community

cohesion following the completion of the Rhyl VI project and the commencement of

the Rhyl High project. Both schools fall below the minimum size for Secondary

Schools within the Policy Framework and the authority considers that both schools

would not be viable in the long term and that the present situation needs to be

reviewed to ensure the long term sustainability of faith based provision within

Denbighshire. As part of the discussions the option of a multi denomination school

serving both Catholic and Anglican communities on a regional basis has been

agreed. This vision is based on the joint facility serving an age range of 11 16 with

the capability of offering and hosting post 16 provision as part of a wider

partnership with other schools and educational institutions within Denbighshire. As

neither of the existing sites of Blessed Edward Jones in Rhyl and St Brigid’s in

Denbigh would be considered suitable for the new school for issues in relation to

location, alternative sites have been considered by the local authority and discussed

with denominational stakeholders. Discussions have also taken place over the

reinvestment of surplus sites to aid the funding position.

The authority has discussed with stakeholders provisional timescales for the project

moving forward, including timescales for progressing the relevant statutory notices

to close both schools and establish a new school, pending clarification of funding

and is minded to develop a phased approach to the development of the new facility.

An estimate of £28m is suggested at this stage and the costs would be reviewed

during submission of the Outline Business Case should authority to proceed be

approved.’

19.3 In considering this information it is important to note that this text was provided as

an outline concept in the knowledge that it would be subject to significant

consultation to deliver options which could be implemented. In reaffirming this

project Denbighshire County Council was of the view that not including the project

as a Band A proposal would have effectively precluded significant investment in

faith secondary investment for a considerable time period (until 2021) as it would

not have been part of the approved proposals.

19.4 The funding proposal prepared by the Council and submitted to the Welsh

Government was, therefore, based on what could be achieved in developing

Page 161



41

options for the future; what could be possible. Without that proposal and the

discussions between the Council and the Diocesan Authorities which followed it,

there would have been no outline vision for what could be achieved for secondary

faith education. It follows that without this, the Council would not have been able

to secure an outline commitment that the project may be funded. The Strategic

Outline Programme for Denbighshire including the faith based secondary provision

was approved in December 2011.

19.5 Should the proposal which is the subject matter of this formal consultation be

approved, the council would then commence the process of developing a Strategic

Outline Case for the new school being located on one site in parallel with future

school organisation proposals. Following this, the council would need to provide an

Outline Business Case and a Full Business Case to secure the funding which has

previously been approved in principle. The funding for the project will be provided

in partnership between the Welsh Government, Denbighshire County Council and

the other Promoters of the new school.

20. What are the disadvantages of the proposal?

20.1 If the Current Proposal is approved the New Dual Site Faith School will be located

on the existing school sites in Denbigh and Rhyl. Accordingly, the number and

impact of any initial disadvantages will be minimised. The process would be

managed to ensure that any disruption is kept to a minimum and should not impact

on the children’s education.

20.2 There would be a greater amount of disruption once the New Dual Site Faith School

moves to a single site. The new Governing Body, Headteacher and the Promoters

would seek to minimise any disruption and where possible provide continuity for

pupils and parents.

20.3 Upon the opening of the new Single Site Faith School it is anticipated that more

children will be required to travel further to school; subject to parental preference.

Transport would be provided in accordance with Denbighshire’s transport policy
xvi

to meet the needs of pupils and to ensure travelling times are not excessive.

20.4 There would also be implications for staff at the current Blessed Edward Jones

Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School should the proposals be progressed for

the development of a New Dual Site Faith School. The role of the Headteacher

would need to be carefully considered by the Temporary Governing Body. The

approach to appointments to the role of Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team

would be an issue for determination by the Temporary Governing Body which

would need to consider whether the positions should be advertised nationally or

appointed internally.

20.5 The new Headteacher and the Temporary Governing Body would be required to

consider the staffing structure for the New Dual Site Faith School. The Council

would work initially with the Temporary Governing Body (and then with the

Page 162



42

Governing Body) of the New Dual Site Faith School during these times and should

the need arise would work with the current members of staff to seek redeployment

opportunities.

21. Alternative Options

21.1 The Promoters have given careful consideration to a range of alternative options as

part of the development of the Current Proposal. In considering these options

reference has been made to the main investment objectives of the council’s 21
st

Century Schools Programme which are as follows:

a. Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that

will enable successful implementation of strategies for school improvement

and better educational outcomes;

b. Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and

cost effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and

c. A sustainable education system with all schools meeting a 21
st

Century

Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint.

21.2 The Promoters have also referred to the Critical Success Factors for this project.

The main options to have been considered are as follows:

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo;

Option 1.2 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic

High School and St Brigid’s School;

Option 1.3 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic

High School and St Brigid’s School, and replace all mobile units at St

Brigid’s School;

Option 1.4 Undertake rebuild of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and

St Brigid’s School; or

Option 1.5 Build new joint faith school.

21.3 The main advantages and disadvantages of each option are as follows.

Page 163



43

Option 1.1 Maintain Status Quo (Do nothing)

Advantages Disadvantages

This is the ‘cheap’ option as no additional

investment expenditure is required.

The poor condition of the buildings and

learning environment would not be

significantly improved.

Would not address existing deficiencies

with regard to existing gaps in provision,

particular regarding access to sports

facilities.

The two schools could face real issues

regarding long term sustainability in

regard to delivering the changing

curriculum.

There would be no progress for Faith

Secondary Education towards the

strategic aims for Modernising Education

in Denbighshire.

May not provide the opportunity for

widening access to education for Church

in Wales’ primary pupils.

Would not address issues regarding a

deficit of provision at St Brigid’s and the

surplus of places at Blessed Edward Jones

Catholic High School.

Option 1.2 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School

and St Brigid’s (Minimum)

Advantages Disadvantages

The reduced capital costs in respect of

addressing existing building maintenance

backlogs and addressing minor issues.

The poor condition of the buildings and

learning environment would not be

improved.

It would be straightforward to progress

with no changes required within school

organisation.

Would not address existing deficiencies

with regard to existing gaps in provision,

particular regarding access to sports

facilities.

The two schools could face real issues

regarding long term sustainability in

regard to delivering the changing

Page 164



44

curriculum.

There would be no progress for Faith

Secondary Education towards the

strategic aims for Modernising Education

in Denbighshire.

May not provide the opportunity for

widening access to education for Church

in Wales’ primary pupils.

Would not address issues regarding a

deficit of provision at St Brigid’s and the

surplus of places at Blessed Edward Jones

Catholic High School.

Option 1.3 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School

and St Brigid’s, and replace all mobile units at St Brigid’s (Minimum+)

Advantages Disadvantages

The reduced capital costs in respect of

addressing existing building maintenance

backlogs and addressing minor issues.

The poor condition of the buildings and

learning environment would not be

improved.

The removal of all mobile

accommodation at the St Brigid’s site at

Denbigh.

Would not address existing deficiencies

with regard to existing gaps in provision,

particular regarding access to sports

facilities.

It would be straightforward to progress

with no changes required within school

organisation.

The two schools could face real issues

regarding long term sustainability in

regard to delivering the changing

curriculum.

There would be no progress for Faith

Secondary Education towards the

strategic aims for Modernising Education

in Denbighshire.

May not provide the opportunity for

widening access to education for Church

in Wales’ primary pupils.

Would not address issues regarding a

deficit of provision at St Brigid’s and the

surplus of places at Blessed Edward Jones

Catholic High School.

Page 165



45

Option 1.4 Undertake rebuild of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s

School (Intermediate)

Advantages Disadvantages

Designing and constructing new fit for

purpose facilities would significantly

improve the learning environment for all

pupils.

The two schools could face real issues

regarding long term sustainability in

regard to delivering the changing

curriculum.

Would enable the schools capacity to be

amended to reflect the respective current

demand for Blessed Edward Jones

Catholic High School and St Brigid’s

School.

There would only be partial progress for

Faith Secondary Education towards the

strategic aims for Modernising Education

in Denbighshire.

Would not lead to any significant changes

in regard to school organisation

proposals with potential alterations

required to the capacity of St Brigid’s

School.

May not provide the opportunity for

widening access to education for Church

in Wales’ primary pupils.

Would not require amendments to pupil

travel arrangements.

The requirement to access further land

on both sites to address existing

deficiencies particular with regard to

access to sports.

Option 1.5 Build new joint faith school (Maximum)

Advantages Disadvantages

Designing and constructing new fit for

purpose facilities would significantly

improve the learning environment for all

pupils, including:

Improved ICT and Design

Technology teaching areas

Improved access to better sports

facilities

Flexible work spaces

More natural light

Improved circulation around the

school and better accessibility for

the purposes of the Equality Act

2010

Potential risk that parents choose an

alternative provision for non faith

reasons which leads to a reduction in

pupil numbers.

Bringing together the delivery of both

Page 166



46

schools to a single campus could yield

significant economies of scale.

This would allow for a joint faith

provision to be developed.

Remove the need to rely on mobile

accommodation.

Allow the issue of surplus and deficit to

be addressed.

A more central location for the majority

of current pupils.

21.4 The analysis of these options suggest to meet the investment objectives and critical

success factors that the option of building a new joint faith school should be

considered as the preferred option upon which an outline business case should be

developed in due course.

Analysis of Options against Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors

Option 1.1

Do nothing

Option 1.2

Minimum

Option 1.3

Minimum +

Option 1.4

Intermediate

Option 1.5

Maximum

Investment

objectives

1 Improved

Learning

Environment

x x ?

2 Greater

Economy –

Revenue

Implications

x x x x

2 Greater

Economy –

Capital

? ? ? ? ?

3 Sustainable

Education

system

x x x

Critical success

factors

CSF1 Improved

attainment and

performance

? ? ? ? ?

Page 167



47

21.5 In considering the options both 1.4 and 1.5 could be seen to deliver an improved

learning environment and address many of the shortfalls identified regarding

building provision. However, maintaining the status quo, albeit in an improved

provision will not improve the overall sustainability of faith provision.

21.6 The Promoters are of the view that there are advantages in moving the Current

Proposal forward on a phased approach i.e. amalgamation on both sites prior to

the building of the Single Site Faith School. The interim advantages around

improved leadership and management will be gained in a shorter timescale whilst

the phased approach will also provide an opportunity for the New Dual Site Faith

School to take full ownership of the project to build the new facility and to ensure a

smooth transition between the status quo and the Single Site Faith School.

21.7 In considering the options for a new school careful consideration was given to the

age range of the school. In particular during the informal consultation period many

St Brigid’s School parents spoke of their support for retaining a 3 18 provision.

21.8 Denbighshire County Council officers have undertaken research into the 3 18

model which has been implemented in other areas within Wales. Whilst strong

arguments exist, ultimately it has been agreed not to pursue this model as the

council would be unable to support full post 16 provision from a new joint faith

school in the north of Denbighshire because this should be delivered in partnership

with existing providers. The collective view is to explore the age range for the

Single Site Faith School during the Second Phase.

22. Explanation of the statutory process

22.1 In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council

is required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of the Welsh

Government and a statutory Code.

CSF2 Improved

school

condition and

suitability

x x ?

CSF3 Reduction

in surplus

places

x x x ?

CSF4 Improved

access to

education for

faith education

x x x x

Summary Discounted Discounted Discounted Possible Preferred

Page 168



48

22.2 The requirements are as follows:

a. Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal;

b. Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published

on the council’s website;

c. Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the ‘statutory notice’)

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy

of the consultation report and how to object:

i) on the council’s website;

ii) posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and

ii) by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents.

d. An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone

who wishes to object to the Current Proposal to do so;

e. Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved);

f. Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within

7 days of the date of determination of the Current Proposal.

This proposal is currently at Stage a.

22.3 Please note that any response provided to the current formal consultation will not

be regarded as an objection at Stage d above. This is because the Current Proposal

may change in response to the formal consultation.

22.4 Should the council agree to publish a statutory notice all interested parties will have

the opportunity to object if they so wish during the statutory objection period.

Consultees may submit a request during the objection period that a response

submitted at consultation stage should be treated as an objection.

22.5 Should the council agree to implement the Current Proposal having received

objections, it is possible for certain people to request that the matter be referred to

the Welsh Ministers for determination. Only, the Diocesan authorities, the

governing bodies of either school, the local authority of neighbouring counties with

schools which are likely to be affected by the Proposal, the Trustees of the St

Brigid’s Trust and a further education institution which is likely to be affected by the

Proposal may request such a referral.

23. Community and equality impact

23.1 The council has carried out assessments on the impact of the Current Proposal on

the local communities and people with protected characteristics under the Equality

Act 2010. As the Current Proposal, if implemented, will result in the Dual Site Faith

Page 169



49

School, there will be no change with regards to accessibility and equality or

community usage and benefit.

23.2 Further Equality and Community impact assessments will be carried out in respect

of the Second Phase.

24. Response Form

24.1 A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register

their wish to be notified of publication of the formal consultation report, appears

with this consultation document.

24.2 We would like to hear your views on the Current Proposal. You can let us have your

views in the following ways:

If you are accessing this form online, simply click on the following link to complete

the form by pressing here;

If you have received a hard copy of this document, simply complete the form and

send it to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council,

County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin LL15 1YN;

Alternatively, you can complete the form as above, scan it and email it to us at

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk; or

If you don’t have access to a scanner, simply send an email to the above address

with your responses, using the same numbering as that set out below.

Please let us have your response no later than Monday 22 July 2013. If you would

like us to acknowledge receipt of your response please provide your name and

address.

i
The consultation document can be found in the School Organisation & Modernising section.

ii
Formal Consultation Document for Children & Young People. This is available upon request from DCC

and/or from the DCC website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
iii

Section 29(1) School Standards and Framework Act 1998. It should be noted that this will be replaced by

Section 43(1) School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 later in 2013; Royal Assent has been

received for the 2013 Act but at the time of publication, this section has not yet come into force.
iv

Section 29(2) School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (the corresponding part of the 2013 Act is Section

43(2) but please see note iii above).
v

Section 28(2) School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (the corresponding part of the 2013 Act is Section

41(2) but please see note iii above)
vi

Modernising Education Framework available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting

the Council’s website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
vii

Informal Consultation Report available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting the

Council’s website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
viii

Copies of these letters and emails from people who gave relevant consents are available to view on the

DCC website in the School Organisation & Modernising section. All personal details have been removed from

the letters and emails.

Page 170



50

ix
The Estyn report relating to Blessed Edward Jones is available to read on the Council’s website in the

School Organisation & Modernising section.
x

The Estyn report relating to St Brigid’s is available to read on the Council’s website in the School

Organisation & Modernising section.
xi

Denbighshire County Council’s 14 – 19 Learning Skills Measure. Information on this is available on the

Council’s website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
xii

Details relating to this can be found in the Informal Consultation Report which is available on the Council’s

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
xiii

Details relating to this can be found in the Informal Consultation Report which is available on the Council’s

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
xiv

Details relating to this can be found in the Informal Consultation Report which is available on the Council’s

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
xiv

Details relating to this can be found in the Informal Consultation Report which is available on the Council’s

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
xv

The Welsh Government is making available the 21
st

Century Schools funding in 3 bands. Band A is the first

and will therefore be made available before the other two Bands. There is a link to the 21st Century Schools

website on the Council’s website in the School Organisation & Modernising section.
xvi

Reference the Transport Policy and relevant section.

Page 171



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal for a new joint faith based school

for North Denbighshire

Children's Version

Formal Consultation

Document

Formal Consultation

Document

P
age 173



WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat's hat's hat's hat's hat's happening?ppening?ppening?ppening?ppening?
We are from Denbighshire County Council
and our job is to make schools better.

We came to St Brigid's and Blessed
Edward Jones earlier this year to talk to
parents and to the school council.

We have a plan to improve the two

schools and want to tell you about it.

WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat will ct will ct will ct will ct will changhanghanghanghange?e?e?e?e?
The new school would have a

different name, you may have a

different uniform to wear and there

would be only one headteacher in

charge of  both parts of  the new

school.

The teachers and children at St

Brigid's and Blessed Edward Jones

would become part of  the same

school.

After about 3 years we will come

back and ask you if  you want us to

make a new school building.  This

would be bigger so it could fit

everybody in one place.  We are

thinking about this now and looking

for the right place to build it.

WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat is the plan?t is the plan?t is the plan?t is the plan?t is the plan?
We would like Blessed Edward Jones
and St Brigid's to become one school.

At first not very much would change.
There would be one school but it would
be in two places.

One part would be where St Brigid's is
now and the other would be where
Blessed Edward Jones is now.

It would probably be like this for the next

5 years.

P
age 174



Why arWhy arWhy arWhy arWhy are we we we we we aske aske aske aske asking ying ying ying ying you?ou?ou?ou?ou?
We want to ask you what you think about our

plan.  We will come to see your school council

again, like we did before, and listen to what

you have to say.

Why do wWhy do wWhy do wWhy do wWhy do we think thingse think thingse think thingse think thingse think things

need to cneed to cneed to cneed to cneed to changhanghanghanghange?e?e?e?e?
The two schools are already good, but they could

be even better.  We think a new school will be a

much better place to learn.

We don't want things to change too quickly and

that's why we would like the two schools to join

together at first without the pupils having to

move.  If  that works then we can think about

making a brand new school building and bringing

everyone together.  A new building will have

better places to do PEPEPEPEPE, computercomputercomputercomputercomputersssss and arararararttttt.

P
age 175



How long will things takHow long will things takHow long will things takHow long will things takHow long will things take?e?e?e?e?

3 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 2013

OctoberOctoberOctoberOctoberOctober 20132013201320132013

SeSeSeSeSeptemberptemberptemberptemberptember 20142014201420142014

SummerSummerSummerSummerSummer 20152015201520152015

SummerSummerSummerSummerSummer 20172017201720172017

SeSeSeSeSeptemberptemberptemberptemberptember 20192019201920192019

3 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 20133 June - 22 July 2013

OctoberOctoberOctoberOctoberOctober 20132013201320132013

SeSeSeSeSeptemberptemberptemberptemberptember 20142014201420142014

SummerSummerSummerSummerSummer 20152015201520152015

SummerSummerSummerSummerSummer 20172017201720172017

SeSeSeSeSeptemberptemberptemberptemberptember 20192019201920192019

People telling us what they think

Telling everyone what we've decided to do

The new school on the two sites in Denbigh and Rhyl

People telling us what they think about a new school building

Making the new school building in a different place

Opening the new school building

People telling us what they think

Telling everyone what we've decided to do

The new school on the two sites in Denbigh and Rhyl

People telling us what they think about a new school building

Making the new school building in a different place

Opening the new school building

P
age 176



WWWWWant to fant to fant to fant to fant to find out morind out morind out morind out morind out more?e?e?e?e?

We have made this short and written in a

way we hope you understand.  We have sent

a much bigger document to your parents,

teachers and other people.

The bigger document can be found on our

website: www.denbighshire.gov.uk/

modernisingeducation

You can write down anything you want to say and post it to us at :-

Modernising EducaModernising EducaModernising EducaModernising EducaModernising Education Prtion Prtion Prtion Prtion Progogogogogrrrrramme Tamme Tamme Tamme Tamme Teameameameameam

DenbighshirDenbighshirDenbighshirDenbighshirDenbighshire County Councile County Councile County Councile County Councile County Council

County HallCounty HallCounty HallCounty HallCounty Hall

WWWWWynnstaynnstaynnstaynnstaynnstay Ry Ry Ry Ry Roadoadoadoadoad

RRRRRuthinuthinuthinuthinuthin

LL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YN

WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat do yt do yt do yt do yt do you think?ou think?ou think?ou think?ou think?

If  you prefer to use email, send your thoughts to:-

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk

P
age 177



Remember to tell us:-

• Which school you go to now

• How you feel about St Brigid's and Blessed Edward Jones becoming 1 school in 2 parts.

• How you would feel if  they became 1 new school on a new site with a new building

• Is there anything else you would like to see happen instead of  what we are planning?

Please send your comments to us by MondaMondaMondaMondaMonday 22 July 2013y 22 July 2013y 22 July 2013y 22 July 2013y 22 July 2013.  We won't be able to accept

anything coming in after then.

P
age 178



Proposal for a new joint faith based school

for North Denbighshire

Young Persons’ Version

Formal Consultation

Document

Formal Consultation

Document

P
age 179



So what's the plan?So what's the plan?So what's the plan?So what's the plan?So what's the plan?

We would like Blessed Edward Jones and St

Brigid's to become one school.  We think this

is the best way to provide an excellent

standard of education for many years to

come.  At first, and for around 5 to 6 years,

the new school would be on the same sites

as the two schools are now.  So for quite a

few years, not much would really change.  If

you go to school in Denbigh now, you would

carry on going to school there.  If you are in

Rhyl now, you would stay there.

You may remember the meetings earlier this

year at your school when your parents had

the chance to say what they thought.  Also,

people from the council came to talk to your

school council.

The council has come up with a plan to

change your school and wants to ask you

about it.

What's happening?What's happening?What's happening?What's happening?What's happening?

Denbighshire County Council and the people

who run St Brigid's and Blessed Edward

Jones have been thinking about changing

faith education for a few years now.  We

would like to make sure that the quality of

education is as good as it can be for years to

come.

P
age 180



We will come to see your school

council again, like we did before, as

we value your opinion.  We would

also like you to answer the questions

on the back page.

After a few years we would ask you whether

you think we should build a new school.  We

are thinking about this already and, if it

happens, the new school would probably be

built in Bodelwyddan or Rhuddlan.  It will

only fit in around 600 - 750 pupils, so it won't

be huge.  It will be bigger than your school is

now but not as big as some of the other

secondary schools.

The new school would have a different name,

you may have a different uniform and the

two sites would have the same headteacher.

The teachers and pupils at the two current

schools would become part of the same

school.  This means that everyone could

learn from one another and share all the

good things about the two schools.

What will change?What will change?What will change?What will change?What will change?

Why are we asking yWhy are we asking yWhy are we asking yWhy are we asking yWhy are we asking yououououou

aaaaabout it?bout it?bout it?bout it?bout it?

We aren't just asking you: we are asking

your parents, teachers and the parents and

teachers at other schools in the area and, in

fact, lots of other people who are interested

in our schools.  The Welsh Government

wants us to ask you about the plan we

have.  This gives you the chance to tell us

what you think and gives us the chance to

listen.

P
age 181



We don't want to make big changes too

quickly.  That's why we are planning to

bring the two schools together on the

existing sites at first.  This will give you and

everyone else time to get to know one

another and for the new school to take

shape.  Once that happens, we will ask

you again to tell us whether you would like

a new school building.

The two schools are already good, but they

could be even better.

We have the chance to create a new

school with much better classrooms,

sports facilities and learning resources.

We can provide up to date ICT, Art and

Design Technology facilities.  We think

that a new school will be a much better

place to learn.

Why do we think thingsWhy do we think thingsWhy do we think thingsWhy do we think thingsWhy do we think things

need to change?need to change?need to change?need to change?need to change?

Why do we think thingsWhy do we think thingsWhy do we think thingsWhy do we think thingsWhy do we think things

need to change?need to change?need to change?need to change?need to change?

P
age 182



HoHoHoHoHow long will thingsw long will thingsw long will thingsw long will thingsw long will things

take?take?take?take?take?

HoHoHoHoHow long will thingsw long will thingsw long will thingsw long will thingsw long will things

take?take?take?take?take?

3 June - 22 July 2013

October 2013

September 2014

Summer 2015

Summer 2017

September 2019

Getting everyone's views

Telling everyone what we've decided to do

The new school on the two sites in Denbigh and Rhyl

Getting everyone's views on a new school building

Constructing the new school

Opening the new school building

Getting everyone's views

Telling everyone what we've decided to do

The new school on the two sites in Denbigh and Rhyl

Getting everyone's views on a new school building

Constructing the new school

Opening the new school building

P
age 183



Want to find out more?Want to find out more?Want to find out more?Want to find out more?Want to find out more?

This is a summary of the full Formal Consultation

Document.  You can find the full version plus loads

of facts and figures on our website:-

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation

You've heard what we think - now we want to know what you think.

You can write down your answers to the questions on the back page,

tear it off and post it to us at:-

Modernising Education Programme Team

Denbighshire County Council

County Hall

Wynnstay Road

Ruthin

LL15 1YN

What do yWhat do yWhat do yWhat do yWhat do you think?ou think?ou think?ou think?ou think?

P
age 184



If you prefer to use email, send your answers to modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk

• Which school do you go to now?

• How do you feel about St Brigid's and Blessed Edward Jones becoming 1 school on 2 sites?

• How would you feel if they became 1 school on a new site with a new building?

• Is there anything else you would like to see happen instead of what we are planning?

If you want to let us know how you feel about the plan, you have to send your comments to us

by Monday 22 July 2013.  We won't be able to accept anything coming in after then.

P
age 185



P
age 186

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Emails Received- Redacted 

REDACTED 
 
 
 
 
Subject :  new faith school proposal 
 
Hello,  
   
I am writing because both my daughters attend St Brigid’s school in Denbigh. One is in year 
REDACTED and one year REDACTED.  
This week, we have received through the post the formal consultation document for the proposal 
to close this school and merge with Blessed Edward Jones school.  
To say that we are alarmed by this is an understatement, I’m sure it will come as no surprise to 
you to learn that both my girls love the school and are very happy there, so the talk of the school 
closing is very unsettling for them.  
   
I have read through the document twice now and have some questions and I wondered if I might 
direct them through you if possible.  
   
1)      Looking at the tables of % of pupils attaining high grades, St Brigid’s is consistently higher 
than any other school in Denbighshire. This is despite the fact that it is as not as well funded as 
others. Surely this should be celebrated as a ‘model’ school, not closed.  
2)      The document keeps referring to unsustainability, where is the evidence to support these 
statements? It refers to poorly lit mobile classrooms, well I was educated in mobile classrooms 
and I turned out ok. Why can’t you just improve or modernise the existing site? Think how much 
better it could be with more funding.  
3)      Why is there no provision for a 6th form in the new joint school? We have high hopes for 
both our daughters and that includes a school with a 6th form. Why would you build a new school 
and stop at age 16?  
4)      There is no mention of joint faith primary provision in the new school.  
5)      What will the funding (per pupil) be if phase 1 goes ahead? At present Blessed Edward 
Jones gets more per pupil than St Brigid’s, what would the new figure be?  
6)      Where is the evidence to support that there will be money to build a new school? You 
mention that the sale of the existing 2 schools can help fund it, but isn’t the land at Denbigh 
owned by the St Brigid’s trust and not the council?  
   
I feel we are being asked to take a massive gamble that there will be funding available to build 
this new school, and if that new build is 6 years away what is the point of merging the schools 
now? Surely you should allow each school to carry on.  
In my opinion, you should spend some of your money improving the facilities at St Brigid’s 
school, and increase the availability of places there, as there are plenty of parents I am aware of 
who would like their children to go there, we should grow the school in Denbigh.  
I am also aware that Rhyl High is being re-developed and a new building is surely going to 
attract pupils from Blessed Edward Jones.  
One school here is thriving and one is clearly not.  
   
St Brigid’s has a wonderful ethos and family feel to it, closing it and re-building it in Rhuddlan or 
Bodelwyddan (with no 6th form and no joint faith primary) will destroy all that.  
   
I hope all this is not just an exercise of someone in the council taking a dislike to St Brigid’s and 
wanting it closed  
   

Page 213



If you cant provide answers to these points, I can’t see how we could support such a proposal.  
   
Kind Regards  
 
REDACTED 
 
 

REDACTED  
  

 
  
Dear REDACTED, 
  
thank you for your email dated 17th June. 
In response, i just have a couple of points to make if i may. 
  
firstly, yes.. i am happy for my comments to be passed on, published, included on your forums. 
  
secondly, i am more than a little surprised by your email. 
I emailed your department on the 6th June and we are now approaching two weeks since that 
date and i still havent been given answers to the points i raised. 
I dont think i am asking particularly difficult questions in my email, but the slowness to respond 
with a thought through argument leads me to believe that you havent got those particular 
answers or either the evidence to hand to support the sweeping statements in your initial 
proposal. 
  
Surely Denbighshire county council have not done all this on a whim, surely you wouldnt have 
gone through the process of upsetting and unsettling all the students and parents of both 
schools without actually having answers prepared to the simplest of questions. 
  
your automatic email informed me that i should expect a answer within ten working days - that 
day is thursday - and i will be expecting a suitable reply by then. 
i have copied in my councillor - Mr Bill Cowie - as i feel that he needs to be aware that our 
questions remain unanswered. 
  
I am looking forward to your reply 
Kind Regards 
REDACTED 
 

Dear Sirs 
Formal Consultation Document - Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based School for North 
Denbighshire  
 
Attached to this e-mail, there is an electronic version of the response document, but I need to 
put on record the following comments in support of that document and which I would like to take 
precedence over the attachment. 
I congratulate the Modernising Education Team for a well-constructed and comprehensive 
report. As such, I completely understand the issues involved and recognise the need for change. 
However, please note the following. 

1. Section 2.1 of the document confirms that this consultation only applies to phase one of 
the proposals. Section 2.4 suggests that another consultation regarding a single site will 
take place in 2015. Both these points need strengthening for clarification. 

2. 2.4 makes reference to a “Project” to commence in 2016/17 to commence building in 
regard to a single site school. Most consultees will read this as the beginning of a 
physical build programme. However, a “project” might well mean the beginning of the 

Page 214



design, specification and tendering programme which alone might take two years and 
which could well take the completion of a new building into potentially 2019/20. Parents, 
staff and pupils need to receive a more realistic time schedule. After all, if these dates 
prove to more realistic, then all current pupils at St Brigids, will by then have moved on 
anyway. This could significantly affect the response received. 

3. Reference is made to funding, yet this issue remains somewhat ambiguous. How certain 
is it that funds will become available for phase 2? If there is some doubt about this, then 
it seems unreasonable to put staff, pupils and parents through the stress of this 
programme. 

4. Great detail is given in the document regarding the current and projected pupil numbers 
an achievement levels of the schools in the area concerned. However, scant if any 
reference is made to Welsh medium delivery such as Ysgol Glan Clwyd. It seems that an 
assumption has been made that parents choose schools based on either fervent faith or 
fervent language preference, whilst neither of these might be true. If Rhyl and Prestatyn 
High Schools show significant recovery, then the pupil numbers in Ysgol Glan Clwyd 
might well drop.  Likewise, faith based schools may be affected by outputs and 
outcomes. 

5. A major concern of parents is that whilst uncertainty surrounds the future of St Brigids, it 
will become increasingly difficult to recruit and retain key staff members. This could result 
in an adverse quality of education for current pupils. This latter point is my greatest 
concern. 

 
 

REDACTED 
 
 
Hello, 
  
it's now been 10 business days since i emailed you with some concerns and questions regarding 
the proposal for a new joint faith school in Denbighshire. 
I dont consider an email back saying 'i will respond as soon as i can' as an acceptable answer to 
comply with your own target of answering our concerns within 10 working days. 
As you have stated yourself, timescales are extremely tight and i find your reluctance to reply 
worrying to say the least. 
i consider this lack of response a massive failure on your part to alleviate some genuine 
anxieties we have regarding both our daughters education. 
We get one opportunity to educate my girls and i dont want DCC incompetence to ruin it. 
  
please can you give me the answers i seek before the end of the week (i.e. tomorrow) 
  
Kind Regards 
REDACTED 
 
 

 
REDACTED 
 
   
To the local councillors, Local authority, community councils, MP's and AM's, Denbigh Free 
Press & the Daily Post 
  
I am writing to you as a concerned parent and teacher at St. Brigids School in Denbigh. 
  
I have read both the documents you have sent me as a parent and teacher and must state my 
huge opposition to any proposed changes. 

Page 215



  
I have taken some parts of the doc you have sent me and have expressed next to it - my specific 
concern. 
  
I have also decided to write this email anonymously for fear of reprisals.  
  
Firstly i would like to take issue with the document sent to teachers: 
  
My first question is to ask - what is the definition of consultation? the dictionary states "to seek 
advice or information from; ask guidance from" as well as "to have regard for (a person's 
interest, convenience, etc.) in making plans". 
  
However, my concern is that this is not a consultation. I have heard from reliable sources and 
fear that DCC is simply paying lip service to the 'decision' in March and that the decision has 
already been made. 
  
If this is not the case, then DCC will have no issue making the decision meeting a public one, 
allowing the results of the consultation be published? (ie- how many are for/against the 
proposals) 
  
Next i would like to take issue with the document itself: 
  
With it comes the desire to offer the highest standards of education and to ensure good 
outcomes for all young people in Wales. (page 2) 
  
This is simply not what will happen. the merger of a good school with excellent GCSE results 
with a poor school - will not as you hope bring up the lower end. All that will happen is that the 
lower end will pull the top down. That is not good outcomes for our pupils. My Children included. 
  
Also on page two you state:  
  
a real need for further educational provision in the north Denbighshire area 
  
Again you are incorrect.  This is nothing but biased propaganda. Where is the need for real 
change when the parents, teachers, community and most importantly the students love the 
existing school and site as it is. This document is far too one sided and i would suggest that the 
person who wrote it is clearly bias.  
  
Page 3 you state:  
  
we have to change the widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full 
potential. 
  
Why do you need to change a successful school? that simply makes no sense.  
  
The opportunities here a plentiful. The pupils have a vast amount of GCSE's available, many 
continue these with excellent opportunities in A Level. This has clearly helped pupils reach their 
potential as a huge number have gone to university, including Oxbridge. This is the education 
they receive in a caring community school. 
  
Where i agree on is the need to change the school buildings. Yes the mobiles here cannot last 
forever. However, I believe that the money it costs to hold a consultation, purchase the land and 
build the school could be dramatically reduced by improve our and Blessed Edward Jones 
existing sites. 
  

Page 216



Your incorrect and inaccurate information continues on the lower side of page 3: 
  
 The Welsh Government have made it clear that local authorities will not be able to attract capital 
funding unless the issue of empty places is dealt with. 
  
This school is not empty. We infact are above the number we are said to be able to deal with. All 
that this consultation is doing is harming our numbers for September 2013. Parents will not bring 
their pupils here as they fear closure. This highlights an underlying issue that many parents will 
simply withdraw thier children from any future school taking them elsewhere. Perhaps thats what 
DCC wants. Brigids out of the way with other schools growing in capacity? 
  
Page 4 is simply the biggest pile of propaganda and lies i have ever read. 
  
The policy considers that “It is not feasible for a secondary school with fewer than 600 pupils 
(plus 150 in 6th Form where appropriate) to provide the facilities described in the 21 
Century Secondary Schools vision. Therefore the Council accepts that the minimum size for 
any new secondary school will be a four form entry school providing 600 11-16 places  
Concerningly this sounds like your minds are mind up. You say it is not feasible for less than 600 
pupils. Why? We are not broke. Why is there a need to fix us ? 
You always mention that any new school will be for 11-16. What about the successful Primary 
School and Sixth form?  
  
 
Any review of secondary school provision will take into consideration the Learning Pathways 
available to pupils within the area. 
  
As previously discussed. There are huge amounts of pathways available. Moreover, school is 
not just about learning. Parents sent pupils here for the community spirit and caring enviroment, 
only a small 3 - 18 school can provide! 
  
Blessed Edward Jones - January 2012 served 480 pupils against an overall capacity of 659 
places 
  
You have to ask why? 169 extra spaces. We however, have capacity for 344 with 374 pupils 
here - over by 30. Again. Please hink and ask yourselves why that is. 
  
A further prolem arises from these numbers. If you add together Blessed Ed Jones numbers 
480, with our 11-16 numbers, 286, it equals 766 pupils. That would mean 766 pupils in total. 
This will not fit your 600 pupils number and therefore, before the school is even built, you are 
excluding 166 pupils - hardly 21st Cenury inclusion? Clearly a warm welcome to some of ous.  
  
Lastly on your most horrendous page of blatant lies and propaganda is: 
  
The Council considers that there are significant challenges which both schools would need to 
address to continue to maintain existing provision in the short to medium term should no change 
occur. In particular the challenges surrounding leadership and management of two small 
secondary schools, the adequacy of existing facilties to deliver both the existing 
curriculum and the requirements of the changing curriculum and the financial implications for 
both schools as a consequence of their current size should not be underestimated. 
  
Firstly, we have a new head. She should be given a chance to work her magic here and see 
what she can do..otherwise, what was the point of hiring her and paying her a salary, with the 
costs of advertisment? Harly making sound financial calcuations? 
  
Secodly, you say it all. "Fiancial Implications". So thats what this is all about...Money. Your claim 

Page 217



its about provision, inclusion and pathways is a lie. Its just about money. Fnally, your choice of 
words..."consequence should not be underestimated"...sounds incredibly threatening. Once 
again, I asked. Is this a consultation or lip service? 
  
Page 5: 
  
You start by talking of Pupils, parents, governors and staff. The majority of these stakeholders, 
in BOTH schools are against this. Last time i checked we lived in a democracy. I sincerely hope 
you follow democratic law and follow the word of the people. Will all of our views really be 
listened to? Can we have your word on this? 
  
Page 6: 
  
You attempt to make some comparisons between the school to show common ground. 
However, here you contradict yourself:  
  
 However the most recent inspection of both schools were undertaken using different inspection 
frameworks which impacts on the validity of the findings as a comparator of standards. 
  
Therefore the information you use is irrelevant? Whats more you discuss St Brigids as a school 
that out performs the Denbigh and Welsh averages in GCSE performance. We are well above 
that. Why on earth would you want to change this? Why on earth would you then try and mix us 
with a school that gains 39%? well below the naional ad welsh average? it makes no sense. 
  
Whats more our next Estyn inspection is not due until 2016. Why not see how that goes before 
making your minds up? 
  
Page 8: 
  
You discuss your inclusive agenda.  Your describe your ideas in bullet form. However, what you 
dont say is that all of those ideas CAN be done WITHOUT a merger. You can just improve each 
site - cant you? 
  
For the 2011/12 financial year the total delegated budget for Blessed Edward Jones was 
£2.107m against an net expenditure of £2.163m. This equated to an in year deficit of £55k. For 
St Brigid’s the total delegated budget was £1.512m against a net expenditure of £1.468m, which 
equated to an in year surplus of £44k. 
  
Based on the above i wanted to confirm. You wish to merge a school who makes a loss, with a 
school that is financially prudent? Why should we be punish for balancing the books? Moreover, 
assuming you push for this merger, can you tell me what the proposed budget would be? 3.575 
million is the two together? Or as i believe it would be - will it be less? Again sugesting this is a 
financial exercise not one focused on the education & prospects of pupils. 
  
Page 9: 
The findings for both Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigids found the schools as Category C – 
“Poor”. 
  
We all accept the building is not perfect. But...the pupils are safe and happy here. Isnt that the 
point? Have you spoken to them? These are the people that really matter. I have a form in the 
school, of which 24 out of 28 suggested they would not go to any new school. Why build a 
school that pupils wont attend? 
  
My two final points focus on the map (page 11) and your final points. On page 11 you illustrate 
the home locations of our pupils. THis is written negatively. However, how can this be? It proves 

Page 218



pupils come far and wide to join our family. We have an excellent reputation with great results. 
This is why my children come here! 
  
Lastly i would like to state what is the balance. The balance between what the council wants 
versus what the staff, pupils, Parents, governors, trustees & community wants. 
  
I hope you listen carefully to our opinions. We will not allow this to happen and will not go away 
quietly. 
  
Many thanks for your time. 
  
A VERY concerned Parent and Teacher.  
  

REDACTED 
 
   
To whom it may concern 
  
Firstly let me thank the Daily Post & others of you for replying and for publishing some of my 
comments. I look forward to a response from DCC (i also look forward to them publishing all 
comments from involved parties regarding any merger!).   
  
I have also included Mr Leighton Andrews in these discussions - so he knows from the very 
beginning, the strength of feeling against any proposed merger. Indeed I would like to extend an 
invitation to him to come and visit the school and talk to the pupils - for whom DCC claims any 
merger is being sort for. 
  
I have also decided to contact you following a meeting with DCC, the staff of St Brigids and the 
staff of Blessed Edward Jones. 
  
The meeting was nothing by political propaganda with no 'real' 'straight' answers given. 
  
Let me give you an example: 
  
A colleague asked: 
  
"You mention lots about opportunity and views. Should the students of both schools, the parents 
of both schools, the governors of both schools and the staff of both schools, put their views 
forward and reject this opportunity, will DCC still continue with plans for a merger?" 
  
The colleague in question asked for a straight answer. What he got was "maybe".  
  
I have mentioned it before and will again - this is proof that any consultation is simply lip service 
- not a decision based on fair balanced viewpoints. 
  
I can emphasize the DCC's comments. They spoke a great deal about Views and opportunity. 
However,  why do we need an opportunity to improve an already good school? Again, I ask the 
people who will make these decisions to speak to those who matter - the pupils. 
  
Frankly, the entire discussion was nothing but superlatives - many that were contradictorary. "we 
know St Brigids is a good school with excellent results and a close knit family feel". "However, it 
is not fit for purpose". 
  
Pardon me? i thought a school's purpose was to educate - and allow children to feel safe, 
developing into the adults that Wales needs in the future? 

Page 219



  
One comment that was interesting was the fact that DCC is bidding for £29 million in order to 
help faith provision. They state this money belongs to the Welsh Government , but that this 
funding cannot be split to help both schools (14.5million each). Is this actually correct? can 
someone check? if it is correct - why?  
  
Another word used a great deal was sustainability. We have a growing school  - surely we are 
that! One would also argue that spening £29 million on a new school that WILL BE half empty - 
is not sustainable. Do the people of Denbigh believe that this is the best way to spend 
£29million? I would argue they did not! 
  
Another of DCC's buzz words were transformational. Well here is a different proposal. Tranform 
all schools in Wales to fit our already successful model. We exist as a 3-19 school - i beleive the 
only one of its kind in Wales. We have above average GCSE & A Level results - does this not 
tell the decision makers something? We are also a school where children feel genuinely cared 
for. One where they feel they can be themselves free from the pressures other teenagers have 
placed one them - whether that is smoking, alcohol, drugs or sex. Our pupils enjoy their 
childhoods.  
  
 We are unique. We are sustainable. We are successful. 
  
AND....we will not go away. 
  
We will fight for this school. We believe in this school. We know others do too. 
  
Thank you.  
  

REDACTED 
 
 
To whom it may concern 
  
I write once again regarding the proposed merger of St Brigids and Blessed Edward Jones. 
  
Today St. Brigids was visited by Elin Davies (14-19 Learner Champion). 
  
The pupils were told that they were to speak to their form to have a representation of the pupils 
views on the merger. 
  
However, the questions they were asked and the way they were asked, show this 'consultation' 
is as previously said, is nothing more than lip service - a decision already made - democracy 
indeed! 
  
Students were not asked what they thought on a merger. They were asked what they wanted 
(and I quote), the new school to look like and where the new school should be. 
  
This is not what parents and teachers were told the first stage of consultation should be about. 
We have been told no decisions have been made. Why are they propmpting students? This is 
bullying at the worst kind - bullying so that they can tick a box - disgusting. 
  
It is clear that DCC and telling parents one thing. Teachers another. Parents a whole different 
story and governors another. 
  
How can we trust you? 
  

Page 220



I urge you to stay clear and open and honest. Only then can we really see what is happening.  
  
once again I have included the local MP's, AMs and press in the hope they can help stop a 
terrible decision to close a successful school. 
  
When will DCC learn? 
  
the truth will always out. 
  
Yours 
  
Against the Merger 
 

REDACTED 
 
To the modernising education team 
  
Firstly let me advise that i have included others in this email that i feel have an important role to 
play in the consultation and whom i want to see the strength of feeling towards the merger. 
Furthermore, i want them to see how poorly staff from one school was treated today.  
  
I have also included the local press in the hope that can push the cause of BOTH schools. 
  
Firstly let me discuss todays consultation meeting.  
  
This evening the 'meeting' was rather one sided. Yes we were giving a chance to ask questions. 
But no one was writing these down - it was like the ideas we were pushing were simply 
irrelevant. 
Moreover - it was clear you biggest focus was 'how long' the meeting lasted - ie 90 minutes. My 
colleagues and my own greatest focus is the pupils at our school and hence would have spoke 
for hours. 
  
Why has DCC decided time is more important than pupils education & future? 
  
Secondly i wondered if DCC could inform us as to how many cabinet members were present at 
the vote to move to the current consultation? likewise how many of these cabinet members 
voted yes. It was clear that what we were being told is that a large majority wanted this. I fear 
that we are all being told different stories - indeed Jackie W, did state that all members were not 
happy if the school simply stayed on 2 sites. isnt it actually true that many members are 
completely opposed to this? 
  
I am also extremeley concerned with the focus on "north denbighshire". Rita- the individual who 
represented the Catholic Diocese stated 'north denbighshire in her speech regarding vision over 
10 times. This is no exaggeration as the meeting was recorded and i have listened once again to 
the recording. The major concern is why is there such a focus on north denbighshire. What 
about Denbigh and the south part of the county. Why is DCC - a council that represents 
EVERYONE so focused on everythigng in the North. Indeed Jackie W stated that there are 6 
possible sites - 5 of which (current Blessed Edward jones site, Rhyl site near the college, 2 sites 
in Rhuddlan & one in Bodelwyddan). The only site south of the A55 is the current site of St 
Brigids. 
  
This focus on one part of the county seems unfair. Moreover, i fear that this reveals the real 
reason for a desired move - a new housing estate being built in those very areas! Can DCC tell 
me how much money has been spent in the North Denbighshire area in the last 5 years - 
especially in Rhyl - as opposed to other areas? 

Page 221



  
I also fear the huge effect on the town of Denbigh. I accept there are parts accross the county 
that need to be improved and regenerated but moving money from one part to another is not the 
way forward. The effect on the local economy will be huge. Whats more - the lack of facilities for 
young people is nothing shirt of criminal. 
  
I would lastly like to refer to point 1.4 on page 46 of your consultation document. DCC itself say it 
is POSSIBLE  to rebuild both schools. Today when we mentioned this your answers were the 
BEJ had surplus places. We do not have this issue. Can i make a serious suggestion? Rebuild 
our school - st. Brigids. Those pupils from North Denbighshire that wish to come to a joint faith 
school -which ours is - by your reckoning - can come and enjoy the wonderful surrounding, 
share the vision that you speak of - at half the cost. 
this would leave you with extra money to improve the facilities at other neighbouring schools. Let 
benefit all - not just a small amount. Our school does not have issues of a surplus - whats more 
if it is rebuilt, there are no issues - given we are always told the issues with St B is the mobile 
accomdation.  
  
Furthermore - and sorry not the last issue at all but - there seem to be no clear plan or direction 
for the Primary School at St.Brigids or post 16 education, which is part of the Dyffryn Clwyd 
Partnership and impacts other secondary schools in the area. What is to happen to these? these 
are all part of our success. the lack and planning and focus is quite worrying. You are asking 
people to back something that you havent got a clue about.  
  
Please can someone respond this this comment specifically.  
  
I suggest i will build a conservatory for my house. I will look at the planning documents and 
make vague comments - like ' initially' i will do this and that. Would i get permission to build it? 
No. so why should you be treated any differently. 
  
finally i would like to say one thing. This is not about snobbery. DCC have it in their heads we do 
not wish to mix. That is simply not true. We have many pupils from the Rhyl area and some from 
areas of disadvantage. We are inclusive. Our biggest focus is the pupils. They always have been 
- they always will be. They are what matter, I urge you to once again speak to them - not 
politically  ie what do you want the new school to look like - but do you even want one!!! 
  
I have sent a written copy to the press, DCC and other interested parties and once again stress 
that myself and many others are completely opposed to this merger and will do everything we 
can to stop it.  
  
I have concerns that decisions are being taken without all the necessary information and 
therefore ask the process is halted.  
This whole event is causes a huge emotional instability on families and pupils and staff at both 
schools, in what is also exam periods and DCC are failing in their duty of care to students. 
  
I look forward to a detail response - and a non political one.  
  
I look forward to this from all members of the email on their thoughts, feelings and hopeful 
support 
 
Yours Sincerely 
  
Against the merger 
A council tax paying member of South Denbighshire - Dcc should represent ALL!!! 
(i do not wish to give me real name for fear of future attacks) 
 

Page 222



 

REDACTED 
 
Dear Sirs, 
  
Re:  Formal Consultation:  Proposal for a New Joint Faith Based School for North Denbighshire 
  
Concerns have been expressed to me by a number of parents and interested parties regarding 
the proposed closure of St Brigid’s School, which can be summarised as follows: 
  
·         The consultation document pays little regard to the outcome of the informal consultation 
undertaken earlier in the year.  
·         The provision of 3-19 years of age at St Brigid's is a unique feature of the school which 
parents and pupils greatly value - it should be protected.  There is a great deal of evidence as to 
the educational benefit of “all-through schools” as the commonly recognised dip from KS2 to 
KS3 doesn’t happen due to the less disruptive transition.  
·         The future of primary provision at St Brigid's is uncertain.  If this were not to become part 
of the new single site faith school then this would be totally unacceptable. 
·         The future of post 16 education at St Brigid's is uncertain.  If this were not to become part 
of the new single site faith school then this would be totally unacceptable.  The loss of post 16 
education at St Brigid's would result in there being no opportunity for post 16 education in a faith 
school in north Denbighshire.  
·         The potential adverse impact of the proposed changes on academic attainment.  
·         There is insufficient detail in the proposals regarding the capital costs of the proposed new 
single site school and there is no guarantee of funding for the new school. 
·         Options for the future of faith provision in North Denbighshire have not been fully 
explored.  For example there has been no consideration of the creation of a new sustainable 3-
16 year old Rhyl based school to replace Blessed Edward Jones and Ysgol Mair, along with 
investment on the St Brigid's site to improve the buildings provide for the expansion of the 
school. 
  
I am told that such a project would:  
  
·         Enable all three schools to meet 21st Century School requirements with less capital 
investment than that of the current proposal. 
·         Address surplus places at both Blessed Edward Jones and Ysgol Mair. 
·         Help to accommodate more of the pupils who seek to enrol at St Brigid's each year. 
·         Ensure that the schools were of a sufficient scale to make them financially viable. 
·         Ensure that the Roman Catholic character of the schools be protected. 
  
Should St Brigid’s close, pupils in South Denbighshire would encounter difficulty in accessing the 
proposed faith school in north Denbighshire.  It has been emphasised to me that the school’s 
current location in Denbigh serves all parts of the county well. 
  
I would therefore be grateful if you could give this matter your consideration. 
  
Please acknowledge receipt. 
  
Yours faithfully 
  
REDACTED 
  

REDACTED 
 
  

Page 223



Modernising Education Programme Team 
Denbighshire County Council 
County Hall 
Wynnstay Road 
Ruthin 
LL15 1YN 
 
Dear Madam, 
 
RE: FORMAL CONSULTATION FOR A NEW JOINT FAITH BASED SCHOOL FOR NORTH 
DENBIGHSHIRE 
 
In response to the Formal Consultation document, I wish to formally lodge my objections to any 
proposal which will jeopardise the long term future of St Brigid’s School in Denbigh. 
St Brigid’s School is unique in that it offers education for children aged 3 to 19 years and it has 
been proved that the 3 – 19 model, which is now being copied by other authorities due to it’s 
success, supports the wellbeing and high achievements of the pupils in the long term as it 
eliminates the effects of transition. 
My first preference would be for St Brigid’s School to remain on the existing site and be 
developed to provide better accommodation and facilities for the staff and pupils, and if this is 
not possible, then the new school should be located as close to St Brigid’s as possible, as based 
upon the catchment area for the pupils currently attending St Brigid’s, Denbigh is in the centre. 
I understand that there is money available for new schools or remodelling and reconstruction of 
existing schools and with this in mind, my view is that the money set aside for improving the 
provision of faith education in Denbighshire should be split so that the existing schools can be 
re-modelled and re-constructed.  There is already a Catholic Junior School in Rhyl so maybe 
consideration should be given as to how Ysgol Mair and Blessed Edward Jones Secondary 
School can be re-modelled to meet the requirements of the 21st Century Schools Programme. 
This would allow St Brigid’s School to remain in Denbigh and benefit from re-modelling and 
reconstruction. Denbighshire County Council may say that there is insufficient room available to 
expand the existing site but in my view this is not the case as the footprint for St Brigid’s is only a 
third smaller than Prestatyn High School where there are approximately 1775 pupils. 
Furthermore, we have been informed that there is an option to purchase additional land adjacent 
to the existing site, so the retention of existing site should not be an issue.  If the secondary 
element is removed from St Brigid’s School, then this would cause concern over sustainability of 
the primary and sixth form and the loss of the sixth form would impact upon the Dyffryn 
Partnership. The loss would also result in there being NO faith provision for sixth form students 
in Denbighshire which will have a direct impact upon the children in Years 12 and 13. 
Denbighshire County Council do not currently appear to be listening to the Children; what 
message does this send to our young when Politics appear to be more important than the 
feelings and wishes of the students? 
St Brigid’s School is the highest achieving school in Denbighshire and in the top 5 for Wales, 
outperforming some private schools so why do Denbighshire want to risk losing this?  The 
school should be valued as a real asset by the Local Authority and should not be subjected to 
any change which could damage the excellent reputation which it has.  Based upon Value-
added scores, St Brigid’s produces the highest value added score within Denbighshire +9.17 
compared to the County average of -6.96.  
We strongly value the ethos of the school ; “To inspire and be inspired”, a school where pupils 
are all known by the staff, where there is a strong sense of community; one large family where 
all pupils are nurtured by the staff to achieve their full potential, irrespective of their background 
or academic potential. The school has excellent discipline, children are taught to be respectful 
and have good manners and as result they grow into well rounded members of the community of 
which the School are very proud. Parents have chosen to send their children to this school for 
these reasons and it is our view that parents will vote with their feet if the proposed new faith 
school goes ahead. Parents are prepared to travel long distances and in some instances past 

Page 224



their local faith based schools because St Brigid’s has a proven track record. A new school does 
not come with such guarantees and could prove to be a disaster when there are insufficient pupil 
numbers. Ysgol Clawdd Offa in Prestatyn which opened in September 2008 is an example of 
where a lot of money has been spent on a new school which was not required. A further 
example of tax payers’ money being spent un-wisely is the new faith school which opened in 
Huyton following a merger at the cost of 24 million pounds; the merger has failed and the school 
which has only been open a few years is due to close this week. 
It has been suggested that St Brigid’s School is elitist in that pupils wishing to attend the 
Secondary School have to sit an entrance exam. The Government expects all children in Year 6 
to be attaining a level 4; the entrance exam is set at level 4 with papers being moderated to 
ensure that they are fair and meet the criteria.  50% of the pupils entering the secondary section 
of the school are from the Junior section of St Brigid’s School and these pupils also sit the same 
exam in order to ascertain whether the required level 4 in English, Maths and Science has been 
achieved.   
From what we have read, the vision of a 21st Century School is:- 

1. Driving up standards of teaching and attainment in all schools. 

2. Improving educational outcomes for children and young people in all phases. 

3. Ensuring the interests of learners are paramount. 

4. Helping to narrow the inequalities in achievement between advantaged and dis-advantaged 

areas, groups and individuals. 

It is our view that St Brigid’s School is already demonstrating each of the criteria.  The School is 
already a high achiever so why change something which works so well. The school is already 
operating the 3 – 19 model and has no desire to change this. The interests of all pupils are 
always of paramount importance in St Brigid’s and this is one of the reasons why the school is 
so successful.  The vast majority of pupils attending the school are not from a privileged 
background; the school has the support of the parents because of the strong sense of 
community at the school and the parents are united because they want the best for their 
children.  When you listen to the stories of parents whose children have been bullied in previous 
schools and where the quality of life and happiness of those children has been vastly improved 
as a result of moving to this school, surely that is worth preserving? Ultimately, this should be 
matter of Education, NOT Politics! 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
REDACTED 

REDACTED 

 

12th July 2013  

Modernising Education Programme Team 

Denbighshire County Council 

County Hall 

Wynnstay Road 

Ruthin 

LL15 1YN 

 

Dear Madam, 

RE: FORMAL CONSULTATION FOR A NEW JOINT FAITH BASED SCHOOL FOR NORTH 

Page 225



DENBIGHSHIRE 

 

In response to the Formal Consultation document, we wish to formally lodge our objections to 
any proposal which will jeopardise the long term future of St Brigid’s School in Denbigh. 

St Brigid’s School is unique in that it offers education for children aged 3 to 19 years and it has 
been proved that the 3 – 19 model, which is now being copied by other authorities due to it’s 
success, supports the wellbeing and high achievements of the pupils in the long term as it 
eliminates the effects of transition. 

Our first preference would be for St Brigid’s School to remain on the existing site and be 
developed to provide better accommodation and facilities for the staff and pupils, and if this is 
not possible, then the new school should be located as close to St Brigid’s as possible, as based 
upon the catchment area for the pupils currently attending St Brigid’s, Denbigh is in the centre. 

We understand that there is money available for new schools or remodelling and reconstruction 
of existing schools and with this in mind, our view is that the money set aside for improving the 
provision of faith education in Denbighshire should be split so that the existing schools can be 
re-modelled and re-constructed.  There is already a Catholic Junior School in Rhyl so maybe 
consideration should be given as to how Ysgol Mair and Blessed Edward Jones Secondary 
School can be re-modelled to meet the requirements of the 21st Century Schools Programme. 
This would allow St Brigid’s School to remain in Denbigh and benefit from re-modelling and 
reconstruction. Denbighshire County Council may say that there is insufficient room available to 
expand the existing site but in our view this is not the case as the footprint for St Brigid’s is only 
a third smaller than Prestatyn High School where there are approximately 1775 pupils and in 
addition we have been informed that there is an option to purchase additional land adjacent to 
the existing site so the retention of existing site should not be an issue. Furthermore, if the 
secondary element is removed from St Brigid’s School then this would cause concern over 
sustainability of the primary and sixth form and the loss of the sixth form would impact upon the 
Dyfffryn Partnership. The loss would also result in there being NO faith provision for sixth form 
students in Denbighshire. 

St Brigid’s School is the highest achieving school in Denbighshire, outperforming some private 
schools so why do Denbighshire want to risk losing this?  The school should be valued as a real 
asset by the Local Authority and should not be subjected to any change which could damage the 
excellent reputation which it has.  Based upon Value-added scores, St Brigid’s produces the 
highest value added score within Denbighshire +9.17 compared to the County average of -6.96. 

We strongly value the ethos of the school ; “To inspire and be inspired”, a school where pupils 
are all known by the staff, where there is a strong sense of community; one large family where 
all pupils are nurtured by the staff to achieve their full potential, irrespective of their background 
or academic potential. The school has excellent discipline, children are taught to be respectful 
and have good manners and as result they grow into well rounded members of the community of 
which the School are very proud. Parents have chosen to send their children to this school for 
these reasons and it is our view that parents will vote with their feet if the proposed new faith 
school goes ahead. Parents are prepared to travel long distances and in some instances past 
their local faith based schools because St Brigid’s has a proven track record. A new school does 
not come with such guarantees and could prove to be a disaster when there are insufficient pupil 
numbers. Ysgol Clawdd Offa in Prestatyn which opened in September 2008 is an example of 
where a lot of money has been spent on a new school which was not required.  

It has been suggested that St Brigid’s School is elitist in that pupils wishing to attend the 
Secondary School have to sit an entrance exam. The Government expects all children in Year 6 
to be attaining a level 4; the entrance exam is set at level 4 with papers being moderated to 
ensure that they are fair and meet the criteria.  50% of the pupils entering the secondary section 
of the school are from the Junior section of St Brigid’s School and these pupils also sit the same 
exam in order to ascertain whether the required level 4 in English, Maths and Science has been 

Page 226



achieved.   

From what we have read, the vision of a 21st Century School is:- 

1. Driving up standards of teaching and attainment in all schools. 

2. Improving educational outcomes for children and young people in all phases. 

3. Ensuring the interests of learners are paramount. 

4. Helping to narrow the inequalities in achievement between advantaged and dis-
advantaged areas, groups and individuals. 

It is our view that St Brigid’s School is already demonstrating each of the criteria.  The School is 
already a high achiever so why change something which works so well. The school is already 
operating the 3 – 19 model and has no desire to change this. The interests of all pupils are 
always of paramount importance in St Brigid’s and this is one of the reasons why the school is 
so successful.  The vast majority of pupils attending the school are not from a privileged 
background; the school has the support of the parents because of the strong sense of 
community at the school and the parents are united because they want the best for their 
children.  When you listen to the stories of parents whose children have been bullied in previous 
schools and where the quality of life and happiness of those children has been vastly improved 
as a result of moving to this school, surely that is worth preserving? Ultimately, this should be 
matter of Education, NOT Politics! 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

 

12th July 2013  

Modernising Education Programme Team 

Denbighshire County Council 

County Hall 

Wynnstay Road 

Ruthin 

LL15 1YN 

 

Dear Madam, 

RE: FORMAL CONSULTATION FOR A NEW JOINT FAITH BASED SCHOOL FOR NORTH 
DENBIGHSHIRE 

 

In response to the Formal Consultation document, I wish to formally lodge my objections to any 
proposal which will jeopardise the long term future of St Brigid’s School in Denbigh. 

St Brigid’s School is unique in that it offers education for children aged 3 to 19 years and it has 
been proved that the 3 – 19 model, which is now being copied by other authorities due to it’s 
success, supports the wellbeing and high achievements of the pupils in the long term as it 
eliminates the effects of transition. 

Page 227



My first preference would be for St Brigid’s School to remain on the existing site and be 
developed to provide better accommodation and facilities for the staff and pupils, and if this is 
not possible, then the new school should be located as close to St Brigid’s as possible, as based 
upon the catchment area for the pupils currently attending St Brigid’s, Denbigh is in the centre. 

I understand that there is money available for new schools or remodelling and reconstruction of 
existing schools and with this in mind, my view is that the money set aside for improving the 
provision of faith education in Denbighshire should be split so that the existing schools can be 
re-modelled and re-constructed.  There is already a Catholic Junior School in Rhyl so maybe 
consideration should be given as to how Ysgol Mair and Blessed Edward Jones Secondary 
School can be re-modelled to meet the requirements of the 21st Century Schools Programme. 
This would allow St Brigid’s School to remain in Denbigh and benefit from re-modelling and 
reconstruction. Denbighshire County Council may say that there is insufficient room available to 
expand the existing site but in my view this is not the case as the footprint for St Brigid’s is only a 
third smaller than Prestatyn High School where there are approximately 1775 pupils. 
Furthermore, we have been informed that there is an option to purchase additional land adjacent 
to the existing site, so the retention of existing site should not be an issue.  If the secondary 
element is removed from St Brigid’s School, then this would cause concern over sustainability of 
the primary and sixth form and the loss of the sixth form would impact upon the Dyffryn 
Partnership. The loss would also result in there being NO faith provision for sixth form students 
in Denbighshire which will have a direct impact upon the children in Years 12 and 13. 
Denbighshire County Council do not currently appear to be listening to the Children; what 
message does this send to our young when Politics appear to be more important than the 
feelings and wishes of the students? 

St Brigid’s School is the highest achieving school in Denbighshire and in the top 5 for Wales, 
outperforming some private schools so why do Denbighshire want to risk losing this?  The 
school should be valued as a real asset by the Local Authority and should not be subjected to 
any change which could damage the excellent reputation which it has.  Based upon Value-
added scores, St Brigid’s produces the highest value added score within Denbighshire +9.17 
compared to the County average of -6.96.  

We strongly value the ethos of the school ; “To inspire and be inspired”, a school where pupils 
are all known by the staff, where there is a strong sense of community; one large family where 
all pupils are nurtured by the staff to achieve their full potential, irrespective of their background 
or academic potential. The school has excellent discipline, children are taught to be respectful 
and have good manners and as result they grow into well rounded members of the community of 
which the School are very proud. Parents have chosen to send their children to this school for 
these reasons and it is our view that parents will vote with their feet if the proposed new faith 
school goes ahead. Parents are prepared to travel long distances and in some instances past 
their local faith based schools because St Brigid’s has a proven track record. A new school does 
not come with such guarantees and could prove to be a disaster when there are insufficient pupil 
numbers. Ysgol Clawdd Offa in Prestatyn which opened in September 2008 is an example of 
where a lot of money has been spent on a new school which was not required. A further 
example of tax payers’ money being spent un-wisely is the new faith school which opened in 
Huyton following a merger at the cost of 24 million pounds; the merger has failed and the school 
which has only been open a few years is due to close this week. 

It has been suggested that St Brigid’s School is elitist in that pupils wishing to attend the 
Secondary School have to sit an entrance exam. The Government expects all children in Year 6 
to be attaining a level 4; the entrance exam is set at level 4 with papers being moderated to 
ensure that they are fair and meet the criteria.  50% of the pupils entering the secondary section 
of the school are from the Junior section of St Brigid’s School and these pupils also sit the same 
exam in order to ascertain whether the required level 4 in English, Maths and Science has been 
achieved.   

From what we have read, the vision of a 21st Century School is:- 

Page 228



1. Driving up standards of teaching and attainment in all schools. 

2. Improving educational outcomes for children and young people in all phases. 

3. Ensuring the interests of learners are paramount. 

4. Helping to narrow the inequalities in achievement between advantaged and dis-
advantaged areas, groups and individuals. 

It is our view that St Brigid’s School is already demonstrating each of the criteria.  The School is 
already a high achiever so why change something which works so well. The school is already 
operating the 3 – 19 model and has no desire to change this. The interests of all pupils are 
always of paramount importance in St Brigid’s and this is one of the reasons why the school is 
so successful.  The vast majority of pupils attending the school are not from a privileged 
background; the school has the support of the parents because of the strong sense of 
community at the school and the parents are united because they want the best for their 
children.  When you listen to the stories of parents whose children have been bullied in previous 
schools and where the quality of life and happiness of those children has been vastly improved 
as a result of moving to this school, surely that is worth preserving? Ultimately, this should be 
matter of Education, NOT Politics! 

 

Yours faithfully, 

REDACTED 

 

REDACTED 

 

Subject :  Do Not Close St Brigid's 

 

Hi 

  

As a former pupil of the lovely St Brigid's school, I have a first hand account of how wonderful 
the school is. I am also fully aware that it has significantly improved since my time there, so why 
on earth you are proposing to close the school beggars belief. 

  

What can a joint faith school offer to those who wish to attend a purely Catholic school? In my 
time, non-Catholics attended the school, but that was an informed choice and those pupils were 
happy to follow the Catholic rituals and religion - how can this be improved by attending a joint 
faith school? Please explain how that is 'modernising' education? 

  

It is obvious that no one wishes you to proceed with this absurd venture and if you do so, it will 
be evident that you have not listened to the majority's point of view. 

  

You also mention that you may look at building another new school at some point in the future - 
is this an admission that you know this current proposal has no legs? 

  

You will be making a very big mistake trying to combine all the faiths and losing a long loved and 
very successful school. Too many people care about it. 

Page 229



Regards 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Please find attached (and below) my response for the faith school consultation which I am fully 
against. 

  

Please acknowledge my email by personal response (not just automated) and please publish 
this letter. 

 

Re New Joint Faith Based Proposal for North Denbighshire 

 

I am writing to you to show my very strong objections to the 'preferred proposal'   

 

I refer to the 'formal consultation document' which is full of sweeping statements with no 
evidence to back it up.   

 

I want to make it very clear that this part of the consultation- you have named 'phase 1' should 
be based on your wish to merge the schools on two sites. This part of the consultation is not 
about the 'new school' but the response form you wished us to fill in is very much geared 
towards the location of the 'new school'. Both question 4 and 5 refer to this- I know ' you will say 
that 'you don't have to fill that in its just a guide' But it is a very leading 'guide and therefore 
shows predetermination. 

I also wanted to raise my concerns about the 'promoters'. Neither Rita or Carol agree on the 
primary aspect of the 'new school' and no one can tell us how the faith would be preserved if the 
schools were it to 'merge'. Within a meeting at St Brigid's Rita also 'there is no such thing as a 
faith school'.   

And no one was able to answer how the current faith in St Brigid's would be observed if the two 
schools were to merge.   

You say in the consultation document that there will be little impact if the schools merge-   

but where is the costings for: new branding (letterheads, potential consultant, new signage, new 
school uniform, new name, one head teacher, new governing body, the schools being 12 miles 
apart- what is the impact on the children and staff?- will they will travelling in school/lesson time? 

You completed an informal consultation phase (I am aware that you 'did not have to do this'- but 
from this stage you have appeared to take nothing from it- that stage clearly came with 
objections but you have still not taken any of this on-board and have not been able to answer 
any of the concerns. How did you come up with the proposal of the dual site school?   

Within 6.9 of the consultation you mention the Dyffryn Clwyd Partnership- but you do not 
mention the huge effort that it will have on the schools within the partnership and the lose of 
courses that will happen (12 courses) if you were to 'close and move' the school. 

It also hugely concerns me that within 6.14 of the document you mention the Estyn report of 
2010- but you do not mention the follow up which took place in 2011. The 2011 showed great 
progress of the school and you have failed to take note of this within your consultation 
document. I feel that this is due to wanting to try and damage the reputation of the school as well 
as failing to provide relevant and up to date information for the document and therefore anyone 

Page 230



that reads it. 

 

Within point 9 of your consultation document you mention the primary aspect of St Brigid's and 
then give a list of other primary schools in the area. I would like to point out that we are aware of 
the primary schools in the area and it is parental choice where parents send their child. You wish 
to close St Brigid's school (a 3-19 school) and then force people to send their child/children to 
another-to fill in surplice places. 

St Brigid's does not have a surplice place problem (as you know it is oversubscribed) 

You mention in point 12.6 that 'the current proposal will offer pupils a wider range of high quality 
courses at key stage 4 more effectively'. But you are unable to say how- you say that this would 
be up to the 'new head teacher and governing body'. So how can you say a statement like that 
with no evidence or backing on how it will be implemented? 

So will this include pupils moving back and forth- the 12 miles per way- in their lesson time?   

You also say in 12.4 that 'teachers can work together', and 'peer observation of the best 
teachers lessons'. But again do not specify how this happen and to what cost. 

Within point 12.3 you state that 'it will be possible for the ethos of both former schools' But part 
of the St Brigid's 'ethos' is the uniform, the name, the faith. And all of those factors you are 
attempting to stop.   

You will also be stopping the family aspect of the ethos, the traditions, the independence. You 
say in the document that the ethos is drawn from the Governors, teaching staff, pupils and 
learning environment. But if you go ahead with this then we lose our Governors, the learning 
environment and setting will be different and potentially we will then lose teaching staff- as well 
as a new head teacher.   

You then mention in 18.2 that the savings of the schools becoming a dual site would be £379k- 
but we are now aware that this figure is actually due to the funding being set different for a dual 
site- and therefore this is not a saving. And as mentioned above you have not mentioned the 
costs of closing and then opening a school- as well as the costs I have mentioned above (such 
as new branding, new signs etc) 

You then say that 'it would be very difficult to predict what the overall impact would be for the 
finances' So you are saying that you don't know any of these costings? 

Within point 21 you mention the alternative options- but you have very openly said that you have 
not looked at these options and will not be looking at them in much more detail for you 
consultation response to Cabinet. You said that you have your preferred option but what about 
the hundreds of other peoples 'preferred option'- Which if you are in any doubt about is- for St 
Brigid's to remain on the current site in Denbigh. There is the land to extend this site.   

Within 21.8 you mention that Denbighshire County Council officers have undertaken research 
into the 3-19 model that St Brigid's is. You then state that this isn't being taken forward. This is 
clearly because neither Rita or Carol agree on providing a joint primary school. 

I also wish to raise concerns about apparent misinterpretation of the facts (such as not including 
the updated 2011 Estyn report) and also council officers telling different things to different people 
within meetings (either on a 1:1 or small group basis, or the larger meetings) Such as saying to 
some people that the new school will be in Rhyl- and that they will be able to design the 'new 
school badge/name'. 

This consultation has been flawed from the beginning and I am disgusted with the way you have 
undertaken this. 

I agree for my response to be used, reproduced and published. 

 

Page 231



Many thanks 

 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Subject: Response to Consultation on Joint Faith Education in Denbighshire 

Dear Sir/Madame, 

Please see the attached document which contains my response to the formal consultation on 
Joint Faith Education in Denbighshire.  I make my views clear within the document that i do not 
support the current proposal and cannot truly make an informed response due to the lack of 
evidence provided by the Promoters and the Officers of Denbighshire CC. 

I believe that the document is flawed, premature and is underpinned with sweeping statements 
without solid evidence to back it up.  A clear failure to properly consult on the Primary and Sixth 
form provision at St Brigid's school, due to both Diocese's unable to agree in this area. 

St Brigid's School in Denbighshire out performs all other secondary schools and results in 
academic achievement above the Welsh average.  There is no other school in the area like it 
and i believe, that there is no other 'merged' schools in the UK which have sites 10 miles apart.  I 
find it incredulous that you can even comtemplate such a ludicrous idea. 

Please acknowledge reciept of my repsonse and also provide me with clear, concise and 
evidenced answers to my questions posed within the document. 

 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Please find attached (and below) my response for the faith school consultation which I am fully 
against. 

 Please acknowledge my email by personal response (not just automated) and please publish 
this letter. 

 Re New Joint Faith Based Proposal for North Denbighshire 

I am writing to you to show my very strong objections to the 'preferred proposal'   

I refer to the 'formal consultation document' which is full of sweeping statements with no 
evidence to back it up.   

I want to make it very clear that this part of the consultation- you have named 'phase 1' should 
be based on your wish to merge the schools on two sites. This part of the consultation is not 
about the 'new school' but the response form you wished us to fill in is very much geared 
towards the location of the 'new school'. Both question 4 and 5 refer to this- I know ' you will say 
that 'you don't have to fill that in its just a guide' But it is a very leading 'guide and therefore 
shows predetermination. 

I also wanted to raise my concerns about the 'promoters'. Neither Rita or Carol agree on the 
primary aspect of the 'new school' and no one can tell us how the faith would be preserved if the 
schools were it to 'merge'. Within a meeting at St Brigid's Rita also 'there is no such thing as a 
faith school'.   

And no one was able to answer how the current faith in St Brigid's would be observed if the two 
schools were to merge.   

You say in the consultation document that there will be little impact if the schools merge-   

Page 232



but where is the costings for: new branding (letterheads, potential consultant, new signage, new 
school uniform, new name, one head teacher, new governing body, the schools being 12 miles 
apart- what is the impact on the children and staff?- will they will travelling in school/lesson time? 

You completed an informal consultation phase (I am aware that you 'did not have to do this'- but 
from this stage you have appeared to take nothing from it- that stage clearly came with 
objections but you have still not taken any of this on-board and have not been able to answer 
any of the concerns. How did you come up with the proposal of the dual site school?   

Within 6.9 of the consultation you mention the Dyffryn Clwyd Partnership- but you do not 
mention the huge effort that it will have on the schools within the partnership and the lose of 
courses that will happen (12 courses) if you were to 'close and move' the school. 

It also hugely concerns me that within 6.14 of the document you mention the Estyn report of 
2010- but you do not mention the follow up which took place in 2011. The 2011 showed great 
progress of the school and you have failed to take note of this within your consultation 
document. I feel that this is due to wanting to try and damage the reputation of the school as well 
as failing to provide relevant and up to date information for the document and therefore anyone 
that reads it. 

Within point 9 of your consultation document you mention the primary aspect of St Brigid's and 
then give a list of other primary schools in the area. I would like to point out that we are aware of 
the primary schools in the area and it is parental choice where parents send their child. You wish 
to close St Brigid's school (a 3-19 school) and then force people to send their child/children to 
another-to fill in surplice places. 

St Brigid's does not have a surplice place problem (as you know it is oversubscribed) 

You mention in point 12.6 that 'the current proposal will offer pupils a wider range of high quality 
courses at key stage 4 more effectively'. But you are unable to say how- you say that this would 
be up to the 'new head teacher and governing body'. So how can you say a statement like that 
with no evidence or backing on how it will be implemented? 

So will this include pupils moving back and forth- the 12 miles per way- in their lesson time?   

You also say in 12.4 that 'teachers can work together', and 'peer observation of the best 
teachers lessons'. But again do not specify how this happen and to what cost. 

Within point 12.3 you state that 'it will be possible for the ethos of both former schools' But part 
of the St Brigid's 'ethos' is the uniform, the name, the faith. And all of those factors you are 
attempting to stop.   

You will also be stopping the family aspect of the ethos, the traditions, the independence. You 
say in the document that the ethos is drawn from the Governors, teaching staff, pupils and 
learning environment. But if you go ahead with this then we lose our Governors, the learning 
environment and setting will be different and potentially we will then lose teaching staff- as well 
as a new head teacher.   

You then mention in 18.2 that the savings of the schools becoming a dual site would be £379k- 
but we are now aware that this figure is actually due to the funding being set different for a dual 
site- and therefore this is not a saving. And as mentioned above you have not mentioned the 
costs of closing and then opening a school- as well as the costs I have mentioned above (such 
as new branding, new signs etc) 

You then say that 'it would be very difficult to predict what the overall impact would be for the 
finances' So you are saying that you don't know any of these costings? 

 Within point 21 you mention the alternative options- but you have very openly said that you 
have not looked at these options and will not be looking at them in much more detail for you 
consultation response to Cabinet. You said that you have your preferred option but what about 
the hundreds of other peoples 'preferred option'- Which if you are in any doubt about is- for St 

Page 233



Brigid's to remain on the current site in Denbigh. There is the land to extend this site.   

Within 21.8 you mention that Denbighshire County Council officers have undertaken research 
into the 3-19 model that St Brigid's is. You then state that this isn't being taken forward. This is 
clearly because neither Rita or Carol agree on providing a joint primary school. 

 I also wish to raise concerns about apparent misinterpretation of the facts (such as not including 
the updated 2011 Estyn report) and also council officers telling different things to different people 
within meetings (either on a 1:1 or small group basis, or the larger meetings) Such as saying to 
some people that the new school will be in Rhyl- and that they will be able to design the 'new 
school badge/name'. 

This consultation has been flawed from the beginning and I am disgusted with the way you have 
undertaken this. 

I agree for my response to be used, reproduced and published. 

Many thanks 

 REDACTED 

 

REDACTED  

 

Subject :  Consultation Reponse re Joint faith education 

To whom it may concern, 

 In addition to the information on my questionnaire, I would also like the following information to 
be considered.  I am happy for my form and letter to be reproduced and viewed by the public.   

 My REDACTED has a REDACTED condition REDACTED has a dramatic effect on 
REDACTED life on a day to day basis.  REDACTED has behavioural and learning issues as a 
result of his condition, REDACTED  also has severe mobility issues and struggles to walk even 
fairly short distances.  REDACTED condition also impacts on REDACTED ability to digest food 
and so, whilst we try to let REDACTED stay in school for lunches when possible, when he is not 
at REDACTED best, REDACTED often has to come home for lunch. We live in Denbigh and 
REDACTED really has to be at a school nearby.   

I chose St Brigid’s for REDACTED for many reasons and I have to say that every single one of 
those reasons would be lost if the school is merged into a larger school on a different site. 

 Now, I realise that the above might seem irrelevant to you, after all, this is the phase 1 
consultation that only deals with the merging of the two schools on the existing sites and not the 
merging of the two schools on to a single site that is now consigned to phase 2. Unfortunately for 
people in the real world, phase 1 and phase 2 are inextricably linked.  If phase 1 goes ahead 
then it is surely intended as a mere precursor for the proposals in phase 2 (if not then why is it 
referred to so much in the phase 1 documents) so I feel I have to mention things that will effect 
REDACTED, if and when, the schools are merged to a single site even though you have 
separated the consultation in to the two phases.  The very fact that the single site school is 
mentioned extensively in the phase 1 questionnaire and phase 1 proposal documents suggests 
to me that you realise that the two phases are absolutely linked.  Frankly, I would like an 
explanation as to why the consultation was split into two phases. Why could it not have been 
one consultation for the amalgamation of the two schools on the two sites followed by the 
merging onto a single site at a later, specified date?  That way the public could have their very 
real concerns about the single site school considered at this point before the schools are 
changed irrevocably.  It feels like the splitting into two phases has been an exercise in DCC 
circumventing certain laws.  DCC will have to provide proof of funding before being able to 
consult on the single site school.  I think it is fairly clear that DCC does not have that proof of 

Page 234



funding and that is why the single site school has been placed in a separate phase.  However, 
the whole phase 1 proposal is littered with mentions of the incentive of a single site school at a 
later date.  I think that is deeply immoral.  It is a major flaw in this phase 1 consultation that the 
single site school is referred to so much when you have not provided proof of funding and 
therefore it is reasonable to assume that the single site school may well never even be 
built.  Effectively you have wanted it both ways.  You have used the single site school as a way 
of influencing people’s views on the phase 1 proposal yet presumably you do not have to listen 
to people’s views on the single site school at this stage and you have not had to provide proof of 
funding.  I find it appalling that an organisation that is supposed to represent the people feels 
that it does not have to abide by the spirit of laws and uses chicanery to get around laws that are 
in place to protect the public and its institutions.  

 I would also like to know who actually wants this to happen? St Brigid’s parents are almost 
unanimously against it. People in Rhyl seem to be opposed to losing their faith school in Rhyl. 
People of Denbigh are starting to get disgruntled at losing another institution from the town, 
particularly business people who stand to lose more business in a town that at times is like a 
ghost town already. People in between Denbigh and Rhyl seem to have no interest whatsoever 
for the new school. I say this because I attended the drop in meeting that was for communities 
between the two towns (in St Asaph) and I was there for the whole of the first hour of the two 
hour meeting and I was the only member of the public there. It was nice to see about 8 officials 
from DCC and Diocese there though! The two diocese who publicly say they are united and fully 
behind the proposals aren’t even satisfied with the proposals and seem to be at loggerheads 
over certain issues. I have an email (and I am happy to provide the email if required) from Jackie 
Walley to the two diocese saying that Hywyn “is on the verge of shelving the proposals” due to 
differences between the two diocese. I am sure the two diocese are happy enough to show a 
united public front at the moment with constant cajoling from officers at DCC just to get through 
the consultation but I think it is a real concern that the issues have not properly been resolved, 
will at some point become an issue again and then we will have two diocese at loggerheads 
effectively in control of the amalgamated school. Effectively the proposed school is a school that 
nobody actually wants or is happy with because it is just one big compromise.  A compromise 
that is unacceptable to all sides.  Well all sides apart from DCC who seem to have a rampant 
desire to force their preferred (and by preferred I mean only) and incredibly unpopular proposal 
on everyone.  And if you want to know what happens when two schools are amalgamated into a 
joint faith school that nobody wants then you should take a look at Christ the King School in 
Merseyside that cost £24 million to build and is about to close after being open for only 4 years! 
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-merseyside-23261529 

But you don’t warn people of the reality do you? You don’t give a balanced view during the 
consultation, you just say that the new school will be a success and do not take seriously 
people’s concerns when they question how the new school will compare in terms of ethos or 
academic performance compared to the current schools.  I wonder how people would respond to 
the consultation if you balanced things out by saying that there is a possibility that BEJ and St 
Brigid’s could be closed and replaced with a school that is a failure on every level and has to 
close after a relatively short time. That is a realistic possibility, you cannot deny it, the evidence 
is there for all to see in Huyton.   

Talking of academic performance, I noticed that in the informal consultation, many parents 
raised the concern that the new school might not have the same excellent academic 
performance as St Brigid’s.  Your response was, “The new school would seek to maintain or 
enhance existing standards of education for pupils.”  That isn’t really very reassuring to be 
honest.  Jackie Walley has spent the whole process telling parents that they must provide 
evidence based responses, yet that response is utterly banal and certainly not evidence 
based.  Interestingly, I was researching the performance of amalgamated schools on the 
government’s educational statistics website (Edubase) and I found that 21.7% of all 
amalgamated schools in the UK are in special measures.  I also found that only 2.2% of all 
schools that are not amalgamated in the UK are in special measures. (I am happy to provide the 

Page 235



spreadsheets of data if required)  So by my reckoning it is almost 10x more likely that an 
amalgamated school will end up in special measures than a non amalgamated school.  I would 
say that is an evidence based response suggesting that the amalgamation of the two schools is 
going to have a detrimental effect on academic performance.  So seeing as you know parents 
have these concerns and we now have real statistical evidence to back up our concerns, is there 
any chance that you are going to give us a proper, evidence based response that puts our minds 
at rest and shows us that the new school will be able to at least match and possibly enhance the 
academic performance of St Brigid’s?  I wait with bated breath! 

 I feel that the consultation has been flawed in various ways.  Firstly there is a clear and obvious 
predetermined outcome.  The proposals state that keeping the status quo is not an 
option.  Surely that is predetermining the outcome, you have clearly admitted to ruling out an 
option in advance of the results of the consultation.  Secondly the proposals are all too vague 
and there is not enough information for people to make an informed response.  For example, 
how will the admissions policy work at the new school, apparently it will be up to the governors 
of the new school but then you haven’t even told us how the governors of the new school will be 
appointed!  As another example, how will the dual site school work? You haven’t told us whether 
the teachers will have to move between sites or whether the pupils will have to or whether both 
will have to. I assume someone will have to, after all you have said that the reason to 
amalgamate is to provide a broader curriculum.  If nobody moves backwards and forwards 
between sites then basically you have the same two schools and I don’t see how a broader 
curriculum can be provided on both sites.  If there is going to be staff or pupils moving 
backwards and forwards between sites then surely we need to be told, after all Jackie Walley 
has told parents that the children will not be travelling between sites and at a separate meeting 
has told teachers that they will not have to travel between sites! It is a shambles, it feels like you 
haven’t even decided how the dual site school (with sites over 10 miles apart!!!) is going to work. 
How can we feel properly consulted when even you don’t know how it will work? 

Thirdly there is inaccurate and sometimes misleading information in the proposal 
documents.  As an example it was suggested that St Brigid’s does not provide a broad enough 
range of PE activities.  This was presented as a reason why it would be of benefit to 
amalgamate the two schools.  However, I believe Jackie Walley has since (and fairly near the 
end of the consultation period) apologised for this and admitted that the information was 
incorrect and that St Brigid’s does in actual fact provide a perfectly good amount of PE activities. 
Again, an absolute shambles.  Do DCC even know what a full and fair consultation is? 

 I have had a meeting with Ann Jones (AM) who told me that she feels that the consultation is 
massively flawed.  I have heard Darren Millar (AM) say the same.  I have an email sent by 
Denbigh councillor Colin Hughes (I am happy to provide this email if required) saying, “There are 
flaws in this consultation.” And this is from a councillor who is quite happy for the proposals to go 
ahead, given his obvious dislike for St Brigid’s.  Why are the officers at DCC unable to put 
together a consultation that is not flawed?  I would have thought that it is a fairly basic aspect of 
their job to be able to do this.   

 At various consultation meetings I have heard Jackie Walley use some fairly vague and 
unquantifiable remarks to try to undermine the academic achievements of St Brigid’s. She uses 
these remarks to try to strengthen her position that St Brigid’s would not be a loss were it to 
close.  She has said, “St Brigid’s doesn’t perform as well as you think it does.”  Ms Walley never 
backs comments like this up with anything that could be described as real evidence and I find it 
worrying that she is happy to make disparaging but unsubstantiated remarks about a school 
whose future she has a huge affect upon.  Jackie Walley has also said that St Brigid’s does not 
perform well compared to other schools in the same family.  I looked into this and can confirm 
that St Brigid’s is above average in its family and furthermore I contacted every school in the 
family and found that whilst St Brigid’s has had little capital funding in the last 10 years, many 
others in the family have received substantial capital funding, some in the hundreds of 
thousands, some running into millions of pounds. Quite an achievement! Still if DCC officers go 
to public meetings and mislead people by presenting vague comments that cannot be backed up 

Page 236



as fact then it damages the school and subsequently influences the consultation process 
unfairly.  Ms Walley and the two diocesan representatives are very happy to cite St Joseph’s 
Joint Faith School in Wrexham as the beacon for us all.  Apparently it shows us the wonderful 
end product that we can hope for at the end of this whole process.  St Joseph’s is currently in 
Band 4 of 5, a full two bands behind St Brigid’s.  Funny how Ms Walley is happy enough to talk 
down the achievements of St Brigid’s with no evidence whatsoever but is not forthcoming when 
it comes to the underachievement of St Joseph’s.  (All this data can be provided if required). 

 At this point I would like to mention that Jackie Walley has said contradictory things at different 
meetings.  For example, at the meetings at St Brigid’s she has said that Bodelwyddan or 
Rhuddlan are the front runners for the single site school and there was no mention that Rhyl was 
a preferred option (I have recordings of these meetings which can be provided if 
required).  However, I attended the St Asaph drop in meeting and Jackie Walley said to me that 
DCC  the single site school will be, “as near to Rhyl if not in Rhyl is what we are trying to 
achieve. That’s where we want it and we have been quite open about that which is why we have 
been lambasted by parents in Denbigh.”  I have that meeting recorded and can provide that 
quote if required.  I feel that Ms Walley has been deliberately misleading the public during this 
consultation process and I openly bring into question her competence and worse than that, her 
ethics.   

 Yours sincerely 

 REDACTED 

 

The two paragraphs below were included in a document attached to an email from REDACTED 
which preceded the above email by a few minutes -  

Finally, I would like to bring into question the role of the councillors and particularly cabinet 
members with regards to this consultation process.  I have an email (email can be provided if 
required) sent by a Denbigh councillor to Jackie Walley asking how Ms Walley would like him to 
respond to questions from St Brigid’s parents or whether she would prefer that he didn’t respond 
at all.  Why is an elected official asking an unelected officer how he should answer questions 
about the future of a school in his ward?  Parents were asking him for his view and I find it very 
worrying that councillors feel that it is ok to just produce an answer provided by DCC or even 
worse just ignore the question if that is what DCC would prefer!  According to the DCC website, 
“Councillors are there to represent all of the people in their communities” not to mention 
that they are also paid from the public purse.  Presumably then they are not there merely to do 
the bidding of unelected county officers.  What is the point of having councillors if this is how 
they behave?  We may as well just let council officers do what they want and save the salary 
paid to that particular councillor. Shameful! 
 
I contacted another councillor (also a cabinet member) by telephone just a week or two ago and 
engaged in a conversation about St Brigid’s.  The councillor who I will not name at this point (but 
who I am happy to name if requested) said, “I sympathise with your cause and I am very 
uncomfortable with these proposals but there is nothing that I can do about it.” Now this is one of 
the only eight people who have a vote on these proposals and this cabinet member is an 
independent so has no party lines to follow.  I would like to know why an elected official who has 
a vote on this proposal feels that they have no voice within this process?  It is interesting to note 
that the same cabinet member asked some very searching questions about the proposals at the 
informal consultation cabinet meeting and was seen in a corridor after the meeting being, what 
can only be described as, harangued by two councillors for the line of questioning. There are 
other witnesses who can verify that this took place.  What on earth is going on here?  This is a 
complete subversion of the democratic system and I call into question the actions of both the 
unelected and elected officials who seem so intent on forcing through these proposals that they 
seem to have forgotten that they are there to serve the public and are paid by the public.  
Frankly this whole thing stinks and I hope that one day all involved will be exposed and held to 

Page 237



account.   

 

REDACTED 

Subject :  Do Not Close St Brigid's 

Hi 

As a former pupil of the lovely St Brigid's school, I have a first hand account of how wonderful 
the school is. I am also fully aware that it has significantly improved since my time there, so why 
on earth you are proposing to close the school beggars belief. 

What can a joint faith school offer to those who wish to attend a purely Catholic school? In my 
time, non-Catholics attended the school, but that was an informed choice and those pupils were 
happy to follow the Catholic rituals and religion - how can this be improved by attending a joint 
faith school? Please explain how that is 'modernising' education? 

 It is obvious that no one wishes you to proceed with this absurd venture and if you do so, it will 
be evident that you have not listened to the majority's point of view. 

You also mention that you may look at building another new school at some point in the future - 
is this an admission that you know this current proposal has no legs? 

You will be making a very big mistake trying to combine all the faiths and losing a long loved and 
very successful school. Too many people care about it. 

  

Regards 

REDACTED 

 

REDACTED 

Subject :  Response to Formal Consultation on the Provision of Faith Education 

Attached is our completed questionnaire regarding the current proposals for a new joint faith 
based school for North Denbighshire.  Below is additional information that needs to be 
considered in our response and request an acknowledgment receipt in view of a 
formal response. 

 The “Formal Consultation Document – Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based School for North 
Denbighshire” lacks supporting evidence for claims, accusations and assertions by Denbighshire 
County Council. 

 I must point out the errors within the document as the statements Denbighshire CC have made 
are unfair and should be questioned in the consultation process. 

 DCC require evidence from parents about what they want from a school and not just “say no to 
a school”  However DCC seem to be provide little or no evidence and just “say yes to the school” 
approach. 

At the consultation meeting and within the document we were not consulted when asked about 
the primary provision and feel this part has not been consulted correctly. 

Faults with the existing schools and Opportunities for improvements 

Below is text of the Denbighshire County Council Document:  

“12.10 All of the matters referred to in 12.3-12.9 can be improved upon significantly by a 
combination of the first and second phases”. 

Page 238



1 Section 12 has a number of areas which imply fault with the current schools and clearly state 
there will be improvements under the new dual site school. No evidence is provided for these 
statements 

2 12.3 is a criticism of the leadership and management of the two schools, a criticism levelled in 
the previous consultation, at the public meetings at St Brigids.  No analysis has ever been 
provided for these assertions. Proper analysis of the faults of the schools in this area and an 
analysis of what will be changed in the dual site school to ameliorate these problems should be 
provided. Please do not rely on statements that the new school structure is yet to be decided by 
the new governors since that would not be evidence of the improvements you assert will arise. 

3 At 12.4 you claim that the dual site school will offer the ability to improve staff expertise and 
raise standards, and you refer to two areas. Please provide evidence as to why this is at fault in 
the current schools and what specifically change to derive the improvements you will assert will 
flow from a dual site school. How will teachers works together (12 miles apart) to plan and 
prepare high quality lessons and conduct peer observation, and given St Brigids performance 
why are their current lessons not high quality and why and how would teachers from Blessed 
Edwards improve peer observation that existing staff cannot? 

4 At 12.5 you claim that a larger school will provide opportunity for targeted support. Specifically 
how is this not being done today and specifically how will this be enabled under the new school? 
Since the schools will be 12 miles apart and will have the same teaching staff how will this be 
possible? 

5 At 12.6 please provide a detailed analysis of why the current schools do not provide the 
required curriculum.  

Please identify what subjects are not being offered that a dual site school will enable. You claim 
a wide range of high quality courses will be available more effectively. This implies it is not 
currently effective or high quality. Tells specifically what is not high quality and being effectively 
offered today at each school. What high quality courses will be available; who will they be taught 
by and with what assets? 

6 12.7 You claim that St Brigids finds it difficult to offer a broad range of physical education 
experiences. Please provide detailed evidence of this criticism. The current PE teacher at St 
Brigids destroyed this claim when he identified the extensive list of PE experiences St Brigid’s 
pupils enjoy and the successes achieved and the fact that clearly no reliable research has been 
conducted to support the claim. In a dual site school you will build no more assets so how will 
this improvement come about?  

7 In 12.8 you criticise the Design and technology facilities. Exactly what is unsatisfactory about 
the current situation, what equipment is missing and how will this be improved by the first phase 
since you will build no more assets for the schools.  

8 At 12.9 you claim that the quality of teaching is compromised by the infrastructure. Can you be 
specific about how that diminution of quality comes about? Since St Brigids provides very good 
results in comparison to many Denbighshire schools that have modern infrastructure, you need 
to be more specific about how teaching in a bright purpose built room does not get the same 
results as teaching in a mobile classroom? Since you will be building no more assets in the 
schools in phase 1 how will the dual site school proposal overcome these supposed problems? 

In summary the key planks of the case for a Dual Site School; i.e. claims of faults with the 
existing schools and that the dual site school will offer improvements to the education of our 
children has little or no evidence to support it. This is either because the faults you claim have 
not been evidenced or because to fix the claimed faults you would have to invest in the assets of 
the two schools, which you are not going to do under this First Phase.  

Minimal impact upon children’s education 

1 At 13.3 you claim that the under the dual site school it will be possible for the ethos of the two 

Page 239



schools to be retained.  At section 20.1 you claim that the “number and impact of any initial 
disadvantages will be minimised”. 

2 However since things like the school name, the uniform, the restructuring of leadership and 
management, the governors and trustees, the movement of children between the schools, the 
teaching staff and the specific methods of worship and observation of religion may all be 
changed by the governors of the dual site school the claim that the ethos will be retained and the 
impact will be minimised seems to be to be impossible to support.  

3 In order to be completely transparent in this consultation you need to assure us that none of 
these items will be changed one jot. Rita Price repeatedly made it very clear at the public 
meeting that the two churches would be the “providers of education”.  Since they do not provide 
the education at St Brigids at the moment clearly there will be changes to the provision of 
education at St Brigids. Since the Anglican Church in Wales have no role in either school, their 
introduction into the decision making of both schools will have an impact. Since in this process 
you have made every effort to cut out the trustees and governors of St Brigids from a future role 
in the dual site school there will be massive change to these items ahead of us. Essentially, your 
claims at 13.3 and 20.1 are unsupportable. 

4 At 14.2 you refer to admission arrangements, and at the public meeting it seemed to be 
implied that the governors will decide this. Please can you give categorical assurance that no 
pupil currently in primary or secondary education at either school will be forced to change 
schools or to attend all or any classes at the other school? For example a child in year 5 of 
primary will be going into secondary the year when the new dual site school and the new 
governors come into power. Please guarantee that the new governors will have no powers to 
require that child to attend the other school. 

Financial savings 

1 The other major plank of the current proposal is financial. Section 18 specifically covers this. 

You have provided no evidence to the tax paying public or their representatives as to the cost of 
creating the dual site school.  It is important to expose these costs as given that they could run 
into hundreds of thousands of pounds they are materially important to the question “….is the 
First Phase justified?” Here are some areas where costs arising and for transparency estimates 
of these costs must be made available to the public:  

• The closure and creation of the new school in legal and administrative cost 

• TUPE costs to transfer staff from old school to new dual site school 

• The likely salary increases for the head of a bigger school, department heads, and other 
positions. You identified new positions would be created (as quoted by your SIO at the public 
meeting). 

• Re- branding costs – consultants, signage, letterhead and other stationary, labelling of books 
and other property, website creation etc. 

• Possible redundancies and redeployment costs (see 20.5). 

• Cost (and time lost) arising from leadership, management, staff, pupils travelling between 
schools and conducting joint meetings 

• Other costs arising from creation and running of the new school 

2 In section 18.2 you estimate that “initial annual revenue savings” would be a maximum of 
£379,000. The explanation of these savings does not spell out clearly the areas in which these 
savings would arise.  It seems to be associated with the funding approach and as such it would 
seem to imply this is merely a paper exercise. No real savings will be available? When DCC 
were challenged on this on the 25th questioner was shut down. Please provide some 
transparency and clarity of the source of these supposed savings detailing the expected costs 

Page 240



and funding of the dual site school versus the existing costs of the two separate schools. 

To summarise, there will be significant impact upon the education of the children, there is little of 
no evidence to support assertions of existing problems or that the dual site will see 
improvements and the financial case has no detailed supporting evidence.  

What is patently missing is any detailed analysis of the success or otherwise of; 

• other dual site schools in the UK, and in particular any that are 10 miles or more apart 

• other joint faith schools; all we ever hear about is St Josephs, for which the last quantifiable 
evidence is a 2008 Estyn report, and usually we only ever hear anecdotal personal statements 
from the ex-head teacher who is not an objective witness. 

• Brand new schools 

• Small, medium or large schools 

Whilst DCC may be able to make a case for a single site school, this may never come about for 
a range of reasons and if it does its 5+ years away. Therefore the creation of the dual site school 
must stand on its own merits, and currently DCC have proceeded with a consultation paper that 
does not stand review. 

We look forward to an acknowledge and full response to our concerns. 

Regards, 

REDACTED 

 

REDACTED 

Subject :  Re: response to Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based School for North Denbighshire- 
Secondary 

Further to my other response, I strongly believe that a new proposed faith school should be for 
the 11-16 year old age group as originally proposed and the consultation should not be 
broadened out to look at the 3 to 11 year old age group nor the 16-18 year olds. 

 Yours sincerely, 

REDACTED 

 

 

REDACTED 

Subject :  Re: Formal consultation response 

As time has moved on, i have  changed my mind regarding my response and no longer see it 
beneficial for the two schools to merge, i believe St.Brigids is so unique in providing  such high 
standards, not only in academic achievement but in the whole of their education (discipline, 
respect, tolerance) this has to be worth preserving,  by expanding and upgrading the current St. 
Brigids .The 3 to 16 model has a lot to do with the mature attitude the children have,  the older 
ones look out for the younger ones and act appropriately in their company. I ask the council to 
take a step back and think about what a school such as this is  producing and why, and to 
please listen to the majority.  This response may be used. 

Many thanks 

REDACTED 

 

Page 241



REDACTED 

 

Subject :  formal consultation response 

Please find my consultation response to the questions as set out in the questionnaire – I have 
sent to all councillors and relevant parties as I have little confidence in the consultation process 
after the way DCC have conducted the consultation so far.  

 1.      NO 

2.      I still feel there is a need for the council to put forward a case for phase 1, what is the case 
for amalgamating the 2 schools(without the new build)? Are there any advantages and true cost 
savings to having 2 schools on 1 site? I can see that there might be an argument for phase 2 but 
this consultation is solely about phase 1 and I can see no educational or financial case for phase 
1. It seems to me that we will be paying teachers to travel between the 2 sites for a large 
proportion of the day and this is a terrible waste of a valuable resource. The proposal is 
completely ungrounded in fact, evidence and what is best for the education of the children of 
Denbighshire. St Brigid’s and BEJ should both receive the investment they need. There is no 
evidence that phase 1 will make a difference to anything, apart from the loss of the ethos/history 
of the school and a point of no return. Having looked into the statistical evidence for 
amalgamations across the UK, schools which have been amalgamated are 10 times more likely 
to put into special measures than the average secondary school which proves that 
amalgamating 2 so very different schools is going to cause a great difficulties and issues for the 
new school. (I you need the statistical evidence to back up this fact then please let me know) I 
also looked at all the joint faith schools for England and Wales and of the 12 I managed to find (I 
did contact all LEA and Diocese but not all responded) 6, 50%  were either inadequate or 
requiring improvement so statistically there is a 50% chance of the new school being in special 
measures and then to add the amalgamation statistics on top it is virtually a certainty!  We are 
told just to respond to phase 1 at this stage and yet there is very little to respond to as there is 
no evidence put forward as to why phase 1 should even happen. St Brigids has around 600 
pupils so has all the economies of scale that a secondary school has are in St Brigid’s. I do not 
understand the arguments for amalgamating 2 schools 12 miles apart as there will be more 
costs – staff travelling etc.. than there will be cost savings. I clain that there are no arguments in 
the consultation document for phase 1 so there are no discussion points for me to respond to. 
The document claims that management will be strengthened but the middle management of St 
Brigid’s is strong and has been stable for a number of years and the only reason that the 
headship has changed is due to the uncertainty caused by DCC. I queston if there are heads 
and senior teachers who would want to work in a school that is 12 miles apart and to try to 
manage a school where it will take half an hour to travel between sites when there is an issue 
that needs responding to sounds to me completely impractical.   

 3.      As I do not have the resources, time and staff to develop my own alternative I find that this 
question is quite difficult for me to provide an alternative but I have seen the 2 proposals put 
forward by the St Brigid’s trust and both are options seem viable and cheaper than the £28m it 
will cost to build the new school. We are told that this will not happen as the council can not 
afford to do this without the WAG investment but this would cost such a small fraction of the 
amount needed to build the new school that it would still be a cheaper option than building a 
new school.  

 4.      No – I have tried to speak to the council on many occasions about the requirements for 
my sons additional needs and without going into great personal details on this form I know a 
child in Flintshire with very similar needs and there isn’t a secondary school in Flintshre able to 
meet her needs so she is being home educated. St Brigids have met my sons needs with a great 
deal of effort being put in my teachers, management and SENCo. I wonder if my son would 
either have to go to a special school, at great cost to Denbighshire, or be home educated as I do 

Page 242



not believe that his needs at secondary age will be met by any of the alternative schools. 

 5.      No – I have tried to speak to the council on many occasions about the requirements for 
my sons additional needs and without going into great personal details on this form I know a 
child in Flintshire with very similar needs and there isn’t a secondary school in Flintshre able to 
meet her needs so she is being home educated. St Brigids have met my sons needs with a great 
deal of effort being put in my teachers, management and SENCo. I wonder if my son would 
either have to go to a special school, at great cost to Denbighshire, or be home educated as I do 
not believe that his needs at secondary age will be met by any of the alternative schools. 

6.      St Brigid’s 

7.      Parent 

8.      Yes  

 Additional points 

 In the response to the questionnaire I would include some evidence as to why I chose St 
Brigid’s and why we would want St Brigid’s to continue in Denbigh, in something close to its 
current form. Jackie Walley stated at the consultation meeting that the responses should be 
evidence based and I have tried to provide as much evidence as possible but due to the short 
time period of consultation, and the lack of evidence available to me as a parent, I have found it 
difficult to ensure this response is evidence based.  I would request that Denbighshire makes all 
data at their disposal available to all parties to ensure a full, open and in formed consultation.  

I chose St Brigid’s for my son for a variety of reasons and would like to provide some evidence 
for this. The main factors in choosing a school for me are: 

 Religious nature of the school 

Ethos 

Small school size 

Quality of education 

Transition arrangements 

  

Transition Arrangements 

As you are aware St Brigid’s is a 3-19 school and the 3-19 model is a progressive model in 
education that has shown to have many benefits. Ceredigion County Council commissioned a 
report into the impact of 3 -19 school  by Optima Learning in 2011 
(http://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/utilities/action/act_download.cfm?mediaid=34251&langtoken=eng) 
the main conclusions of this report were the benefits and advantages of a 3-19 school  

a common ethos and shared values across the school  

joined up curriculum planning to increase coherence and continuity in pupils’ learning  

progressive skill development and focus on building pupils’ bilingual competence  

greater consistency in learning and teaching styles  

opportunities for cross-age learning and shared enrichment and community-based activities  

extended care and support for pupils with additional learning needs and in provision for other 
vulnerable groups  

increased access for pupils to a range of specialist accommodation, facilities and learning 
resources  

developing relationships and shared expertise and between primary and secondary phase staff  

Page 243



joint management and implementation of common systems for recording and tracking pupils’ 
progress  

unified governance and efficient use of financial and human resources  

strengthened links with parents and involvement of the local community  

  

These benefits are clear and tangible and if a similar report was commissioned into St Brigid’s, 
the same benefits would be seen. 

 Transition is seen as a stressful area for many children and especially for a child, like mine, who 
has additional needs. I think it is important that DCC is able to provide a school which provides a 
smooth, stress free transition and the 3-19 model is able to meet these needs. The evidence for 
finding this is found in “Negotiating the Transition from Primary to Secondary School Perceptions 
of Pupils, Parents and Teachers” by M. Suzanne Zeedyk, Kenny Lindsay et al, Feb 2003. This 
shows that,“The transition from primary to secondary school is regarded as one of the most 
difficult in pupils' educational careers.” The article describes the results of a survey undertaken 
in the UK, in which the views of primary pupils, secondary pupils, parents and teachers were 
ascertained in regard to the transition process. “Results showed that bullying was a major 
concern for all groups, followed by fears of getting lost, increased workload and peer 
relationships, among others. The views of primary pupils and their parents were highly similar, 
and if the experience of transition is to be improved, it may be necessary to focus efforts on both 
of these groups. Teachers rarely identified children's individual abilities as making a difference to 
the transition process, focusing instead on institutional initiatives, an emphasis that carries the 
risk of creating a degree of helplessness for individual pupils.” 

 Another relevant study is also “Transition from Primary to Secondary School: Current 
Arrangements and Good Practice in Wales Final Report “ Robat Powell, Robert Smith, Gareth 
Jones and Angharad Reakes, October 2006. 

This looked into the current practice in Wales and some of the potential effects of poor transition 
and how a dip in attainment can be avoided by closer links and smoother transition between Key 
Stage 2 and 3.  

How can the process of amalgamating the 2 schools meet the legal requirement that, “any new 
school has to be equal or better standard than the previous schools?”  

Ofsted commented when inspecting the Caroline Chisholm School (4-18) that the main feature 
of good practice was,  “The school has been quick to build upon the opportunities arising from 
being an all-through school. Teaching and learning throughout the school have benefited from 
the sharing of expertise that is present in each key stage.“  (ref 
http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/inspection-reports/find-inspection-report/provider/ELS/134177) 

 At St Brigid’s the all-through approach eliminates many of these anxieties and concerns 
ensuring children are able to achieve their full potential. Reducing anxiety for children has to be 
a priority of any council.  

 Quality of Education 

Although St Brigid’s is selective and so comparison between St Brigid’s and BEJ can be 
questioned, the effects of selection are stripped out when looking at value added attainment. St 
Brigid’s had a value added score of 9.17 in 2010 (the latest data publically available) and BEJ’s 
value added score was -1.09. Both of which are better than DCC average of -6.96. (ref: 
http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/shared/bsp/hi/pdfs/20_05_11_brand_new_welsh_table.pdf)  

  

Academic attainment is crucial when choosing a school, St Brigid’s attains above national and 
Welsh averages. Due to the “banding” system this is not reflected in the Welsh system of 
ranking schools. It has been stated that St Brigid’s and BEJ are similar schools because they are 

Page 244



in similar bands. Evidence for attainment at Key Stage 4 shows that the trends for the Core 
Subject Indicator demonstrate the rate of progress by Blessed Edward Jones from 18% in 2010 
to 39% for 2012. During the time period there was a minor decline at St Brigid’s from 75% in 
2010 to 72% in 2012. Although an increase from 18% to 39% is a substantial achievement 
compared with St Brigid’s drop of 3%, one has to look at the actual attainment and there is no 
comparison between the 2 schools.  

  

It is important to me that my son is sent to a school which provides a quality education and 
allows him to achieve his full potential, whatever that might be.  

 Ethos and Religion 

This is the hardest part to evidence as it is not tangible. St Brigid’s school has a unique 
atmosphere and ethos. Much of this is due to the location, the size of the school, the 3-19 
element and the long history of the school that has led to this point. The wonderful ethos was 
one of the main reasons that I chose the school for my son and I have no doubt that if the school 
was moved to a new site with a different structure that everything that currently makes the 
school unique would be lost. I find it incredible that the one school in Denbighshire that offers 
something different could be merged to become just another large school, just like every other in 
the county and feel alarmed that there would no longer be any real choice in terms of types of 
school in the area. I chose a Catholic Education for my son as he is a Catholic and that is 
important to me. I am prepared to travel to the right school for my son and I would happily travel 
to the best school but I will not be sending him to a mixed faith school based outside Denbigh 
and so I can confirm that he will definitely not be going to the new school.  

 I have met a number of past-pupils from St Brigid’s and what is clear from them is the standard 
of education they received. These are values that are not easily measured but at the end of their 
school life, in times where moral values, manners and a sense of community are hard to find, St 
Brigids repeatedly turns out exceptionally high achievers who are grounded, polite, driven and 
respectful to all.  These are qualities which cannot be ignored and I feel would be lost should the 
school close. 

 School Size 

Parents have a right to choose their school. I have chosen a smaller school for my son as due to 
his additional needs the size of school benefits his needs and allows him to feel more part of the 
school community. There are a number of children in Denbighshire with ADHD and ASD and 
there are numerous educational studies into the benefits of smaller schools for children with 
these conditions. Behavioural issues and bullying, which all schools suffer from, are easier to 
manage in a smaller school where all children are known to staff. The need for additional 
learning mentors is reduced and this must have a financial benefit to the council.  My son’s 
needs are physical and if he was to be in a large secondary school then he would require a 
wheelchair. The smaller school means he can get about without use of his wheelchair. There are 
8 secondary schools in Denbighshire and with the exception of St Brigid’s and BEJ all have circa 
1000 pupils and in my opinion this stops children feeling part of a school family. There are many 
financial arguments for larger schools but attainment has to paramount and St Brigids and BEJ 
both have excellent attainment based on value added. I have been told by Chris Ruane MP, that 
the Price Waterhouse report commissioned by DCC, which I have been unable to access, shows 
that the 2 secondary schools which have had the least spent on them are St Brigid’s and BEJ 
which completely discredits the financial savings argument. St Brigid’s provides excellent value 
for money.   

 General Issues 

There is a need within Denbighshire to remove surplus places and I can understand the need for 
this. St Brigid’s is over subscribed and has a waiting list for places. I feel lucky and honoured to 
have got my son into St Brigid’s school, he is not part of the selection process, and would not 

Page 245



pass an entrance exam, even one like St Brigid’s which just has a requirement for level 4, but in 
accordance with the admissions policy and Christian nature of the school, St Brigid’s accepts 
that children with additional needs have special consideration in admission.  

 I am disappointed by the nature of this consultation on a number of points. Firstly on 2 
occasions Rita Price has informed me, and a group of parents, that “whatever you do, the new 
school will happen and will be as close to Rhyl as possible.” It is not a true consultation if 
decisions have already been made and I find it disappointing that a key partner in the process is 
so dismissive of the process  

 In the policy documents provided the statement is made that “It is not feasible for a  

secondary school with fewer than 600 pupils (plus 150 in 6th Form where appropriate) to provide 
the facilities described in this vision”. When reading the 21st Century Schools Program vision 
there is no comment on school size made in this document, and no obvious reference to any 
other document where justification of this can be found. In “Policy 2:Models for Secondary 
School Organisation” there is reference to 16+ class sizes but no reference to any documents 
justifying the policy. Both Blessed Edwards and St Brigids fail this 600 pupil policy and as the 
proposals hinge partly upon this policy the Authority should provide parents with an adequate 
justification for the policy. I would like to understand the full justification for this policy and why a 
group of small schools cannot be managed effectively from a financial perspective. Clearly St 
Brigids is viable as it produces excellent results, and BEJ has been improving – so educationally 
they are clearly viable. I understand that there are surplus places at BEJ and so these might 
need to be addressed, but St Brigid’s is over subscribed as a strong management structure 
across the whole school and is sustainable on current projections.  

 In the “Review of Provision” section of the proposals reference is made to “school buildings and 
facilities are inspirational learning environments that meet the needs of 21st Century Wales”. 
Throughout this section there is an implied view that aspects of 21st century education cannot 
be effectively provided in the current environments and buildings. Examples given are 
developments in ICT, whiteboards and wireless technology. I have to say I fail to see why this is 
not technically possible in existing environments. I am a teacher and development sin ICT do not 
require a new building just appropriate funding. I would therefore request that the authority 
publish an analysis of each of the requirements and features of 21st Century education 
(identifying the mandatory or desirable designation of them and the source of this designation) 
mapped to St Brigids and Blessed Edwards to understand what analysis has been done to test if 
and how these schools could meet the requirements. I would request details as to how the other 
secondary schools in Denbigh have been funded to achieve these levels of technology, as it 
seems to me that Denbighshire consistently underfund St Brigid’s and BEJ.  

 I have a question regarding the location of Rhyl, I always thought that Rhyl was in North 
Denbighshire so why is this school for Rhyl AND North Denbighshire, surely it is for Rhyl, 
Denbigh and surrounding areas or North Denbighshire. Is Rhyl more important than the rest of 
Denbighshire. I have spoken to a number of councillors in the South of the county who are 
concerned that their residents have to leave Denbighsire for Faith education.  

 I am opposed to the closure of St Brigids and the proposal of a merge with Blessed Edward 
Jones as I feel that the standards, ethos, values and success that St Brigids achieve is second 
to none.  Innovation and modernization can be achieved without radical moves such as what is 
proposed and this will allow a successful past to built upon. 

 Plans have been submitted in the past which could be revised in line with the requirements of 
the 21st Century Schools program and provide opportunities for more young people of 
Denbighshire and Wales.  These options should be explored with the support of Denbighshire 
CC, and it must be noted that good ideas are not purely the domain of the professional advisor 
with Denbighshire CC. 

 I look forward to a full and thorough response to the issues raised in this document and am 
awaiting the consultation period for parents and children with additional needs as I am sure you 

Page 246



are aware of the legal requirement to consult further with this group.  

  Yours sincerely  

  

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Subject :  St. Brigid's School 

 

I feel as a past pupil and past member of staff that it would be wrong to closes and merge st. 
Brigid's with Blessed Edwards. The school is wonderful school with ability to do such good. 
Instead of closing an over subscribed school you should work with it to enhance its size and 
potential to grow.  

REDACTED 

Subject :  Consultation Response to Faith School Proposal 

REDACTED 

15th July 2013 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Re: Proposed Closure of St Brigid’s School.  

I write to advise you of my views regarding the above. I strongly oppose the proposal to close St 
Brigid’s and to reopen on a dual site.  I have REDACTED at St Brigid’s in Years REDACTED 
therefore the proposed closure of St Brigid’s would have an impact on them all in some form.  As 
a parent who wants the best for her children, I have attended several cabinet meetings, in which 
this was one of the many topics discussed, and would hope that I have an adequate 
understanding of the proposal.  However I believe the evidence provided by DCC is scant and at 
times misleading.   With that in mind, my objections are as follows: 

Our School is a successful and happy school.  You quote the 2010 Estyn inspection results, yet 
you do not mention the 2011 return inspection that commented that all issues had been 
addressed to a satisfactory standard.  You imply that the academic achievements at St Brigid’s 
aren’t that successful and compare us to our school “family group”.  Truth is that in a Group of 
12 schools, top family in Wales, we’re 5th in group 5 A* - C (inc Maths, English and Science) 
and joint 1st in any 5 A* - C grades.  These are surely, some of the best results in Wales? 

Our school is fully subscribed and has a waiting list. If this proposal goes ahead, would we be 
the only school in the UK that has been closed under the cloak of filling excess places, when we, 
infact have none?  Can you imagine the press headlines?  Especially in view of the recent news 
re the Joint Faith School in Huyton that it closing, after a cost of approximately £20 million to 
build.  In these financially difficult times, this seems at best foolhardy and surely a waste of funds 
when we are continually advised of Council, Assembly and Government cutbacks. 

Our Governors, Management, Parents, Teachers, Local Town Council and,  most importantly,  
pupils want the school to remain as St Brigid’s, on this site. As  additional land is available to 
purchase on this site,  why are you not exploring the expansion of our current site?  I believe St 
Brigid’s Parents Action Group have provided at least two examples that could be explored.  Why 
are you not doing this?  You advise that this is not viable on a financial basis however, how is 
running a school on 2 sites 12 miles apart going to be financially viable?  It’s not.  Please see the 
attached figures that St Brigid’s action group have compiled.  

The 3 -19 model, was one of the main reasons for our selection of this school for our children (as 
well as the ethos, location and academic achievement).  In what other school can nursery 

Page 247



children mingle with 6th formers on a daily basis.  Isn’t this close contact with suitable peers, 
exactly the model of society that we try to create to produce confident adolescents?  Shouldn’t 
DCC be trying to replicate this within other schools, rather than proposing to close our school?  
At the cabinet meeting (May 2013) you seemed to be very motivated by the Catholic Diocese 
fighting to protect Ysgol Muir and the Anglican group insisting that they would only come to the 
table if a primary school was not linked to the new Secondary School, as they believed that this 
promoted elitism.  Where are the assurances relating to our Primary School?  This is an integral 
part of St Brigid’s yet you more or less disregard it in the proposal.  How can we make a decision 
when you provide no assurances to the future of this, the Nursery and the 6th form provision? 

Why take this school away from Denbigh?  Doesn’t the North of the County already have 
adequate investment in schools?  What happens to the pupils that have to travel from Ruthin?  
Denbigh is my family’s  home town, why are you taking the revenue generated from St Brigid’s 
pupils and parents, away from our town?  I know, having contacted them personally, that we 
have the full backing of Denbigh Town Council to explore the expansion of the school on our 
current site.   

Why are you proposing to close our school now?  Why not wait to merge until the funding is 
secured and the new school is built.  Why cause more disruption to our children and teachers 
now?  You advise that disruption will be kept to a minimum, however I presume that our children 
will get a change of school name and a change of uniform as a minimum.  Teachers (excellent 
ones) will leave, and who can blame them, when faced with the prospects of commuting 
between sites that are approx 12 miles apart. I have worked for RAF in the past, and appreciate 
just how trying, costly and time consuming it is to co-ordinate and manage an enterprise on 
more than one site.  Despite your reassurances, this will greatly impact upon the welfare and 
day to day life of our children both in the primary and secondary school.   The impact on our 
children will be massive.   

St Brigid’s is a 3 - 19 school.  I chose this school because of this fact.  I know that this is the best 
model for my children, to prevent issues such as transition from primary to secondary.  I have 
one child, who is currently undergoing various test etc and may eventually be classed as having 
SEN.  He struggles to make friend and to trust teachers etc.  St Brigid’s, with it’s familiar family 
feel and caring ethos helps him enormously.  My oldest child is now in Year REDACTED and he 
moved seamlessly, across the playground into Secondary School, with a minimum disruption to 
his learning rate or anxiety levels.  I also believe that it is important for 6th formers to have a faith 
provision in the County. If our sixth form is disbanded, I am advised that not only does the local 
sixth form amalgamation (Dyffryn Clwyd)  lose 12 subjects, but the Faith Option is also lost.  A 
large proportion of our sixth formers take up the opportunity to go on retreat each year, which 
just proves the point that a faith provision is essential, if not highly desirable. 

Your proposal states that St Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones will be closed, then reopened 
on a dual site basis, for a few years, until the new school is built.   If the infrastructure of our 
school is so poor, as stated in the initial consultation (porta cabins, ventiliation, corridor width 
etc,) how can the site possibly be run for another 4 or 5 years (or longer seeing as you haven’t 
confirmed where or when the new school will be built) without a massive capital investment from 
DCC?  Surely this isn’t going to be viable or cost effective?   

You mention that our school has few pupils with SEN or who partake of free school lunches.  If 
our SEN level is lower than average, I would attribute this to the excellent level of teaching.  As I 
have mentioned, my middle child has issues with some areas of behaviour and learning, so I 
have personal experience of just how well these teachers get the best out of the individual, not 
just the majority of pupils.  However, St Brigid’s research has indicated that our % is comparable 
to most other schools in the County. 

You criticise the St Brigid’s selection process and accuse us of accepting only the best pupils.  
Like all schools, St Brigid’s has an admission policy, and pupils have to meet this.  However, 
children from the primary school, transfer automatically into the secondary school without taking 
an exam (as they have already met the criteria during their entry to the primary school).   An 

Page 248



examination is only taken by any new pupils wanting to enter the secondary school.  New pupils 
are expected to reach level 4, which is line with Welsh expectation for 10 - 11 year olds, to be 
allocated places.  If there are still excess places available (year 6 has approximately 28 pupils 
wishing to enter the secondary school and the planned admission to year 7 is 57) then St 
Brigid’s reverts to general admission criteria.  This is the only academic admission requirement 
except in the 6th form, where applicants must meet the criteria of the Dyffryn Clwyd partnership.  
St Brigid’s also have an appeals process, should the need arise. 

In summary, I feel that this consultation process has not provided the level of evidence, for us, 
as parents, to make any other decision than staying on the current site, under the current 
management and working with DCC to get the funding to improve or expand our fabulous 
school.  I hope you will take the following points on board, especially as you keep assuring us, 
that no decision has yet been made.  

I enclose the evidence of St Brigid’s Action Group.  Please respond to advise you have received 
this document. 

Your faithfully 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Subject :  Faith education 

F a o J Wolley 

I wish to object to your proposals for a joint faith based school.  

1. The promoters feel it strengthens future provision of secondary faith based education in North 
Denbighshire but they have not demonstrated this, the current proposal is to leave both schools 
as they are for 5 years then consult again on a new build. We consider that the twin sites and 
logistics thereof will weaken education with a loss of morale, good staff and an undermining of 
two perfectly good schools damaging children's education.  

2. Paragraph 1.6 regarding no decision as to location, DCC employees have publicly stated that 
the new school will be in Rhyl. This consultation is flawed by the misrepresentation of the 
Council. 

3. Emphasis is placed upon the built environment to deliver a learning environment fit for 
purpose. There is an assumed correlation between buildings and good education, this is flawed, 
they help but are not the main factor. Small class sizes, good teaching staff and an ethos of 
wishing to learn have a greater effect. The larger school has a greater chance of reducing 
standards to the lowest common denominator.  

4. Options 1.2 and 1.3 appear to have been discounted on an unsound basis by promoters 
seeking change as a means to a capital sum from Cardiff. Option 1.3 must produce an improved 
learning environment yet is shown as "?" , it would be sustainable, if done correctly would have 
revenue savings and provide a sustainable education system that parents want as signified by 
demand for places at St Brigid's. How do DCC account for demand if the school is so bad? 

5. DCC may well be lost in local government reorganisation in Wales before the second phase, 
we may then need to consider a wider area. 

6. The respective Churches appear to want the influence over children's education yet we have 
no indication as to the extent of their financial backing, can this be confirmed? 

Finally as a parent the one bit of faith that has been lost in this whole process is in the ability of 
DCC to be responsible for the education of children. 

Regards 

REDACTED 

Page 249



 

REDACTED 

Subject :  Faith Based School Consultation 

Dear Mrs Walley, Head of Customers and Education Support 

 I write to you in response to your formal consultation of a joint faith based school in North 
Denbighshire. 

 I do not agree with the consultation or many of your facts you have stated at meetings I have 
attended. 

 You state that this consultation will strengthen future provisions yet you yourself have stated 
that the starting point of this proposal is in fact the procurement of a large pot of gold possibly 
available to you.  I should be delighted if you can prove to me that this is not the case, although 
this would directly contradict what you have previously stated.   Had the bettering of my child’s 
education been the starting point I would have had more respect and belief in this consultation. 

 You have stated that you have no guarantee of securing this pot of gold yet you expect me to 
turn my child’s education on its head on nothing more than a wing and a prayer.  I should be 
delighted if you can confirm that my child’s education will not be affected by your proposal and 
that she will continue to be taught for the duration of her education by her existing teachers on 
her existing educational site.  Anything other than this, particularly removing teachers or 
expecting my child to travel in excess of 12 miles to attend school cannot be furthering her 
education. 

 You ask us to comment on any alternatives we may have.  However I would ask you for your 
alternative, your plan B, something that surely you have considered after stating you have no 
guarantee of securing your pot of gold.  What will happen if your rainbow  doesn’t produce what 
you are hoping for?  How about the idea of investing in both school’s independently and having 
two excellent schools you as a Council can be proud of. 

 I would also ask for details of the new Governing Body you propose will govern your new 
school.  I have seen no evidence of any structured plans for this. For such a vital element in the 
running of any school to be given no thought or time in a consultation would appear rather 
foolish and un-professional. 

 You have also stated that by merging the two schools and running one school on two sites will 
save money.  It would appear that yet again money is your most important factor.  I would be 
grateful if you would confirm how much Denbighshire County Council has so far spent on this 
consultation and what your costing’s are for the proposed merger.  I hope you can prove to me 
that destabilising my child’s education is worth this spend? 

 I strongly believe that Denbighshire County Council have made a grave error.  One of the 
school’s concerned is a thriving oversubscribed school that could have been enlarged and 
become a shining example which others could only aspire to.  I am sure you are aware of the 
phrase ‘if it isn’t broken why try and fix it’! In fact you have chosen to follow a pattern which has 
been proven in both Cheshire and Wrexham to fail both children and tax payers.  Large Joint 
faith schools do not work, one in Cheshire has closed after only four years, another in Wrexham 
is already in special measures.  Please do not land us with another ‘Denbighshire School 
Disaster’.  In your own words the new build in Prestatyn should never have been  proposed and 
was a failure.  A cynic may say that your proposal is about control over two schools which could 
then be closed and pupils used to fill surplus places in other school and I would be delighted if 
you would confirm that this will never be the case?  

 I object to this flawed proposal due to the fact that, as you have stated, your starting point is 
financial not educational and that you have given no evidence that once in control you will not 

Page 250



close both schools. 

 Yours sincerely 

 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Subject :  St Brigids 

 

Dear Colleagues,   

I am writing to you to regarding proposed merger between Blessed Edwards and St Brigid’s.  I 
am a former pupil of St Brigid’s and I now have family members in attendance at the school.  I 
am most concerned about the proposal and furthermore, I struggle to understand what logic or 
policy drives this proposal and who the beneficiaries are perceived to be.  

For the past decade I have been working in international development, where time and time 
again I am reminded that education is the single most important condition for sustainable poverty 
reduction.  Every time I return home to Rhyl, I am dumbfounded by the visible deterioration in 
the area and the lack of educational opportunity which exists and in turn fails to fuel aspiration, 
some of the work I do in Sudan and Zimbabwe could directly translate to the Denbighshire 
context.  

I would strongly assert that a moral duty of educators, managers and policy makers, is to ensure 
that a ladder is provided, which enables young people, to climb out of the cycle of deprivation 
which they and their family have been trapped in for generations.  I would maintain that St 
Brigid’s is the only such instrument of emancipation that Denbighshire has. St Brigid’s provides a 
beacon of hope for young people and families who strive to emerge from the shackles of 
poverty.    

I cannot fathom why Denbighshire’s leaders would seek to dilute or destroy this key asset which 
gives aspiration not only to its pupils but also other institutions.   

Born to working class parents on the Bruton Parc Estate, St Brigid’s provided me with the social 
capital, academic skills and confidence, to know that I did not have to emulate the lives of my 
parents, or peers, the school opened my eyes to a world of opportunity.  I owe a debt of 
gratitude to St Brigid’s, it’s beyond doubt  that I could not have achieved the goals I have 
pursued if I had been a pupil at Blessed Edwards.   

You may ask why I have such confidence in the above assertion. The answer is that I have had 
two family members attend Blessed Edwards and both can testify to the damaging impact this 
had on them.  My REDACTED attended the school for 7 years, REDACTED deplored the level 
of discipline and tuition.  My REDACTED was there more recently and could stay only for one 
year before being driven out by bullies, over whom the teachers had no control. REDACTED 
entered St Brigid’s six months ago and the transformative effect on REDACTED confidence, 
academic motivation and self-esteem is nothing less than miraculous. Needless to say that 
REDACTED is completely terrified by the prospect of the merger.  

And so I return to my original question, what is driving the proposal to destroy this beacon of 
hope for the young people of Denbighshire.  The standards achieved at St Brigid’s are well 
documented.  If the supposition is that the merged school can serve to raise the lower 
attainment of Blessed Edwards and that the combined school can replicate the achievements of 
St Brigid’s, I would suggest that this is fallacy and seek to know what research has been carried 
out.  The merger will at best dilute and at worst destroy the ethos of St Brigid’s, putting 
educational and economic achievement even further out of reach for those who so desperately 
need it.   

Page 251



I look forward to your response and wonder if you would be so kind as to provide me with the 
details of the panel that have been assembled to further the discussion on the merger so that I 
might also contact them.  

Best wishes,   

REDACTED 

REDACTED 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
I am a parent of two children at St Brigidâ€™s in Denbigh and I have emailed 
you before whilst the merger was in an informal consultation. I now writing 
again now that it is in a formal consultation. I am deeply troubled that the 
DCC have not listened to the parents of St Brigidâ€™s who are against the closure 
and merger with Blessed Edward Jones. At the meeting on Tuesday the 25th June, 
the DCC were awful in their attitude towards us with one member saying we need 
to grow up and have an adult conversation with them because  all we keep saying 
is we are against  it and they say this is irrelevant and that Blessed Edward 
Jones should be priority because it is in an objective one area and indeed 
Jacky Walley said that the schools are being closed to get rid of surplus 
places but we do not have surplus places, to which she said if both schools 
remain open as they were it would mean having to close the Rhyl school due to 
surplus places which means we are being sacrificed for the Rhyl school. 
 
Also I do not think anyone as considered exactly what it means if the new 
school is built in Rhuddlan, I have a list of plans which show where the new 
school is being considered, namely near Abbey Farm and if this is the case and 
it is a new 1500 school which is the figure discussed by the Diocese and the 
DCC, then it would have a great impact on Prestatyn High school. Also when Rhyl 
High school is updated along with the sixth form this will attract pupils from 
Blessed Edward Jones which may leave it empty anyway. 
 
Another consideration is that fact that the parents of St Brigidâ€™s will not 
send their children to the new merged school, and we have many parents who 
actively travel or send their children from Rhyl and live there and refuse to 
use either Rhyl High or Blessed Edward Jones and have stated they will send 
them to Prestatyn an oversubscribed school which will make the new school a 
waste of money. 
 
Another big consideration is the fact that we will lose our Faith and be forced 
to amalgamate into a large comprehensive as Rita Price stated at the meeting 
there is no such thing as a Faith School and it will be a large school with 
Catholics, Anglicans and other faiths; which effectively makes it another large 
comprehensive. 
 
I would also like to point out that the data used by the DCC is very selective 
and uses information that makes St Brigidâ€™s look like it is lower down in the 
education ratings than it is and indeed we are high up in our family group and 
it is only our maths that let us down, as is the case in many schools, in 
English and Science we are way above average and year after year perform 
outstandingly. 
 
I urge you to help us to stay where we are and expand to incorporate more 
pupils, we have the room (we have been offered more land by the farmer next 

Page 252



door) we have put forward another plan for the DCC to look at and they will not
but yet they say they are open to other alternatives, we have drawn up plans
and even in the process of getting costing to update and expand our school,
this will benefit the area and ensure the high standards already set by St
Brigidâ€™s and bear in mind we are probably the only school in North Wales that
can say we have no behaviour issues and no bullying. We are a school that is
open to all; the entrance exam could go and bear in mind pupils who take this
are only expected to reach a level 4, which is the national level for pupils at
the end of key stage 2.

Please reconsider your views on our school help us to build on the caring and
sharing ethos of St Brigidâ€™s so that we may take it forward and expand and
reach out to more children in Denbighshire who can benefit from a fantastic
education in a caring environment.

Yours sincerely

REDACTED

REDACTED

Dear 

I am writing to you as a REDACTED. We have been presented with a proposal to merge St 
Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones school and create a new site in the Rhyl area. These 
proposals have raised serious concerns and questions that the ‘Modernising Education’ team 
have not answered or not answered satisfactorily. 

I am aware that you may not also be able to answer these questions but I feel compelled to raise 
awareness of the potential problems that may be associated with the current proposals.

The Anglican and Catholic representatives asked us to “see the big picture” asked us to share 
their vision, a vision to create a unified faith school which serves the North coastal area of 
Denbighshire. They talk about equality of access. The Anglican representative talked of 
attracting students from Flint and Conway. If this is to be a county faith school surely it should 
consider serving the South of the county, otherwise this so called equality is not being opened to 
all. I myself am a parent from REDACTED and I know there are a growing number of students in 
or waiting to come to St Brigid’s from further to the South. Denbigh would make much more 
sense as a central location for the county. As a parent my option for a Catholic school would be 
either to travel 20 miles to the Rhyl area or travel 20 miles out of county to Wrexham. Rather 
than open up access for my family this will make it harder to access. 

So my 1st question is:

As a parent in REDACTED, what would be my choices when trying to provide a catholic 
education for my children?

In the consultation document developing St Brigid’s site and Blessed Edward Jones were 
recorded as one of 6 proposals, however Jackie Whalley has admitted that they have only 
costed one proposal, the proposal that they have chosen to pursue. 

REDACTION

Page 253



 
So my 2nd question is: Why have these other proposals not been considered or properly costed?  
  
There are many advantages of building on an already successful site with a school that has a 
waiting list, which is the guarantee of filling places. The current proposal is asking both schools 
to take huge leap of faith with no guarantee that parents and children will follow to a new site 
which does not have a proven track record or established ethos. 
  
St Brigid’s students already prove that they are prepared to travel to a school they trust and 
believe in. 
  
It seems as though Denbighshire County Council are wanting to attract students from another 
county rather than provide more productively from our own local authority? Surely the vision of 
the Catholic and Anglican representatives is counter productive to the vision of the local 
authority. 
 
So it would seem the agenda of the faith establishments and the agenda of the local authority 
are different.  
 
If there are other potential proposals that have not been explored, then how can the authority 
assume this is the best option?  
  
 
Denbigh sits at the heart of the county. It could be seen geographically as the core of the county. 
There is evidence put forward my Michael Gove himself that suggests that coastal schools do 
not retain the same students throughout their school life. Denbigh continues to be overlooked by 
the county.  
  
So my 3rd question is – Why not develop the St Brigid’s site in Denbigh? 
  
There is weak evidence to suggest merging two schools but running them on two sites under 
one leadership team is a strong educational model especially two schools that are twelve miles 
apart, but we’re expected to accept this for 5 years whilst we wait for a proposal that may not 
even come to fruition. The wording of the ‘modernising Education’ team has been recently much 
more doubtful about the final single site school.  
  
So my 4th question is: Why do we need to merge on two sites for 5 years? 
  
Jackey Whalley said “we wish to take best practice from both schools” 
 
What is this best practice? With no proposal to maintain the primary school or 6th form, both 
elements that add enormously to the welfare of our students and provide them with a safe and 
supportive passage through their educational lives from 3-18yrs, where is the desire to 
acknowledge that this model might be best practice? 
 
So my 5th question is: Why has the 3-18 model of education not been recognised as 
transformational? 
  
 
The local authority have also presented different educational proposals that contradict each 
other. One proposal is for Rhyl High School to be developed to increase capacity, yet it has 
gone from just over a thousand students in 2009 to just over 700 students in 2013. If it is going 
to increase in size where is that extra capacity going to come from? It will either pull back 
students from Prestatyn or attract students from Blessed Edwards. Surely they can’t expect to 
be bringing in from other authorities. That is going to jeopardise the new faith school and 

Page 254



undermine their own proposals. And if the funding for this developed site is from the same pot of 
money that will build a new single site school, why has Jackie Whalley in the past told staff and 
parents that there would be no money to develop the St Brigid’s site.

So my 6th question is: How will this new school site work in conjunction with the counties’ other 
educational proposals?

In all of the proposals set forth by the ‘Modernising education’ team there is not one substantial 
bit of evidence that would suggest that a merged school on two sites that are 12 miles apart 
would be a strong model. There is no financial evidence and no educational evidence. Jackey 
Whalley admitted that phase 1 was not ideal, then why incorporate it? The only justification we 
had on the meeting on the 25th Of June was that it would allow St Brigid’s to soak up the surplus 
places that Blessed Edward Jones has got and then allow them to draw down funds. How can 
this be a sound platform for “modernising education”?

I would greatly appreciate your thoughts about my concerns and look forward to hearing from 
you.

Yours sincerely

REDACTED

REDACTED

Subject :  joint faith based provision for north wales

I am opposing the merger of St Brigids with Blessed Edward Jones as I feel it will not benefit my 
children the way St Brigids does.. I sent my children to this school because I loved the feel of the 
school the family base and morals it stood for.  I cant see that one head teacher will be able to 
manage two schools sharing his/her time between the schools and not being a permanent fixture 
at either site .  I am concerned that the teaching quality will disappear as teachers either move 
on to other jobs or get transferred to rhyl they will not have the personal touch of knowing the 
children on a familiar basis as their time will be divided between the two sites with an extremely 
larger number of pupils to keep watch over .

I have just spent a rather large amount of money on 2 new uniforms for my girls and would be 
extremely annoyed to have to change a uniform again as this one would have lasted them for a 
few years .

I am even more concerned at the amount of travelling my daughter would have to do to get 
between the two sites for lessons.  This would disrupt their daily routine and tire them out where 
they would not be fit to learn or take part in lessons .  It could prove dangerous if they were tired 
during a cooking or science lesson .  This fact is disturbing me more and more I am angry that 
you would even consider putting a child through this on a daily basis.

My other daughter has just been accepted into the primary department of the school and yet 
there is no mention of what would happen to these primary pupils if and when the merger 
happens as I parent I feel quite in the dark over your proposals for the primary.

Please take into consideration the parents views , we have chosen this school for our children 
because we like the school and all that it stands for .  

yours faithfully 

REDACTED

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 255



REDACTED 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I am the parent of two girls who attend St Brigids school in Denbigh.One of which is a year 
REDACTED pupil, the other is in year REDACTED. Both have been pupils since the age of 3. 

My eldest daughter obtained REDACTED in her GCSE'S .She is currently studying 4 A levels 
and is hopeful of attending Cambridge,which by all accounts is a realistic possibility. 

My youngest daughter is also thriving academically. The school have been exceptionally 
supportive of her excellent sporting abilities. 

They have both been happy,felt safe and secure and part of the 'family' of St Brigids and 
continue to do so. They have learnt excellent discipline,good manners and have grown into 
rounded members of the community.They fund raise for local clubs and volunteer with disabled 
children. 

We were all devastated to learn that there was a possibility the school could close.They would 
not attend a school in Rhyl,Bodelwyddan or Rhuddlan. 

To be honest I could not believe the possibility of St Brigids closing.The school is unique in 
offering education from 3 to 19 years,which is a model that is being copied in other authorities 
due to its success.The results are outstanding,it being the highest achieving school in 
Denbighshire. The children are happy and stable and the religious ethos is valued greatly. 

Why change something that isn't broken.In fact it is thriving and should,in my opinion, be 
supported with funding to sustain itself and grow. 

In my opinion you are creating great upset,confusion,instability by these proposals to our 
youngsters,teachers ,parents,governors etc.It needs to stop now. 

I don't feel you are listening to all the views expressed,the facts provided to you and are 
providing any evidence to support you proposals.Furthermore I don' feel you are considering 
alternative proposals. 

Could you please acknowledge receipt of this email. 

Yours faithfully 

REDACTED 

REDACTED 

Subject :  St.Brigid's and Blessed Edward Jones Public Consultation Response 

To the modernising education team, 

I have read the public consultation document and attended your meetings, and I feel that there 
are many questions you do not answer and also that you are not going to take anything that’s 
pointed out and push forward regardless of   public opinions. You do not have the children's 
interest and the core of all this is by driven by money. You will take this to the next stage 
regardless of public opinion.  

 

I am writing this letter as I felt the actually document to respond by was limited and the questions 
were loaded with the response you want from parents.  

 My first point is with ref to 2.1 D.C.C seems more concerned about other authorities and 
children travelling from them then the children in the south of the county. 

 You talk about in phase one about the schools been one school on 2 sites please could you 
provide me the evidence how you expect this to work with the schools been 10 miles apart and 
for 5 years at least and there is no guarantee D.C.C will get the funding for phase 2 with the 

Page 256



economic and political landscape   been as it is so what is D.C.C plan for the future if you do not 
get the funding. What will be the overall cost to taxpayers for the merger of 2 schools I know you 
have furnished in the document the savings I want to know costs?  

There is also no detailed provision in the document for 3-11 and 16-19 in the phase one. Surely 
you should be detailing this as both age groups are affected and a separate consultation running 
concurrently with this public consultation. Is this even legal? 

 You state in 3.6 that the children have been consulted in this process but the questions have 
been set by an employee of D.C.C again questions that lead the answer in favour of phase 1 
phase2. Maybe the children's commissioner for Wales needs to consulted. 

 The mobiles classrooms on St.Brigid’s site are to be removed in 5.4 but in another statement 
phase one goes ahead things will stay the same for both school. You state 10.1 10.2 that the 
same environment will be maintained for S.E.N but where is the evidence this will be so. Then 
you say it will prove more challenging for S.E.N surely there is a duty of care for all pupils during 
this unsettling time.  

 The document states no decision yet 11.2  on phase 2 yet you mention Rhuddlan Bodelwyddan 
as preferred sites.11.12 mentions proceeds from the buildings been sold off with go towards the 
pot for the new school which is in the future. The fact that D.C.C has no claim on the proceeds 
from the sale of St.Brigid’s will go towards the new school.  

 12.3 mentioned management structure will be better. Please supply evidence of the failing 

 of St.Brigid’s in the management team and management of the school.  

 12.3 12.4 12.6 12.7 please provide me of evidence to back up statement is difficult for a small 
secondary school to meet the statutory requirement for subjects to be offered. The document 
mentions 12.9 teaching is compromised please provide evidence for this statement.  

 12.11 The 2009 report condemns buildings but my opinion is the D.C.C have failed in the case 
of both schools to maintain the buildings to satisfactory standard and they are to blame for this 
because the lack of investment.  

12.13 Please backup with evidence why in St.Brigid’s and B.E.J there has been significant 
barriers in P.E.  

12.14D.C.C in this statement represent an effective use of resources please can you furnish me 
with the evidence the reason why both schools cannot be invested in at a fraction of the cost and 
make both schools of a standard fit for purpose for W.A.G 21st century programme. 

 17.1 please furnish me with details of how the dual site will work, with teaches and travelling 
time etc. 

I am supposed to in the public consultation period make an informed intelligent decision on the 
evidence you provide. I am not able to do this from document you published you make sweeping 
statement; there is a lack evidence to back up claims that D.C.C are making. I would like the 
statistics that you have that joint faith schools work.  

 I believe the whole process is flawed and decisions have already been made and it’s the 
education officers that actually are in control, and not actually listening to the people affected by 
this proposal 

If this process goes any further and not stopped because all the flaws in this consultation it 
should go to judicial review. 

I would be grateful if you supply me all the evidence asked for in this letter A.S.A.P. Also can you 
please acknowledge my letter. I look forward to your comments on the points I have raised. I 
cant believe that D.C.C want to close St.Brigid's school as it  over subscribed and currently has 
670 names on a waiting list. This is insane reckless behaviour from the council.    

  

Page 257



Yours Sincerely  

REDACTED 

 

Page 258



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 259



Page 260



REDACTION

REDACTI

ON
REDACTI

ON

REDACTION

Page 261



REDACTION REDACTION
REDACTION

Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 269



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 270



REDACTION

Page 271



REDACTION

Page 272



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 273



Page 274



REDACTION

Page 275



REDA

CTION

REDACTI

ON

RED

ACTI

DAC

N

CTION

REDACTION

REDA

CTIO

N

RED

ACT

ION
RED

ACTI

ON

RED

ACTI

ON
RED

ACT

ION
RE

DA R

E

D

RED

ACTI

ON

RE

DA

CTIRE

DA

CTI

RED

ACTI

ON

R

E

D

RED

ACTI

ON

REDAC

TION

REDACTION REDACTIONREDACTION

Page 276



Page 277



REDACTION

Page 278



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 279



Page 280



REDACTION

Page 281



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 282



Page 283



REDACTION

Page 284



REDACTION

Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 291



REDACTION

Page 292



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 293



REDACTION

Page 294



Page 295



REDACTION

Page 296



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 297



REDACTION

Page 298



REDACTION

Page 299



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 300



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 301



REDACTI

ON

REDAC

TION

REDACT

ION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION
REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 302



REDACTI

REDACTI

ON

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 303



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 304



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 305



REDACTIONREDACTION

REDACTION

Page 306



REDACTIONREDACTION

REDACTION

Page 307



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 308



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 309



Page 310



REDACTION

Page 311



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 312



REDACTION

Page 313



Page 314



REDACTION
REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 315



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 316



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 317



REDACTION

Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 328



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 329



REDACTION

Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



REDACTION

Page 335



REDACTION

Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



REDACTION

Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354

This page is intentionally left blank



Estyn response to the proposal for a new joint faith based school for North 

Denbighshire 

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and 

Training in Wales. 

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its 

associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn.  

However Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code 

and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school 

organisation matters.  Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their 

opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals. 

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the 

following response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional 

information such as data from Welsh Government and the views of the Regional 

Consortia which deliver school improvement services to the schools within the 

proposal.  

Introduction 

This consultation proposal is from Denbighshire County Council, the Catholic 

diocese of Wrexham and the Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph. 

The proposal is that: 

· Denbighshire County Council would close Blessed Edward Jones Catholic high 

school and St Brigid’s school on 31st August 2014; and 

 

· the Catholic Diocese of Wrexham and the Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph, 

in partnership with Denbighshire County Council, would establish a new Anglican 

& Catholic dual-faith voluntary-aided school serving the communities of Denbigh, 

Rhyl and surrounding areas opening on the 1st September 2014, using the 

existing sites. 

The proposers will, at a later date, make a separate proposal to construct a new 

building to house the new dual site faith school on a new site in the 

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area. The location of this new site will be determined at a 

future date and will be the subject of a separate formal consultation with all 

stakeholders. 

Summary/ Conclusion 

Are the proposals likely to maintain or improve the standard of education 

provision in the area? 

Page 355



It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present 

standards of education provision in the area. 

Overall, pupil outcomes in both schools appear to be good, with both schools 

improving in the last three years. 

It is likely that pupils would still be taught on the same site by the same teachers if 

this proposal goes ahead, the impact on outcomes is likely to be very limited.  

However this cannot be guaranteed as the new dual site school’s governing body will 

ultimately decide who is appointed. 

Pupil attendance also appears to be good at both schools.  

What effect do the proposals have on other schools and educational 

institutions in the area? 

The proposals are likely to have a limited immediate impact on other schools in the 

area unless a large number of parents wish to choose alternative provision in a dual-

faith school. The informal consultation found that …’a number of parents/guardians, 

particularly from the St Brigid’s School community stated that they would not send 

their children to any successor school and would wish to choose alternative 

provision’.  It would have been helpful for the proposal to clarify this ‘number’.  

However, the proposal notes that there is a combined surplus capacity of over 950 

places currently in the four other secondary schools that parents would be likely to 

consider, so schools are likely to be able to accommodate the wishes of parents.  

Description and benefits 

What are the expected benefits of the proposals and disadvantages when 

compared with the status quo as outlined in the report? 

 

The expected benefits of the current proposal include the following: 

· the development of leadership and management structures, across both schools, 

to provide increased opportunities for staff development and progression; 

· greater opportunities for the two schools to work together to improve staff 

expertise; and 

· a wider range of courses at key stage 4 to more effectively address the statutory 

requirements of the 14 19 Learning and Skills Measure. 

However, the proposal lacks sufficient detail on how these aspects will be 

implemented. 

 

The next stage of the development which will be subject to a separate proposal is 

intended to address issues around the suitability of the accommodation.   

 

Page 356



The proposers have not identified any specific disadvantages of the current 

proposal, although they have said that they will ensure that any disruption due to a 

transfer of pupils between premises is kept to a minimum and should not impact on 

the children’s education. 

 

· How well has the proposer managed any risks associated with the 

proposals? 

 

The proposers have identified the relevant risks relating to maintaining the right 

ethos, admission arrangements and staffing and financial implications associated 

with the proposal. They have also identified how these risks will be managed.  

However, the proposers have not clearly identified how they will manage the risk of 

parents choosing alternative provision which would be likely to lead to a reduction in 

pupil numbers. 

 

· Has the proposer considered suitable alternatives and given good reasons 

as to why these have been discounted? 

 

The proposers have considered a range of alternative options which include 

maintaining the status quo, undertaking refurbishment works or rebuilding at both 

schools and building a new joint-faith school. They have appropriately shown the 

advantages and disadvantages of each option and the reasons for their preferred 

option.  

 

· What would be the impact of the changes on learner travel arrangements 

and on accessibility of provision? 

 

There should be no initial implications regarding transport for pupils arising from the 

current proposal.  All pupils currently transported to Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High school and St Brigid’s’ school who qualify for ‘home to school transport’ would 

continue to be transported free of charge to the Rhyl and Denbigh sites of the new 

dual site faith school; subject to parental preference. 

 

· Do the proposals effectively show how surplus places will be affected? If 

surplus places will be increased, does the proposer give adequate reasons 

for this? 

 

The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls, based on current numbers for pupils in 
primary schools who normally transfer, suggests that a drop in future pupil numbers 
will occur at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High school from 499 in 2013 to 394 in 
2018. The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 659 pupils. As of 
January 2013 the school had 160 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 24.3% of its 
total capacity.  
 

Page 357



The council’s forecast suggests that pupil numbers in secondary at St Brigid’s will 
decline slightly from 360 in 2013 to 350 in 2018.  Its capacity is 367 pupils. This 
means that it currently has seven surplus places or 1.9%.  
 
St Brigid’s school currently has 130 pupils in its primary provision and a capacity of 
121 pupils. This means it is overfilled by nine pupils. The proposers have not 
provided projected pupil numbers for primary provision in St Brigid’s. 
 

Educational aspects of the proposal 

· How well has the proposer considered the impact of the proposals on the 

quality of the outcomes, provision and leadership and management? 

The proposer has considered a wide range of appropriate data relating to 

performance against the averages for the family of schools, the local authority and 

Wales overall (some of this detailed data would have been better placed in an 

appendix).  The proposer has also considered the judgements from the most recent 

inspection reports for each school.   

It would have been helpful for the proposer to consider the performance of each 

school compared to similar schools based on the proportion of pupils entitled to free 

school meals. 

Overall, pupil outcomes in both schools appear to be good currently, with both 

schools improving in the last three years. 

As pupils would still be taught on the same site by the same teachers if this proposal 

goes ahead, the impact on outcomes is likely to be very limited.  However, there 

would potentially be a greater impact if a second proposal to move to a new single 

site goes ahead.  Despite including a lot of data, the proposal offers only a brief 

evaluation of the impact of the proposal on outcomes, with the focus being on 

improved provision due to a variety of issues with the buildings and facilities at both 

schools.  There is no consideration of the impact of a new single site on the areas of 

learning where the current provision is inadequate (PE, ICT, DT, 14-19 range).   

The proposer has not included an evaluation on the current quality of teaching, 

although the proposal notes the potential for improved teaching as a result of 

combining the staff.  The proposer suggests that joint lesson planning, standardised 

assessment and peer observations will improve teaching which will raise standards, 

but opportunities for joint working will be fairly limited while the school remains on 

two sites that are 10 miles apart (approximately 20 minutes travel time).   

The proposer has not included an evaluation on the current quality of leadership and 

management of each school.  The proposer notes that ‘financial constraints limit the 

capacity of small secondary schools to implement senior and middle leadership 

structures that meet the requirements of teachers pay and conditions’, but the 

Page 358



proposer has not made it clear whether or not the current situation in either school is 

in breach of the requirements.  However, the proposer has appropriately noted that 

the development of leadership and management structures in the dual-site school 

would provide increased opportunities for staff development and progression.    

· How well has the proposer considered the likely impact of the proposals to 

ensure delivery of the full curriculum at the foundation phase and at each 

key stage? 

One of the key reasons for the proposal is to prepare the way for a future proposal to 

move to a single site in order to address the current concerns about the provision 

offered at each school.  The current proposal, however, is likely to have a very 

limited impact on the delivery of the curriculum as the pupils will remain at their 

current site with the same staff and facilities.  However, the caveat is that it for the 

school’s governing body to ultimately decide which staff are appointed. 

How well has the proposer considered the impact of the proposals on 

vulnerable groups, including children with Special Educational Needs? 

The proposer notes that there is no immediate impact on children with Special 

educational needs, which seems a reasonable conclusion.  The proposer has not 

considered the impact of the proposal for any other vulnerable group of learners, for 

example looked-after children or Gypsy Traveller children. 

· Where proposals involve the transfer of learners to alternative provision, 

how well has the proposer provided evidence that the alternative would 

deliver outcomes and offer provision at least equivalent to that which is 

currently available to those learners (including learners with SEN)? How 

well has the proposer ensured that the disruption to learners is minimised? 

This current proposal does not involve the transfer of any learners to alternative 

provision, although it prepares the way for a future proposal which would involve the 

transfer of all pupils to a new single site.  The issues associated with such a move 

and any mitigating actions would be considered in that separate proposal. 

Report prepared by Farrukh Khan HMI and Mark Campion HMI. 

Date: 2 July 2013 

Page 359



Page 360

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:   29th October 2013 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
  
Report Author:  Head of Customers and Education Support 
 
Title:     Formal Consultation – Ysgol Llanbedr 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report is to update Cabinet Members of the discussions with the Church in 
Wales Diocesan Authority regarding the Ruthin Primary review and the 
proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

A decision will be required by Cabinet whether to proceed to formal 
consultation for the proposal in relation to Ysgol Llanbedr and to note further 
recommendations to improve education provision in the area 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

The recommendation is to approve formal consultation for proposals to close 
Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31st August 2014 with existing pupils transferring to 
Ysgol Borthyn, subject to parental preference, subject to the findings of the 
discussion with the Church in Wales.  
 

4. Report Details – Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr with the transfer of pupils to 
Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference  

 
 Case for Change 
 
4.1 Ysgol Llanbedr is an English Medium, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled 

Primary School which serves an age range of 4-11. The school is located on 
the outskirts of the Village of Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd. As at January 2013 (the 
date of the annual pupil census) Ysgol Llanbedr had 21 Full Time pupils on 
roll. Pupil numbers have declined over the past 18 months as illustrated in the 
table below; 

 
    Full Time Pupil Numbers 2009-2012 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

67 63 59 37 21 

               *Data from January of each year 
 
4.2       At the January 2013 the year groups were as follows; 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 361



  

    Year Groups 2012-2013 
 

Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

5 4 7 0 3 1 1 

               *Data from January 2013 
 
4.3     The Council’s pupil projection forecast based on current pupil numbers 

suggests that there will be an increase in numbers of pupils at the school, this 
is illustrated below; 

 
Pupil Projections 2014-2018 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

24 27 28 32 29 

              *Data from June Pupil Projections 2013 
 
4.4     The intake for Nursery and Reception for the academic year 2013/2014 was as 

follows; 

Nursery 7 

Reception 3 

 
 Following the Cabinet meeting in June 2013 the Council have been informed 

by the Governing Body that potentially 12 applications were to be expected for 
entry into Nursery in September 2014.  The deadline for applications to 
Nursery and Reception and Nursery respectively are the 29th November and 
21st February 2014 respectively.  As at the time of finalising the report the 
authority had processed 4 applications for Reception and 5 applications for 
Nursery provision.   

  
4.5    The capacity of the permanent school building has previously been recorded 

as 77.  This included 54 Permanent places and 23 places in mobile 
accommodation.  The Governing Body have made representations for the 
mobile provision to be removed from the school and so for the purposes of this 
report the capacity has been calculated at 54 Full Time pupil places.  

 
4.6     Based on the September 2013 pupil return the school currently has 21 Full 

Time Pupils and 7 Part Time Pupils.  Using the suggested revised capacity 
figure of 54 the school currently has 33 surplus places and a surplus % of 
61.1%. Authorities are advised by the Welsh Government to ‘act purposefully’ 
in instances where schools have a surplus above 25%.  

 
4.7    Although pupil projections show an increase in pupil numbers over the coming 

years that could potential reduce surplus places at the school, Ysgol Llanbedr 
will still remain a ‘small school’ and issues will still remain regarding the 
sustainability and viability of Ysgol Llanbedr and standards of education and 
attainment in the future. Within the suite of proposals considered by Cabinet in 
June 2013 all schools will pupil numbers less than 80 will be subject to 
proposals for change. 

 
4.8 The Cabinet agreed at its June meeting to proceed towards formal 

consultation for the closure of Ysgol Llanbedr.   
 

Page 362



  

4.9 As of 1st October the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 
has become the primary legislation for the progression of school organisation 
proposals. The Act requires consultation with the appropriate religious body 
before any decision is made to proceed to formal consultation. To ensure 
compliance with the legislation it was agreed to defer the implementation of 
the decision to consult on this proposal, pending formal consultation with the 
St Asaph Church in Wales Diocese.  This consultation took place between the 
9th September and the 7th October.  As part of this consultation a meeting was 
held with with Education Officers from the Diocesan Authority on the 25th 
September to discuss this proposal and the wider issues impacting upon Ysgol 
Llanfair and Ysgol Borthyn. 

 
4.10 In respect of this specific proposal the outcome was that no agreement was 

reached between Denbighshire and the Diocese of St Asaph regarding the 
closure of Llanbedr.  Should the proposal go forward the Director, on behalf of 
the Diocese, will make a formal response, having consulted again with the 
Board of Education. 

 
4.11 It is anticipated that the Consultation on the proposal (see Appendix A) to 

close Ysgol Llanbedr would take place between the 11th November and the 
23rd December.  This will allow the discussions to commence during the school 
term with consultation taking place for at least six weeks.  This consultation 
process will give parents, pupils, governors and staff the opportunity to 
comment upon the proposals before a decision is made by Cabinet whether to 
proceed and formally publish proposals for change.   

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

The proposal supports the priority of “Improving performance in education and 
the quality of our school buildings” and has been highlighted as a workstream 
as follows: 

 
“We will continue to review school provision across the County to ensure that 
we provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in the right 
location.” 

 
6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
6.1 The main cost for this stage of proposals will be around printing and posting 

and the costs associated with arranging public meetings. Should the proposals 
proceed and become implemented, it is anticipated that there will be a need 
for HR support for staff that will be impacted upon by the proposed changes.  

 
7.  What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
An EqIA has been undertaken on the decision and is attached as Appendix B. 
  

 

 

Page 363



  

8.  What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

Full consultation has been undertaken with all stakeholders and the findings 
from the Formal Consultation period are summarised in the main body of the 
report.  

 
9.  Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

The cost of the formal consultation is not thought to be significant and should 
be contained within existing resources.  
 

10.  What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

There is a strong possibility that the proposal could result in adverse publicity 
for the Council and in adverse public comments.   

 
To minimise this risk the Council will seek to ensure clear communication with 
all stakeholders. 

 
11  Power to make the Decision 
  

School Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 
Modernising Education Policy Framework (approved by Cabinet January 
2009) 

Page 364



 

Review of Primary Provision in the Ruthin Area

 

Formal Consultation Document

 

Proposal to Close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on the 31

transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Modernising Education 

 

Review of Primary Provision in the Ruthin Area

Formal Consultation Document 

Close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on the 31
st

 of August 2014 and 

transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

preference. 

September 2013 

Version 20/08/2013 

1 

Review of Primary Provision in the Ruthin Area 

of August 2014 and 

transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

Page 365



 

 

1.          Introduction 

1.1    Denbighshire County Council

primary schools in the Ruthin Area.

1.2      As a consequence of the informal consultation exercise 

wish formally to consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they consider 

would strengthen future provision.

1.3        The proposal that: 

             Denbighshire County Council would close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31

and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference.

 

2.         The Proposal  

2.1     Denbighshire County Council would 

with pupils being transferred to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

preference. 

2.2    Denbighshire’s Cabinet agreed to move to a period of formal consultation in June 

2013, the formal consultation wit

place from the 11
th

 of November to the 23rd

2.3      The formal consultation relates to the above proposal, namely to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

on the 31
st

 of August 2014. Throughout this documen

the Current Proposal. 

3.         Consultation Process 

3.1     Denbighshire County Council is required to follow the consultation process as set out 

in the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013

3.2        The Consultation will be taking place between the 

December 2013. 

  3.3      During the consultation period a series of consultation events will be taking place; 

meetings will be held wit

Parent and Guardian meetings will be ‘drop

parents to meet with Officers on an individual basis. 

are provided below: 

 

 

Denbighshire County Council has completed an Informal Consultation with eleven 

schools in the Ruthin Area. 

As a consequence of the informal consultation exercise Denbighsh

consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they consider 

would strengthen future provision. 

Denbighshire County Council would close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31

and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference.

Denbighshire County Council would close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31

with pupils being transferred to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

Denbighshire’s Cabinet agreed to move to a period of formal consultation in June 

2013, the formal consultation with stakeholders and interested parties will take 

of November to the 23rd of December 2013. 

The formal consultation relates to the above proposal, namely to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

of August 2014. Throughout this document the proposal is referred to as 

 

 

Denbighshire County Council is required to follow the consultation process as set out 

in the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013
i
. 

The Consultation will be taking place between the 11
th

 of November and the 23rd

During the consultation period a series of consultation events will be taking place; 

meetings will be held with teaching and ancillary staff and the Governing Body. 

Parent and Guardian meetings will be ‘drop-in’ sessions, providing an opportunity for 

parents to meet with Officers on an individual basis. The details of these meetings 

2 

has completed an Informal Consultation with eleven 

hire County Council 

consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they consider 

Denbighshire County Council would close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31
st

 August 2014 

and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31
st

 of August 2014 

with pupils being transferred to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

Denbighshire’s Cabinet agreed to move to a period of formal consultation in June 

h stakeholders and interested parties will take 

 

The formal consultation relates to the above proposal, namely to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

t the proposal is referred to as 

Denbighshire County Council is required to follow the consultation process as set out 

of November and the 23rd of 

During the consultation period a series of consultation events will be taking place; 

e Governing Body. 

in’ sessions, providing an opportunity for 

The details of these meetings 

Page 366



 

 

Staff 

 

 

Staff 

 

 

3.4    A children’s version of the consultation document has been produced and will be 

available for pupils from both schools. Denbighshire County Council will also hold 

consultation events with the pupils

3.5       This consultation document has been sent to a wide range of consultees

includes; 

a. Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol Llanbedr;

b. Chairs of Govern

schools; 

� Ysgol Llanbedr;

� Rhos Street School;

� Ysgol Llanfair DC;

� Ysgol Gellifor

c. Church in Wales Diocese of St.Asaph and the Roman Catholic Diocese of 

Wrexham; 

d. Headteachers and Chairs of Governors at all

e. Independent nursery providers in the Llanbedr and Ruthin areas;

f. Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

Development and Childcare Partnerships;

g. All Denbighshire County Councillors;

h. Assembly Members

by the proposal;

i. Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd Community;

j. Ruthin Town Council;

k. The Welsh Government;

l. Estyn; and 

m. Relevant teaching and ancillary staff Trade Unions;

n. Taith; 

o. Gwasanaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion;

p. North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner

 

Ysgol Llanbedr 

Governing Body Parents/Guardians

  

Ysgol Borthyn 

Governing Body Parents/Guardians

  

A children’s version of the consultation document has been produced and will be 

available for pupils from both schools. Denbighshire County Council will also hold 

consultation events with the pupils at both schools during the consultation period

This consultation document has been sent to a wide range of consultees

Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol Llanbedr; 

Chairs of Governors, Governors and the School Council of the following 

Ysgol Llanbedr; 

Rhos Street School; 

Ysgol Llanfair DC; 

Ysgol Gellifor 

Church in Wales Diocese of St.Asaph and the Roman Catholic Diocese of 

Headteachers and Chairs of Governors at all schools in Denbighshire;

Independent nursery providers in the Llanbedr and Ruthin areas;

Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

Development and Childcare Partnerships; 

All Denbighshire County Councillors; 

Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing areas affected 

by the proposal; 

Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd Community; 

Ruthin Town Council; 

The Welsh Government; 

Relevant teaching and ancillary staff Trade Unions; 

Gwasanaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion; 

North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 

3 

Parents/Guardians 

Parents/Guardians 

A children’s version of the consultation document has been produced and will be 

available for pupils from both schools. Denbighshire County Council will also hold 

at both schools during the consultation period
ii
. 

This consultation document has been sent to a wide range of consultees
iii
, this 

ors, Governors and the School Council of the following 

Church in Wales Diocese of St.Asaph and the Roman Catholic Diocese of 

schools in Denbighshire; 

Independent nursery providers in the Llanbedr and Ruthin areas; 

Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

and Members of Parliament representing areas affected 

Page 367



 

 

3.6     This document has also been published on the Denbighshire County Council website 

and can be found by following this link 

council/consultations/current

 

4.         Power to make a decision 

4.1   Denbighshire County Council is permitted to publish proposals to 

according to the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  Accordingly, 

the formal publication of the closure of 

following the correct statutory procedure.

5.          Background to the proposal 

5.1    Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy 

Framework
iv
 in January 2009 to provide a platform

school provision. 

5.2      The council is committed to providing a first class education for all

people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed that 

‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the importance 

of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that meet 

of 21st century Wales.

5.3     We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, as 

improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way 

education is provided.

experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the widest 

opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential.

5.4  In November 2012 Denbighshire Count

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of primary education in 

the Ruthin Review.  The informal consultation document highlighted a number of 

issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainab

included: 

a. Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision

b. Surplus Places  

c. Condition and Suitability of School Buildings (incl. use of Mobile Accommodation)

d. Recruitment of Head Teachers

e. Demand for Welsh Medium Education

 

 

This document has also been published on the Denbighshire County Council website 

and can be found by following this link https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your

council/consultations/current-consultations.aspx  

Power to make a decision  

Denbighshire County Council is permitted to publish proposals to 

according to the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  Accordingly, 

the formal publication of the closure of a school may be carried out by the Council 

following the correct statutory procedure. 

Background to the proposal  

Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy 

in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which 

ouncil is committed to providing a first class education for all children and young 

people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed that 

‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the importance 

of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that meet 

of 21st century Wales. 

We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, as 

improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way 

education is provided.  Schools need to be able to provide the best possible learning 

experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the widest 

opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential.

In November 2012 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the 

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of primary education in 

the Ruthin Review.  The informal consultation document highlighted a number of 

issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainab

a. Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision  

c. Condition and Suitability of School Buildings (incl. use of Mobile Accommodation)

d. Recruitment of Head Teachers 

e. Demand for Welsh Medium Education 

4 

This document has also been published on the Denbighshire County Council website 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/your-

Denbighshire County Council is permitted to publish proposals to close a school 

according to the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  Accordingly, 

may be carried out by the Council 

Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy 

 to review existing 

children and young 

people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed that 

‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the importance 

of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that meet the needs 

We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, as 

improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way 

Schools need to be able to provide the best possible learning 

experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the widest 

opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential. 

y Council’s Cabinet approved the 

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of primary education in 

the Ruthin Review.  The informal consultation document highlighted a number of 

issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability.  These 

c. Condition and Suitability of School Buildings (incl. use of Mobile Accommodation) 

Page 368



 

5.5    The informal consultation ended on 

Council has carefully considered the issues raised during this period.  In total over 

letters and emails were received f

completed by parents.  The findings of the informal consultation exercise have been 

compiled by the council and have been published on its website as part of the 

decision making process.

6.         Responding to the Formal Consultation 

6.1        Denbighshire County Council welcomes responses to the formal consultation 

regarding the Current Proposal for Ysgol Llanbedr. Responses can be submitted in 

the following ways; 

� By completing and returning the response form (to be found at the end of this 

document) and returning by post to 

County Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL151YN

 

� You can also complete the response form online by following this link {link

monkey} 

 

� You can scan the response for

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk

 

� All other submission can be either posted to the postal address or to the above 

email address. 

 

6.2     Following the consultation all responses will be collated by the Modernising Education 

Team and this will form a Consultation Report that will become available 

decision being made by Denbighshire’s Cabinet.

6.3    Please ensure your response/r

any late submissions may not be taken into account.

6.4     It is anticipated that Denbighshire’s Cabinet will consider a report on the outcome of 

the formal consultation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The informal consultation ended on 22

nd
 of March 2013 and Denbighshire County 

has carefully considered the issues raised during this period.  In total over 

were received from stakeholders together with 195 

completed by parents.  The findings of the informal consultation exercise have been 

ouncil and have been published on its website as part of the 

decision making process. 

Responding to the Formal Consultation  

Denbighshire County Council welcomes responses to the formal consultation 

regarding the Current Proposal for Ysgol Llanbedr. Responses can be submitted in 

By completing and returning the response form (to be found at the end of this 

ument) and returning by post to Modernising Education Team, Denbighshire 

County Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL151YN

You can also complete the response form online by following this link {link

You can scan the response form attached and email a copy to 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk  

All other submission can be either posted to the postal address or to the above 

Following the consultation all responses will be collated by the Modernising Education 

Team and this will form a Consultation Report that will become available 

decision being made by Denbighshire’s Cabinet. 

Please ensure your response/responses are submitted by the 23rd of Dec

any late submissions may not be taken into account. 

Denbighshire’s Cabinet will consider a report on the outcome of 

 in early 2014. 

5 

Denbighshire County 

has carefully considered the issues raised during this period.  In total over 63 

rom stakeholders together with 195 questionnaires 

completed by parents.  The findings of the informal consultation exercise have been 

ouncil and have been published on its website as part of the 

Denbighshire County Council welcomes responses to the formal consultation 

regarding the Current Proposal for Ysgol Llanbedr. Responses can be submitted in 

By completing and returning the response form (to be found at the end of this 

Modernising Education Team, Denbighshire 

County Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL151YN. 

You can also complete the response form online by following this link {link-survey 

m attached and email a copy to 

All other submission can be either posted to the postal address or to the above 

Following the consultation all responses will be collated by the Modernising Education 

Team and this will form a Consultation Report that will become available prior to any 

23rd of December as 

Denbighshire’s Cabinet will consider a report on the outcome of 

Page 369



 

7.       Current Provision at Ysgol Llanbedr 

7.1     This section details the current provision at Ysgol Llanbedr.

7.2   Ysgol Llanbedr is an English Medium, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled Primary 

School which serves an age range of 4

Village of Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd.

7.3    The catchment area for the school is demonstrated in the map below;

 

 

7.4          At the January 2013 PLASC Ysgol Llanbedr had 21 Full Time pupils on roll. Pupil 

numbers have declined 

 

    

2009 

67 
               *Data from January PLASC of each year

 
Current Provision at Ysgol Llanbedr  

This section details the current provision at Ysgol Llanbedr. 

Ysgol Llanbedr is an English Medium, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled Primary 

School which serves an age range of 4-11. The school is located on the outskirts of the 

Village of Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd. 

The catchment area for the school is demonstrated in the map below;

At the January 2013 PLASC Ysgol Llanbedr had 21 Full Time pupils on roll. Pupil 

numbers have declined over the past 18 months as illustrated in the table below;

    Full Time Pupil Numbers 2009-2012 

2010 2011 2012 

63 59 37 
*Data from January PLASC of each year 

6 

Ysgol Llanbedr is an English Medium, Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled Primary 

ed on the outskirts of the 

The catchment area for the school is demonstrated in the map below; 

 

At the January 2013 PLASC Ysgol Llanbedr had 21 Full Time pupils on roll. Pupil 

over the past 18 months as illustrated in the table below; 

2013 

21 

Page 370



 

 

7.5        At the January 2013 PLASC the year groups were as 

Reception Year 1

5 4 
               *Data from January PLASC 2013

7.6     The Council’s pupil projection forecast suggests that there will be an increase in 

numbers of pupils at the school, this is illustrated below;

2014 

24 
              *Data from June Pupil Projections 2013

7.7     The intake for Nursery and Reception for the academic year 2013/2014 is as 

Nursery 

Reception 

 

7.8    The capacity of the permanent school building has been calculated at 54 Full Time 

pupil places. There is currently a mobile classroom provided on the school site which 

has a capacity of 23 Full Time pupil places, ho

used by the school as a classroom or resource area and has therefore been deducted 

from the overall capacity assessment.

7.9     Based on the capacity figure of 54 the school currently has 

intake for September 2013) and a surplus % of 

Welsh Government to ‘act purposefully’ in instances where schools have a surplus 

above 25%
v
. 

7.10  Although pupil projections show an increase in pupil numbers over the 

that could potential reduce surplus places at the school, Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain 

a ‘small school’ and issues will still remain regarding the sustainability and viability of 

Ysgol Llanbedr and standards of education and attainment in 

 

 

 

 

 

At the January 2013 PLASC the year groups were as follows; 

    Year Groups 2012-2013 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

7 0 3 
*Data from January PLASC 2013 

The Council’s pupil projection forecast suggests that there will be an increase in 

at the school, this is illustrated below; 

Pupil Projections 2014-2018 

2015 2016 2017 

27 28 32 
*Data from June Pupil Projections 2013 

The intake for Nursery and Reception for the academic year 2013/2014 is as 

7 

3 

The capacity of the permanent school building has been calculated at 54 Full Time 

pupil places. There is currently a mobile classroom provided on the school site which 

has a capacity of 23 Full Time pupil places, however this accommodation is no longer 

used by the school as a classroom or resource area and has therefore been deducted 

from the overall capacity assessment. 

Based on the capacity figure of 54 the school currently has 31 surplus places (based on 

ntake for September 2013) and a surplus % of 57.4%. Authorities are advised by the 

Welsh Government to ‘act purposefully’ in instances where schools have a surplus 

Although pupil projections show an increase in pupil numbers over the 

that could potential reduce surplus places at the school, Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain 

a ‘small school’ and issues will still remain regarding the sustainability and viability of 

Ysgol Llanbedr and standards of education and attainment in the future.

7 

Year 5 Year 6 

1 1 

The Council’s pupil projection forecast suggests that there will be an increase in 

2018 

29 

The intake for Nursery and Reception for the academic year 2013/2014 is as follows; 

The capacity of the permanent school building has been calculated at 54 Full Time 

pupil places. There is currently a mobile classroom provided on the school site which 

wever this accommodation is no longer 

used by the school as a classroom or resource area and has therefore been deducted 

surplus places (based on 

%. Authorities are advised by the 

Welsh Government to ‘act purposefully’ in instances where schools have a surplus 

Although pupil projections show an increase in pupil numbers over the coming years 

that could potential reduce surplus places at the school, Ysgol Llanbedr will still remain 

a ‘small school’ and issues will still remain regarding the sustainability and viability of 

the future. 

Page 371



 

8.  Estyn Report 

8.1  The school’s last inspection took place in June 2009 and the inspection report 

commented as follows
vi

Key Question

 

1. How well do learners achieve?

 

 

2. How effective are teaching, training and assessment? 

 

 

3. How well do the learning experiences meet the needs and 

interests of learners and the wider community? 

 

 

4. How well are learners cared for, guided and supported?

 

 

5. How effective are leadership and strategic management?

 

 

6. How well do leaders and managers evaluate and improve 

quality and standards? 

 

 

7. How efficient are leaders and managers in using resources?

 

 
Key: 
 
Grade 1  
Grade 2  
Grade 3  
Grade 4  
Grade 5  

 

8.2    In order to improve the school in the areas inspected, 

need to; 

Recommendation 1:        Raise standards by addressing shortcomings in Welsh second  

Recommendation 2:        Improve pupil’s bilingual competence.

Recommendation 3:        Improve curriculum planning to 

Recommendation 4:        Improve communication with parents/carers.

 

The school’s last inspection took place in June 2009 and the inspection report 
vi
; 

Key Question Llanbedr Inspection grade 

1. How well do learners achieve? 

2. How effective are teaching, training and assessment?  

3. How well do the learning experiences meet the needs and 

interests of learners and the wider community?  

4. How well are learners cared for, guided and supported? 

are leadership and strategic management? 

6. How well do leaders and managers evaluate and improve 

7. How efficient are leaders and managers in using resources? 

 Good with outstanding features 
 Good features and no important shortcomings
 Good features outweigh shortcomings 
 Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas
 Many important shortcomings 

In order to improve the school in the areas inspected, the staff and governing body 

Recommendation 1:        Raise standards by addressing shortcomings in Welsh second  

language. 

Recommendation 2:        Improve pupil’s bilingual competence. 

Recommendation 3:        Improve curriculum planning to ensure pupils better progress 

in all subjects. 

Recommendation 4:        Improve communication with parents/carers.

8 

The school’s last inspection took place in June 2009 and the inspection report 

Llanbedr Inspection grade - 2009 

 

2 

 

 

2 

 

3 

 

2 

 

3 

 

4 

 

2 

Good features and no important shortcomings 

Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas 

the staff and governing body 

Recommendation 1:        Raise standards by addressing shortcomings in Welsh second  

ensure pupils better progress 

Recommendation 4:        Improve communication with parents/carers. 

Page 372



 

Recommendation 5:        Develop the self

 

8.3     The authority recognises that this inspection was undertaken a number of years ago 

and should not be used as an indication of the current standards at the school.

 

9.       Educational Standards and Attainment

9.1    Educational standards at 

of very small cohorts in each year group a meaningful comparison with local and 

national averages is not possible;

Year 

Ysgol Llanbedr 

Denbighshire Average 

Wales – Average 

 

10.      Alternative Provision 

10.1  Denbighshire County Council has recommended that is the 

existing pupils could transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

The authority acknowledges that parents may not choose Ysgol Borthyn as an 

alternative provider of English Medium Faith Based education.

10.2  This section provides details of potential alternative, local authority maintained, 

provision on the periphery of the existing catchment areas. 

10.3   The existing provision is as follows;

 

 
Recommendation 5:        Develop the self-evaluation system to consistently and 

rigorously monitor standards of work and the quality of 

learning. 

The authority recognises that this inspection was undertaken a number of years ago 

and should not be used as an indication of the current standards at the school.

Educational Standards and Attainment 

Educational standards at the school are good and have improved, however as a result 

of very small cohorts in each year group a meaningful comparison with local and 

national averages is not possible; 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2

 

2008 2009 2010 2011

71.40% 83.30% 84.60% 100.00%

76.50% 76.80% 78.10% 82.30%

75.50% 77.00% 78.20% 80.00%

 

Denbighshire County Council has recommended that is the proposal was to proceed, 

existing pupils could transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

The authority acknowledges that parents may not choose Ysgol Borthyn as an 

alternative provider of English Medium Faith Based education. 

This section provides details of potential alternative, local authority maintained, 

provision on the periphery of the existing catchment areas.  

The existing provision is as follows; 

9 

evaluation system to consistently and 

rigorously monitor standards of work and the quality of 

The authority recognises that this inspection was undertaken a number of years ago 

and should not be used as an indication of the current standards at the school. 

the school are good and have improved, however as a result 

of very small cohorts in each year group a meaningful comparison with local and 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

2011 2012 

100.00% 85.70% 

82.30% 83.50% 

80.00% 82.60% 

proposal was to proceed, 

existing pupils could transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

The authority acknowledges that parents may not choose Ysgol Borthyn as an 

This section provides details of potential alternative, local authority maintained, 

Page 373



 

School Name Distance from 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC

Ysgol Borthyn 2.1 miles 

Rhos Street School 1.3 miles 

Ysgol Gellifor 2.9 miles 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 4.3 miles 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 3.1 miles 

 

 

 

 School Name 2008 

Ysgol Borthyn 87.5% 

Rhos Street School 82.1% 

Ysgol Gellifor  90% 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 76.7% 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 50% 

 

 

School Name Reception

Ysgol Borthyn 9 

Rhos Street School 23 

Ysgol Gellifor 13 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 8 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 10 

 

School Name 

Ysgol Borthyn 

Rhos Street School 

Ysgol Gellifor 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 

 

 
Distance from 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

Type of School Current 

Capacity 

Surplus Places

 
English/  Faith 
(VC) 142 31 

 
English / 
Community 189 26 

 
English/ 
Community 91 4 

 
English/ 
Community 135 92 

 
Bilingual/ Faith 
(VC) 113 23 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

2009 2010 2011

82.4% 58.8% 78.6%

86.7% 93.5% 93.3%

91.7% 92.9% 92.3%

87.5% 91.7% 100%

100% 88.9% 91.7%

Current Full Time Pupil Numbers (2013) 

Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

17 13 17 22 19

23 25 23 18 26

16 8 14 19 

15 11 10 11 13

13 10 10 15 15

Historic Pupil Numbers 2008 - 2012 

2008 2009 2010 

93 98 104 

190 171 177 

76 74 73 

90 84 74 

84 90 94 

10 

Surplus Places Nursery 

Places 

 20 

 23 

10 

 16 

 11 

2011 2012 

78.6% 92.3% 

93.3% 96.6% 

92.3% 100% 

100% 94.4% 

91.7% 100% 

Year 5 Year 6 Total 

19 14 111 

26 25 163 

5 12 87 

13 24 92 

15 17 90 

2011 2012 

103 113 

179 167 

77 85 

74 96 

96 93 

Page 374



 

School Name 

Ysgol Borthyn 

Rhos Street School 

Ysgol Gellifor 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 

 

11.          Special Educational Needs (SEN) Provision

11.1      If the Current Proposal is approved the most significant change for pupils will be a 

change in the learning environment and teacher. Any pupils with Special 

Educational Needs (SEN) who currently attend the school will continue to receive 

the same education and support bu

authority will provide help and support for pupils with SEN who experience 

difficulties due to change.

12.   Proposal Rationale  

12.1   Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible 

education  for its pupils, this proposal has been developed in line with the Councils 

commitment to ‘modernising education’, the Schools Effectiveness Framework’s 

aim of enabling all pupils to reach their full potential and the Welsh Assembly 

Government’s 21
st

 Century Schools Programme. 

12.2     There are a number of issues that are facing the school that could impact on the 

schools ability to sustain and safeguard educational provision in the future. These 

issues are outlined below;

            Educational Case for Change

a. Pupil numbers within the school are very low with only 21 pupils (Full Ti

for the recent 2012/2013 academic year. This figure is expected to be 23 pupils (Full 

Time) for the coming 2013

 

b. As a result there are small cohorts throughout the school, in some year groups there 

may be only one pupil. Although pupil projections do demonstrate that there may be 

a potential increase in numbers the school would still remain a ‘small’ school and 

cohorts would remain lim

 

c. There is no recommended school size however when the pattern of decreasing pupil 

numbers in a school falls below that of an average class size (30) there is a challenge 

of providing a full, progressive and balanced curriculum. Opportunities for pupils 

become limited e.g. opportunities for group work within their age group, limited 

 

Projected Pupil Numbers 

2014 2015 2016 

115 111 103 

 152 146 147 

86 94 87 

 80 79 79 

87 84 81 

Special Educational Needs (SEN) Provision 

Proposal is approved the most significant change for pupils will be a 

change in the learning environment and teacher. Any pupils with Special 

Educational Needs (SEN) who currently attend the school will continue to receive 

the same education and support but within a new learning environment. The 

authority will provide help and support for pupils with SEN who experience 

difficulties due to change. 

 

Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible 

education  for its pupils, this proposal has been developed in line with the Councils 

commitment to ‘modernising education’, the Schools Effectiveness Framework’s 

aim of enabling all pupils to reach their full potential and the Welsh Assembly 

Century Schools Programme.  

There are a number of issues that are facing the school that could impact on the 

schools ability to sustain and safeguard educational provision in the future. These 

issues are outlined below; 

l Case for Change 

Pupil numbers within the school are very low with only 21 pupils (Full Ti

2013 academic year. This figure is expected to be 23 pupils (Full 

Time) for the coming 2013-2014 academic year.  

re small cohorts throughout the school, in some year groups there 

may be only one pupil. Although pupil projections do demonstrate that there may be 

a potential increase in numbers the school would still remain a ‘small’ school and 

cohorts would remain limited.  

There is no recommended school size however when the pattern of decreasing pupil 

numbers in a school falls below that of an average class size (30) there is a challenge 

of providing a full, progressive and balanced curriculum. Opportunities for pupils 

me limited e.g. opportunities for group work within their age group, limited 

11 

2017 2018 

102 104 

142 136 

85 89 

81 82 

84 86 

Proposal is approved the most significant change for pupils will be a 

change in the learning environment and teacher. Any pupils with Special 

Educational Needs (SEN) who currently attend the school will continue to receive 

t within a new learning environment. The 

authority will provide help and support for pupils with SEN who experience 

Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible 

education  for its pupils, this proposal has been developed in line with the Councils 

commitment to ‘modernising education’, the Schools Effectiveness Framework’s 

aim of enabling all pupils to reach their full potential and the Welsh Assembly 

There are a number of issues that are facing the school that could impact on the 

schools ability to sustain and safeguard educational provision in the future. These 

Pupil numbers within the school are very low with only 21 pupils (Full Time) on roll 

2013 academic year. This figure is expected to be 23 pupils (Full 

re small cohorts throughout the school, in some year groups there 

may be only one pupil. Although pupil projections do demonstrate that there may be 

a potential increase in numbers the school would still remain a ‘small’ school and 

There is no recommended school size however when the pattern of decreasing pupil 

numbers in a school falls below that of an average class size (30) there is a challenge 

of providing a full, progressive and balanced curriculum. Opportunities for pupils 

me limited e.g. opportunities for group work within their age group, limited 

Page 375



 

scope for peer interaction and for developing relationships with peer groups and the 

ability to offer extra-curricular activates.

 

d. Opportunities should be afforded to pupils to in

peer/age groups; these opportunities and experiences are essential aspects of 

development and part of school life.  Pupils learn from having to work and interact 

with groups of pupils of a similar age; ‘competition’ betwee

and extra-curricular events is healthy.

 

e. From a staff perspective planning for a wide age range becomes even more time 

consuming and demanding. This is in addition to the increasing budget pressures 

faced by small schools.

 

f. Larger schools offer a broader compliment of teaching staff which provides a range 

of expertise in a variety of curriculum areas. A broad range of staff also provides 

increased opportunities for staff to specialise, nurture different experiences and 

develop their careers for the benefit of the pupils. 

 

g. The school currently has an acting Headteacher, all schools are finding it increasingly 

difficult to appoint permanent Headteachers however this proves more challenging 

for small schools. The absence of a permanen

impact on school standards in the future. 

 

h. Headteachers within small schools also have a substantial teaching commitment 

which can have adverse implications for the senior leadership and management of 

the school.  

 

             Existing School Building and Site 

a. The school building is adequate however there is a need for investment to bring the 

building up to a satisfactory standard reflective of a 21st Century School.

 

b. The catering facilities at the school require 

and any significant increase in pupils would further reduce dining space. 

 

c. Access to indoor physical education provision has significant barriers at the school. 

The school lacks a hall space that can be used for 

Externally the ‘Astro Turf’ is a good resource located on the school site.

 

 
scope for peer interaction and for developing relationships with peer groups and the 

curricular activates. 

Opportunities should be afforded to pupils to interact with other pupils in their 

peer/age groups; these opportunities and experiences are essential aspects of 

development and part of school life.  Pupils learn from having to work and interact 

with groups of pupils of a similar age; ‘competition’ between pupils in both academic 

curricular events is healthy. 

From a staff perspective planning for a wide age range becomes even more time 

consuming and demanding. This is in addition to the increasing budget pressures 

faced by small schools. 

schools offer a broader compliment of teaching staff which provides a range 

of expertise in a variety of curriculum areas. A broad range of staff also provides 

increased opportunities for staff to specialise, nurture different experiences and 

r careers for the benefit of the pupils.  

The school currently has an acting Headteacher, all schools are finding it increasingly 

difficult to appoint permanent Headteachers however this proves more challenging 

for small schools. The absence of a permanent Headteacher could have a significant 

impact on school standards in the future.  

Headteachers within small schools also have a substantial teaching commitment 

which can have adverse implications for the senior leadership and management of 

Existing School Building and Site  

The school building is adequate however there is a need for investment to bring the 

building up to a satisfactory standard reflective of a 21st Century School.

The catering facilities at the school require investment; space is limited at the school 

and any significant increase in pupils would further reduce dining space. 

Access to indoor physical education provision has significant barriers at the school. 

The school lacks a hall space that can be used for indoor physical education. 

Externally the ‘Astro Turf’ is a good resource located on the school site.

12 

scope for peer interaction and for developing relationships with peer groups and the 

teract with other pupils in their 

peer/age groups; these opportunities and experiences are essential aspects of 

development and part of school life.  Pupils learn from having to work and interact 

n pupils in both academic 

From a staff perspective planning for a wide age range becomes even more time 

consuming and demanding. This is in addition to the increasing budget pressures 

schools offer a broader compliment of teaching staff which provides a range 

of expertise in a variety of curriculum areas. A broad range of staff also provides 

increased opportunities for staff to specialise, nurture different experiences and 

The school currently has an acting Headteacher, all schools are finding it increasingly 

difficult to appoint permanent Headteachers however this proves more challenging 

t Headteacher could have a significant 

Headteachers within small schools also have a substantial teaching commitment 

which can have adverse implications for the senior leadership and management of 

The school building is adequate however there is a need for investment to bring the 

building up to a satisfactory standard reflective of a 21st Century School.  

investment; space is limited at the school 

and any significant increase in pupils would further reduce dining space.  

Access to indoor physical education provision has significant barriers at the school. 

indoor physical education. 

Externally the ‘Astro Turf’ is a good resource located on the school site. 

Page 376



 

d. Overall the site is in need of investment to enable it to provide a learning 

environment that is fit for purpose to meet the requirements of the 21st Cen

Schools Programme. Without considerable expansion in the size of the school such a 

proposal would not address concerns over sustainability. 

 

e. The energy consumption per square meter of the school is £11/m2. 

report identified a need for

energy efficiency.  

13.        Alternative Options 

13.1     Denbighshire County Council has given careful consideration to a range of alternative 

options as part of the development of the Current 

options reference has been made to the main investment objectives of the Council’s 

21
st

 Century Schools Programme, these are as follows;

a. Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that 

will enable successful implementation of strategies for school improvement 

and better educational outcomes;

b. Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and 

cost-effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and

c. A sustainable education system with all schools meeting a 21

Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint

13.2     The main options that have been considered are as follows;

Option 1.1

Option 1.2

Option 1.3

Option 1.4

 

13.3    The advantages and disadvantages of the main options considered are set out below;

Advantages 

� Existing temporary accommodation could be 
removed from the site to generate savings;
 

� No capital investment required.

 

 
Overall the site is in need of investment to enable it to provide a learning 

environment that is fit for purpose to meet the requirements of the 21st Cen

Schools Programme. Without considerable expansion in the size of the school such a 

proposal would not address concerns over sustainability.  

The energy consumption per square meter of the school is £11/m2. 

report identified a need for the wall and roof insulation to be upgraded for greater 

Denbighshire County Council has given careful consideration to a range of alternative 

options as part of the development of the Current Proposal. In considering these 

options reference has been made to the main investment objectives of the Council’s 

Century Schools Programme, these are as follows; 

Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that 

e successful implementation of strategies for school improvement 

and better educational outcomes; 

Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and 

effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and

able education system with all schools meeting a 21

Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint

The main options that have been considered are as follows; 

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo 

Option 1.2 Federate the school 

Option 1.3 Expand on the existing site 

Option 1.4 Close the school 

The advantages and disadvantages of the main options considered are set out below;

 Option 1.1: Maintain the Status Quo 

Disadvantages

Existing temporary accommodation could be 
to generate savings; 

No capital investment required. 

� Would not address Headteacher recruitment 
issues at the school, an appointed Headteacher 
would have a significant teaching commitment
 

� Would not address th
schools. 
 

� Funding per pupil would remain the second 
highest in Denbighshire at £8,498 per pupil.
 

� Catering and dining facilities and the lack of hall 
space would not be rectified.

13 

Overall the site is in need of investment to enable it to provide a learning 

environment that is fit for purpose to meet the requirements of the 21st Century 

Schools Programme. Without considerable expansion in the size of the school such a 

The energy consumption per square meter of the school is £11/m2. The feasibility 

the wall and roof insulation to be upgraded for greater 

Denbighshire County Council has given careful consideration to a range of alternative 

Proposal. In considering these 

options reference has been made to the main investment objectives of the Council’s 

Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that 

e successful implementation of strategies for school improvement 

Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and 

effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and 

able education system with all schools meeting a 21
st

 Century 

Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint. 

The advantages and disadvantages of the main options considered are set out below; 

Disadvantages 

Would not address Headteacher recruitment 
issues at the school, an appointed Headteacher 
would have a significant teaching commitment. 

Would not address the surplus places in the 

Funding per pupil would remain the second 
highest in Denbighshire at £8,498 per pupil. 

Catering and dining facilities and the lack of hall 
space would not be rectified. 

Page 377



 

 

Advantages 

� No additional capital investment required;
 

� Appointment of a permanent Headteacher 
within a federation would be a more viable 
option as the post would not require a teaching 
commitment; 

 

� Greater opportunities to share resources and 
ensure long term sustainability;
 

� Both schools would retain their individual 
identities. 

 

Option 1.3: Expanding on the existing site 

Advantages 

� Would address the issues with lack of catering, 
dining and hall space and provide a fit for 
purpose learning environment which would 
provide a significant improvement for pupils.
 

 

 

 
 

� The school would remain vulnera
in parental preference due to low pupil numbers 
within the immediate geographical area.  

Option 1.2: Federate the school 

Disadvantages

No additional capital investment required; 

Appointment of a permanent Headteacher 
a federation would be a more viable 

option as the post would not require a teaching 

Greater opportunities to share resources and 
ensure long term sustainability; 

Both schools would retain their individual 

� Would not address the iss
Ysgol Llanbedr. 
 

� The potential partner would be Ysgol Borthyn; 
the school would have little to gain from a 
federation. 
 

� There would be no flexibility within either school 
to respond to fluctuating pupil numbers within 
the existing catchment areas at each school.
 

� Ysgol Llanbedr would still remain vulnerable to 
changes in parental preference due to low 
numbers in the immediate geographical area.
 

� Issues with the school building at Ysgol 
Llanbedr, namely dining, catering and hall space 
would still not be rectified. 

Option 1.3: Expanding on the existing site  

Disadvantages

Would address the issues with lack of catering, 
hall space and provide a fit for 

purpose learning environment which would 
provide a significant improvement for pupils. 

� Headteacher recruitment issues would still 
remain and any Headteacher would still be 
required to have a significant teaching 
commitment. 
 

� Surplus places at the school would not be 
addressed. By expanding the school it is likely 
this will increase the number of surplus places at 
Ysgol Llanbedr. 
 

� To expand the school would require far higher 
numbers of pupils on roll than those projected, 
to ensure there are sufficient numbers of pupils 
the site would be required to be an ‘area school’.
 

� In turn there would then be a need for significant 
school organisation within the area to generate 
investment with the potential reduction in 
capacity/closure of numerous schools.
 

� The school would still remain vulnerable to 
changes in parental preference.
 

14 

The school would remain vulnerable to changes 
in parental preference due to low pupil numbers 
within the immediate geographical area.   

Disadvantages 

Would not address the issue of surplus places at 

The potential partner would be Ysgol Borthyn; 
the school would have little to gain from a 

There would be no flexibility within either school 
to respond to fluctuating pupil numbers within 

atchment areas at each school. 

Ysgol Llanbedr would still remain vulnerable to 
changes in parental preference due to low 
numbers in the immediate geographical area. 

Issues with the school building at Ysgol 
Llanbedr, namely dining, catering and hall space 
would still not be rectified.  

Disadvantages 

Headteacher recruitment issues would still 
remain and any Headteacher would still be 
required to have a significant teaching 

Surplus places at the school would not be 
addressed. By expanding the school it is likely 
this will increase the number of surplus places at 

To expand the school would require far higher 
numbers of pupils on roll than those projected, 
o ensure there are sufficient numbers of pupils 
the site would be required to be an ‘area school’. 

In turn there would then be a need for significant 
school organisation within the area to generate 
investment with the potential reduction in 

re of numerous schools. 

The school would still remain vulnerable to 
changes in parental preference. 

Page 378



 

Advantages 

� No additional investment is required;
 

� Pupils would gain from being taught in single 
year group classes and wider availability of 
opportunities; 
 

� Proposed alternative provision would retain the 
faith based element; 
 

� Pupils would be educated in fit for purpose 
facilities with adequate hall and dining facilities;
 

� Pupils would be taught in a scho
permanent Headteacher and which is also in a 
strong position to retain a permanent 
Headteacher. 
 

� A saving of {insert} would be made by closing 
the school which could then be reinvested into 
improving educational provision across 
Denbighshire.  

 
Option 1.4: Closure of the school 

Disadvantages

No additional investment is required; 

Pupils would gain from being taught in single 
group classes and wider availability of 

Proposed alternative provision would retain the 

Pupils would be educated in fit for purpose 
facilities with adequate hall and dining facilities; 

Pupils would be taught in a school with a 
permanent Headteacher and which is also in a 
strong position to retain a permanent 

A saving of {insert} would be made by closing 
the school which could then be reinvested into 
improving educational provision across 

� Staff would be redeployed or made redundant;
 

� Denbighshire County Council would not benefit 
from the sale of the building or the site;
 

� The community could lose the facility for 
community use however alternative provision is 
available in the village hall.

15 

Disadvantages 

Staff would be redeployed or made redundant; 

Denbighshire County Council would not benefit 
from the sale of the building or the site; 

The community could lose the facility for 
community use however alternative provision is 
available in the village hall. 

Page 379



 

 

Analysis of Options against Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors

 

 

 

Option 1.1 

Do nothing 

1 Improved Learning Environment x 

2 Greater Economy – Revenue 

Implications 
x 

2  Greater Economy – Capital x 

3 Sustainable Education system x 

Critical success factors 

CSF1 Improved attainment and 

performance 
x 

CSF2 Improved school condition and 

suitability 
x 

CSF3 Reduction in surplus places x 

CSF4 Improved ability to appoint and 

retain permanent Head Teachers.  x 

CSF 5 Support the increase in demand 

for Welsh Medium Education 
N/A 

Summary Discounted 

 

Analysis of Options against Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors 

Option 1.2 

Federate 

Option 1.3 

Expand 

� � 

x x 

x � 

� x 

x x 

x � 

x x 

� x 

N/A N/A 

Discounted Discounted 

16 

Option 1.4 

Closure 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

� 

N/A 

Preferred 

P
age 380



 

 

14.       What is the preferred option? 

14.1     The preferred option wo

Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. T

this proposal. 

15.        What would this mean?

15.1    If the Current Proposal is approved Ysgol Llanbedr would close on the 31

2014. 

15.2      All pupils attending Ysgol Llanbedr would transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

parental preference. 

15.3    There would be no change in provision at Ysgol Borthyn and the school would retain 

its identity. 

15.4    As the school is a Church in Wales School the existing building and site would revert 

to the diocesan Authority.

16.       What are the financial implications of this proposal?

16.1     The current reported financial position for the school is as follows;

 2013

Balance c/f 33,263

 *Based on the existing 3 year expenditure plan.

16.2 It is estimated that 

approximately £50,000.

budget saved as a result of the change is reinvested back into the total schools 

quantum for redistribution across all

which is used to invest in future re

16.3   There is a requirement that Den

with any HR implications brought about by the Cur

16.4   A further saving of £4,659 would also me made annually from the removal of the 

mobile accommodation. Over a 5 year period this would equate to a saving of 

£23,295 and would also meet the Councils commitment to removing mobile 

accommodation in Denbighshire schools.

 

 

What is the preferred option?  

The preferred option would be to close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer pupils to Ysgol 

Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. The formal consultation relates to 

What would this mean? 

If the Current Proposal is approved Ysgol Llanbedr would close on the 31

All pupils attending Ysgol Llanbedr would transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

There would be no change in provision at Ysgol Borthyn and the school would retain 

As the school is a Church in Wales School the existing building and site would revert 

to the diocesan Authority. 

ancial implications of this proposal? 

16.1     The current reported financial position for the school is as follows; 

2013-14 2014-15 2015

33,263 13,080 (12,828)

*Based on the existing 3 year expenditure plan. 

It is estimated that the initial cashable saving from the proposal would be 

approximately £50,000. It is important to note that during any re

budget saved as a result of the change is reinvested back into the total schools 

quantum for redistribution across all other schools with the exception of a lump sum 

which is used to invest in future re-organisation/capital schemes.  

There is a requirement that Denbighshire County Council will cover 

with any HR implications brought about by the Current Proposal. 

A further saving of £4,659 would also me made annually from the removal of the 

mobile accommodation. Over a 5 year period this would equate to a saving of 

£23,295 and would also meet the Councils commitment to removing mobile 

ation in Denbighshire schools. 

17 

uld be to close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer pupils to Ysgol 

he formal consultation relates to 

If the Current Proposal is approved Ysgol Llanbedr would close on the 31
st

 of August 

All pupils attending Ysgol Llanbedr would transfer to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

There would be no change in provision at Ysgol Borthyn and the school would retain 

As the school is a Church in Wales School the existing building and site would revert 

 

2015-16 

(12,828) 

saving from the proposal would be 

It is important to note that during any re-organisation the 

budget saved as a result of the change is reinvested back into the total schools 

other schools with the exception of a lump sum 

 

cover costs associated 

A further saving of £4,659 would also me made annually from the removal of the 

mobile accommodation. Over a 5 year period this would equate to a saving of 

£23,295 and would also meet the Councils commitment to removing mobile 

Page 381



 

16.5    Cost of provision in Ysgol Llanbedr is £8,498 per pupil, this is the second highest rate 

per pupil within Denbighshire. The cost of provision in Ysgol Borthyn is £4,583 per 

pupil, this would be reduced if a number of

Ysgol Borthyn should the Current Proposal

balance of per pupil funding across Denbighshire.  The Denbighshire average cost 

provision per pupil is £3,951

16.6   The savings made would be retained within the Denbighshire Education budget as 

part of the investment in the Council’s 21

 

17.        Admissions Arrangements 

17.1   Admission arrangements are administered by Denbighshire County Council 

Admissions Service. Should the Current Proposal proceed the admissions service 

would write to all parents to outline options for their children’s future education. 

18.        Transport Arrangements 

18.1   Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire 

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for 

pupils who live more than 2 miles from their nearest suitable school.

information regarding Denbighshire County Council’s Transport Policy can be found 

here www.denbighshire.gov.uk/education

18.2    Transport costs have been calculated at approximately {waiting fo

transport 26/08}  

19.       Staffing Implications of the proposal 

19.1  Should the Current Proposal be implemented the authority would work with the 

current members of staff at Ysgol Llanbedr to seek redeployment opportunities.

19.2  As part of this consultation there will be a full consultation with staff and the 

appropriate teaching unions.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost of provision in Ysgol Llanbedr is £8,498 per pupil, this is the second highest rate 

per pupil within Denbighshire. The cost of provision in Ysgol Borthyn is £4,583 per 

pupil, this would be reduced if a number of pupils transferred from Ysgol Llanbedr to 

Ysgol Borthyn should the Current Proposal be implemented contributing to the 

balance of per pupil funding across Denbighshire.  The Denbighshire average cost 

provision per pupil is £3,951.  

ade would be retained within the Denbighshire Education budget as 

part of the investment in the Council’s 21
st

 Century Schools Programme. 

Arrangements  

Admission arrangements are administered by Denbighshire County Council 

Admissions Service. Should the Current Proposal proceed the admissions service 

would write to all parents to outline options for their children’s future education. 

Arrangements  

Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire 

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for 

pupils who live more than 2 miles from their nearest suitable school.

information regarding Denbighshire County Council’s Transport Policy can be found 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/education  

Transport costs have been calculated at approximately {waiting for figure from school 

Staffing Implications of the proposal  

Should the Current Proposal be implemented the authority would work with the 

current members of staff at Ysgol Llanbedr to seek redeployment opportunities.

As part of this consultation there will be a full consultation with staff and the 

appropriate teaching unions. 

18 

Cost of provision in Ysgol Llanbedr is £8,498 per pupil, this is the second highest rate 

per pupil within Denbighshire. The cost of provision in Ysgol Borthyn is £4,583 per 

pupils transferred from Ysgol Llanbedr to 

contributing to the 

balance of per pupil funding across Denbighshire.  The Denbighshire average cost of 

ade would be retained within the Denbighshire Education budget as 

Century Schools Programme.  

Admission arrangements are administered by Denbighshire County Council 

Admissions Service. Should the Current Proposal proceed the admissions service 

would write to all parents to outline options for their children’s future education.  

Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire 

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for 

pupils who live more than 2 miles from their nearest suitable school. More 

information regarding Denbighshire County Council’s Transport Policy can be found 

r figure from school 

Should the Current Proposal be implemented the authority would work with the 

current members of staff at Ysgol Llanbedr to seek redeployment opportunities. 

As part of this consultation there will be a full consultation with staff and the 

Page 382



 

20.       What are the disadvantages of the proposal?

20.1   If the Current Proposal proceeds

would cease. 

20.2   Upon the closure of the school it is expected that some children will be required to 

travel further to school; subject to parental preference. Transport would be provided 

in accordance with the Council’s Transport Policy and to ensu

are not excessive. 

21.       Explanation of the statutory process

21.1     In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council is 

required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of th

Government and a statutory code.

21.2     The requirements of this are as follows;

            a. Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal;

b. Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published on

the council’s website;

c. Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the 

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy 

of the consultation report and how to object:

i) on the council’s website;

ii) posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and

ii) by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents.

d. An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone 

who wishes to object to the Current Proposal 

e. Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the 

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved);

f. Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within 7 

days of the date of determina

 

21.3   Please note that any response provided during the formal consultation will not be 

regarded as an objection to the Current Proposal. This is because the Current 

Proposal may change in response to the formal consultatio

object to the Current Proposal please wait until it has been published (as described 

in paragraph 21.2, above c.) then follow the procedure set out in the statutory 

notice. 

 

 

 

What are the disadvantages of the proposal? 

Current Proposal proceeds educational provision in the village of Llanb

Upon the closure of the school it is expected that some children will be required to 

travel further to school; subject to parental preference. Transport would be provided 

in accordance with the Council’s Transport Policy and to ensure that travelling times 

Explanation of the statutory process 

In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council is 

required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of th

Government and a statutory code. 

The requirements of this are as follows; 

Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal;

Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published on

the council’s website; 

Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the 

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy 

of the consultation report and how to object: 

on the council’s website; 

posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and

by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents.

An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone 

who wishes to object to the Current Proposal to do so; 

Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the 

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved);

Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within 7 

days of the date of determination of the Current Proposal). 

Please note that any response provided during the formal consultation will not be 

regarded as an objection to the Current Proposal. This is because the Current 

Proposal may change in response to the formal consultation. If you would like to 

object to the Current Proposal please wait until it has been published (as described 

in paragraph 21.2, above c.) then follow the procedure set out in the statutory 

19 

educational provision in the village of Llanbedr 

Upon the closure of the school it is expected that some children will be required to 

travel further to school; subject to parental preference. Transport would be provided 

re that travelling times 

In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council is 

required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of the Welsh 

Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal; 

Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published on 

Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the ‘statutory notice’) 

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy 

posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and 

by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents. 

An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone 

Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the 

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved); 

Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within 7 

 

Please note that any response provided during the formal consultation will not be 

regarded as an objection to the Current Proposal. This is because the Current 

n. If you would like to 

object to the Current Proposal please wait until it has been published (as described 

in paragraph 21.2, above c.) then follow the procedure set out in the statutory 

Page 383



 

22.       Welsh Language and Community Impact Assessment 

22.1    The Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment for the Current Proposal will 

be available on the Denbighshire website on the 11

view the impact assessment by following this link 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation

 

23.        Response Form 

23.1   A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register 

their wish to be notified of p

the end of this consultation document.

23.2    You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current Proposal 

at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Resp

sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council, 

County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk

23.2    It is anticipated that Denbighshire’s Cabinet will consider a report on the outcome of 

the formal consultation

                                                          
i
 Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.
ii
 Formal Consultation Document for Children 

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section by following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/moderni
iii
 Section 41-45 School Standards and Framework Act 1998. It should be noted that this will be replaced by 

Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 later in 2013; Royal Assent has been received 

for the 2013 Act but at the time of publication, this section has not yet come into force.
iv
 Modernising Education Framework 

website [www.denbighshire.gov.uk
Modernising section 
v
 Estyn Thematic Report May 2012 ‘How do surplus places affect the resources available for expenditure on 

improving outcomes for pupils?’ http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/docViewer/244416.9/how

places-affect-the-resources-available

2012/?navmap=30,163, 
vi
 The Estyn report relating to the school may be accessed by following this link 

the DCC website in the School Organisation & Modernising section
vii

 Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment available following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation

 

 

 

Welsh Language and Community Impact Assessment  

The Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment for the Current Proposal will 

he Denbighshire website on the 11
th

 of November 2013. You can 

view the impact assessment by following this link 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation
vii  

A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register 

their wish to be notified of publication of the formal consultation report, appears at 

the end of this consultation document. 

You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current Proposal 

at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Resp

sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council, 

County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than 23rd

t is anticipated that Denbighshire’s Cabinet will consider a report on the outcome of 

the formal consultation in early 2014. 

                   

Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. 

ment for Children .  This is available upon request from DCC [and/or from the DCC 

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section by following this link 

/modernisingeducation] 

45 School Standards and Framework Act 1998. It should be noted that this will be replaced by 

Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 later in 2013; Royal Assent has been received 

time of publication, this section has not yet come into force. 

Modernising Education Framework -  available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting the 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] in the School Organisation & 

Estyn Thematic Report May 2012 ‘How do surplus places affect the resources available for expenditure on 

http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/docViewer/244416.9/how

available-for-expenditure-on-improving-outcomes-for-pupils

The Estyn report relating to the school may be accessed by following this link www.estyn.gov.uk

the DCC website in the School Organisation & Modernising section 

Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment available following this link 

/modernisingeducation] 

20 

The Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment for the Current Proposal will 

ember 2013. You can 

view the impact assessment by following this link 

A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register 

ublication of the formal consultation report, appears at 

You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current Proposal 

at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Responses should be 

sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council, 

County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e-mail to 

23rd December 2013. 

t is anticipated that Denbighshire’s Cabinet will consider a report on the outcome of 

.  This is available upon request from DCC [and/or from the DCC 

45 School Standards and Framework Act 1998. It should be noted that this will be replaced by 

Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 later in 2013; Royal Assent has been received 

 

available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting the 

in the School Organisation & 

Estyn Thematic Report May 2012 ‘How do surplus places affect the resources available for expenditure on 

http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/docViewer/244416.9/how-do-surplus-

pupils-may-

www.estyn.gov.uk or visiting 

Page 384



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on 

the 31
st
 of August 2014 and transfer pupils 
to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

parental preference.   
 

01 October 2013 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 385



 

1 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on the 31
st

 of 
August 2014 and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, 
Ruthin subjct to parental preference. 
 

Contact: 
 

Lowri Roberts, Modernising Education Team 

Updated: 01/10/2013 
 
  

 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A service review or re-organisation proposal 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The purpose of the proposal is to undertake a formal consultation with interested 
parties regarding the proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr. If this was to be 
implemented the provision of primary education in the village of Llanbedr DC 
would cease as of 31st August 2014. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes       

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

All stakeholders were identified during the period of informal consultation. In 
relation to Ysgol Llanbedr DCC received 15 responses via letter or email and 18 

Page 386



 

2 

responses via the consultation questionnaire. In addition 30 questionnaires where 
received from the the community. Overall the key issues to arise were the faith 
aspect of education provided at Ysgol Llanbedr, the area (AONB) in which the 
school is located and provision of English Medium education.  

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

N/A 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

Ysgol Llanbedr is a Voluntary Controlled primary school which provides a faith 
based primary education. The provision would cease if the proposal were to be 
implemented.  

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No The proposal if implemented would see pupils transfer to 
Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin (subject to parental preference) which 
provides an English Medium Faith based education.  

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes       

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

Service cannot be accessed by all users; 
Pupils will have to travel to access the 
school and some parents will not be able to 
access non-statutory provision if they ar 
unable to drive. Full consultation will be 
undertaken with stakeholders and pupils will 
be transferred to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin 
subject to parental preference. Free 

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

Page 387



 

3 

transport will be provided for pupils eligible in 
accordance with DCC transport policy. The 
authority will work with schools and parents 
to resolve issues surrounding access to non-
statutory provision.  

The service venue does not cater for the 
needs of all users/potential users; Ysgol 
Borthyn should be equipped with necessary 
facilities to cater for the needs of all pupils 
currently attending Ysgol Llanbedr.  

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

Changes to staffing structures, terms and 
conditions have a disproportionately 
negative impact on staff with particular 
protected characterisitcs. The proposal could 
lead to redundancies or redeployment for 
some staff. Some staff may have to travel 
further for redeployment as a result of the 
proposal. DCC has an agreed redundancy 
and redeployment policy and would work 
with staff impacted by the proposal. 

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

The policy will negatively affect different 
groups and communities. An independent 
community impact assessment has been 
commisioned.  

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 01.10.13 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Lowri Roberts 01/10/13 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 388



  

Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  29th October 2013 

 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill /Paul McGrady 
 
Report Author: Richard Weigh, Chief Accountant  
 
Title:    Finance Report  
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as 
agreed for 2013/14. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital 
Plan as well as the Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

The purpose of the report is to provide an update on the council’s current 
financial position. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

  Members note the progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 
4. Report details 
 

The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2013/14 
(Appendix 1). The council’s net budget is £192m. At the end of September, 
there is a forecast under spend on service and corporate budgets of £1,194k 
(£851k last month) which represents a variance of 0.93%.  
 
Appendix 2 to the report shows the progress to date against the savings 
highlighted in the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2013/13. A savings target of 
£3.061m was agreed for the year.  

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and 
delivery of the agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including 
corporate priorities. 
 

 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
Narrative supporting service forecasts where necessary is detailed below: 
 
Business Planning & Performance - The service is currently projected to be 
under spent by £40k due to the planned non-filling of posts that have become 

Agenda Item 7

Page 389



  

vacant. These savings form part of the budget proposals for 2014/15 for the 
service. It is recommended that the service is allowed to use this under spend 
in future years to help pump-prime the EDRMS project and therefore that it is 
placed in the EDRMS reserve that was created at the end of the last financial 
year. 
 
Highways & Environment Services – the latest forecast is an over spend of 
£142k, a reduction of £52k from that reported last month. This movement is 
largely due to the bringing forward of an efficiency proposal for 2014/15 
relating to the release of budget for the Building Cleaning trading account. This 
is partly offset by a pressure within Coastal Lettings relating to vacant units 
within the Children’s Village (Rhyl). It is hoped that the net overspend across 
the service will be absorbed by the end of the financial year when the full in-
year impact of the service restructure has been determined. 
 
Planning & Public Protection – the under spend forecast is as a result of 
identifying additional expenditure that can be charged against the Planning 
Delivery for Wales grant. The service proposal would be for any in-year benefit 
to be used to dampen the impact of potential future reductions to the grant. 
 
Children & Family Services - the forecast has improved by £21k to £560k as 
the number of staff opting into the pension scheme in the service has so far 
been lower than originally estimated. As reported last month,  options to 
provide active programmes for Children with Disabilities (CWD) are being 
considered and the service proposal is that £250k of the under spend this year 
is set aside in a reserve and earmarked for this purpose to invest in future 
years. 
 
School Improvement & Inclusion – The detailed review of Out of County 
placements and recoupment reported last month has now been completed 
allowing a more robust projection to be made.  Although the budgets remain 
volatile it is currently estimated that this area will under spend by £251k. The 
budget proposals for 2014/15 currently include an efficiency of £200k relating 
to this area. Although this is based on activity over the last few years, the 
volatility of the budgets mean that the costs can vary greatly from year to year. 
It is therefore recommended that this year’s under spend is placed in a reserve 
to provide a contingency against future costs pressure to support the budget 
reduction next year. 
 
Schools -  at the end of September the projection for school balances is 
£3.013m, which is a positive movement of £143k on the balances brought 
forward from 2012/13 (£2.870m). The council continues to work with two 
schools in financial difficulty. Both schools have recovery plans in place and 
are actively working to the targets set out in these plans. The Non-delegated 
budget is currently projected to under spend by £115k. 
 
Corporate Plan reserves of £10.3m have been carried forward into 2013/14, 
leaving a cash requirement of approximately £11.7m required to deliver the 
Plan. The 2013/14 budget specifically earmarked new budget resources of 
£600k to be allocated to the Corporate Plan Reserve and made assumptions 

Page 390



  

that at least £1.3m of previously identified resources would be transferred to 
fund the Corporate Plan if circumstances allowed.  It is assumed that these 
transfers will be made.  
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget is also included within 
Appendix 1 for reference but HRA resources are separate funds and can only 
be used in the provision of council housing services. The latest revenue 
position assumes a £4k decrease in balances at year end, which is an 
improvement of £98k on the budgeted assumption. Dwelling rents are slightly 
higher than forecast and the subsidy payment for the year is likely to be lowe 
than estimated at the start of the year. The Housing Capital Plan remains on 
target to spend £8.1m and the Welsh Housing Quality Standard should be 
achieved by the end of 2013/14.  
 
The latest indications are now suggesting that the Housing Subsidy system in 
Wales will remain in place for another year and therefore the introduction of 
self-financing for council housing stock will not now happen until 2015/16. 

 
A summary of the Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 3. The approved 
general capital plan is £46.1m and expenditure to the end of September was 
£9.9m. Also included within Appendix 3 is the proposed expenditure of £9.1m 
on the Corporate Plan. Appendix 4 gives an update of the major capital 
projects within this year’s Capital Plan.  

  
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?   
 
A summary EqIA was submitted to Council in February 2013.  

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

Service challenges were held with each head of service and each challenge 
included representatives from scrutiny committee and Cabinet. Corporate Plan 
and Budget workshops were held with members in September, November and 
December. The capital plan was approved by council following scrutiny by the 
Strategic Investment Group and recommendation by cabinet.  
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

It is important that services continue to manage budgets prudently and that 
any in-year surpluses are considered in the context of the medium-term 
financial position, particularly given the scale of budget reductions required 
over the coming two years.  
  
The Council has approved an ambitious Corporate Plan. Underpinning the 
affordability of the Plan are key assumptions around revenue budgets and 
cash.  The scale of the Corporate Plan means that it will span a 5-7 year 
horizon and will undoubtedly mean that as it develops, there will be timing 
differences between planned and actual assumptions around the use of cash. 
This will mean that earmarked reserves may increase until commitments are 

Page 391



  

made.  It is crucial however to appreciate that if resources are diverted through 
the life of the Plan, the Council will have to decide which of the projects 
previously identified it would want to cancel.   
 
At the end of September, the council’s borrowing totalled £132.458m at an 
average rate of 5.79%. Investment balances were £25.5m at an average rate 
of 0.81%.   
 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 
 This is the most challenging financial period the council has faced and failure 

to deliver the agreed budget strategy will put further pressure on services in 
the current and future financial years. Effective budget monitoring and control 
will help ensure that the financial strategy is achieved. 

  
 The HRA is undertaking a considerable capital investment to improve the 

housing stock and using borrowing and grants to fund the works. Any 
borrowing must be affordable and the regular monitoring and annual approval 
and viability assessment of the Housing Stock Business Plan ensures that this 
is so.  

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
 
.  Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 

1972 to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial 
affairs.   

Page 392



Appendix 1

Net Budget Variance

Forecast as at 31/08/2013 2012/13 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous 

Report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

Business Planning & Performance 1,370 1,807 -362 1,445 1,792 -387 1,405 -15 -25 -40 -2.77% 0

Legal & Democratic Services 1,513 2,083 -555 1,528 2,128 -600 1,528 45 -45 0 0.00% 0

Finance & Assets 7,058 14,461 -7,372 7,089 15,061 -7,972 7,089 600 -600 0 0.00% 0

Highways & Environmental Services 20,893 37,059 -17,185 19,874 31,154 -11,032 20,122 -6,011 6,153 142 0.71% 194

Planning & Public Protection 2,621 4,258 -1,699 2,559 4,450 -1,917 2,533 192 -218 -26 -1.02% 0

Adult & Business Services 31,865 47,792 -14,357 33,435 48,002 -14,567 33,435 210 -210 0 0.00% -45 

Children & Family Services 8,913 9,447 -627 8,820 9,349 -1,089 8,260 -98 -462 -560 -6.35% -539 

Housing & Community Development 2,103 3,470 -1,565 1,905 3,491 -1,585 1,906 21 -20 1 0.05% 0

Communication, Marketing & Leisure 5,224 11,864 -5,902 5,962 11,757 -5,796 5,549 -107 106 -1 -0.02% 0

Strategic HR 901 1,287 -368 919 1,506 -587 919 219 -219 0 0.00% 0

ICT/Business Transformation 1,935 2,713 -758 1,955 2,549 -593 1,956 -164 165 1 0.05% -1 

Customers & Education Support 1,983 2,512 -505 2,007 2,407 -510 1,897 -105 -5 -110 -5.48% -110 

School Improvement & Inclusion 4,444 11,893 -6,988 4,905 7,170 -2,516 4,654 -4,723 4,472 -251 -5.12% 0

Total Services 90,823 150,646 -58,243 92,403 140,816 -49,151 91,253 -9,936 9,092 -844 -0.91% -501 

Corporate 5,997 44,577 -28,970 15,607 44,227 -28,970 15,257 -350 0 -350 -2.24% -350 

Transfers to Corporate Plan Reserve 1,700 1,900 0 1,900 1,900 0 1,900 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Precepts & Levies 4,569 4,593 0 4,593 4,593 0 4,593 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Capital Financing 12,656 13,230 0 13,230 13,230 0 13,230 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Total Corporate 24,922 64,300 -28,970 35,330 63,950 -28,970 34,980 -350 0 -350 -0.99% -350 

Council Services & Corporate Budget 115,745 214,946 -87,213 127,733 204,766 -78,121 126,233 -10,286 9,092 -1,194 -0.93% -851 

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 61,643 72,979 -9,140 63,839 73,372 -9,791 63,581 393 -651 -258 -0.40% -190 

Total Council Budget 177,388 287,925 -96,353 191,572 278,138 -87,912 189,814 -9,893 8,441 -1,452 -0.76% -1,041 

Housing Revenue Account -71 12,772 -12,670 102 12,735 -12,731 4 -37 -61 -98 -107

VarianceBudget 2013/14 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2013/14

P
age 393



P
age 394

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Update to 30/09/2013

Ref Action

General Status Saving Total

£'000 £'000
A2 Reduce Contingency for balances and impact of Recession Achieved 300

A3 Convert Essential Car Users to Casual Achieved 200

A10 Modernising the Council In progress 200

A7 Costs of Democracy Achieved 17

717

Support Services

C6 ICT Printer Rationalisation Project In progress 25

C7 Finance & Assets Achieved 100

Energy - Reduced Consumption In progress 100

Capital Financing Budget Achieved 100

325

Service Challenges

Communication, Marketing & Leisure
Da5 Remove leisure subsidy by increasing income In progress 70

Dk1 Modernise Library Service Provision Achieved 77

147

Environmental Services

Db2 Renegotiate recyclate and disposal contracts Achieved 225

Db5 Regional Waste Procurement budget Achieved 81

Db6 Succession Planning Achieved 15

Db10 Service Redesign (Street Cleansing) In progress 138

Various Minor reductions in expenditure within Env Servs Replacement 15

Db15 Free School Meals - increase take-up Achieved 5

Db15a Reduced Subsidy of School Meal Service Achieved 50

Db16 Countryside - AONB Achieved -20

Db17 Stores Achieved -45

Db18 Recycling Parks Achieved 100

Highways & Infrastructure
EC17 Traffic & Road Safety In progress 50

EC18 Highway Maintenance DLO In progress 150

764

 Planning and Public Protection

EC21 Review Pest Control In progress 10

EC23 Review of Building Control In progress 20

EC26 Review of Pollution Control In progress 20

EC29 Review of Management In progress 40

90

Adult Social Services
Df1 Cefndy Healthcare - reduced subsidy In progress 46

Older People
Df5 Externalise elements of Home Care Achieved 15

Df8 Impact of investment in reablement Achieved 75

Df9 Residential Care - Impact of Extra Care Achieved 155

Mental Health
Df11 Management Changes Achieved 19

Df12 Partnership Efficiency Savings Achieved 26

Appendix 2 Medium Term Financial Plan Update 2013/14

Page 395



Status Saving Total

£,000 £'000

Adult Social Services (con'd)

Physical Disability & Impairment
Df13 ISIL Scheme Achieved 12

Df14 Reablement Intervention Achieved 26

Df15 Telecare Achieved 20

Other Adult Services
Df17 Systems Thinking and Vacancy Control In progress 80

474

Children & Family Services

Staffing
Dj4 Social Workers - reduction in caseload Achieved 108

Dj7 Review of Bryn Y Wal Residential Service Achieved 109

Dj8 Reduction in Independent (external) Placement Provision Achieved 63

Pressures
Dj18 In-house Fostering Achieved -35

Dj20 Legislative changes Achieved -28

217

Housing & Community Development

Various Small savings in Housing Achieved 1

Dc1 Review of Regeneration Achieved 10

Db18 Regeneration Service Redesign In progress 23

34

REGIONAL WORKING/COLLABORATION

ENW1 Education Regional Board Achieved 55

ENW2 Social Care Regional Board In progress 35

ENW2 Social Care Regional Board Deferred 65

155

OUTSOURCING

G2 Bodelwyddan Castle In progress 28

G3 Clwyd Leisure Achieved 50

G4 ECTARC Achieved 5

83

Other Cultural/Heritage activities

H2 Ruthin Craft Centre Achieved 20

H3 Llangollen Pavilion Achieved 25

H4 Heritage facilities In progress 10

55

Total Savings 2013/14 3,061

Summary: £'000 %
Savings Achieved/Replaced or Pressures Confirmed 1,951 64
Savings In Progress/Being Reviewed 1,045 34
Savings Not Achieved or Deferred and not replaced 65 2
Total 3,061

Page 396



Denbighshire County Council  - Capital Plan 2012/13 - 2015/16 APPENDIX 3
Position to September 2013

General Capital Plan  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure

Total Estimated Payments 45,062 2,514 337

Contingency 1,094 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Total 46,156 3,514 1,337 1,000 1,000

Capital Financing

1 External Funding 31,249 6,109 4,802 4,571 4,571

2 Receipts and Reserves 4,340 664    

3 Prudential Borrowing  10,567 607 250

5 Unallocated Funding 0 (3,866) (3,715) (3,571) (3,571)

Total Capital Financing 46,156 3,514 1,337 1,000 1,000

Corporate Plan  
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Approved Capital Expenditure Cefndy Healthcare Investment 500

included in above plan Highways Maintenance 2,808

Bridges 1,300

Schools Capitalised Maintenance 190

Rhyl High School 1,475

Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy - Dee Valley West Review 1,101 202 25

Bodnant Community School 295

Ysgol Glan Clwyd 1,495

Estimated Capital Expenditure 11,575 32,636 34,818 23,041

Total Estimated Payments 9,164 11,777 32,661 34,818 23,041

Approved Capital Funding External Funding 2,786 202 25

included in above plan Receipts and Reserves 2,270

Prudential Borrowing 4,108

Estimated Capital Funding External Funding 4,036 15,904 10,305 12,094

Receipts and Reserves 1,854 7,546 6,808 3,692

Prudential Borrowing 5,685 9,186 17,705 7,255

Total Estimated Funding 9,164 11,777 32,661 34,818 23,041

P
age 397



P
age 398

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 Major Capital Projects Update 

Rhyl Harbour Development 

Total Budget £10.246m 

Expenditure to date £  8.789m 

Estimated remaining spend in 2013/14 £  1.404m 

Future Years estimated spend £  0.053m 

Funding WG £2.950m; WEFO £5.766m; Sustrans £0.700m: 
RWE £155k and DCC £0.675m 

Comments Quayside Units, Public Square & Extended Quay Wall 

There are still some issues with Conwy County Borough 

Council planners in respect of the compliance with 

planning permission granted.  

 

Costs 

£0.34m of the £0.5m Council’s capital contingency set 

aside for this project remains unused. Works required 

further to a recent internal Health and Safety inspection 

in respect of the harbour operation will impact on this 

contingency.  

 

The 30 year maintenance contract for the bridge is being 

negotiated. 

A further bid for WREN funding has just been submitted; 

the outcome will be known in March 2014. 

 

The second stage application for Coastal Community 

Funding in respect of a boat mover and improvements 

to the boat yard was unsuccessful. 

 

Programme 

The bridge is now 15 weeks behind the programme and 

is due to complete by 18
th

 October. Hand over is 

dependent on the completion of the maintenance 

contract. 

 

The enabling works contract is now 12 weeks behind 

programme and due to complete by 18
th

 October. The 

slippage is associated with delays to materials for the 

finishing works to the bridge entrances. The quay wall 

works have included surfacing works and finishes to 

enable the partial opening of the site. 

 

The site set up for the quayside building has been 

established and work is underway. The quayside building 

is due to complete by the first week of May 2013. 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £3.380m 

 

 

Page 399



Rhyl Going Forward 

Total Budget £12.097m 

Expenditure to date £ 5.505m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £ 6.592m 

Future Years estimated spend £Nil 

Funding WG £12.097m    

Comments 
 

 

  

The date of the vesting declaration for 25/26 West 

Parade is 23
rd

 December 2013. This will place the 

property in the Council’s ownership and will allow for 

demolition to take place early in the new year.   

 

A final draft of the Development Agreement is now with 

the Solicitors for the Developer. 

 

West Rhyl Housing Improvement Project 

Confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase Order on all 7 

blocks within the project was received on 15
th

 October 

13. 

 

Demolition of North Gronant Street commenced during 

late September and is progressing well. 

 

The procurement process for the design element of the 

Green Space has been undertaken. The successful 

designer will now carry out a comprehensive 

programme of stakeholder and community consultation 

which will inform the design of the Green Space. 

It is hoped that the Planning Committee will be able to 

consider the detailed design during May 2014, with 

anticipated construction taking place from July 2014 to 

March 2015. 

 

Over 68 households have been successfully resettled 

through the project, and feedback from residents has 

been very positive. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £7.181m   

 

Ruthin Leisure Centre Development 

Total Budget £1.186m 

Expenditure to date £1.177m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.009m 

Future Years estimated spend £NIL 

Funding  Prudential Borrowing £1.091m; DCC £0.095m 

Comments The project has now successfully completed. 

 

The new full size all weather pitch opened in August 

2013. The leisure centre extension and car parking area 

opened to the public on 23
rd

 September 2013. 

 

Page 400



Memberships to the new fitness suite are on target, with 

feedback from customers extremely positive. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £1.139m 

 

Prestatyn Library Re-location  

Total Budget £1.100m 

Expenditure to date £0.715m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.385m 

Future Years estimated spend £NIL 

Funding DCC £0.800m; Cymal £0.300m 

Comments Council have approved the re-location of the library to 

21 Kings Avenue.  

 

The process to relocate the existing tenants of 21 Kings 

Avenue has been complex and protracted. Consequently 

the estimated project costs have increased substantially; 

mainly as a result of compensation payments and 

relocation costs.  A potential additional cost of £182k 

has been included in the latest forecast. Work will 

continue to reduce this figure. However, provision has 

been made within service budgets to cover the 

additional cost. 

 

Construction is set to be complete by the start of 

November, and the new library is scheduled to open to 

the public on 25
th

 November 2013. 
 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £0.710m 

 

Welsh Medium Area School – Ysgol Maes Hyfryd Site 

Total Budget £1.413m 

Expenditure to date £0.389m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.798m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.226m 

Funding WG £1.2m; DCC £0.213m 

Comments Works commenced on site on June 2013. Good progress 

has been made over the summer with the completion of 

the main construction shell.  

A revision to the programme of works should ensure 

that the works are completed early in 2014, rather than 

the Summer as initially anticipated.  

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £1.101m 

 

North Denbighshire Welsh Medium Provision 

Total Budget £4.749m 

Expenditure to date £1.490m 

Page 401



Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £2.360m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.899m 

Funding  WG £3.061m, DCC £1.688m 

Comments Work at Ysgol Dewi Sant has been completed. 

 

Ysgol y Llys, Prestatyn 

This project will deliver an extended, remodelled and 

refurbished school for 420 pupils. Work is progressing 

well with the new extension, the superstructure is nearly 

complete and the windows are now on site. 

The new entrance to the school has now been opened 

up, although it will not be in use until the project 

completes in August 2014.  

Ysgol Twm o’r Nant, Denbigh 

This project will deliver additional school hall 

accommodation and teaching areas. Initial excavation 

works, foundation works and erection of steel 

substructure have been completed over recent weeks. 

The completion date remains at May 2014. 

 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £2.936m 

 

Ysgol Dyffryn Ial 

Total Budget £0.911m 

Expenditure to date £0.598m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.294m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.019m 

Funding DCC £0.898m; Other Contributions £0.013m  

Comments The new school was handed over ready for occupation 

during the first week of October. This was 6 weeks later 

than planned, due to bad weather and delays associated 

with the roof and external works. 

However, the school worked closely with the council to 

implement temporary measures at the Llandegla site 

which enabled the Bryneglwys site to be closed at the 

end of the 2013 summer term.  

Overall, the scheme will be delivered under budget. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £0.638m 

 

 

Page 402



   

 
Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:   29th October 2013 
 
Lead Member/Officer:  Councillor Bobby Feeley 

Lead Member for Social Care and Children's Services 
Sally Ellis, Corporate Director of Modernisation and Wellbeing 

 
Report Authors: Supporting People Planning & Service Development Officer  
 
Title:  GIFT Tender Exemption 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  

The Supporting People funded contract with the Wallich for the GIFT (Generic 
Intensive Floating support Team) project. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report? 

A decision is required on the exemption of the GIFT contract from the requirement 
to tender. 
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 
To approve the GIFT tender exemption and to award the contract to the Wallich, the 
existing provider 
 

4. Report details 

• The project provides housing related support to a minimum of 62 vulnerable 
people who present as homeless or potentially homeless or who live in 
temporary accommodation. 

• The Wallich has successfully provided this service since September 2010. 

• The project was tendered in 2010.  Three bids were received and evaluated.  
The contract was awarded to the Wallich. 

• The Supporting People Team carried out a full service review in April & May 
2013 which found that the project which found that the project has produced 
good outcomes, links well to local and national strategic aims and does well at 
ensuring participation, safeguarding and enabling service users. 

 
The GIFT service is categorised as a Part B service in accordance with EU and UK 
procurement legislation.  The proposed new contract represents a clear 
continuation of the services required under the existing contract. 
 
The attached Part B Tender Exemption Framework (see Appendix 1) demonstrates 
that the exemption of these services from tendering and the award of a new 
contract to the Wallich can be justified as reasonable following a balanced 
consideration of the relevant criteria listed in Contract Procedure Rule 10.1(m): 
i. Tendering the contract is unlikely to secure significant improvements in 

value for money 
� 

ii. The specification for the new contract differs from the existing contract � 

iii. The contract terms and conditions do not differ substantially from the 
existing contract 

� 

iv. The equivalent annual value of the contract for the requirements differs � 

Agenda Item 8

Page 403



   

slightly from that of the existing contract 
v. This contract was previously tendered in 2010 � 

vi. No previous contract for this service has been exempted from tendering � 

vii. The Wallich’s performance in delivering the GIFT project has been 
monitored and assessed as better than satisfactory. 

� 

viii. The quality of the Wallich’s services has been monitored and assessed as 
better than satisfactory. 

� 

ix. Improved value for money in respect of the contract price has been agreed 
with the existing provider. 

� 

x. The required services are not delivered in specific accommodation. � 

xi. The Supporting People team are not aware of any indications that 
tendering the service or changing provider would cause significant distress 
to service users to the extent that successful outcomes would be reversed 
or undermined. 

� 

xii. No other valid or relevant considerations have been identified as pertinent 
to this contract in this context. 

 
The annual contract value is £238,828 and the maximum duration of the 
contract is 5 years, therefore the total maximum funding allocation will be 
£1,194,140 for the full contract. 
 
In accordance with CPR 10.2, exemptions from tendering on the basis of one 
of the reasons listed in CPR 10.1 may be granted by Cabinet if the contract 
value is over £1,000,000.(1 million) 

 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

This project will contribute to supporting Denbighshire’s Corporate Plan 2012-2017 
in the following areas:- 

• Vulnerable people are protected and are able to live as independently as 
possible 

• Ensuring access to good quality housing 
This project plays a key role in contributing to the prevention of homelessness for 
vulnerable people. 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Cost Implications: £238,828 per annum has been allocated to this project from 
Denbighshire’s Supporting People Programme Grant funding. 
 

7. What consultations have been carried out?  
The project has been identified as strategically relevant and confirmed as a priority 
in the 2011-14 Supporting People Strategy and in the 2013-14 Supporting People 
Spend Plan. 

 
8. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

The proposals comply with Financial Regulations and the exemption sought is valid 
in this case. The cost of the project must be contained within the funding available. 

 
9. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

• Risks associated with not agreeing the recommendation/s: 
The contract will be put out to tender.  This might represent an inefficient use of 
Council resources if no improvement in value for money is achieved in excess of 
that afforded by the proposed remodelling of the service.  

Page 404



   

• Risks associated with agreeing the recommendation/s 
An exemption from tender would forego the opportunity to seek improved value 
for money from an alternative provider.  However this should be considered 
against the cost to the Council of conducting the tender and the potential 
disruption to the service. 

 
10. Power to make the Decision 

Section 111 of the Local Government Act (1972); Financial Regulation 31 (Contract 
Procedure Rules); CPR 10.1 

Page 405



Page 406

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet report 29/10/2013:  GIFT Tender Exemption 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Part B Tender Exemption Framework 

 
i. Cost/benefit 

 Please state the expected cost of tendering or obtaining quotations for the 
required services. 

£2444* 

 

 Please state the expected costs associated with changing contractor for 
the required services. 

£504** 

 

 Please state the maximum estimated potential cost savings likely to be 
gained from tendering or obtaining quotations for these services. 

Zero*** 

 
 Please outline the assumptions and methodology behind the maximum estimated potential cost 

savings quoted above (e.g. average cost savings achieved from a number of recent comparable 
tenders or quotations). 

 *Estimated time taken to conduct an OJEU tender: 

• Planning 

• Development of Specification 

• Managing notifications/tender pack request 

• Pre-Qualification Questionnaire / Provider Accreditation 

• Generic Administrative support, e.g. photocopying 

• Estimated cost of attendance of non SP staff (manager level) at the evaluation panel  
 
** Estimated time taken to manage handover to a new provider: 

• Time taken to set up administrative processes 

• Contract Management meetings 

• Probationary meetings 

• Contract Award meeting 
 
*** Based on the difference between the successful bid and the budget allocation when this project 
was tendered (2010).  There have been no changes in the market to indicate that we would be 
likely to achieve further savings if we were to tender this project again.   

      
ii. Contract specification 
 Does the specification of the new contract differ from that of the existing 

contract? 
Yes � No  

 If so, please give full details and reasons below.     

 The specification differs from the existing contract. 
The previous structure of four separate lots (sub-projects) within the contract has been integrated 
into a single structure to improve efficiency & flexibility and to simplify performance monitoring. 
The minimum staff numbers have been reduced from 9 to 8.25 (-8%).  The minimum number of 
service users has remained the same.  The project description, aims and outcomes, the referral 
routes and the delivery requirements are otherwise unchanged. 

      
iii. Terms & conditions     
 Do the terms and conditions of the new contract differ from those of the 

new contract? 
Yes  No � 

 If so, please give full details and reasons below.     

Page 407



 The terms and conditions of the contract will not significantly differ from those of the new contract.   
Some changes were required to reflect new Supporting People Grant Guidance issued in August 
2012. These do not alter the type or cost of the service provided. 
 

      
iv. Contract value     
 Does the annual value of the new contract differ from that of the existing 

contract? 
Yes � No  

 If so, please give full details below:     
 Existing annual value: £265,364       

 New annual value: £238,828 Variation: £26,536 Percentage: -10% 
 If variation is greater than +10%? please give reasons below.     

 The annual contract value has been reduced following negotiations with the current service 
provider. 
 

      
v. Previous tender/quotation     
 Have the required services previously been tendered or been subject to 

competitive quotations? 
Yes � No  

 If so, was this more than ten years before the end of the existing contract? Yes  No � 
 If so, please give full details and reasons below.     

 The GIFT contract was tendered in 2010.  Three bids were received.  The bids were evaluated 
and the Wallich was confirmed as the successful bidder. 
 

vi. Previous exemption     
 Have previous contract(s) for the required services been exempted from 

the requirement to obtain quotations or tender? 
Yes  No � 

 If so, on how many separate occasions has an exemption been granted?  
 Please give full details and reasons below.     
 No contract for this project has ever previously been exempted from the requirement to tender. 
 

      
vii. Contractor performance     
 Has the performance of the existing contractor been monitored against 

the existing contract? 
Yes � No  

 Please score the overall performance of the existing contractor from 0-10 6 

 (0 = failure to deliver contracted services    5 = satisfactory    10 = excellent performance)  
 Please give full details of performance against key indicators below.     

 The project has consistently submitted quarterly performance monitoring returns which indicate full 
contract compliance in respect of staff to client ratio and voids.  In 2012-13 the project reported 3% 
voids; this was well within the 10% maximum permitted. 
 
In 2012-13 the project reported an overall 2% shortfall in support hours due to a failure to cover 
staff absence.  This was subject to funding clawback totalling £3,977. 
 
In Quarter 1 of 2013-14, the project reported 4% voids and a 3% service delivery shortfall overall. 
 
This project was reviewed in May & June 2013:  “The project has produced good outcomes for 
service users.  It is clear the service is in demand and meets and links into local and national 
strategic aims and plans. The feedback from the staff, service users and stakeholders was 
generally very positive. Overall it does well at ensuring participation, safeguarding and enabling by 
various methods a service that can and does deliver outcomes. It has a good understanding of the 

Page 408



needs of service users, is very service users focused and empowers service users to take 
ownership of what they want from the service." 
 
NB: the review found that the provider had not adequately promoted or implemented the on-call 
service specified in the contract for the GIFT High element of the project (8 spaces for service 
users with high level needs). 
 

      
viii.Service quality     
 Has the quality of the required services as provided by the existing 

contractor under the existing contract been assessed? 
Yes � No  

 Please score the overall quality of the existing services from 0-10 7 

 (0 = wholly unacceptable    5 = satisfactory    10 = excellent quality)  
 Please summarise the service quality assessment below (including outcomes achieved).  

 The service review in April & May 2013 found that the project delivered high quality support 
services. 

      
ix. Value for money     
 Have significant improvements in value for money been secured during 

the term of the existing contract? 
Yes  No � 

 Will significant improvements in value for money be secured under the 
terms of the new contract? 

Yes � No  

 Please detail any improvements in value for money in respect of the contract specification.  

 The service review raised no concerns around value for money.  
 

 Please detail any improvements in value for money in respect of the contract price.  

 Improved value for money in respect of the contract price has been agreed with the existing 
provider.  The annual contract value will be reduced by 10% (£26,536) from £265,364 to £238,828 
p.a. 

 Please detail any improvements in value for money in respect of the service quality.  

 None. The service review indicated high service quality. 
 

      
x. Accommodation     
 Do the required services need to be delivered in specific accommodation? Yes  No � 

 Is there a significant risk that a change in contractor would result in the 
loss of that accommodation? 

Yes  No � 

 Please give full details and reasons below.  
  

      
 If current accommodation were lost, is there a significant risk that 

alternative accommodation would not be secured within a reasonable and 
practical timescale? 

Yes  No � 

 Please give full details and reasons below.  
  

      
xi. Service user(s)     
 Is there a reasonable probability that obtaining quotations or tendering Yes  No � 

Page 409



would result in significant or distress or other detriment to the welfare of 
the service user(s) or would reverse or undermine the achievement of 
successful outcomes? 

 Please give full details and reasons below.  
 No indications 
 

      
 Is there a reasonable probability that a change of contractor would result 

in significant or distress or other detriment to the welfare of the service 
user(s) or would reverse or undermine the achievement of successful 
outcomes? 

Yes  No � 

 Please give full details and reasons below.  

 No indications 
 

      
xii. Other considerations     
 If there are any other relevant factors which need to be taken into consideration, please give full 

details and reasons below 
e.g. the views of affected service users, the position of any joint funders, consideration of other 
stakeholders, current/historical market assessment & knowledge, consideration of the issue of 
State Aid, details of compliance with relevant applicable guidance (e.g. from Welsh Government, 
Value Wales etc.) 

 None 
 

  

Page 410



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 
 
 

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

26 November 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Establishment of an AONB Joint 
Committee 

To approve the 
establishment of a joint 
committee 

Yes Cllr Huw Jones / Lisa 
Jones 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 4 Vibrant and Viable Places -
Funding bid for Rhyl Town 
Centre projects 

To update members on 
progress. 

No Cllr Hugh Evans / Tom 
Booty / Sian Owen 

 5 Procurement Business Case for 
a combined Denbighshire and 
Flintshire service. 

To consider Business Case Yes Cllr D I Smith / Paul 
McGrady 

 6 Response to the Consultation 
on Town & Area Plans 

To consider the response to 
the consultation  on Town & 
Area Plans 

Tbc Cllr Hugh Evans /  
Rebecca Maxwell 

 7 Approval of Contract Award for 
Sub-regional Young Carers’ 
Service 

To award the contract Yes Vicky Allen  

 8 Business Rates Write-offs (Part To authorise any business Yes Cllr Julian Thompson-

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 411



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

2) rates write offs Hill / Paul McGrady / 
Ian Paul 

 9 Financial Position of the Scala 
(Part 2) 

To consider an update on the 
financial position of the Scala 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

      

17 December 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 2 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 4 Response to the Consultation 
on Town & Area Plans 

To consider the response to 
the consultation on Town & 
Area Plans 

Tbc Cllr Hugh Evans / 
Rebecca Maxwell 

 5 Public Realm Strategy To approve the Council’s 
Public Realm Strategy 
following the conclusion of 
the public consultation on its 
aims and objectives 

Yes Cllr. David Smith/ 
Hywyn Williams 

      

14 January 
2014 

1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

P
age 412



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

the Council 

 2 West Rhyl Housing 
Improvement Project 

Concept design of open 
green space to be 
considered 

Tbc Cllr Hugh Evans / 
Carol L Evans 

 3 North Wales Schools and Public 
Buildings Contractor Framework 
(NWSPBC Framework) - 
Contractors Appointment 

A decision is required to 
award the places to become 
part of the NWSPBC 
Framework following the 
tender process. 

Yes Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Tania Silva / Sion 
Evans / Stuart 
Andrews 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 5 Procurement Business Case for 
Three Counties 

To consider the Business 
Case 

Yes Cllr D.I. Smith / Paul 
McGrady 

      

18 February 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

      

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 3 Advocacy Provision for Children 
and young people in North 
Wales 

To commission a regional  
N. Wales advocacy service 
for vulnerable children and 

Tbc Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Michelle Hughes 

P
age 413



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

young people  

      

25 March 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 3 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

29 April 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

27 May 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

P
age 414



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

      

June 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 3 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

October 15 October November 12 November December 3 December 

 
Updated 16/10/2013 - SP 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 415



P
age 416

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 FAITH BASED PROVISION
	Consultation Report 2013 a
	Consultation Report 2013 b
	Consultaton Report (Child) c
	Consultation Report (Youth) d
	St Brigid's Evidence Booklet
	Consultation Report Correspondencef
	Consultation Report Estyn response - North Denbighshire g

	6 FORMAL CONSULTATION - YSGOL LLANBEDR
	Llanbedr Consultation Document Final
	Equality Impact Assessment Cabinet 291013 Llanbedr

	7 FINANCE REPORT UPDATE
	Revenue Appendix 1 Sep Outturn
	Appendix 2 Savings Sept
	Appendix 3 Capital
	Appendix 4 Major Project Update Sept 2013

	8 GIFT TENDER EXEMPTION
	Cabinet Report - GIFT Appendix 1

	9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

